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THOMAS COOK iS ONE OF THE
WORLD'S LEADING TRAVEL GROUPS
WITH SALES OF £96N. THOMAS COOK
iS SUPPORTED BY 22,000 COLLEAGUES
AND OPERATES FROM (7 COUNTRIES.
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Revenue* £7122m £6.646m

Gross margin %** _ 15.4% 16 9%

Underlying EBIT** £250m £255m

Underlying EBIT %** 3.5% 38%

M 190 Graphics removed

CUSTOMERS™™ OWN-BRAND HOTELS

@ GROUP AIRLINE

(Grepnc | Condor (S22 Thomas Caok Airlines

remo! removed
- o 2011 2016
Revenue* £3185m  £2.625m I
EBITDAR margin %** 13.3% 12.7% |
Underlying EBIT** o _ £115m £83m ]
Underlying EBIT %** 3.6% 29% !

18.5M 93 ‘
CUSTOMERS™  AIRCRAFT |

* Segmental revenue of £10.307m dees not nclude £0 300Im of internal revenug
which results in Group revenue of £9 007m

== Theterm ynderlying refers to trading resuits that are adjusted for separately
disclosed wems that are sigmificant in understanding the ongoing results of the Group
Separately disclosed 1tems are included on the face of the income statement and are
detalled 1n Note 7 to the Group financial statements This applies to all references
of underlying in this repart Underlying segmental EBIT of £365m does not include
corporate costs of £{35)m which results in Group underlying EBIT of £330m

==« Segmental custemers af 29 5m does notinclude $ 3m of internal custamers resuling
1n Group customers of 20 2m
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CUSTOMER AT OURHEART
MAKES US WHO WE ARE...

In 2015, we launched a pledge to put our
customer back at the heart of everything we do.
Our aim is to ensure we do all that we can to
give our customers great holidays which inspire
them to come back to Thomas Cook.

NET PROMOTER SCORE

Net Promoter Score is our primary
KPl and is explicitly inked to measuring
Group and Director performance.

tmage removed
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+9pts”™  +/pts’
Overall Group NPS measure Own-Brand Hotels and
2017 452 (2015: 36 7) Resorts NPS measure

2017, 387 (2015; 31 5)
* Increase from 2015
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|
+3pts”

Group Airline NPS measure
2017 26 6 (2015- 23.8]
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OVERVIEW

OUR CULTURE HELPS TO
MAKE US DIFFERENT...

In 2016, we launched our three Customer Promises:
Quality, Service, Reliability. These promises shape
everything we do as a business and determine
the values against which the performance of all of
our 22,000 colleagues is measured. We believe our

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017

QUALITY

We are passionate travelexperts
&have beencreating great
holiday memories since 1841,

We share customerreviews
before you bookto helpyou
choose the perfect trip for you.

We listen & acton
your feedback.

QOurteams & the partners we
wark with are always looking
to improve to make your
next holiday even better.

]
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SERVICE

We'llbe there whenever you
need us. Our teams are available
around the world, 24/7.

|
|
‘ promises are what set us apart from the competition.
|
|
|
|
|
|

We are happy to make you happy
& we promise to putyou at the
heart of everything we do.

Your holiday means
the world to us.

We'd love to welcome you
again & are committedto sending
you home with great memories
of your holiday.

]
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L

RELIABILITY

We care. You can trust
usto always be open
and honest with you.

We always give you allthe
information youneed to make
your time away stress-free.

Your money’s safe
when booking with us.

We're ATOL protected
for peace of mind.

‘ Logo removed
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STRATEG'C REPORT

AND OUR STRATEGY IS
DRIVING PROFITABLE GROWTH...

The mantra of ‘Customer at our Heart’
sits firmly at the centre of our strategy
for sustainable growth and our vision
to be the most loved holiday company.

(RATEGY CARE
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TREAMLINED ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
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> 24-hour gualty promise

> In-resort resolution for
carefree holidays

> Expert crisis management
» High health & safety standards

» Direct personal engagement
> Weh penetration

> Seamless CRM

> Rich content

OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

> Group Net Promoter Score up by nine points THE RESULT
since 2015

» 24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Promise extended Increasing
to reach 80% of sun & beach customers
In core hotels customer

» Annual health and safety audits on all core hotels

loyalty and
attracting new
customers

> Controlled distribution now 68%

> Webshare up 3 percentage points to 46%

> UK web sales up 27% and Germany up 22%
> 17 million companion app downloads

> Richer cnline content for greater inspiration
with 12 000 new images. 1,200 new room
plans and 520 new hotel videos

B PR SEEEEEEREEES.

» Thomas Cook Hotels & Resorts
for unigue experience

> Selected high-quality partner hotels
> Own Airline

> Personalised added-extras
& ancillaries

> Thomas Cook Money

> Thomas Cook China with Fosun
> Strategic partnerships
» Leveraging our brand

See more on page 30

> Own-brand hotels sales up 10% for the summer

> Moving towards fewer, better guality differentiated |
hotels ~ a further 310 removed for summer 2018 ‘

> Airline seat-only sales up by 16%

> Anciflary sales up a further 10%, reflecting
more personalised offers

> Launch of Thomas Cook Money to expand
financial services offering

OUR VISION

To be the
most loved
holiday
company

> Strong first year for Thomas Cook China.
growth targets on track

> Completed complementary hotel strategy
with Expedia alliance and Webjet partnership

THOMAS COCKGROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORYT

WITH A BUSINESS MODEL FOCUSED
ON THE CUSTOMER JOURNEY
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PEOPLE

Attracting, retaining and
developing our peopie (s critical
to putting customers at the
heart of what we do.

See mare on page 37

’ Image
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TECHNOLOGY

Technology underpins ail of our
processes and is key to how
we create value, from our IT,
our customer digital channels
or our airline efficiency.

See mare on page 35
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Our business model reflects the customer
journey from dream to experience.
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‘ ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES

How we manage our operations
( and its use of environmentaf
resources is important to both
our financial success and our
impact on the environment.

See more on page 33
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IN-DESTINATION MANAGEMENT
AND CUSTOMER RELATIONS

THE CUSTOMER JOURNEY

Our customers’ journey doesnt start in the airport. It begins with the first
holiday inspiration online or In a stere, through to planning and booking their
time away. to the experience on holiday with us and then the memories
they carry with them afterwards We are building closer relationships with
our customers throughout this cycle to increase loyalty and inspire more
customers to holiday with Thomas Cook.

( Image i
removed

OUR CUSTOMER CHANNELS
Putting the customer at the heart of our business also means

Qur customer teams are integral to our business and the
holiday experience that we give our custemers We believe that
the strength of the relationship we build with the customer Is
what sets us apartn a crowded market. Customer Relations
and In-Destination Services - our teams on the ground in resort
- build and maintain relaticnships so that our customers enjoy
the best of Thamas Cook

building direct contact with customers. whenever and wherever
they want to interact with us This includes developing our
websites to offer a better online experience. as well as maintaining
a network of profitable stores to attract. inspire and engage our
customers. The customer insight we have built up over the years,
along with the trust there is in the best brand in travel shapes

the approach we take to every customer contact

Image
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OUR OWN-BRAND AND
SELECTED PARTNER HOTELS

It is through our holiday offering that we
generate. preserve and capture value.

We focus our holiday offering on our cwn-
brand hotels and resorts. supplemented by
a defined portfoho of selected partner hotels
By concentrating on a streamlined portfolio
of hotels, we are able to have a greater
influence on the customer experience. driving
better customer loyalty and recommendations
while delivering higher margins.

Image
removed

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

We will enter into strategic partnerships
where we have the opportunity to
streamline our business while also tapping
inta new markets or widening our offer

to customers. Our strategic partnerships
alsc enable us to leverage the trust and
heritage of the Thomas Cook brand.

Image
removed ‘

OUR AIRLINE

We recognise that the flight to and from the
destination 1s an integral part of the holiday
experience Control of our own Airiine gives
us influence over the on-board experience
and enables us to create value through sale
of additional n-flight services The saie of
seat-only arline tickets maximises revenue
from the assets that we control.

Image
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QUR PARTNER AIRLINES

We partner with other airlines to maximise
the choice for our customers, increase
flexibility in our operations. and manage
our fleet mare effectively.

o i
Image |
removed

ADDED-VALUE SERVICES

To supplement the vaiue that we create
through our holidays. we offer a choice of
additional travel-related services to our
custamers, including airhne seat sales,
meals on board, transfers and excursions,
as well as holiday-related financial services.
Sales of these services give customers

the opportunity to personalise the holiday
experience and create additional returns
for the business

Image
removed

OUR COMPLEMENTARY
HOTEL PARTNERSHIPS

Partnerships with Expedia and Webjet

to outsource the production of our
complementary hotel offering allow us

to provide our customers with & broad
choice of hatels at the lowest possible
cost. This appreach means we can focus
on creating maximum value in the holidays
to our directly-contracted own-brand

and selected partner hotels.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnuatReportand Accounts 2017

140d34 21931V HLS



8

STRATEGIC REPORTY

HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE YEAR

‘ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

9.3p° £330m° 22.1% £12m

Underlying gross margin

( Underlying EPS Underlying EBIT

Image removed

Gur second Casa Cook
hotelin Kas

. Group Tour Dperatar

. Group Airhne ‘ S —

Eft 300tm of internal revenue which results in

* Segmental revenue of £10307m does not include
Graup revenue of £9007m
1
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

|

|

A strong recovery in Condar

our German arhne

\
]

Profit after tax

Image removed

Logos removed

Strategic partnerships which transfarm
aur apportunity for growth

** The tarm underlying refers to trading results
that are adjusted for separately disclosed items
that are significant inunderstanding the engoing
results of the Group Separately disclosed items
are included on the faca of the income statement
and are detailed in Note 7 to the Graup financral
staterents This applies to all references of
‘underlying in this report Underlying segmenitai
EBIT of £385m does not Include corporate costs
of £{35Im which results 1 Group underlying

ERIT of £330m

QUR BUSINESS BY SEGMENTS

*++ Spgmental customers of 29 5m does notmclude
9.3m of nternal customers resylting in Group
customers of 20 2m



CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT
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2017 has been a year of considerable strategic progress
at Thomas Cook. In what remains a highly competitive
environment - one that has contributed to the coflapse
of a number of competitors in the last 12 months -
Management’s focus on executing its strategy for
profitable growth has delivered good results for the year,
and set the business on a clear path for sustainable
growth in the years to come.

development of this company as we
pursue our unique strategy to focus
on our core holidays and streamline
the business, while at the same time
' partnering with the best in the industry
. to offer customers a greater choice”

|
|
|
|
|
|
I
: “We are at an exciting point in the
|
|
|
i

After five years of hard work to reposition Thomas Cook.
there is a real sense of energy and momentum in the
business - and tangible evidence of execution.

Despite the competitive backdrop. the Group delivered
an £28 million increase in underlying operating profit
to £330 million. an eight per cent Increase year-on-year,
and net profit of £12 milfion, the third consecutive year
of positive net profit after tax. We also took further steps
to strengthen the balance sheet. Debt was reduced

by another £89 millicn in the year, and the business
has signed new financing arrangements amounting

to £975 million. This builds on the work the Group has
done over the last five years to progressively improve
the terms and maturity of its debt to provide it with
greater flexibility and a more robust capital structure
over the medium term.

The progress the business made operationally sheuld
be seen alongside a number of very significant steps
the Group tock in 2017 to better position the business
for the future.

In September. the business secured what promises to

be a ground-breaking alliance with Expedia. Meanwhile,

a new strategic partnership with Swiss hotel property
development company, LMEY Investments. establishes the
launch pad to develop and grow Thomas Cook's portfolio
of own-brand hotels, key to the successiul delivery of the
Group's profitable growth strategy

Reflecting the Board s support for the progress that
has been made in the last year and 1ts confidence in
the strategy. the Board has recommended that we pay
a dividend to Shareholders of 0.6 pence per share.

Moving onto the business of the Board, we were
pleased to welcome two new Non-Executive Directors
in July, Jurgen Schreiber and Paut Edgecliffe-Johnson
Jurgen brings a breadth of international experience
across retall and consumer goods including Chief
Executive rcles in both a publicly-listed company and
large private companies Paul meanwhile as CFO

of InterContinental Hotels Group [IHG). brings deep
experience of the global hotel industry to the Board.

In January 2018, we will also welcome a new Executive
Director to the Board when Bill Scott takes over from
Michael Healy as CFO fellowing Michael's decision to
retire. | fook forward to Bill supporting us through the
next phase of the Group's development and would like

to thank Michael for the very significant contribution ne
has made to the financial health of the Group n his six
years with the business. | am pleased that he has agreed
to continue his invelvement in the business through
non-executive leadership roles in Thomas Cook China and
Thomas Cook Money, two important areas of potential
growth for the Group.

We are at an exciting point in the development of this
company as we pursue our unigue strategy to focus on
our core holidays and streamline the business. while at
the same time partnering with the best in the industry to
offer customers a greater choice. On behalf of the Board,

| would like to thank Peter Fankhauser, CEQ, and every
one of the 22,000 colieagues across the business for thair
commitment and hard waork in the past year. | would also
like to thank all of our Shareholders for their continued
support as we transform Thomas Cook for the future

FRANK MEYSMAN
CHAIRMAN

21 November 2017

THOMAS COOKGROUP PLC AnnuclReport and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REVIEW
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“Our focus on the customer drives
every decision that we take in the
business, from the hotels that we
sell every season and the service
promises that we make, through to
the destinations we fly to. But it
also determines the big decisions
that we take about the business
we want to be in the future.

PETER FANKHAUSER
CEO

THOMAS CQOKGRQUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017
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2017 has been a good year for Thomas
Cook. The actions we tock on strategy
in the last 12 months have transformed
the scale of the opportunity ahead

for the Group while at the same time
detivering strong growth in demand.
as more customers from across our
markets chose our modern package
and flight offer for their hard-earned
weeks in the sun.

The very deliberate decision that we

made two years ago {o put the customer
back at the heart of cur business is now
bearing fruit. Strong customer demand

for cur improved holiday offering helped
increase revenues by 9 per cent in the year.
This combined with an improved performance
in our German Airline, Condor, to deliver an
underiying gperating profit of £330 miflion,

an 8 per cent increase year-on-year. That we
achieved this growth in a highly competitive
environment shows how much more resihent
WE are as a business than even a few

years ago.

Most smportantly. we know that customers’
experience of their holidays with Thomas
Cook Is getting better all the time. Qur Net
Promater Score - or NPS - which 1S the
primary indicator of customer satisfaction
and the metric we look at before anything
else, has increased by nine points gver

the fast two years This refiects continued
growth in every ane of our significant
rmarkets in 2017

Our focus on the customer drives every
decision that we take in the business. from
the hotels that we sell every season and

the service promises that we make. through
to the destinations we fly to, But it also
determines the hig decisions that we take
about the business we want to be in the
future. It is perhaps there that we have made
the mast progress in the past 12 months.



TRANSFORMING CUR
OPPORTUNITY FOR GROWTH

The strategic alliance that we signed in
September with Expedia, cutsourcing
our city and domestic hotels business
and using Expedia technolegy. will
transform the way in which we work
By attracting one of tha best cperators
In the travel industry. we will be able to

offer a much greater choice to customers,

at lower cost and complexity to us. This,
in turn, will aliow us to focus on holidays
to our own-brand and selected partner
hotels in sun & beach destinations where
we know we can really set ourselves
apart from the competition

Our partnership with LMEY reinforces
that strategy. paving the way for the
creation of a joint hotel investment
platform which will enable us to super-
charge our por tfplio of own-prand
hotels and resorts

This will give customers an even greater
choice of high-quality hotels to suit

their needs, hotels that are unique to
Thomas Cook. and achieve higher levels
of customer satisfaction and earn better
margins than the portfolio average.

Another example of a successful
partnership 1s Thomas Cook China. our
joint venture with Fosun. which is growing
fast in a rapidly expanding market,

taking 20.000 bookings in its first year

of operations Qur focus on developing
streng partnerships with big technology-
led players in the Chinese market. like
Alibaba. gives us access to a big customer
base. while our tailored holiday offering
means we can differentiate ourselvesin

a competitive environment.

Meanwhile. the launch of Thomas Cook
Money builds on our long heritage in
financial services to offer customers across
our source markets new and simpler ways
to plan, save. borrow and spend their
haliday money. all supported by innovative,
easy-to-use technology

Each of these developments represent
an important step forward in delivering
our strategy for profitable growth.
Taken together. they transform the
opportunity ahead for the Group.

Image removed

CARE

Of course, the big strategic moves are only
relevant If we continue to do all we can to
ensure that every customer has the best
experience on holiday with Themas Cook.
Itis here where | believe that we have the
higgest opportunity to differentiate our
holidays from the competition - in the care
and the reassurance that we provide

In the last year. we have extended our
24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Promise to more
than 2.000 hotels, giving 80% of customers
who book a sun & beach holiday with
Thomas Cock the reassurance that if & hotel
15 not as we described it we will sort out
the issue or offer to move the customer

to angther hotel of the same standard
within 24 hours This represented a bold
move when we introduced it for summer
2016. one which is now paying off with
customer satisfaction on average 12 points
higher in those hotels with the 24-Hour
Hotel Satisfaction Promise than the rest

of the portfolio.

We continue to innovate 1o broaden our
appeal - and increase customers’ ability

to personalise ther holiday - with the
launch of a Choose Your Room' option.
Avallable in 300 of our core hotels for
summer 2018, this 15 another industry first
for a ‘traditional’ tour operating business
and shows how we are evolving to capture
greater opportunities.

Another area where we have made big
changes is in the way in which we talk
about risk to customers. We operate in a
market where disruption, whether from
natural disaster, political changes or terror
attacks can affect many of cur customers
and our operations We are not a security
company but we know that what we can
dois to be as transparent as possible about
potential risks - whether that's through
customer-friendly blogs or clear links to
the latest government advice - so that

the customer can make up their own mind
about whether to travel | am proud of how
far we have come

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

We have als¢ taken a leading role in

bringing the industry together on the issue
of health and safety. In September, the Safer
Tourism Foundation. the independent charity we
set up with Sharon Wood, the mother of Christi
and Bobby Shepherd, launched a pledge which
articulates a new approach to customer health
and safety within the mdustry This has already
been signed by seven major travel companies
In a move that we believe will promate greater
collaboration to achieve practical change for
the benefit of all customers

In our UK business, we have faced a specific
issue this year related to a dramatic surge in
itness campensation claims, many of which
we believe to be fraudulent. Qur presence in
destination through our resort teams and our
rigorous focus on hote! quality means we are
continually improving standards and can take
care of those who fall ill. but we must also
gragtect aur customers fram dishanest #iness
tlaims which threaten the price and availability
of all-inclusive holidays. We have made good
progress highlighting these false claims in
the courts, in the media and to government,
which we hope will lead to substantive
changes in legislation, inciuding the way

the claims industry is regulated. in time for
summer next year

We know that our approach to care needs also
to encompass the wider environment in which

we operate, at home and abroad. To this end.

this year we introduced a new animal welfare
palicy. becoming the first major trave! company
to commit to remove from sale any animal
attraction that 1s found not to be fully compliant
with the ABTA Global Welfare Guidance for
Animals in Tourism._ This is a bold step which
demonstrates cur commitment to change.

CONTACT

Qur customer focus also extends to
developing direct contact with customers

in order to strengthen cur relationships

and provide more personalised services
This starts with providing rich. inspirational
content on our websites and this year wa've
added over 110.000 images and 1200 room
p'ans to better engage our customers.

The investment we've made in our websites
has helped grow our online bookings with
the strongest growth in the UK, up 27 per
cent In 20i7. Across the Group, we now
achigve 46 per cent of all sales via the wah,
up three percentage points on last year

In this context, we continue to reshape our
retall store network to ensure we are well-
positioned to meet the changing customer
neads in the UK, the Co-opeérative’s exit from
our retall joint venture has enabled us to
take full control of our store portfolic and
in Germany, we've signed 92 new agancy
agreements to ingrease the proportion of
direct sales

OWN-BRAND HOTELS AND
RESORTS AND SELECTED
PARTNER HOTELS

0Of course. the other area where we can
genuinely differentiate oursslves is in the
holidays we offer and. most importantly. aur
ability to provide customers with holidays
that are unigue to Thomas Cook. To this end,
we have gradually been streamiining our
portfolio of hotels to focus the majenty of our
business on 3000 propearties where we know
we can have a higher degree of influence
over the quality and service standards.

Our own-brand hotels and resorts are central
to the success of this strategy These enable
us to provide customers with a consistent
and high-guality holiday. whatever their needs,
delivering higher satisfaction scores and
higher margins than the portfolio average
With the arrival this year of ingo Burmester,
who ran the successful Rebinsen brand for
TUI, we are now building a hotel management
company inside Thomas Coak under his
leadership, with the aim of growing the size
of the portfoiic and strengthening our brands

We made further progress in the year with
11 new openings in summer 2017, including
our second Casa Cook in Kos and a new
Sunwing Ocean Beach Club in Cyprus.

We also added a seventh brand to the
portfolio in the ferm of Aldiana. the premium
club-based activity format, through an
acquisition of a 42 per cent stake in the
business as part of & wider partnership
agreement with LMEY. At the same time,
we have continued to rigorously manage
the portfolo fer quality. removing hotels
where they don't meet our standards. | feel
very optimistic about the future growth
prospects for this part of our business in
the coming year as we waork to dentify
new properties and build up our pipeline

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC ArnualReport and Accounts 2017

AIRLINE

Another element of our holiday offering where
| feel optimistic is our airline Over the last four
years. and in a very competitive market, we've
transformed it from four essentially separate
arlines whose primary task was to transport
our tour operator custgmers, to one airline
group with an increasingly successful seat-
only business, particularly on long-haul routes
and its own distribution channels In doing so,
we have created Europe’s third-largest airline
to sun & beach destinations which competes
wing-to-wing with the low-cost carriers,

and Europe's sixth-largest long-haul carrier
with an expanding range of destinations

and a compelling customer offer

We have now formalised the work Managerment
has undertaken to create cne Group airline.

by separating its reporting and legal structure.
This is the logical next step which reflects the
way we think about the airline business within
the Group. fram our airline being the primary
transport for the tour operator ta becoming

a leisure airline in its own right. with its own
commercial relationships, distribution channels
and growth targets - while sharing the Group's
absolute focus on giving our customers the
best possible experience of Thomas Cook

PARTNERSHIPS

We are very clear in our strategy for profitabie
growth that we will focus our attention and
resources on a number of key areas where
we can genuinaly he different from the
competition. This approach is compiemented
by a series of partnerships which enable us to
streamline our operations, while also tapping
into opportunities for growth

The strategic alliance with Expedia agreed at
the end of this year to outsource our city and
domestic hotel business, while harnessing their
technology for our hotel-only offering. is the
most significant of those partnerships agreed
during the year, This, combined with the deal
we agreed in 2016 to gutsource the sun & beach
hatels which sit cutside of our core partfolic

to Wehjet, completes our complementary hotal
strategy and positions us for growth in this area
of the business at the lowest possibie cost.

However. we alse made good progress in Thomas
Cook China, a joint venture with Fosun launched
September 2016 A full-service travel company. in a
fast-expanding market, our China business bocked
20,000 custorers in its first year. Our ambition
in 2018 1s to grow that number tenfold



OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES

The strategy we are executing setsout a
clear path to profitable growth. But it also
results in a business which is much simpler
with a leaner organisational structure We're
working to remove duphcation from across
the business and to align processes to fit
the new shape of Thomas Cock.

In this respect, the new strategic alliance
with Expedia, and the execution of the
Webjet agreement. effectively outsourcing
cur complementary business, is a catalyst
for the next stage in the transformation of
the business | believe it will enable us to
realise significant cost savings and remove
further layers of complexity in our systems
and processes.

CONCLUSION

In summary, Thomas Cock has made
significant progress in 2017 We operate in an
industry that 1s constantly changing. impacted
by events that are often unpredictable and
regularly beyond our contro! The companies
that succeed are those that are operaticnally
flexible and which can anticipate shifts in
customer demand.

The fact that we have successfully managed
through a competitive environment while

at the same time taking big decisions that
will strengthen our position for the future 1s
testament to the hard werk and engagement
of our 22 000 people around the globe They are
the ones that make this company different.
focusing on every detail to make our customers

experience of our holidays even better

THE SAFER TOURISM
FOUNDATION PLEDGE i
> We are fully committed to the aim of the Safer |
Tourism Foundation to improve the health and
safety of tourists when they are on holiday \
We will do all we reasonably can to provide a |
safe and healthy environment for our customers |
when they go on heliday with us i
We will use aur influence on our partners overseas
ta improve health and safety standards for
our customers !
We will engage with our customers throughout \
|

~

v

~

their customer journey to ensure they have
access to the information they need to help keep
themselves and their families safe and well

Image removed

Looking across the Group. | see real
mamentum behind our strateqgy for
profitable growth The actions we have
taken in the last 12 months accelerate the
transformation of Thomas Cook into a truly
modern, streamlined travel company with
the customer at the heart of everything that
we do - for the benefit of our customers.
our people and our Shareholders

PETER FANKHAUSER
CEO

21 November 2017

~

We will encourage our customers to be aware of
the health and safety risks that they may face
on holiday and how they can reduce the risks

to themselves

We will act promptly when customers raise
genuine health and safety concerns, to reduce
the risks to them and to future travellers

We will share our expertise and anonymised data
with cther organisations that want to work with
us to improve the health and safety of tourists

~
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OUR MARKETS TODAY

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

For six consecutive years, the Travel &
Tourism sector has outperformed the global
economy The 10-year forecast from the
World Travel and Tourism Council anticipates
this trend to continue, with average growth
of 39 per cent per year. versus a forecast
of GOP growth of 3 8 per cent.

In addition, package holiday bockings are
forecast to outgrow independent travel
over the next four years as consumers
look for ways to make their leisure spend
go further. Mintel estimates that package
travel in the UK will grow by 28.5 per cent
by 2021, compared with independent travel
which is forecast to grow by 17 per cent
International tourist arrivals increased

by six per cent in the first haif of 2017
compared with the same period in 2016
and significantly above the four per cent
annual growth since 2010. According to
the UNWTO Mediterranean destinations
reported particularly strong growth in
international tourist arrivals in the first half
of 2017 This trend is driven by the continued
strength of many destinations in the area,
combined with a significant rebound in
destinations that suffered decreases in
previous years, such as Turkey, Egypt and
Tunisia The rebound is thanks in part to

a more stable geopolitical environment

N these countrigs in 2017 versus the
disruptian of 2016

Graph removed

L

Overseas visitors to Turkey and Egypt
increased by 25 per cent and 51 per

cent respactively compared with 2016

The UK Government's decision to Iift its
recommendation against travel to Tunisia

in July 2017 1s a further sign of positive
development in the region. Overall. countrigs
within Europe saw an eight per cent rise

in nternational tourism arrivals in the first
six months of the year.

Within our source markets. the OECD
estimates that the Eurozone wili grow by
19 per cent cver 2018, with Germany, our
largest Eurozone spurce market, just ahead
at 2.1 per cent. UK GDP is expected to rise
by one per cent while Sweden, Denmark
and Norway are forecast at 2.3, 21 and

1.5 per cent respectively

POLITICAL AND REGULATORY
ENVIRONMENT

We expect Brexit to impact the requiatory
framework in which we operate for both
our UK husiness and our wider Group
operations, and we are actively planning
and preparing for this. Most importantly, the
UK's current membership of Europe’s Single
Aviation Market will change upon the UKs
withdrawal from the EU as will the UK's
access to EU employment markets including
the country's ability tc place temporary
workers in EU Member States without
additional barriers

With regards to maintaining access to

the Single Aviation Market. we continue

to make the case for the extensian of
existing aviation arrangements through

a transitional agreement that retams the
current framework. This would pravide
welcome certainty for customers and
businesses alike. Having already begun the
sale of flights and holidays in the post-Brexit
€ra, we now require urgent clarity from
the UK Government and EU institutions on
a transitionary agreement We continue to
make the case for a comprehensive EUUK
air transport agreement (n the longer-term.

We are working with UK and EU
governments to highlight the benefits of the
Posted Workers Directive and to advocate
that these benefits are replicated in a future
trade agreement, or bilateral arrangements
between the UK and EU Member States.

Within the UK, the 1ssue of fraudulent
holiday sickness compensation claims
threatens both the cost and availability of
alt inclusive halidays for our UK customers
We have worked with the government to
highlight the prevalence of fraud within the
sickness claims industry, both directly and
through the media. as well as pressing the
case for effective regulation of the claims
management companies which encourage
customers to make claims - and in many
cases encourage fraudulent activity

/
{
!
J
!

|
|
|
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L

Source UNWTO Toursm highiights 2017 Edition
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We welcome the UK government's call

and Claims 8ill. both of which we are
menitoring closely and contributing to
where apprapriate

The European Package Travel Directive
will be implemented across the EU

by 1 july 2018 We welcome that the
implementation of the Directive will
help to bring & level playing field for
travel businesses selling linked trips

‘ incorporating a flight and a hotel booking

for evidence on the topic in October 2017
and the passage of the Financial Guidance

from | January 2018, with full compliance

We are working with the EU to make

sure that the measures are implemented
consistently across our markets and that
customers have clarity on the protections
that the Directive brings.

In February 2017 the European Union
Competition Commission launched an
investigation into the travel industry
regarding hotel accommodation agreements
with a focus on the availability cf hotel
bookings and pricing between member
states Thomas Cook 1s committed te fair
and open competition and will cooperate
fuily with the Cemmission through

the process.

Graph removed

Since current data protection legislation
was introduced. our use of technology

has changed the way we use and process
perscnal data in May 2018, the General Data
Protection Regutation {GDPR) will come into
effect This will bring legislation up to date
with the new. previcusly unforeseen ways
that data is now used and will harmonise
data protection rules and reguirements
across the EU. We are implementing
changes to ensure that the personal data of
our custemers and employaes is protected
effectively and consistently across the
business and that both our customers

and employees have transparency on how
their data may be used by Thomas Caok
and the protections that the GDPR brings

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

CUSTOMERAT
OUR HEART

| ‘Customer at our Heart' is the cornerstone of our

{ strategy for profitable growth. Our desire to create

| a genuinely customer-centric organisation shapes the

| way in which we think about the culture of the business
| and the values by which we work. It continues to act

| as a powerful catalyst for change and we believe it is

( where we have the biggest opportunity to differentiate
) ourselves from the competition.

) We know that happy customers are more likely to

come back te Thomas Cook and to recommend us to
their friends. As customer loyalty increases, our cost

cof sale goes down as customers choose Thomas Cook
because of our reputation rather than our marketing
We also know that on average customers that return to
Themas Cook spend more with us than new customers.
reflecting their increased trust in our holiday offering

Operationally, we focus our Customer at cur Heart

strategy i two areas: the care and reassurance

‘ we provide to our customers. set out in our three
Customer Promises of Quality, Service and Reliability;
and the contact we maintain with customers,

[ ensuring that we are accessible however they
choose to interact with us and forming long-lasting

relationships throughout the year.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

CARE

We believe that the biggest opportunity we have
to differentiate a Thomas Cook holiday from the
competition is in the level of care and reassurance
that we provide to our customers.

That principle of customer care informs the approach
that we take across the business; our colieagues who
offer advice and customer service before, during and

after their holidays: the quality assurance that our teams

N resort grovide through the formation of deep. iong-
lasting relationships with our hotel partners: and the
assistance we offer if something goes wrong - from
individual incidents of hotel snags rnght through to
emergency evacuations In crisis situations

In a sign of our commitment to drive meaningful
change in customer satisfaction across the business,
we created a Group Customer Experience Team in 2015
Bringing expertise from across our source markets and
in-resort teams. the team drew up a Structured four-
year plan with the objective of delivering outstanding
customer experience and differentiating Thomas Cook
as the most loved heliday company

In year one their focus was on fixing the basics by
identifying the key drivers of customer satisfaction
and implementing NPS as the single KP! for custaomer
satisfaction and one of the key metrics of business
performance across the Group.

Year two involved delivering the priority improvements
identified. and introducing the voice of the customer
via customer feedback into our plans for the future

We are now in year three of our plan, which is all about
leveraging customer care as a genuine differentiator for
our business. We have introduced new organisational
values across the Group which properly reflect our
priorities as a holiday company: "We put our heart into
it, ‘Wear their flip flops” and ‘We're one Thomas Cook’.
These are directly finked to cur Customer Promises of
Quality. Service and Reliability respectively. See overleaf
for more details

OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

We are now seeing evidence of the direct link between
NPS upfift and rebocking rate. Our data demonstrates
that the hotels which score highest in NPS achieve

nat anly a higher reboaking rate, but also attract

mare new customers to Thamas Cook, shawing that
customer advocacy is playing an increasingly important
role in the growth of our business

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017

NET PROMOTER SCORE

+3pts

Resorts NPS measure
2017- 387 (2015 315)
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Our Academy of Excellence established to work with our

hotel partners to help them maintain the highest standards

of customer service and quality at our hotels, is now in
its third year In 2017 it helped implement gver 650 quality
improvement plans with hoteliers, contributing to a rise in
NPS acress our core hotel portfolio this year.

For summer 2017 we extended our 24-Hotel Satisfaction Promise

to cover 2,000 hotels in our core portfalio of own-prand and

selected partner hotels, giving 80 per cent of our core sun &

beach holiday customers additional reassurance of quality and
service. Wa plan to increase the rali out to cover 100 per cent of
custormers on hehday in our ¢ore portfalic of 3170 hotels in 2018

We have also succeeded in ingreasing the proportion of
complaints that we have been able to resolve in resort

befcre customers come home. The result 1s that customers

come home happier, while we spend less on customer
relations in qur source markets.

There 1s more to come as we introduce new ways 1o

increase loyalty and attract new customers ta Thomas Cook

New innovations for summer 2018 include the ability to
pre-book a specific hotel room based on detailed fioor plans
and imagery.

- -



CASE STUDY

GAMBIA
EVACUATION

January is a pepular time for holidays

to the Gambia. which offers reliable
winter sun in a beautiful African setting
Unfortunately, political instability following
a disputed election caused the UK Foreign
Office in January 2017 to change its

travel advice for this smalt West-African
nation, recormmending against all but
essential travel.

We had been monitoring the situation for
some weeks and maintaining close contact
with the Foreign Office to understand what
impact the escalating tension could have on
civil stability With just one airport and an
unfavourable meuntainous geography. we
knew that we had to act early to position
aircraft and crew in the region so we had
the operational flexibility to evacuate our
customers at short notice should the
situation deteriorate

Image removed

..................

| Image removed

Before the UK Government changed the
travel advice, we had already drawn up

a logistics plan in anticipation of the
situation escalating Aircraft capacity and
crew avallabiity were earmarked for a
potential full evacuation. as were Special
Assistance Team members willing to travel
to the Gambia in support of a potential
ground operation That meant that when
the change in advice came, we were ready
sending extra flights directly from the UK,
on top of the existing scheduled flights
which we sent in empty. We also operated
reserve aircraft based in the Canary Islands
and used Las Palmas in Gran Canaria as a
bridgehead, switching crew and refueling
as necessary This shorter flight time from
Banjul to the Canary Islands allowed for
an increased number of rotations and an
accelerated evacuation process

PAUL HUTCHKINGS

MANAGING DIRECTOR COPERATIONS
THOMAS CCOK AIRLINES UK AND GROUP
DIRECTOR CF FLIGHT OPERATIONS

We provided all of our package
hofidaymakers and our seat-only airline
customers with a seat on a rescue flight
home, in total repatriating 3.500 customers
in three days with 16 rescue flights.

Qur Airline gives us the responsiveness
to evacuate our customers when they
most need us. while our world-class In-
Destination Management teams, supperted
by our trained Special Assistance Team.
offer support to our customers on the
ground. We believe that it is this ability
to offer our customers the reassurance
that we will be there when things gc
wrong which differentiates us from
the competition

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPORT

PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

CONTACT

Putting our customers at the heart of the
business means building a closer relationship
throughout the year. wherever and whenever
our customers want to engage with us.

From the way we persuade our customers 1o come 1o us
first. how we sell them our flights and halidays. threugh
to how we retain and strengthen that relationship,

we are building seamless contact with our customers
throughout ther holiday journey

Thus (ncludes developing rich, inspirational content that
stands out in a crowded online marketplace and will
grab customers’ attention to drive higher conversion.

By investing in our websites we can grow our cnline
presence and reshape our retail estate to create a

true omni-channel approach to how we sell our holidays

To stay close to our customers, we are building world-
class customer relationship management. Including
improving our personalised interaction with customers in
the perod running up to their holiday threugh a holiday
companion app

This direct contact with customers through the channel
of their choice, be that in-store. through our customer
contact centres or onliné. means we can drive loyalty and
increase sales of tailor-made services which add value
to our customers’ holidays and increase satisfaction
scores, while at the same time lowering cost of sale
and achieving higher margins

INSPIRING QUR CUSTOMERS

... 112,000

removed | .
‘ iMAGES APDED TO
—— THE WEBSITE
e | 1.7M
@e‘j POWNLOADS OF
-~ OUR MOBILE APP
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OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

Over the course of the year. we added more than 112,000
images to our website. 1200 room plans and 520 hotel
and destination videos to further enrich our websites
and inspire our customers

We also created a single content hub to better distribute
our content across a'll of our online channels and leverage
the Group's marketing assets on a larger scale.

These investments in our websites have led to strong
growth in onlkne bookings for our magor markets Qverali,
the share of sales generated through the web increased
by ancther 3 per cent across the Group, meaning we now
take 46 per cent of bookings cnline.

In Germany we grew web bockings by Zi per cent. in the UK
by 27 per cent and in Scandinavia. by a further 7 per cent
so that 81 per cent of sales are now made online. We have
also made progress in mohile with 45 per cent of online
bookings in the UK accounted for by mobile devices split
equally between mobile and tablet

As online grows we have further reshaped our retail
network in the UK, introducing nine ‘Discovery stores,
larger stores in higher feotfall areas, to broaden our reach
as we continue to reduce the number of stores which
this year fell from 780 to 692 cutlets.

Qur moblle companion app, now live in Germany, Northern
Europe and the UK, has been downloaded 17 million
times, strengthening the direct relatronships with our
customers. improving their holiday experience and
generating Increased sales of added services.

This facus on improved customer contact has increased
direct distribution acress the Group by one percentage
point to 68 per cent
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CASESTUDY

RESHAPING OUR CONTACT |
WITH CUSTOMERS IN THE UK

This year we've seen a big increase in
maobile bookings from our UK customers,
which now account for 45 per cent of
online bookings up from 40 per cent last
year It's part of a clear shift in the way our
customers research and book their holidays
which has helped increase onling bogkings
from 43 per cent of our Group sales to

46 per cent this year

We are adapting to this changing behaviour
by investing in our websites and the way
we attract customers cnling, and this

year UK digital sales overall ncreased by a
further 27 per cent on top of the 9 per cent
growth we achieved in 2016. While weTe
pleased with the progress were making,
we also need to make sure were giving
customers a seamless experience of
Thomas Cook wherever they choose

to Interact with us - be that in person

or online

It's clear that our shops remain an
important channel through which we can
showcase the best of our holiday offering.
as well as provide the expertise and
reassurance that many customers value
as part of their largest annual purchase.
Our 2017 UK Holday Report showed that
two-thirds of customers still come into
stores to speak to our experts before
bocking their holiday. while 47 per cent of
our holidays are still booked in our shops.

At the start of this financial year we

took two important steps to meet those
changing customer needs First. we took
full control of our all our UK stores after
announcing that we would buy the Co-op
out of our retall joint venture, allowing us
to move to one single Thomas Cook brand.

Second. we took the decision to refocus
our store network into two key formats
to make sure were offering our customers
the best of a 2Ist Century travel company:

" KATHRYN DARBANDI
i DIRECTOR OF RETAIL AND CUSTOMER
" EXPERIENCEAT THOMAS COOK UK & |

larger stores in higher footfall areas like
shopping centres and retail parks. and
smaller stores in traditional high street
locations. Over the past 12 months, weve
refurbished or rebranded 51 stores and
closed 101 stores meaning we've now cut
the size of our network by 45 per centin
the past five years to 692 stores, with
many of the closures in areas where there
was a geographic overlap between the
Themas Cook-branded shops and
Co-operative Travel branded shops.

In this financial year we've increased
revenue in the UK by three per cent. thanks
in large part to the work we've done online.
Despite closing 101 stores at a cost saving
of E12 million, our retail sales have remained
broadiy flat. Crucially, weve increased the
proportion of the holidays we sold through
our own channels by a further 1.5 per cent
to 835 per cent - evidence that weve
improved contact with our customers
wheanever and wherever they need us

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017
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STRATEGIC REPCRT

PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

OUR HOLIDAYS

Of course, it is the quality and range of our holidays that
[ determine the success of our business. We want Thomas Cook

customers to trust us to provide a range of consistently
high-quality hotels which provide excelient value for money.

Our strategy is increasingly te focus our attention on a
more streamlined portfolio of around 3000 hotels by 2019
By focusing on a smaller number of properties, we can
have a greater influence over the customer experience,
enabling us to offer holidays that are unique to Thomas
Cook with a level of care and quality that stands out from
the competition

By focusing the majority of our business on a more
streamlined portfolio, we are also selling more of the
rooms in those hotels across more of our source markets
This means we are able to better leverage our scale and
develop deeper relationships with the hoteliers, with
helidays to these select partner hotels delivering higher
than average selling prices and margin

At the heart of this portfolio of hotels sit our own-brand
hotels and resorts. which are franchised. managed or
directly owned by Thomas Cook These are complemented
by our selected partner hotels. contracted directly and
developed in partnership with hateliers

In these hatels we seek to give customers elements

of their holiday that are unigue te Thomas Cook.

These include our 24-hour hotel satisfaction promise.

our on-the-ground resort teams and our connected
services helplines; as well as a raft of measures that
customers don't see - from more frequent auditing for
health and safety tc the work done by our team of quality
managers to ensure that we are providing a standard of
accommodation and service of which we can be proud.

We rigorously track the performance of every one of
these hotels using customer feedback. If they fall short.
we take them out of the partfolio,

OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

We continued ta mnovate to improve the customer
experience in our core portfolio of hotels in the past

12 months. We expanded our 24-hour hotel satisfaction
promise to cover 2 000 hotels. accounting for more than
B0 per cent of our sun & beach customers

We further reduced the portfolio of directly-contracted
hotels by 310 to 3170 for summer 2018, marking good
progress towaras our target of 2900 by FY19 At the
same time, we increased sales to our own brand and
selected partner hotels by eight per cent in the summer
compared with 2016. reflecting the strong demand for
our differentiated hotiday offer

We now share 42 per cent of our hotels across more
than one of our source markets, compared with just
seven per cent three years ago, imgroving the scale
benefits we get in these hotels.

IMPROVING OUR CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

+8% 310

SALESTO HOTELS
OWN-BRAND REMOVED
AND SELECTED FROM OUR
PARTNERS HOTELS  PORTFOLIO
iN SUMMER 20(S
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3,170

OWN-BRAND [ ) ’
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PARTNERS

HOTELS FOR ‘
SUMMER 20(% J
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As part of our strategy to rigorously
manage the quality of our select partner
hotels we track NPS scores at afl stages
of the haoliday This year we stepped up the
resources and tools available to our hotel
quality managers in destinations to help
improve this process.

We want our guality managers to operate
at the heart of the feedback loop between
customers our source markets and

our hotels, to make sure weTe doing all
that we can to continually improve our
holiday offering.

The remit of our team of 49 quality
managers is simple: to ensure all of the
hotels in our core portfolio offer the

best possible quality to our customers.
This means working closely with cur hotel
partners to identify areas of improvement,
based on customer feedback and oyr
quality managers' rich experience in the
holiday industry

IN-DESTINATION SERVICES -
HOTEL QUALITY TRACKING

Image removed

Image removed

Our portfolio of services, which inciudes
hotel training and consulting services,
the Sunny Heart Academy of Excellence
and online reputation managemeant
advice. means that the team is able to
offer valuable support for hoteliers to
improve overall standards for the benefit
of all customers,

In 2017 the team undertook close 1o

10,000 hotel visits, implemented more
than 650 guality improvement plans and
manitored over 800 hotel construction and
refurbishment projects.

We also saw the benefits of a new system
introduced last summer to bring a more
data-driven approach to the guality
managers work. The Quality Tracking Tool 1s
a web-based programme that compiles into
one place all relevant hotel KPIs, including
NPS. customer service questionnaires and
online performance, as weli as construction
reports, quality manager visits and quality
improvement plans.

JURGEN HEISS
GROUP HEAD OF QUALITY,
CONNECTED SERVICE & LOGISTICS

This gives us a comprehensive set of
qualitative and quantitative measurements
that help us to put the right plans in place
te support underperforming hotels that
want to improve, or make the difficult

but necessary decision to terminate the
contracts of those hotels that do not

The results have been clear - NPS has risen
across the hotel portfolio and was a full five
points above target in summer 2017 with a
particular improvement in underperforming
hotels. It has also made more clear where
we need to terminate hotel contracts -

as we did with 100 hotels from our UK
portfchio at the start of the year - in order
to maintain the quality and service that
our customers expect frem a Thomas

Cook holiday.
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PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

OWN-BRAND HOTELS & RESORTS

The development of a strong portfolio of own-brand hotels
and resorts is critical to the success of our strategy for
profitable growth. They enable us to provide customers with
a consistent, high-guality and unique holiday, whatever their
needs. and earn us higher returns than the portfolio average.

Our aim is to build a hotel company within Thomas Cook
with a community of hoteliers who want to work with
our brands and loyal customers who follow the brands
round the world By building deeper and longer-lasting
relationships with our own-brand hoteliers and taking
mare capacity at the hotels, we have greater influence
over the service levels and quality standards. As a result.
these hotels achieve higher customer satisfaction scores
and higher loyalty than the portfolio average. We alse
earn additional revenues through management. incentive
and franchise fees. Together with the brand value which
these hotels command, we earn a higher margin for these
hotels than cthers in our holiday offering.

OURPROGRESS IN 2017

We made further progress in 2017 in strengthening our
existing portfolio of own-brand hotels and developing

a pipeline of new hotels, We continued to rigorously
manage the guality in our hotels, taking a total of i9
properties from the portfolio which did not meet the
quality expectations we set. We opened tl new hotels
for summer 2017 including a new Sunprime hotel in
Tenerife, our first italian cwn-brand property, in Sicily,
and the successful launch of our secend Casa Cook in
Kos We have a further 20 hotels in the pipeline to apen
between winter 2017 and summer 2019 This includes at
least another two Casa Cooks.

As the guality of our own-brand hotels improved. so we
continued to drive a higher number of bookings tc the
portfolio. Sales to our own-brand hotels increased eight
per cent In 2017

The arrival in the spring of our new Chief Hotels Officer.
Ingo Burmester. farmerly head of TUI's Robinsen hotel
brand. brought welcome experience at the head of the
teant and provided an opportunity to reboot our approach
in this part of the business

In September we took a significant step forward by
agreeing a néw strategic partnership with Swiss-hased
hotel property development company LMEY Investments
Under the terms of the agreement. Thomas Cock has
acquired a seventh brand in the popular club-based
sector with a 42 per cent stake in Aldiana. a premium club
and activity-focused tour operator and hotel management
company based in Germany.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

In additien, the two companies have agreed to work
together te create a joint hotel investment platform,

in order to accelerate the growth of Thomas Cook's
own-brand hotels portfolto. The partners will contribute
a minimum of five owned and directly-managed hotel
properties between them, which will be used to develop
the platform into a fund focused on acquiring a pipeline
of further hotel and resort assets across Thomas Cook's
destination markets.

In total we closed the year with 190 awn-brand hotels
in the portfolio. including the eight Aldiana resorts
which will came as part of the agreement we signed
in September

STRENGTHENING OUR PORTFOLIO

Image removed
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HOTELS APDED NEW ROTELS FOR
TO OUR PiPELINE SUMMER 2017



CASE STUDY

CASA COOK
KOS

We introduced Casa Cook as a hotel brand
in 2016 to fill a niche in the travel industry
boutigue resorts that tick all the boxes
for a growing generation cf independent
travellers, many of whom would not think
to book a package holiday.

We wanted Casa Cook to be an eclectic
collection of stylish modern resorts with a
low-key vibe, each with its own personality
inspired as much by the local surroundings
as our interpretations of global travel trends
and tastes The pool, bar and restaurant form
the social hub at each hotel, informed by the
Greek concept of ‘Parea - roughly translated
as a get-together with friends te nourish
the body and mind. The staff are attentive
yet discreet, guided by a service culture that
encourages guests to determine their own
holiday rhythm This extends to the dining
experience healthy and made with regional
products. food is served any time of day and
well into the evening

We opened our first Casa Cook in May 2016 in
Rhodes, Greece. In just one season we knew
we were spot-on with our concept.

Image removed

The feedback has been overwhelmingly
positive and &0 per cent of our guests were
new to Thomas Cook. proving that we have
achieved our aim of attracting travellers who
thought a holiday package wasn't for them.

Our second Casa Cook in Kos posed a
challenge - how to replicate the success of
Rhodes and maintain censistency of brand
whiie at the same time forging a unique
identity at the new hotel. With a beautiful
focation on the north ¢coast of Kes, nestled
between the countryside and the soft.
dune-tacked heach, we knew we had the
backdrop for a stunning additicn to the Casa
Cook hotel, and the greenfield site allowed
us to be even bolder in our design to embed
the Casa Cook ethos from the ground up.

Like Rhodes, the hotei's pool, beach bar and
restaurant are designed to bring guests
together. The rooms themselves were all
created as private sanctuaries, focusing on
stylish simplicity. many with their own or
shared pools The result is a perfect balance
of private and shared argas, akin to historic
Greek villages and their labyrinth of cubist

Image ‘ ......

REMO MASALA
GROUP CREATIVE DIRECTOR

houses, designed to harmonise with the
surrounding landscapes.

At the close of our first summer, were

very happy with what we've achieved in

Kos. The hotel ran at 95 per cent occupancy.
showing how well our new brand has landed
since we opened in Rhodes in May 2016,
again with almost 75 per cent of customers
new to Thomas Cook. Guests from acress

all of our source markets were attracted

to our new Casa Cook, and we achieved

a customer satisfaction score of 87-a
fantastic result for any hotel, [et alone one in
its first months of operation.

Next year we cpen our third Casa Cook

In Chania, Crete ~ a pure family concept
that is very different to what people

might expect In 2012 we go to Croatia where
we'e putting the Casa Cook vision inte

a sixties-era hotel - our most exciting
challenge yet. There's no doubt we've got

a big task to balance local individualism
with our house style when we grow to four
hotels. but if Casa Cook Kos is anything to
go by, were on the right track.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

OUR AIRLINE

The other key element of our holiday offering which is
increasingly important to our strategy for profitable growth
is our airline. Over the last four years, we have transformed
our airline from four separate national airlines into one
Group Airline under one management team, with shared
maintenance, IT systems and infrastructure.

in parattel. we have expanded the propartion of business that
the Arrline does independent of the tour operator, buitding a
wartd-class leisure airline which benefits from a dependahle,
and sizeable base of Tour Qperator customers, while also
increasingly competitive with airlines across Europe on a
seat-only basis Thomas Cack Group Airline 1s now Europe’s
third largest arline t sun & beach destinations, and its sixth
largest long-haui carrier following strong profitable growth
in our long-haul and seat-only programme

Our strategy for the Awline i3 clear to profitably build on our
position In the European leisure arlines market, focused on
four areas

First- we will invest in the customer experiance to build on
the progress we've made 1n the last few years, targeting

the areas which we know matter maost to our customers
Second; we will continue to gpen new routes. particularly

in long haul. Third- we are leveraging the support that our
teur operating business provides the Arrling, whilst actively
developing new distribution channels, This model helps us
to flex capacity between the Tour Operator and Airling in
order to optimise performance. And finally. we will continue
to review our cost structure to ensure that we are operating
as competitively as we canin a tough market environment,
withaut compromising on safety. We have measures in place
to further improve reliability and operational performance,
as well as ensuring we have the right cost structure in the
right locations

OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

Overall, 2017 been a positive year for our Group Airline in
what has heen a very competitive market, and we have
made gocd progress against all four of our strategic aims.

We have added 15 new destinations acrgss our three
markets, including San Francisco. New Orleans and, closer
to home, Malaga and Mykonos. Next year we will bagin flying
from a new base in the UK - Leeds Bradford - expanding

our reach in the North of England for our tour operator
customers where previously we used third-party airlines.

In total we have grown the number of long haul

routes we offer by 30 per cent in the (ast three years,
supperted by a good long-haul cost base and our strong
distribution channels.

THOMAS COOK GROUPPLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017

We have improved our distributian channels by working
more closely with third-party tour operators, and online and
traditional travel agents We've alsa increased seat-only
sales by improving our website and increasing the number
af interline agreements we hold with other long-haul airlines.
This. together with our expanded route capacity. has meant
we have grown seat-only sales by 16 per cent versus 2016,

We are now benefiting from our new, Group-wide commercial
[T system, which for the first time enables us to sell all
ancillaries through mdustry global distribution systems and
to take code-share hookings from third-party airline partners
with the aim of driving significant revenue growth

As part of our drive for greater efficiencies while opening up
new opportunities for growth. in May we agreed to extend
an existing partnership with Brussels Airlings to make them
the leading carrier for Thomas Cook in Belgium Under the
terms of the agreement. we transferred all 160 pilots and
cabin crew, all flight slots and two aircraft from Thomas Cook
Arknes Belgium to Brussels Airlines. We also sold our ground
operations and Airine Operating Certificate to SHS Aviation
The agreement gives Thornas Cook's customers a wider
choice of destinations. flights and departure days while at the
same time enabling us to manage our aircraft and personne!
more efficiently and effectively

We followed the partnership in Belgiurn by agreeing a
partnershig in Septemnber with Canadian airfine Air Transat.
under which the twa companies will exchange aircraft on

a seasonal basis. This takes advantage of the different
seasonality of the leisure market in each country, and is a
further step in ouUr strategy 1o work with pariners n order to
manage our fleet more efficiently

Finally, in October 2017 we launched a new airline based in
Majorca which will give us a greater degree of operaticnal
flexibility in how we share aifrcraft across our Group Alrfine
Cur plan is to focus any future growth in our fleet through
this operating unit, allowing us to deploy aircraft to our three
airlings in the UK, Germany and Scandinavia at a competitive
cost. based upon seasonat and cperational requirements.



Image removed
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CASE STUDY

We've transformed the choice we offer
customers over long haul in recent

years. expanding the fleet and opening

up new routes, n Germany for example
we expanded our long-haul fleet from
eight to 18 aircraft in the last three

years and more than doubied the fleet

in the UK to eight long-haul aircraft plus
incremental peak capacity transferred
from Scandinavia We've had a particular
focus on transatlantic routes, reflected

In the fact that more than one million
passengers flew acress the North Atlantic
with Thomas Cock during last year's winter
and summer seasen.

In the same period, we Introduced 11 new
US destinations and we have more routes
planned, including flights tc Phoenix from
Gerrmany and Seattle from the UK which
start in early 2018.

With a total of 18 US destinations on offer
acrass the Group - three of which we
now fly year-round - and five in Canada,
were making excellent progress with our
strategy to grow cur long-haul network.

As a carrier that generally focuses on
leisure destinations, we, of course, iook for
cities that might have interest from within
the German, UK and greater European
outbound tourist market However, we also
are winning business in corporate markets

Image removed ..

JENS BOYD

DIRECTOR, LONG HAUL & REVENUE
MANAGEMENT THOMAS COOK
GRQUP AIRLINE

That is particularly evident to us on our
successful nonstop route from Frankfurt
to Seattle, where the frequency of our
flights provide the flexibility that business
travellers need

These customers consistently tell us

how great the quality and value is on our
business class offer which is reaching load
factors clearly above 80 per cent across our
entire leng-haul network

Offering a wide range of quality options
to our customers allows them to make
the smart choices whenever they fly, and
allows us to further develop and grow our
leng-haul business.
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PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

SERVICES

| The additional services we offer our customers as part of

} their holiday. through our direct sales channels, our Airline

! and our in-destination teams, are a big part of what makes
r us different from travel agents and other tour operators.

! By offering more chaice to our customers i all aspects

r of their holiday. we can provide a unigue holiday
experience that is tallored specifically to our customers’
individuai needs.

This more personalised experience increases customer
satisfaction and loyalty at the same time as delivering
additional revenue and margin from the services

that are purchased The more personalised approach
also enables us to combine some of the flexibility of
independent travel with the hassle-free reassurance

of a package holiday, thus modernising our offer and
broadening our appeat to thase who may not previcusly
have considered a Thomas Cook haliday

| OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

This year we have further increased revenues from our
core ancitlary services as well as broadening the range
of value-add holiday extras that we offer customers
Overall, we grew sales of ancillary services, such as
seat reservations, extra luggage. meals on board, travel
insurance and in-resort transfers and excursions, by 10
per cent, a total increase of 20 per cent in the two years
since we created the Group Anciliaries Team in 2015.

The improvements we made to our websites this year in
providing richer content have helped improve conversion
of sales As we optimise how and when we offer these
services Lo customers, from the point of booking to

plan their perfect holiday, while increasing penetration
of our services and gaining a greater share of wallet

This year alsc saw the launch of a new division which
builds on eur heritage in financial services to offer

save, borrow, spend and protect their holiday money.

at Virgin Money, Thomas Cook Money will combine the
trust that consumers have in the Thomas Cook brands
with the best of new technology In order to offer a
genuinely inncvative set of new products and services.
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in-resort, we help to bulld custemers’ excitement as they

CUSIOMETs aCross our sgurce markets new ways to plan‘

Led by Anth Mooney. the former head of financial services

INCREASING SALES
OF HOLIDAY EXTRAS

Image removed

0% +20%

INCREASED SALES iINCREASE SINCE

ON HOLIDAY EXTRAS ~ WE (REATED THE
GROUP ANCILLARIES
TEAM IN 20/5



PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

PARTNERSHIPS

As we focus on our holiday offer, we are

This strategy 1s complemented by a series of partnerships
which enable us to expand our cffer to customers
while at the same time streamlining our operations.
Our partnerships also enable us to leverage our brand
as a way to tap into new opportunities for growth

PROGRESS IN 2017

in September, we agreed a ground-breaking strategic

alliance with Expedia which will transform the way in

which we produce and sell our ‘complementary’ hotels
which sit outside of our core portfolio

Under the terms of the agreement. Expedia will
become the preferred provider of hotels for our city
and domestic business, offering customers more than
60.000 additional hotels in city and domestic locations
than currently on sale

CASE STUDY

putting our energy and attention into a
number of key areas where we can create
the most value for our customers.

We will also integrate Expedia's market-leading booking
platform into Thomas Cook sales channels for ali hotel-
only and city-break sales. This agreement completes
the outsourcing of the production of our non-cere

hotel offer to customers. following the signing of our
strategic partnership with Webjet in 2016 to cutsource
our nen-core sun and beach hotels

Another partnership where we have made good progress
in 2017 is Thomas Cock China, our jeint venture with
Fosun. This has got off to a great start, tapping into

the growing demand from Chinese consumers for
perscnalised holiday packages to destinations around the
warld. It's early days, but we took 20,000 customers on
holiday n our first year of operations Qur aim 15 to grow
this more than 10 times in 2017118,

ALESSANDRO DASSI
MANAGING DIRECTOR,
THOMAS COOK CHINA

We cfficially launched Thomas Cook China
in September 2016, less than a year after
we announced cur joint venture with

Fosun Since then the business has
developed into a cne-stop. full service travel
company operating inbound, domestic and
outbound tourism from offices in Shanghai
and Beijing.

Our plan has always been simple - combine
our brand heritage and travel expertise
with Fosun's local market access and
knowledge to tap in to the huge growth
opportunity offered by the world's iargest
source market for leisure travel.

While large and fast growing, the China
travel market is also very competitive

and fragmented The biggest opportunity
lties in the rapidly evolving behaviours of
Chinese travellers The traditional group
tour travel is gradually giving way to a
more ndependent and higher quality type
of travel. and the industry is not keeping
up with the pace of this change. At Thamas
Cook China, we have focused on develaping
products that are truly unigue and
differentiated. leveraging Thomas Cook and
Fosun's resources across destinations.

In our first year of cperations we served over
20.000 customers Recent improvements
in technolegy and newly established local
distribution partnerships have made the
business more scalable Over the naxt
financial year, we aim to grow by more
than 10 times

Both Thomas Cook and Fosun remain

fully committed to supporting the future
growth of our joint venture business in
China The ambition 15 to make China a
sizeable source market for Thomas Cook
Group. comparable. aver time. with our
more mature markets in Eurcpe As China's
tourism sector continues to grow strongly.
our expertise in travel and our unigue,
personalised offer means we are weli-
positioned to take full advantage of

the opportunity

THOMAS COOKGROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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PROGRESS AGAINST STRATEGY

EFFICIENCIES

Underpinning every element of our strategy for profitable
growth is a continual drive for greater operational
efficiency, removing duplication and aligning processes
so that they fit the new shape of Thomas Cook.

By reducing the number of hotels in our core holiday
cffering, and outsourcing the production of our non-core
hatels and the technology platform to sell them, we

will be able to take considerable cost and complexity
out of our husiness - first, in terms of the contracting.
pricing and other support that we need, and then
through our IT systems which will suppart the sale

of a smaller number of hotels

These efficiencies also flow through into our marketing
and digital activities where we are able to focus
investment building content to support one streamlined
portfolio of hotels across the Group. And this is key -
reducing duplication and complexity in our systams
Group-wide will enable us to increase investment in those
areas where we know we can make greatest impact on
customers and how they buy from us

The resuft is a business which is much simpler, with a
leaner organisational structure that is more focused on
the activities which matter to our customers

OUR PROGRESS IN 2017

Cantinuing our efficiencies drive in Continental Eurape,
we consolidated our tour operator activities into three
nubs for the segment: in Oberursel, Ghent and Hamburg

We accelerated our UK store closure programme following
our announcement at the start of the financial year that
our retail joint venture with the Cooperative Group would
end. in all we closed 101 stores this financial year. taking
our retai network to 692 down from more than 1,200

n 2012,

See case study in Contact on page 21

We have made goaod progress through procurement
activities to reduce our spend by rationalising the number
of suppliers we use across the Group to better leverage
our scale

Gur financial shared service centre has made good
progress this year and now houses financial functions
from across the Group.

See case study on page 31
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In our airline, we have now saved £35 million against

a 2015 baseline through rationalisation of our ground
handling and maintenance set-ups across our destination
and source markets alrporis.

In March we announced that we would be extending

our partnership with Brussel Airlines to make them

the leading carrier for our Belgian tour operator, with
Thomas Cook Airlines Belgium {TCAB] no longer operating.
The agreement reduces our operating costs in our Belgian
market while increasing choice for customers. In addition.
three of our TCAB aircraft will operate undear our new
airline in Palma from summer 2018.

See Qur dirline section on page 26

GREATER OPERATIONAL
EFFICIENCIES

= | £35

J rerlj]ﬂ?)ved m
.(AVED iN OUR AiRLINE
VS 2015 BASELINE

= 101

removejJ UK STORES CLOSED
S THiS YEAR

—



CASESTUDY

FINANCIAL SHARED
SERVICE CENTRE
IN PALMA

We knew there was an opportunity to
bring our finance shared service centres
together from across the Group In a way
which would not only significantly reduce
cost but would also mean we can provide
a greater consistency of quality to all
parts of the business.

More importantly, one centra! financial
shared service centre would also allow
us to create a working envircnment
that encourages the simplification and
standardisation of processes so critical
to our vision of 'One Thomas Cook'.

We chose Palma as a target location when
we first set up the finance transformation
project because of 1ts central location
within Europe and an abundance of skilled
prefessignals from universities in Palma
and mainland Spain. 1t is also the Group's
most popular holiday destination. meaning
we had a sizeable existing presence

and infrastructure on which to build,

...................... L

Image removed

In 2014 we started to move finance
functions from across our Continental
business scurce markets into Palma

By September this year the Palma

centre was providing finance services to
Germany, France. Belgium. The Netherlands
and Austria.

Phase two of the shared service centre

is now well underway We are in-sourcing
those of the UK's finance functions which
are currently run from Mumbai and Pune,
India. to give us greater control over the
guality of the output. We alsc have further
plans to expand the existing services by
maoving further functions from within
Continental Europe, the UK, cur Northern
Europe business and Group Airline into
Palma Qur aim is that these measuras will
foster a culture of greater collaboration and
best practice across the Group. meaning it
wilt become mare efficient as it grows

PAUL HEMINGWAY
BUSINESS CHANGE DIRECTOR

P SR e T L LT R T T R PR PY

To accommodate this growth were
maoving into a new building and by
September 2018 we expect to have one
Finance Shared Service Centre in Palma
providing services to all segments in
the Group. staffed by Thomas Cock
colleagues. with our shared vision and
values, working to put the customer

at the heart of everything we do.
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OUR KEY PERFORMANCE

INDICATORS

i FINANCIAL

Graph removed

’ Definition

. Underiying EBIT provides 4 measure of the underlying

J operaung performance of the Group and growth in
profitability of the operations EBIT margm medsures
the underlying EBIT generated as a proportion of

J sales We target improving these metrics across all

our busmesses

" 2017 performance

‘ Group underlying EBIT of E330m and underlying

i EBIT margin of 3 7% represents growth of £24m due
¢ an improvement in our Airline partially offset by

i competitive pressure en our UK Tour cperator

‘ lil - Figures have been represanted on a like-for-like basis
(] FYIE fiqures have been restated See Note 33 for detalls

)

Graph removed i

Definition

Basic earnings per share (EPS] represents profit

for the year attributable to equity Shareholders

This metric provides a measure of Shareholder return
that 1s comparatle over ime Underlymg EPS"" s
defined as earmings before separately disclosed items
after a nationai tax charge divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary sfiares We are targsting
a positive and mproving EPS

2017 performance

Underlying EPS has increased by 1 5p whilst Basic EPS
has increased by 0 5p since FY16 due to continued
progress in pur transformation

fuh FY16 figures have been restated Sea Note 33 for details

{ Graph removed [

Definition

Net debt 15 a measure of how the Group 15

managing our balance sheet and capital structure

A strong balance sheet s essential ta withstand
external market shocks and seize opportunities
Accordingly reducng net debt and as well as the
cost of the debt 1s a prionty for the Group

2017 performance

Met debt decreased by £89m. mainly due to free ¢ash
flow generation of £93m

il FY15 Net debt has been restated to include hedging
on bhorrewings

" NON-FINANCIAL
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Graph removed

Definitian

Net Promoter Scare (NPS} 1s an index that measures
the willingness of our customers to recemmend our
produsts and services to others We use this as an
indicator across the whale Group of our customers’
overall loyalty and satisfaction in relation to our
fhghts, our hotels and the holiday experience overall

We are targeting NPS increases 1n all of our source
markets and our branded hotels

2017 performance

Year on year the group achisved a 4 pont increase
n NPS, with improvements seen In all of our major
service markets and our branded hotels
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Definition

Employee engagement 1s measured through cur annual
Survey. ‘Every Voice” We focus on the measurement of two
mam indexes, being our ‘Core-index’ and ‘cammitment-index
Our target s to at least maintain our figh core-index score
and increase our commitment index score

2017 performance

Our core index and commigment index was 74% and 68%
respectively level with 2016. The strongest progress this
year was seen in customer orientation. driven by the launch
of the Customer promises and values which has driven
more customer centricity The results also told us that the
strategy and direction of the Company 1s more clear among
all managers - a foundation for driving the new strategy



SUSTAINABILITY

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

The millions of customers that choose Thomas Cook for
their holiday have high expectations of us and the services
that we provide them. We understand that sustainability

is extremely important for our customers and critical to
the long-term success of our business.

Over the last year. we conducted an internal review of our
sustainability programmes and have developed a renewed
vision and strateqgy for sustainability which 1s ntegral to
our business strategy. Through this renewed vision and
strategy. we can enhance the Company's resiiience to

the external environmental and social challenges while
improving the experience of our customers

OUR ‘MAKING ADIFFERENCE WITH
EVERY HOLIDAY' STRATEGY

Our goal is to ‘make a difference with every holiday.
working at every step to change the way we operate {0
imit environmental impacts whilst maximising the social
and economic benefits travel can bring

Our new strategy 15 simplified and stronger than
previous iterations, It reflects three key stages of the
customer journey:

> At Home
> On the Journey
> On Heliday

Fach of these areas aligns to the three core concepts of
sustainability: people, environment and husiness For each
one of the three areas of the customer journey, our new
strategy articulates our objective as well as a simple but
bold target to be achieved by 2020.

AT HOME

ON THE JOURNEY

AT HOME

We understand Thomas Cock's operations affect individuals
and commurnities arcund the world Through working with
our partners, NGOs and other industry tourism groups we
can better understand and mitigate the negative impact of
the business whilst maximising the economic and social
benefits tourism can bring

The key strand of our work ‘at home' focuses on our impact
as a business through our chantable and community
initiatives, while ensuring we have the right policies

and procedures in place to make sure we contribute
meaningfully to the communities in which we live and work
In order to materially impact the fives of 100,000 people by
2020. we have taken strong steps to strengthen our impact
through greater alignment on charitable activity across
Thomas Cook Group.

The Group's Heafth, Safety & Environmental Committee

this year endorsed an over-arching chantable strategy for
the Group. This strategy. a first for Thomas Cook, aligns our
charitable activity across our source markets and focuses
our impact In key areas, including improving health and
well-being, supporting vulnerable children, praviding natural
disaster relief and enhancing community spaces. We aim to
make transformational impact through our charitable work.
Greater alignment means we can focus on fewer. mare
relevant issues. whilst leveraging the scale of the business
to create lasting change for thousands of people at home
and in our destinations

ON HOLIDAY

Objectives We will put the customer at We will strive to deliver resource We will embed sustainability into
our heart and will contrnibute efficiencies throughout the business  our business to deliver world class
to the communities in which to run our operations in the most quality products and services We
we live and work, responsible way possible. will collaborate and mnovate with our

customers, partners and supplers.

2020 Targets 100.000 people reached through 12% increase in fuel efficiency 100% of our own-brand hotels to

our charitable and community

programmes, baseline.

for Group Airline, from a 2008/09

obtain a Travelife award

Underpinning
the strategy

By engaging every one of cur 22.000 employees we will make a difference with every holiday
and embed sustanable practices at the heart of our business.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReportand Accounts 2017
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SUSTAINABILITY
CONTINUED
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Image removed

CASESTUDY

SAFEGUARDING
ANIMAL WELFARE

L N T T Ty

Experiencing the local environment and
wildlife-viewing opportunities can be a
key part of many of our customers’ holiday
experiences We recognise that these
activities have a socio-econemic benefit
and can help to promote biodiversity and
education initiatives. However, we als¢ are
acutely aware of the welfare of animals
impacted by tourism.

Last year we took the decision to
commission animal welfare experts Global
Spirit to conduct an independent audit of
a selection of anima! attractions we offer.

........................ a2

Image removed

Fellowing that inital review we set out
our new animal welfare policy in December
2016. At its heart is a simple premise - our
customers trust us to make sure anything
we recammend fo them is consistent

with gur Customer Promises of Quality.
Service and Reliability.

From that premise came a simple rule

- if an animal attraction is found net to
be fully compliant with the ABTA Global
Welfare Guidance for Animals in Tourism,
Thomas Cook won't sell (t.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Aceounts 2017
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We are determined to improve standards
for all animals in our supply chain, while
allowing cur customers to enjoy and learn
about animals in their natural environments
\We remain committed to working
responsibly and ethically in all areas of our
business, and we expect the same from
our suppliers

To that end, we have already stopped the
sale of 16 of 25 audited excursions following
the 2016 audit programme. We have
expanded our 2017 audit programme,

with a further 50 audits underway.



ON THE JOURNEY

The environmental impact of the travel industry s
considerable, with around five per cent of all glabal
carbon emissions coming from the travel and tourism
sector We recognised the risks presented by cimate
change and our duty to reduce our impact

We have for a number of years worked to reduce our
envirenmental impact across our business and supply
chain This includes reducing the use of water in our
hotels, using sustainable products and materials wherever
pessible; reducing aur production of waste. and sourcing
or producing renewable energy.

Our new strategy has environmental afficiency at its heart,
We are committed to making progress across our business
to decrease our impact This is demonstrated through

our annual response to COP who assess our respense to
carbon management In 2016 we scored ‘B, which means
we are taking coordinated action on climate ¢hange issues
Fuel efficiency in aur airline is central to this effort and

IS & key part of cur approach to running efficient and
profitable arrlines, as demonstrated through cur target

of a 12 per cent increase in fuel efficiency per passenger
km by 2020 (based on & 201 baseline} We recognise the
challenge presented by the Paris Climate Agreement to the
airline industry and we are determined to drive incremental
improvements in our current fleet, while working with

the industry to develop more efficient aircraft and mere
sustainable fuels.

Thomas Cock Group Arrline is among the most efficient

In Europe, with only 72.4g CO; per passenger kilometre,
compared with an average of 88.6g CO; for the five largest
European airlines last year. Our German airline was ranked
ninth in the Charter Carrier sector by the 2016 Atmosfair
Airline Index, which ranks the carbon efficiency of the

200 largest airlines in the world

In 2017 we brought together a group across the Airline

to focus on fuel efficiency Seven key projects were
selected. (ncluding a continued drive to reduce weight

on board, improve flight planning processes and optimise
routing. Qur upgraded aircraft continue to deliver greater
comfort and a superior experience for passengers, whilst
contributing toward improved efficiency.

017 2016

Tonnes of CO: Tonnes of O,

equivalent equivalent

Toialrscope | - Direct emissions 4342127 4091159
Total Scope 2 - Indirect emissions 17931 21,045
Total emissions 4.360.058 412,203
Total emissions/Emillion turnover 484 526

We have reported on all the emission sources required
under the Companies Act 2008 {Strategic repert and
Directors reports) Regulations 2013 We only have
responsibility for the emission sources that are included

in our Annual Report and Accounts. We have used the

GHG Protocot Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
(revised edition), data from EU Emission Trading Scheme and
emission factors from the UK Government GHG Conversion
Factors Guidance 2017

ON HOLIDAY

Tourism is one of the biggest industries in the world and
one that contributes to the econamic and social fabric of
destination communities We work extensively with our
hote! brands to enable our customers to experience local
products and services, giving them an authentic taste

of the local culture

By 2020. we aim to have all of our own-brand hotels
accredited by Travelife, the internaticnally-recognised
scheme which helps hotels and accommadations to manage
and improve their social and environmental performance.
The scheme also ensures that staff in resort are employed
fairly and local sourcing of products I1s promoted. We knaw
that Travelife hotels are not enly better for us, but they are
better for cur customers too. with greater results recorded
in customer satisfaction surveys than our other hotels

Over the Iast year we have taken strong steps to embed
Travelife within our Hotels and Resorts business This has
included integrating Travelife as a brand standard in our
Casa Cook, Sunwing, Sunprime and SENTIDO brands, with
Smartiine and Sunconnect brands to follow in 2018 and 2019.

Four years ago we faunched range of excursions to allow
customers to immerse themselves in the culture of a
destination and create lasting memaries. These 'Local Label
excursions are designed to bring a place. its people and
their traditions to life; celebrating authentic food and drink,
sharing personal stories with lacal people. and contributing
to the protection of ancient sites or natural habitats
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CASE STUDY
............................................................................... Image removed STEFAN|EBERK
TU NISlA MANAGING DIRECTOR CENTRAL

EDUCATION PROGRAMME | AND EASTERN EUROPE

Tourism is a hugely important industry in The ‘Continuing Education’ project, which The pilot project will run for three years
Tunisia. but one which suffered i recent runs from September 2017 to the end of and I1s part of the develoPPPde programme
years. It is essential that following this 2018, will focus on the re-qualification and that GIZ implements on behalf of the
tough period for the tourism industry, training of hotel staffin order to increase German Federal Ministry for Economic
skills are retained and quality is improved service quality and sustainability. Cooperation and Development (BMZ).
;Ooro(c:i%;tg?iqteyrzf:fra‘hcygllsr;%?e‘Stcjflggll|r3/gr At the same time, Thomas Cook and The two stran_ds of the programme will
high-quality service while promoting Futouris eV, together with the Gesellschaft  enable the training ar_1d mentering of .
sustainability within our hotels fur Internationale Zusammenarbeit Gmbh, employges in the Tunisian hotels, enabling
‘ the German Association for International them to access better quality employment
This innovative programme consists of Cooperation {GIZ) . have launched a new and delivering a more sustainable, higher-
two strands, focusing on further education  partnership. The aim is to improve the guality experience for our customers.
and training. training for the hotel staff in Tunisian

hotel schools and hotels through greater
experiential learning
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SUSTAINABILITY

OUR PEOPLE

Our strategy towards recruiting, training,
developing, retaining and inspiring our
workforce is critical to our success.

We recognise that strong leadership and the development
cof a highly engaged and committed workforce is critical to
achieve our profitable growth strategy and continue the
transformation of our organisation. We are particularly
pleased therefore that our employee engagement score
increased by 1 per cent to 77 per cent in our annual
engagement survey this year We believe this reflects the
efforts we have made to bring our strategy to life for our
people and inspire strong belief in our new grganisational
values. which form the basis of our drive to put the
customer at the heart of all that we do.

COMMUNICATION

We know that great internal communications is key to
breaking down silos and builaing awareness and belief in
our strategy This year has seen a re-energised approach
to communication with the introduction of new global
townhalls giving Peter Fankhauser the opportunity to
speak to thousands of our people. increasing his wisibility
and reach to record numbers.

In May, we held our arnual briefing for the top 170 leaders
in the Thomas Cook Leadership Council {TCLCY) in Tenerife
With many of our leaders now working in a horizontal
or matrix structure. we can see stronger connections
across the TCLC. with several subjects at the Tenerife
event co-presented’ by teams from across the Group

CULTURE AND WAYS OF WORKING

With a continued focus on cur ‘Customer at our Heart’
mantra, we felt the time was right in 2017 to make a bold
next step in redefining cur culture and place the customer
even mare firmly at the centre of our organisation.

We decided to move away from traditional cerporate
values. and instead. to develop and launch a new set of
values and behavigurs that truly reflect a holiday company
To this end, we took the unconventional approach of
developing a set of values and customer promises from
research into what our customers told us they want from
a holiday company. Our new values help our people to
understand what we expect from them in their behaviour,
both towards each other and our customers

Since launch in January, 21255 colleagues across the Group
have attended training workshops on the new Customer
Promises and Values Our annuat survey showed that 80 per
cent of our people understand the new values, 2 per cent
more than last year, and 73 per cent of our people believe
they are the right values for us to succeed We continue
to embed our new behaviours by using them to recruit,
develop. measure performance and reward our people.

The new values and behaviours were introduced as criteria
for our Customer Heroes recognition programme, which we
continued this year Nominated by colleagues or managers,
we identify customer heroes in each market and hold local
recognition events to celebrate the finalists. The winners
are then recognised at the TCLC.

Gur annual survey has shown that work to develop a more
customer-focused culture is having an impact. There was
a significant increase in customer orientation with 83
per cent of our people indicating that an awareness of
customer feedback drives their improvements

We alsg faunched a new version of our Code of Conduct in
May to reflect changes to our values and ways of working
The revised Code of Conduct is provided to all new joiners
and we held briefings for existing colleagues in 2017,
emphasising the importance of individual responsibility
to adhere to the values at all times.

PUT OURHEART INTOIT

We seek feedback &actonit

We challenge the status que
& continually look for ways to

WEAR THEIR FLIP FLOPS

We listen carefully to
understand what’s required

We're solution focused & strive

WE'RE ONETHOMAS CQOK

We're openand henest
& act withintegrity

We take ownership & deliver

Logo removed J‘

i Logo removed

make things better forthe bestoutcome what we've promised
We're proactive to anticipate We focus on the little things that We work as one
customer’sneeds make a big difference Thomas Cook team
I

| Logo removecj
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ALIGNMENT OF OUR PEOPLE BEHIND
THE STRATEGY

Reflecting the need to align our people behind

the Group strategy cur Group-wide performance
management system is organised into key themes
from the strategy so that all colleagues can select
from a range of measures designed ta achieve our
organisational goals.

Qur annual Every Voice engagement survey showed
that awareness of strategy rose 2 per cent this year
to 68 per cent

Building an efficient organisational structure 1S a

key strateqic objective and we are working across

the Group to better align structures. Our organisational
design review includes a focus on reducing layers
between the CEO and cur front Iine colleagues. and
increasing spans of control ~ creating larger teams
with fewer managers. The aim is to increase speed

of decision making and empower teams to take action
for the benefit of our customers.

We have also further developed our matrix structure

to bring the operations claser to the horizantal
functions, This has seen us split aur two key horizontals
{Commercial and Digital & Marketing) across the UK,
Northern Europe and Continental Europe. This ensures
that our leaders think ‘Group at the same time as

their local markets streamlining the organisation

and accelerating the next phase of our strategy for
profitable growth.

Image removed
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PEOPLE/TALENT DEVELOPMENT

We strengthened our Group-wide talent management
processes this year. culminating in our annual talent
review with the PLC Board in July

Introducing a newly updated definition of ‘potential’

we have reviewed all our leaders performance to
identify these we regard as ‘high potential’ and reviewed
succession for all roles acress the TCLC 70 per cent of
our leaders were rated as ‘key talent’. up from &! per cent
the previous year, while 69 per cent of our TCLC have

an identified successor

We welcemed two new members to the Executive
Committee {previously General Management Council)

In the year Ingo Burmester as Chief Hotels Officer.

and Anth Mooney as our new Chief Financial Services
Gfficer, feading Thomas Cook Money. Tenure across

the TCLC, those reporting te the Executive Committee,
increased. with the number of leaders with less than one
year's tenure reducing from 45 per cent to 31 per cent
Atirition across the TCLC was 14 per cent.

There were 30 new appointments into the TCLC, of which
20 were internal promotions demonstrating that our
talent processes are working We have also moved key
high potential leaders inte ur two new businesses in
China and Thomas Cook Money, aligning talent with our
strategic priorities.

In June, we launched our first global career site, aimed

at encouraging international movement and retaining our
talent Within the first three months, the site had received
over 120,000 visits and 16 000 registrations.

We launched a new Group-wide Leadership Development
programme Leadership Plus. for our middie managers
department heads and local Directors. recognising the
influence this group has on overall engagement.

Leadership Plus addresses three main areas

> Influencing without autharity (reflecting the growth
of matrix structures)

> Authentic teadership

> Building highly effective teams

40 leaders attended the pifot programme with excellent
feedback A further 45 leaders started the programme in
Octobier. with furthier programmes planned for 2018

In addition, leaders from across our In-Destination
teams attended a new Leadership programme aimed at
addressing the challenges of leading virtual teams and
building high performance

Our Navigator programme, our Group-wide emerging
talent programme, successfully conctuded in February.
with presentations to the Executive Committge from
18 leaders



DIVERSITY

Qur vision to be the world's mast ioved holiday company
is supported by an (nternationally diverse warkforce

We believe that improving our diversity will open up new
ways of thinking, get us closer to our customers and drive
profitable growth We are committed to creating an inclusive
working environment in which every employee is able to
fulfil their potential through training, career development
and fair promotion. regardless of persenal characteristics.

Gender diversity has been a particular focus area for us
in 2017 We introduced ‘balanced gender shortlists for
the first time. for leadership roles ensuring a fair and
consistent selection of males and females In the UK.

WE ran our second Womens sponsorship programme for
high potential femates. while In Germany, we introduced
a family centre in our Head Office in Oberusel, to support
working parents in therr child care

Our international diversity across our Leadership Team is
strong. with 18 nationalities represented the largest of which
are British at 37 per cent, German at 28 per cent and Swedish
at g per cent We are working to create a new international
mobility framework. designed to encourage the mavement
of colleagues across different countries and markets.

Ethnicity is also an increasing subject of focus We am to
establish an organisational benchmark in 2018 and establish
a framewark of activity based on the results. We remain
committed to a fully diverse workforce which represents
the wide range of ethnicities from both our customer base
and the countries and destinations in which we operate.

EVERY VOICE - ENGAGEMENT

Qur annual Every Voice’ colleague survey is at the

heart of cur people strategy The 5th annual Group-wide
survey was completed by just over 19,013 colleagues.
representing a response rate of 78 per cent. something
we attribute to the fact that 75 per cent of cur people
said that they had seen positive actions taken based

on results of our last survey.

Our ‘Core Index’ - an indication of a highly performing
organisation - was /4 per cent. level with 2015, and
our engagement index rese by 1 per cent to 77 per cent.

Customer orientation was at 83 per cent. seeing
the highest increase of all areas of our survey
This is particularly pleasing. given our Customer
at our heart’ focus.

Our employee commitment remains high at 70 per
cent and we saw a 2 per cent (ncrease in colleagues
recommending Thomas Cook as an employer

Each team builds an action plan off the back of their
results, culminating ir one overall plan for the Group.
Action plans are reviewed closely by the Executive
Committee to understand progress and ensure
momentum i$ maintained

GENDER DIVERSITY ACROSS THE THOMAS COOK GROUP

Executive Committee Other Managers

1 e .
- 73% - :
} Graph boMale | Graph
| removed | 27 % i removed |
1____ i Female L

Thomas Coak Leadership Council

1 73%

Other Employees

Graph ‘ Male Graph 1
removed removed

| 27% |

| Female o

- Total -
[ o
41% \ 32%
Male ‘ Graph Male
5 9 % ‘ removed 6 8 %
Female Femaie

31%

Male

69%

Female
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HIGHLIGHTS

Higher revenues

Delivered improved cash conversion

J MICHAEL HEALY

“The Group achieved good
financial progress in FY17,
reporting higher revenues,
higher underlying EBIT and
lower Net Debt.

Underlying EBIT improvement

Revenue increased by £722m (9%) on
a like-for-like basis (FY16. £8.285m)

£9,007m

Delivered a stronger balance sheet

Like-for-like net deht reduced by £i22m
{FY16 £162m)

£40m

Cash conversion ratio increase of 45ppts
(FYi6 37%)

82%

Delivering returns for shareholders

Underlying EBIT increased by £24m on
a like-for-iike basis (FY16 £308m)

£330m

Continuation of a dividend

Basis earnings per share increased by
05p (FY16 restated- 0 3p)

0.8p

THOMAS COOK GROUPPLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Dividend per share increase of 01p (20%]
{FY18: 0.5p)

0.6p



FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE REVIEW GROUP

12 months ended

| 12 months ended

30 Sep 2076 Like-for-like
£m 30 Sep 2017 {restated!”) Change change
Revenue - 9,007 7810 41197 722
Underlying™ Gross profit 1695 1,829 +166 +56
Underlying " Gross Margin (%) - 221% 234%  -130bps -130bps
Underlying™ Operating expenses (1,665) (1.627) -138 32
Underlying™ profit from operations (Underlying EBIT) - 330 302 +28 +24
EBIT Separately Disclosed Items {99) {105} +6 6
Profit from operations (EBIT) L 23 I ..
Associated Undertakings 0] U Same Same
Net investment income - 1 -1 -1
Underlying" Net finance charges naz (4 -3 3
Separately disclosed finance charges {41 (23) -18 -18
Profit before tax o o 46 34 2 -8
Tax (34) (33 -l -l
Profit after tax__ o [ <1l 7
Basic EPS 0.8p 0.3p +0.5p -
Underlying" EPS 9.3p alp +1.2p -
DRSS 0.6p 05p 0lp -
Free cash flow" 153 60 +93 -
Net debt {40} (129) +89 122
Notes:

0t As part of Whe preparation of thie EY17 Group financial statements management identified several nan-cash adjustments which hava been applied to the Groups financial statements for FY¥I6 Further detalls of

the restatement can be found on page 183

tl Underlying refers to trading results that are adjusted for separately disclosed items that are sigrficant in understanding the orgaing results of the Group Separataly disclosed items are detailed an page 135
() Like-for-hke change adjusts for the impact of foreign exchange translation fuel The detailad lke-forhke adustments are shown on page 42

(ivi Drviggnd par share of 06 pence 1s equivalent to a cash cast of E3milkon

(vt Free cash flow i3 cash fromaperating activines less exceptional tems capital expenditure and interest paid 4 summary cash flow statement 1s presented on page 49 and a reconcikation of free cash flow

15 shown on page 52

(vl Like-for-ike net debt adjusts the prior year comparative for foreign exchange translation the impact in change in finance lease arrangements and assomated costs of the bond refinancing which totalled

£33 millan resulting in FY18 like-forike net debt of £162 milan

OVERVIEW

The comments below are based on underlying ike-for-like
comparisons unless otherwise stated. as Management believes
this provides a clearer view of Group's year-cn-year progression.

The Group made good financial progress in FYI7 reporting higher
revenues. higher underlying EBIT and lower net debt, compared

to last year. Group revenue increased by 15% (£1197 millicn) on a
headiine hasis (before adjusting for the positive benefits of foreign
exchange translation differences). and by 9% (£722 millicn) on a
like-for-like basis. as demand grew for our holidays, particularly to
Greece and Long-Haul destinations, as well as Turkey and Egypt.

Supported by our strong revenue growth, gross profit increased

by £56 miliion, although gress margin decreased by 130 basis
points to 22 1%. mainly reflecting a mere competitive market in
holidays to Spain. and a mix effect from higher sales in gur Russian
business which has a structurally lower gross margin than our
other businesses

The Group's underlying EBIT improved by £24 million te £330 million.
while the Group's profit from cperations improved by £30 million to
£231 miflion, due to lower EBIT Separately Disclosed Items.

Separately disclosed finance charges Increased by £18 million to

£41 million due tc costs associated with our bond refinancing in
December 2016 As a result. Group profit before tax increased by

£8 mullion to £46 million. The tax charge for the year was £34 million,
£1million higher than last year, resulting in Group profit after tax

of £12 million.

Frae cash flow for the year was £153 million, £93 million higher

than last year. underpinned by growth in EBITDA of £46 million to
£552 million, and improvements in working capital as a result of
stronger trading The Group's improved cash flow position, together
with nan-cash changes such as foreign currency translation.
resulted in net debt of £40 million. £322 million lower on a like-for-like
basis than the position as at 30 September 2016
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LIKE-FOR-LIKE ANALYSIS

Certain 1tems, such as the normal translational effect of foreign
exchange movements, affect the comparability of the underlying
performance between financial years To assist in understanding the
impact of those factors, and to better present underlying year-on-
year changes. like-for-like comparisons with FY16 are presented in
addition to the change n reported numbers.

The 'like-for-like” adjustments to the Group's FYi6 results and the
resulting year-on-year movements are as follows

Grass
margin
%

Operating
axpenses

Ynderlying

Revenue EBIT

Group (Em)

Restated FYI6" 18I0 234% 0527 302

Impact of Currency Movements 575 03% __log) a
Reduced fuel cost ooy 03% nfa UE]
Restated FV16 Like-for-like 8285 23.4% 1.633) 306
FYI7 Reported T 9007 220% (16651 330

Like-for-like change
Like-for-like change (%)

922 nla 32 2
9% -130bps 2% 8%

Note: |} See Note 33 on page 165 for details of the prior year restatement

PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS LINE

The Group now reports the operations of 1ts Group Tour Operator
and Group Arrfine businesses as its primary reporting segmentation.
as this spht better reflects how the business is managed and
reported internally This segmentation was previously given as
supplementary information Further description of this change in
segmental reporting can be found under “Segmental Information’
on page 130

‘ Group Tour Group

Underlying EBIT by business line {Em] Operator Airline | Corporate Graup
Restated FYIG 249 83 (300 302
Impact of Currancy Movements 6 (2} - 4
Restated FYI6 Like-forfike 255 81 {30 306
FYI7 Reported 250 W5 (35 330
Like-for-like change -5 34 5 24
Like-for-ike change (%) 2% A% 7% +8%

Note: by See Nate 33 on page 165 for datails of the prior year restaterent
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PERFORMANCE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

As the Group's Taur Operator and Airline activities are integrated
to varying degrees In each of our source markets. we believe that
itis helpful to provide supplementary information by geographic
source market, consistent with how the Group has reported in
previous years

Underlying EBIT by \ Continental | Northern

source market [Em] UK Europe Europe | Condor | Corporate Group
FY16 Restated 146 7 124 10} (STJ} 302
Internal business

unit transferl] 2 2 - - - -
Impact of Currency

Movements - 1 5 (2) - 4
FYI6 Like-for-fike 144 75 129 (12} (30] 306
F¥l7Reported W1 108 134 12 (35 330
Ukeforfkechange 35 83 5ot 5
Like-for-like change

(%) -23% +44% A% 200% 7% +8%
Note:

[ The trade and assets of our accommodation business Hotsls4lh was transferred fram aur UK
busimess 10.pur Contmental Eusope business in dugust 2016 a Vke-for-dike adjustment has been
made ¢ show comparable parformance of these two segments

REVENUE

Group revenue increased by £722 million [9%) to £9.007 million. 25
we expanded our Winter and Summer pregrammes to meet growing
customer demand. This resulted in higher revenue frem holidays and
flights to Greece, Spain, and Long Haul destinations, as well other
Short and Medium haul destinations including Turkey and Egypt

The main compaonents of the changes by destination are as follows:

N
|
|

Graph removed }
|
|



GROSS PROFIT AND MARGIN

Gross profit increased by £56 million to £1995 million. supperted by
strong revenue growth Gross margin of 221% is 130 basis points
lower than last year. mainly reflecting the impact of bed cost
inflation on holidays to Spain, particularly in our UK business and
the mix effect in Continental Europe of strong growth in our Russian
business, which has a lower relative gross margin, Qur Airline gress
miargin was broadly in line with last year. with short-haul yield
pressure during Winter offset by the Conder turnaround during
Summer The impact on the Group's gross margin performance by
segment is set out below.

Graph removed

OPERATING EXPENSES/OVERHEADS

Operating expenses before depreciation increased by 2% {£28 million)
to £1443 million as the benefits of efficiency initiatives were offset
by inflatton and volume-related increases to the operating cost

base Depreciation increased by £4 million to £222 mullion reflecting
investment in our aircraft fleet and IT enhancements

Year ended

Year ended | 30 Sep 2016 |Like-for-like
£m 36 Sep 2017 |Like-for-like change
Personnel Costs A {948) 28
Net Operating Expenses {468) (469) 4]
Sub Tetal (1,443} {1.415) 28
Depreciation [222) {218) -4
Total (1665  {1.633) -32

UNDERLYING EBIT

The Group generated underlying EBIT of £330 million during the
year, £24 million (8%) higher than last year on a like-for-like basis.
The principal components of the Group's EBIT performance for the
year are summarised below

EBIT

Statutory EBIT of £231 million represents an increase of 15%
like-for-like (£30 million} due to lower underlying EBIT. together
with a reduction in separately disclosed items to £99 million
{FY18 £105 million)
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[ SEGMENTAL REVIEW

PRIMARY SEGMENTATION: PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS LINE

Durimg the year underlying EBIT increased by £24 million on a like-for-like basis, anatysed as follows.

£m J Group Tour Operator J Group Airline l Curpurale"'l Group l
Revenue T T T T T um 38 l 30& ;‘_-9‘00?
Grass Margﬁn_!%) ks ey im0 220%
Underlying EBIT - 250 1is (35) 330
3.5% 36% nim 37%
Like-for-ike Underlying EBIT change o 5 L 5 +24
Customers (000 ] 11.032 18,528 {9.358) 20.201

Note: (i) Negative revenue and customers reported in corporate are intercompany eliminations

A review of the performance of each of our business units Is set out below

M Group Tour Gperator M Group Airline B Corporate M Group

|
|

:‘ ( Graph removed ;

{ Underlying EBIT margin (%)

Graph removed J

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

= m——— ——

Graph removed

Graph removed

I



GROUP TOUR OPERATOR

Revenue (Em)

7122

Gross margin {%)

‘ Restated
FY16 Like
Restated Like | -far-hike
Em kY17 FY16 | Change | -for-fike | change
Revenue 7122 6223 +899 6646 476
Gross Margin (%) _155%  170% -1s0bps  169% -140bps
Underlying EBIT 250 249 + 255 5
Underlying EBIT margin (%) 35%  40% -50bps  3.8% -30bps
Customers (000's) 1032 10867 +165 10867 +185
ASP (£) 646 572 +74 612 +54

The market for overseas holidays experienced a resurgence in
demand in FY17 following a more muted demand environment

in FYI6 due to geopolitical disruption. Against this backdrop. our
Group Tour Operatar business increased revenues by £476 million
{7%) to £7122 million, reflecting growth in beth customer numbers
and average selling prices across most of our source markets
particularly in Continentai Europe. Supperted by bath strong
demand and a continued focus on efficiencies. Centinental Europe
grew underlying EBIT significantfy, while Northern Europe further
increased profits on top of a strong performance last year. This was
offset by lower margins in our UK business. and as a result Group
Tour Operator underlying EBIT declined by £5 million to £250 million.

The underlying EBIT for our Group Tour Operator, split by source
market, is set out below.

Restated

FYI6 Like

Restated Like | -for-like

Em FYI7 FY16 | Change | -forhke } change
Underlying EBIT oo

- UK Tour Ops 52 87 -35 86 -34

- Continental Europe Tour Ops 96 70 +26 il +25

- Northern Europe Tour Ops 102 92 +0 98 +

Total 250 249 + 255 -5

Underlying EBIT {£m)

15.5 250

EBIT margin (%)

35 1,032

Customers (000's)

UK

Having traded strongly in the first half our UX Tour Operator
experienced challenging conditions in the second half of the

year, as highlighted in previous announcements A combination of
hote! price inflation. weaker Sterling and increased air capacity
made the market for holidays to Spain more competitive than

In previous years, putting pressure on input costs and selling
prices The business also absorbed the costs of rising fraudulent
iliness claims during the year, and of supportmg 10,000 customers
caught up in Hurricane Irma As a result, while revenue grew by
3%. underlying EBIT declined by £34 millicn compared to the strong
result reported last year.

In response. our UK Tour Operator has implemented a set of actions
to improve prefitability We have taken a robust approach towards
iliness claims including improving our hanaling and assessment
processes. and taking legal action aganst fraudsters - as a result,
the claim rate has declined dramatically We are also rebalancing our
destination mix towards more profitable. fast-growing destinations
such as Turkey and Egypt, and we are continuing to drive

operating efficiencies

In addition. we are continuing te reposition the business. In FY17 web
bookings grew by more than 25% and we closed over 100 stores. in
order to accelerate the shift towards online distribution. We also
grew sales of differentiated holidays, by 16% for holidays to own-
brand hetels, and by 8% for sales to selected partner hotels. in order
to improve our competitive positioning. Together, we expect that
these actions will help to return the business to its former profitable
growth trajectory.
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Continental Europe

Our Continental Europe tour operating business achieved a
significantly improved performance in FYI7. with revenues up

9%. Stronger demand for our holidays. coupled with a continuing
efficiencies programme, helped to increase EBIT by £25 million {(35%)
to £96 million.

In Germany. we maintained our market share in a highly competitive
marketplace, growing revenues by 7%. Underlying EBIT increased

by £13 million {29%) to £58 million. helped by business improvement
Initiatives, including expanding our online bookings by 22%. growing
sales of holidays to own-brand hotels by 9% expanding our
relationships with drstributicn partners, and restructuring our back
office functions.

Most of our other businesses in Continental Europe also experienced
good demand growth and achieved higher EBIT. Sales in our Russian
busingss more than deubled. amid a resurgence in demand for
outbound helidays as Russian tourists returned to Turkey following
a travel ban in the previous year. Qur bustnesses in Eastern Eurape
also performed strongly during the year.

Northern Europe

Our Northern Eurape business reported revenue growth of

7%. reflecting further expansion m our own-brand hote! range.
Trading over the Summer period was notably stronger. after a
Winter performance that was in ine with the previous year, as
we expanded sales of both classic package holidays and dynamic
packages. As a result. underlying EBIT grew by a further £4 million
to £102 million, further building on a very strong year last year

During the year, the business further strengthened its customer
proposition. achieving the highest net promoter score in the

Group of 51, up 7 points compared to FY16. We continue to refine

and streamline the cost structures within the four Nordic source
markets and to leverage the competitive strengths of our integrated
business model.
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GROUP AIRLINE

Revenue (Em)

3,185

EBITDAR margin (%)

13.3

‘ ] FYls Like

Like | -far-like
fm FY17 FY16 | Change | -forlike | change
Flight Revenue 2847 2530 <37 2598 <249
_Ancilary Revenue _ 30 265 45 285 2
Other Revenue ] 28 30 -2 32 -4
Total Revenue 385 2820 +360 298 +272
Total Operating Costs (2760} [(2465)  -295 (2536} 224

Underlying EBITDAR 425 360 +65 377 +48
Ur;der!ymg EBITDAR margin
(%

w 7 133%  127% +60bps  12.9% +402ps
Underlying EBIT ns 83 +32 Bl +34

Underlying EBIT margin (%)~ 36%  29% +70bps  28% +80bps
Customers (000's) 18.528 17580 +948 17580 +048
Proportion of internal sales
& 42%  45% -30bps - -
Avallable Seat Kilometres
{ASK) (m) 70171 66776 +3395 66776 +3395
Seat Load Factor SLF) (%) 897% B93% +40bps  893% +40bps
Short/Medium Hauf Yields
per seat (£} e 104 6 12 2
Long Haul Yields per seat (£) 306 299 + 321 15
Unit cost (pJASK] (4.37) (4n -026 4400 +0.03

Qur Group Airline revenue increased by £272 million (9%) to

£3185 millien cn a like-for-like basis, driven by further expansion
of our long-haul business from UK and Germany. In particular, our
long-haul performance was driven by seat-only growth to new
destinations including New QOrleans, San Diego and San Francisco,
together with growing third-party tour operator sales in Germany

In short and medium hau!. a number of actions to turn around our

Condor business resulted in an overall improvement in yields, while
Ioad factors increased by 1I¢ basis points to 911% In the UK. we also
selectively added capacity to Turkey. in response to strong demand

Ancillary revenues grew by 10%. partly as a result of the increase in
long haul fiying which attracts higher ancillary sales than short and
medium haul fiights. In addition, we experienced growing demand
for seat reservations, as well as for our pre-packaged duty free
preducts sold under the "Arshoppen” brand As a result, ancillary
revenue per passenger increased by 4% over the year to £16.63
(FYI6: £16.10)

Underlying EBIT (Em)

nS 36 18,528

EBIT margin (%} Departed customers (Q00's)

Operating cost increases due to volume-related growth and less
favourable exchange rates were mitigated by cost efficiencies

as part of our profit improvement programme, such that the total
cost per ASK reduced by 0 03 pence to 4.37 pence par ASK.

Underlying EBIT for our Group Airline grew by 42% (£34 millien] to
£115 mullion. The impraovement was largely driven by the turnaround
in Condor, which made good progress implementing the prafit
improvement measures that we set out in our FY16 results
announcement in November 2016. These included re-routing capacity
from the Spanish Islands to alternative destinations such as ltaly.
Bulgaria and Greace and improving the flexibility of our flight
planning. helping to optimise yields and to mitigate competitive
pricing pressures in the market As a result, Condor reported 9%
hugher revenue than last year, and improved Underlying EBIT by
£24 million, to achieve a positive E8IT result of £12 million

Our UK Airline reported revenue of 13% higher than last year.
refiecting increases to the long haul and short/medium hau!
flight programme to take advantage of a reccvery in demand to
Turkey and growth in new and existing long haul destinations.
As a consequence of further cost-out nitiatives and a further
strengthening of our seat-only offering, our UK airline delivered
underlying EBIT in line with last year

In Belgium, our airlina recovered from the terror attacks at Brussels
airport in March 2016 te deliver an Underlying EBIT improvement of
£10 million compared to last year and broadly in line with FY15 levels.
As previously announced, from November 2017, our Belgian airline
business transferred to Brussels Airlines such that it is no lenger
part of the Group.
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OTHER FINANCIAL ITEMS

NET FINANCE CHARGES

Group net finance costs for the year of £143 mitiion were broadly

in line with fast year (FY16. £140 miition) Bank and bond interest
charges reduced by £6 million following the replacement of our
2017 and 2020 bonds with a new lower-coupaon €750 million bond
issued in December 2018. This was offset by a £6 million increase in
non-cash interest charges relating to the discounting of long term
provisions. within other interest costs

£m | Furz | FYis |
RCF and Bond interest (68) (72)
Comrmitment fees and other bank related charges e} 2
Letters of cradit and other interest payable (44) {38)
Fegamortisaten . _m__ @
Interest income 4 G
Net interest & finance costs before aircraft financing ~ (125) 121
Aircraft fm;;ncmg - {i8 (19
Net Finance Costs (143) {140)
Further information on Finance costs are set outin Note 8

on page 136

SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS

Net Separately Disclosed ftems in FY17 comprised a ¢harge

of £140 million, which is £12 million higher than the prior year

(FY16- £128 million) as analysed below:

£m | L2 e |
New Operating Model implementation costs (42) 150)
Restructuring costs [ - BN 0|
Onerous contracts and store closures (30) (21
Costs of transformation (84 91
Reassessment of contingent consideration 32 4
Write offs. revaluations and othernon-cash (23} (8}
Other {24) {3)
EBIT related items 99) (105)
Finance related charges )} 23)
Total (140) (128)
ofwhich. T
- Cash'! N 125) 93]
- Non-Cash {15) (35)
Nate:

W) Items classified as Cash represent both current year cashflews and cash effects which are
yet ta be realised

Further infermation on Separately Disclosed tems is set outin
Naote 7 on page 135.
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TAXATION

The tax charge for the year increased to £34 million

{(FYI6 £33 million). Current tax of £42 million 1s £3 million higher

than last year due to increased tax payable in respect of ocur
profitable business in Northern Europe A net credit of £8 million was
recognised during the year for deferred tax which largely reflects
the increased recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of
carried forward tax losses in our Spanish entities.

UK tax legislation was enacted after the balance sheet date which
will restrict the permitted level of utilisation of brought forward
tax losses. The associated UK deferred tax asset will subsequently
be recovered over an extended period of time. Although we expect
this to impact the recogmition of deferred tax assets in FYI8 in
respect of our sizeable UK tax losses. we do not expect there to be
a significant impact on cash tax

tm | Fri7 | FYIG |
CurrertTax ) i o W) 39
Deferred Tax ] 3

Totat Tax Charge o . <L 33}
Total Cash Tax {37) {15)

OPERATING LEASE CHARGES

Operating lease charges in the year increased by £23 million
compared 10 last year to £236 million Awrcraft operating lease
charges increased by £24 million to £144 million primarily due to the
weakening of the pound against the US Dollar and changes to our
narrow-hody fleet.

£ | Fr | B |

Included withn E8°%
Aircraft operating lease charges" 144 120
Retall operating lease charges 4] 40
Hotel operating lease charges 19 2]
Other operating leasé charges 32 32

Total 236 213

Nate:

1 In addition the Group incurred seasanal wet lease costs of £75m (2018 £60m) dunng the year
The year-on-year increase was du in part to unplanned requirements a5 a result of grounded
aircraft in Condor as well as the expansion of our lang-haul programme. increased summer
demand inthe UK and a fleet raliover on four aircraft thus resulting in figher operating
lease charges



EARNINGS PER SHARE

Underlying earnings per share, before separately disclosed items.
was 93 pence. a ysar-on-year increase of 1 2 pence (FY16 81 pencel
Basic earnings per share for the year was 0 8 pence, a year-on-year
increase of 05 pence (FYI8 restated 0.3 pence) Further information
is included in Note 11 on page 138

Free cash flow of £153 millicn was £93 million hugher than last
year (2016: £60 million). reflecting growth in EBITDA of £46 mill:on
to £552 millien and an impravement in working capital as a result
of stronger trading These improvements were partially offset

by increased outflows in relation to the timing of tax payments
and additional one-off financing costs associated with the bond
refinancing in December 2016

im | ad P | Net cash Iinterest paid was unchanged at £129 millien. Bond and
: bank interest costs reduced by £9 million, whereas volume-related
Profit After Tax . .o 12 1 costssuch as letters of credit Increased by a similar amount.
Separately Disclosed Items 140 128 )
Attributable to Non-contralling Interests 1 3 Current year cash exceptional items are analysed as follows:
Exceptional Tax {10] 8] Exceptionalitems [£m) | Fyi? | FY1 |
Adjusted Profit After Tax o 43 o _
weighted fve. # of shares (] 1,536 1531 Current year cash related exceptionals (125) {93)
Underlying Earnings Per Share (Pence} 9.3p 8ip  Of which will be paid in future years 76 20
Note: Prior year cash exceptionals paid in current year {16) 13)
I Thig represents tne tax impact of separately disclused items Prior year EU2el [paid in Financial Year) - (9)
SUMMARY CASH FLOW STATEMENT® ::;tjl cash exceptional items" ns) {95)
£m | Foi7 | YE] W Total cash excepticnals m FYI7 are the sum af exceptional items E(0SIm and Bond Ref nancing
costs of E(10Im as presented in the cash flowe
Underlying EBIT o 330 302 The Group uses a measure of cash conversion representing the
Depreciation 222 204 percentage of underlying profit before tax that 1s converted inta free
Underlying EBITDA _ 552 506  cash flow On this basis. cash conversion has increased in FYI7 to
Working capital 105 i8  82% (FY16. 37%) due to the working caprtal benefits from the volume
Tax 137) (5r  related increases experienced in FYI7
Pensions & other operating (24} {25} cash conversicn [em) | P | i |
Operating Cash flow 596 484
Exceptionai items Mosi (95 Underlying EBIT - 330 302
Bond Refinancing 1) Net interest {143) (140)
Capital expenditure _ _fegk (2000 underlying Profit befare tax 187 162
Net Interest nald (129} 0290 Free Cash flow" T 153 60
Free Cash flow" 153 60 cash conversion 82% 37%
Dividend and Co-Op payment (40} W hote:
Net Cash flow H 56 1) Frae cash flow 15 cash from operating activities less exceptional tems capital expenditure
and interest pad
Opening Net Debt 129} (128
Net Cash Flow _ - 13 56
Other Movements in Net Debt™ (24) (57
Closing Net Debt {40} {129}
Notes:

4] The Group uses three non-statutory cash flow measures Lo manage the business
Operating Cashflow 1s net cash from operating actwities excluding interest income and the
cash affert of separataly disclosed stems impacting EBIT Free Cash flow 1s cash from operating
actvilies less capital expenditure ang net interest paid Met Cashflow 1s the netidecreaseli
increase In cash and cash equvalents excluding the net movementin borrowangs finance lease
repayments and facility set-up fees

I} Free cash flow 1s cash from operating activities fess exceptional items capital expenditure and
netinterest paid

(I Gther movements in net debt include currency Lranslation and the rectassification of eperating
leases ta finance leases
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NET ASSETS

Net Assets decreased by £46 million from £326 millen at September
2016 to £280 million at September 2017. This includes a negative
revaiuation of £83 million for the Group's dervatives in respect

of fuel and currency hedging, due mainly to an increase in the
differential between our hedged fuel prices and spot prices,
together with a positive revaluation of our pension liability of

£88 millten due to an improvement in bond yields used to calculate
the present value of the Group's pension obligations

o |
| |
| |

[ Graph removed r
| |

Note:
[} Further infarmatien on prior year restatement 15 set out in Note 33 on page 185

NET DEBT

The Group sources debt and finance facilities from a combination of
the international capital markets and its relationship banking group
During FY17 the Group's net debt has fallen from £129m to E40m,
equivalent to an improvement of £122m on a like-for-like basis

Like-for-like Net Debt reconcihation | Em |

FY16 Reported _7 o g
Impact of currency and other non-cash mavements B 10

Aircraft lease extensions (i8)
Bend refinancing (25}
FYIE Like-tor-like 162}
FY17 Reported {40}
Like-for-like change +22
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The compoesition and maturity of the Group's net debt s
summarised below.

’ 30 Ssp| 30 Sep ] \
Em 2007 2016 | Movement Maturity
2017 GBP Bond - {2001 200 June 2017
2020 EuroBond - 1450 450 june 2020
2021 Euro Bond (353 (345 {8 June 202
2022 EuroBond  [662) - {662) June 2022
Commercia) Paper {218) mn 0 Various
Revoving CreditFeclity’ - - - My
Finance Leases _ lis4 (183) 29 Varous
Aircraft related borrowings (32 64) 32 Various
Other external debt B ey varous
mhgemem fees o 23 [6) nla
Totalebt  ___0430)_ 0363 _ (6l
Cash (net of overdraft) 1399 1734 165

Net Debt (40) {129) 89

Note:

{il The Revahwng Credit Facility [RCF) 15 shown as nilw FY17 and FYI6 however in FY17 the Group
had utilised £28 milien (FY16 £20 milion) which related to the ancillary faciities of the RCF
which was used solely for banding and s thus net debt neutral

As at 30 Septernber 2017 the Group had £800 million of Committed
Facilities. which comprised a Revolving Credit Facility of £500 million.
of which £28 million was utilised at 30 September 2017 {£20 million
in Septernber 2016), and a £300 million bonding and quarantee
facility of which £267 million was drawn at 30 September 20i7

(30 Septemzer 2016. £275 million} All of the combined £295 million of
drawn balances have been used solely for bonding, and therefore is
not reflected in our gross debt These facilities were due to expire
in May 201S.

In November 2017 the Group entered into new financing
arrangements amounting to £975 million. replacing our existing
facilities This is further discussed under "Borrowing facilities” on
pages 146 to 147

TREASURY AND CASH MANAGEMENT

The Group's funding, hguidity and exposure to foreign currencies,
nterest rates, commodity prices and financial credit risk are
managed by a centralised Treasury function and are conducted
within a framewaork of Board-approved polictes and guidelines.

The principal aim of Treasury activities 1s to reduce volatility by
hedging. which provides a degree of certainty to the operating

segments. and to ensure a sufficient level of liquidity headroom
at all times.

The successful execution of policy is mtended to support a
sustainable fow risk growth strategy. enable the Group to meat its
financiat commitments, and enhance the Group's credit rating over
the medium term.



Due to the seasonality of the Group's business cycle and cash

flows a substantial amount of surplus cash accumulates during the
Summer manths. Efficient use and tight control of cash throughout
the Group is facilitated by the use of cash pooling arrangements
and the net surplus cash is invested by Treasury In high guality
short-term hquid instruments consistent with Board-approved
policy, which is designed to mitigate counterparty credit risk.

Yield 1s maximised within the terms of the pelicy but returns in
general remain low given the low interest rate environment in

the UK the US and Europe.

A small portion of the Group's cash Is restricted in overseas
jurisdictions primarily due to legal or regulatory requirements
Such cash does not ferm part of our liquidhty headroom calculation

HEDGING OF FUEL AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

AS AT 31 OCTOBER 2017

The objective of the Group's hedging policy is to smaooth fluctuations
In the price of Jet Fue!l and foreign currencies, in order to provide
greater certainty for planning purposes The proportion of our
exposures that have been hedged are shown in the table below.

Winter Summer Winter

2017118 I 208 201819 |
Euro  FullyHedged  76% 39%
US Dollar Fully Hedged 83% 33%
Jet Fuel Fully Hedged 0% S1%

As a1 31 Getober 2007

As Fuel is priced in US Dollars. our net fuel casts are influenced by
both the fuel price and the movements in the US Dollar against our
base currenicies.

While net fuel costs reduced by around £15 million in FYI7 compared
to the previous year, these benefits were partially offset by higher
dollar-denominated non-fuel flying costs For FYI8, we are hedgad
at significantly below the current forward rate. and estimate that,
as a result of our hedge position. our fuel costs wil! fall by a further
£10 million

The Group does not hedge the translation of overseas profits into
Sterling. and as a result of currency movements during the year,
underlying EBIT in FY16 was higher by £4 million.

The average and period end exchange rates relative to the Group
were as follows,

Average Rate Pgriod End Rate

Pz | FYIG P17 | FYI
GBP{Euro 115 128 113 116
GePUSDolar 127 142 134 130
GBPISEK .05 11.99 10.93 7

CREDIT RATING

The Group has received an upgrace from Fitch to B+ whilst
Standard & Poor's 1ssued a positive outlook and Mocdy's maintained
their Bi rating, recognising the continuing progress in Thomas
Cook’s transfarmation

Corporate ratings 2017 2018

Rating ‘ Outlook Rating | Outlook
Standard and Poor's B Positive B Stahle
Fiteh L B+  Stable B Stable
Moody's Bl  Stahle 8l Stable

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This document includes forward-looking statements that are

based on estimates and assumptions and are subject to risks and
uncertainties. These forward-looking statements are afl statements
ather than statements of historical facts or statements in the
present tense. and can be identified with words such as "aim”.
“anticipates’. "aspires”, "assumes’, "believes’, "could”. "estimates”.
“expects’, intends”. "hopes’, ‘may”, “outlook”, "plans’ "potential’.
‘projects’, "predicts’, 'should”. "targets’ “will”, "would", as well as

the negatives of these terms and other wards of similar meaning
These statements involve estimates. assumptions and uncertainties
which could cause actual results to differ materially from those
otherwise expressed

The forward-looking statements in this document are made

based upon our estimates, expectations and belefs cencerning
future events affecting the Group and are subject to a number

of known and unknown risks and uncertainties. Such ferward-
locking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding
the Group's present and future business strategies and the
environment in which it will operate. which may prove not to be
accurate. We caution that these forward-looking statements are
not guarantees and that actual results could differ materially from
those expressed or implied in these forward-locking statements.
Undue reliance should, therefore, not be placed on such forward-
fooking statements.

Any forward-looking statements contained in this document apply
only as at the date of this document and are not intended to give
any assurance as to future results Other than in accordance with
any legal or regulatory obtigations, the Group does not undertake
any obligation to update or revise any forward-looking staterment
after the date on which the forward-looking statement was made,
whether as a result of new information, future developments

or otherwise.
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APPENDIX1 - USE OF ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The Directors have adopted a number of alternative performance
measures [APM), namely underlying EBIT. net debt. underlying £PS,
operating cash flow. free cash flow and net cash flow. The Group's
results are presented both before and after separately disclosed
items Separately disclosed items are disclosed in Note 7 of the
consolidated financial statements.

These measures have been used to identify the Groups strategic
objectivas of ‘Underlying EBIT and Underlying EBIT margin growth’
and ‘Net Debt reduction, and to monttor performance towards these
goals The alternative performance measures are not defined by IFRS
and therefore may not be directly comparable with other companies
alternative performance measures. These measures are not
intended to be a substitute for, or supericr te, IFRS measurements.
The gefinition of each APM presented in this report, together with

a reconciiation to the nearest measure prepared in accordance

with IFRS 15 presented below

UNDERLYING EBIT

This is the headline measure of the Group's performance, and is
based on profit from operations before the impact of separately
disclosed items Underlying EBIT provides a measure of the
underiying operating performance of the Group and growthi i
prefitability of the operations

Reconctliation to IFRS megsures 1 t |
£m Y7 FY16
Profit fromrhberat'\ons ' ) ) 23 197
Less Separately disclosed items affectung loss from

operations [Note 7) {99) nosi
Underlying EBIT 330 302

MANAGEMENT CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Group uses three non-statutory cash flow measures to manage
the business Operating Cashflow is net cash used in operating
activities excluding the cash effect of separately disclosed items.
Free Cash flow is cash from aperating activities less capita!
expenditure and interest paid. Net Cashflow is the net decrease

in cash and cash equivalents excluding the net movement in
borrowings. facility set-up fees and finance lease repayments
These cash flow measures are indicators of the financial
management of the business. They reflect the cash generated by
the business hefore and after investing and financing activities and
explain changes in the Group's Net Debt position.
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Reconciliation to IFRS measures

£Em

Underlying EBIT 330 302

IFRS depreciation and amortisation 222 204
{FRS share based payments' ' 3 1
IFRS movement in working capital and provisions 73 8
Add back cash impact of separately disclosed items

on working capital i (6}

IFRS Income taxes paid {37 (15)
IFRS additionat pension cantributions (28} (29
Add back non cash impact of separately

disclesed items 4 19
Operating CashFlow 596 484
Em P | F |
IFRS net cash used In operating actwvities 496 ﬁ
IFRS proceeds on disposal of property. plant and

equipment 7 9

IFRS [nvestments in joint ventures & associates - {3

IFRS purchase of tangible assets 132 i)

IFRS purchase of intangible assets _ {74) B LBE}
IFRS interest paid ] - 144) 1135}
Free Cash Flow _ 153 60
IFRS dividends paid (8} -

IFRS dividends paid te non-controlling interests {32) {4)
Net Cash Flow n3 56




UNDERLYING EPS

Earnings are based on results before separately disclosed items

after a notional tax charge divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares, adjusted for any potential difutive impact of the
assumed caonversian of the employee equity-settled share-based

payment schemes outstanding

Reconciliation to IFRS measures

£m | FYi7 I

FYi6 |

Profit before tax 48 34
Separately disclosed items (Note 7) (140) [128)
Underlying profit before tax S 186 162
Notional tax charge (44) {4l
{oss attributable to non-controlling interests 1 3
Underlying profit attributable te equity holders

of the parent 143 124
Weighted average number of shares used for basic

and diluted earnings per share (Note 11) 1,536 1531
Underlying EPS (pence) 9.3p 8.Ip

Note:

I The notignal tax charge £44m (2016 £41m) ingludes IFRS tax charge of E34m (20t6 £33miand a

netional tax charge on separately disclosad items of £10m (2016 £8m)

NET DEBT

Net debt comprises bank and other borrowings, finance lease

payables and net dervative financial instruments used to hedge

axposure to interest rate risks of bank and other borrowings.
offset by cash and cash equivalents Net debt is a measure of

how the Group manages its balance sheet and capital structure
A strong balance sheet and efficient capital structure 1S essentia

to withstand external market shocks and seize opportunities

Accordingly. reducing net debt and the cost of the debt is a pricrity

for the Group

Reconciliation to IFRS measures.
Y7

FY1& |

£m

Bo?owings o 012920 01738)
Obligations under finance leases - Ds4 {183}
Net dervative financial instruments - interest rate

swaps (Note 21) m 6
Cash and cash equivalents 1407 1776
Net Debt (40) (129)
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RISK MANAGEMENT

EMBEDDING A CULTURE
OF RISKMANAGEMENT

| OURRISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY TOP DOWN OVERSIGHT
} The Board is responsible for maintaining the Group's risk In 2017 we enhanced our approach to risk management by
managernent and internal control systems. with a mandate that incorporating the top down risk review process into the agenda of
includes defining risk appetite and monitoring risk exposures and the Executive Committee. which is chaired by the CEQ The purpose
J mitigations to ensure that the nature and extent of risks taken of the top down risk review is to provide leadership, direction
by the Group are aligned with its strategic objectives and oversight with regard te the Group's overall rigk framework.
| appetite. and relevant risk policies, processes and controls As part
RISK APPETITE of the new process, key strategic risks from the Group Risk
The Board has undertaken a detailed exercise to consider the risk Dashboard are reviewed on a quarterly basis 10 ascertain whether
‘ appetite in a number of key areas for the business, The results of all risks are being mitigated appropriately and to take action where
this review indicate the relative appetite of the Board across the sk TUrther mitigations are reguired. The Group Risk Dashboard is then
| factors and behaviours it is evident that this represents aview at  Presented and discussed at the Audit Committee, which ensures
{2 point in time. changes in the economic environment. strategy of that the Aud!t Committee |s provided with an enterprise-wide view
’ performance of the business will impact this evaluation. of the Group's current risk exposure
The Board is aligned on the relative risks and has agreed the BOTTOMUP ASSESSMENTS

. appetite for risk taking for Strategic Initiatives, Digital Delvery.

{ Product Portfoiio. and Talent is entrepreneurial This position aligns
with the strategic aims and targets set for the business. The Board

/ seeks to minimise exposure to all Health and Safety. Reputational

‘ husiness unit risks and ensure implementation of risk mitigation
and Customer r\_sks inall cther aspects, the Board takes a balanced plans. Where appropriate, sigrificant risks identified at business unit
view on risk taking

| level are escalated and discussed during the Executive Committee
" The Board will use the resulis of this review to influence setting of risk review
‘ Group strategy and support its ongoing decision-making process

Each major business unit has a quarterly risk committee attended
by the risk owners representing all areas of the business. as
well as by the Group Risk Team. The risk committees analyse key

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
| OUR APPROACH TO RISK MANAGEMENT The Audit Committee considers risk exposure against risk appetite
| Operating in a dynamic and continually volatile environment requires by profiling key risks in respect of their potential Impact and
a flexible and responsive risk management process that can match likelihood of occurrence. after consideration of mitigating actions
the pace of change and provide Management with a concise view that are in piace. During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed
‘ of the Group's risk profile at any point in time We cantinue to focus both top down and bottom up risk analyses and the Board has
on embedding a culture of risk management that will contribute undertaken a detailed exercise to consider its risk appetite
[ towards effective strategy execution, ensuring both risks and The results of these activities have informed the Annual Audit Plan,
' opportunities are identified and managed to deliver long-term which will enable a risk-ased approach to the ongoing nternal

value creation audit and assurance programme. The report of the Audit Committee
[ can be found on page 74.

During 2017, we focused on maturing our risk management
1 programme. We strengthened our risk analysis and reporting
( through the incorporation of guantitative key risk indicators into
~ the process. We advised the business on how {g assess the nisks
} inherent within the Group's commercial partnership agreement
with Expedia. We delivered project risk management training to the
IT project management community, which will help ensure risks
i are appropriately considered and addressed during the dehvery
of strategic projects
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THE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

TOPDOWN

Oversight and assessment
of nsk exposures at the
corporate level

N

Overall responsibility for the
risk management system

> Supports the Beard in monitoring risk exposure

against risk appetite

» Maintains executive oversight
of the Group's key risks and
mitigation

N

BOTTOM UF

Identification and assessment
of sk exposures at segment
and function level

» Group-wide risk identification,
assessment and monitering
» Mamtenance of risk registers

THE BOARD

Receives and reviews
Audit Committee reports
on risk governance

Sets strategic objectives
and defines risk appetite

AUDIT COMMITTEE

» Moniters the risk management process

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

» Provides oversight and challenge
for risk mitigation plans

» Considers emerging risks
» Sels the risk management
process

OPERATIONAL LEVEL

» Risk awareness and cufture
embedded across the Group

> Implementation of nisk
mitigation plans and controls

VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group
In accordance with provision C2 2 of the 2016 UK Corporate
Governance Code.

The Directors believe a five-year period is appropriate to consider
viability as this duration is in line with the Thomas Cook Group
business plan (the ‘Business Plan) and the maturity of the Group's
bank facility

In order to assess the viability of the Group, the Directors reviewed
each of the principal risks and uncertainties. taking into account
current operational and financial performance as well as the
Business Plan. The key assumptions which underpin the Business
Plan include-

> raveniie growth of 4% per annum;

> the benefits of the Group's strategic plans are delivered in full: and

» financing facilities in the form of debt or arcraft leases will
continue to be available.

As part of the analysis. stress testing focusing on the following
scenarios was performed:

> A major terrorist incident or natural disaster in cne of the
Group's larger destinations that leads to a significant decline
in customer demand

> The Group fails to fully deliver the efficiency targets or new
business initiatives included in its business plan

Based on the results, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation
and to meet its libilities as they fall due over the five-year period
of their assessment

ASSESSMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS

The Group's risk management system works effectively in assessing
the Group's risk appetite and has supporied a robust assessment
by the Directors of the principal risks facing the Group The principal
risks are reviewed throughout the year and discussed with the
Board quarterly This includes all relevant principal risks that could
threaten Thomas Cook’s business model. future performance,
salvency or liguidity
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RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The table below lists the principal risks and uncertainties as determined
by the Board that may affect the Group and highlights the mitigating
actions that are being taken. The content of the table, however, is not
intended to be an exhaustive list of all the risks and uncertainties that

may arise.

Risk Direction
{after mitigation]

@ Increased risk

@ Risk exposure unchanged

@ Reduced risk

Qur Strategic Priorities

CARE AU

P9 Contact
Holidays
Services

Partnership

Efficiencies
principal risks Mitigation Trendvs  Linkto
2016 Strategy

Strategic initiatives
We continue to implement our > Weekly Executive Committee meetings attended by senior management during [ care
strategy for profitable growth. which which progress and 1ssues are discussed and addressed \l/ CONT
involves significant changes to our > Financial benefits and KPIs are incorporated in the business plan and delivery
businesses and operations. as well s tracked as part of the business review process
as our underlying processes and > Each project or pragramme has its own steering group which provides challenge
systems Due to the complexity of to the project. monttors progress and ensures that decisions are made at the | EFF g
these changes, there is a nisk that we appropriate level
will nat deliver the targeted benefits* >We have made significant progress within all elements of our strategy including the

24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Prormise and partnerships with LMEY fnvestments and

Expedia Our strategic initiatives are key mitigation measures for our principa! nsks

and are described in detail in the mitigation of each risk below
Customer satisfaction
Jechnological advances have had > Qur implementation of the Customer Experience Roadmap is progressing well and
a significant impact on consumer is on track to be fully embedded into the business by 2020. This has strengthened \I/ CONT
behaviour by increasing price our focus on customer excellence and 1s improving our ability to respend to shifts m HOL
transparency and availability consumer behaviours SERY
of travel products as well as a >We have refreshed our organisational values to ensure clear alignment with our PART
proliferation of online reviews about Customer Promises of Quality. Service. and Relability. All employees received £FF
travel experiences, Consequently. training on our Customer Promises and the new organisational values. which helps
competition for travel services Is foster a culture of customer excellence
increasing and Thomas Caak must + The 24-Hour Hatel Satisfaction Promise has been extended ta apply to mast of our
differentiate itself by providing a differentiated properties and continues to receive positive customer feedback
high-quality holiday experience > We reqularly review our customer journey map to identify innovative holiday
Inability to consistently meet features such as ‘Choose Your Roem’
customer expectations may have an > We have a rabust hotel quality review process
adverse impact on Thomas Cook's >We proactively manitor our Net Promater Score INPS} to identify and address areas
market share* for improvement at each stage of the customer journey
Quality of our products and services
Our success and future growth >We are continuing to invest into our own-branded hotel pertfolio, which ma
depend upon the introduction and contributes to higher customer satisfaction and margin This summer we cpened e CONT
expansion of products and services 1 own-branded hotels across Bulgaria, Croatia, Italy Turkey. Spain, Greece. Cyprus, HOL
that appeal to consumers. If we and the Maldives, in 2018 we are planning to launch a further Il own-branded hotels
are unable to provide the right new > Qur aim s to reduce the number of hotels within our differentiated portfolio,
preducts and services to rapidly This allows us to focus our resaurces into developing a better experience for EFF

changing customer demands and
preferences it may have an adverse
effect on our business*

our customers

>We have entered into a strategic partnership with LMEY Investments. a Swiss-
based hotel property develapment cempany, to further develop and grow
Thomas Cook's own-brand hotel portfali

> We have signed a multi-year agreement with Expedia which will provide our
customers with over 60,000 more hotefs In giobal city and European domestic
locations than currently on offer

>We have iaunched the ‘Choose Your Room' service which allows customers to
pick the hotel room of their choice. It is initially available at 50 hotels and will be
available in 300 by summer 2018, The service raises the bar in terms of the quality
and valug we offer our customers Personalised add-ons and ancillaries are real
drivers of profitable growth

* Principal risk with a direct link to viabiiity statement.
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Trend vs

Principal risks Mitigation
2016 Strategy
Digital strategy
Qur distribution approach has to be > We continue to improve our websites, which is leading t¢ strong growth
aligned with customer demands and in web bookings for our major markets e
preferences and be able to adapt to — Our Gnewseb platform is now fully operational in the UK. Belgium and HoL
rapid changes in technology. If we The Netherlands CERY
are not successful in adapting our — The web platform used by our German market was recently ranked as
approach it may have an adverse one of Germany's best online portals EFE
effect on our market share — We are currently upgrading the technology utilised on our Northern European
profitability and future growth* platform. which will make the website faster and more responsive
» n an effort to attract more customers to our websites. we have developed nch and
inspirational content, This year we have added 80.000 images and 130 hotel videos
> Qur Companion App 1s available for pur customers to support them during their
entire journey
Talent
Failure to recruit or to retain the > Qur annual engagement survey allows us to assess employee commitment and [ caARE }
right people at the right time identify acticns we need to enable talent retention. We will therefore introduce e [ CONT )
will lead to a lack of capability with effect from FY18. a new commitment index designed to focus leaders on
or capacity to enable the delivery those areas which will drive commitment to the organisation to deliver the
cf our busmess strategy. business strategy
> Qur high potential talent have been identified by using a matrix of performance and EFF
potential. Those identified have targeted development plans based on ther career
aspiration
> Graduate programmes were introduced m 2016 in the UK and Group Airline
businesses to further strengthen succession and were further expanded in 2017
> Our Group Leadership Development pregramme for direct reports te Senier Leaders
commenced in 2017 targeting those identified as having potential for senior
leadership roles
> The recent appointment of the new CFO following the retirement of the current CFO
was done through internal channels demonstrating effective succession planning
IT infrastructure
We are increasingly dependent on > Dur service delivery process ensures demands from the business are addressed CARE
technology to reduce costs and to in a timely manner e
enhance customer service [four T >We have a robust governance framework that enables iT to align with and meet HoL
architecture 1s unable to support the the needs of the business
needs of the business. cur business > We have commenced a major change programme which involves simphfying and PART
may be adversely affected harmaonising our IT landscape and will iead to significant operational efficiencies =
Cyber security
Infarmation security and cyber > We are currently implementing a robust Cyber Security Strategy based on five CARE
threats are currently a priority objectives; Protect. Detect, Deter, Respond. and Recover \l/ CONT
across all industries and remain » The Strategy is aligned with internationally recognised standards of Cyber security oL
a key Government agenda item. from the 1SQ 27001 series and 1s designed to be quickly adaptable to the changing
We recognise that we have high cyber threat landscape PART
risk exposure in this area. > Qur Cyber Security Steering Group. which meets monthly, monitors progress of the EFF

Our review of this area indicates that
the Group is particularly sensitive to
criminal activity against our brand.
reputation and revenue as well as
ransomwarefmalware attacks

Cyber Security Strategy implementation and ensures appropriate mitigations are
in place for all high risk areas. The Audit Committee also receives regular updates
regarding progress on cyber risk mitigation

>We are currently undertaking a project to achieve compliance with the General Data
Protection Regulation by May 2018. As part of this project we are enhancing our
information security measures to ensure the confidentiality, integrity. availability
and resilience of our processing systems. This work complements our Cyber
Security Strategy and serves as an additional mitigation of this risk

* Principal risk with a direct link to viability statement.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED
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Principal risks Mitigation Trend vs Link to
2018 Strategy
Disruption to airline operations
The success of our Group Airline » We have cammenced a programme that aims at achieving efficiencies in the [ care ]
business depends on our ability maintenance, flight operations. ground operations. operation control and flight CONT
to effectively manage our flegt by dispatch departments through the adoption of a more streamiined organisational HoL
ensuring we matntain the right structure, which will have a positive effect on our ability to manage and prevent SERY
number and types of aircrafts and by operational disruptions PART
operating those aircrafts to deliver > The Red3 programme was implemented with the aim of reducing the number of EFF
a high-quality ang cost-efficient three-hour delays through the adoption of mitigating measures such as the use
service to our customers. of charters and aircrafts in reserves
" ! > The fleet Management Team continuously assesses the status of our fleet-
‘n”fnlfé'g ;%g?%it:;fhsi:?aﬂ?ndOur forecasting potential ngeds and managing dismissal and intake of aircraft
fieet may lead to missed revenue Our fleet strategy also involves the structuring of our lease plans over a fong
o penad of time. This approach allows us to refinance the leasefpurchase of
or reduced margins. Ina_billty to aircrafts on a staggered schedule
fgi[]a;teo::rfé?g;?;ef;g;ilr{ ?:gtlead > The acquisition of new aircraft 1s subject to a number of gualitative criteria that
increases and reduced proﬂ‘tability guarantee consistency with our product offering
’ > We have recently entered into a seven-year agreement with Transat AT inc. for
This risk has always been monitared the exchange of aircraft on a seasonal basis. enabling us to manage and utilise
by the Group at an operational level our fleet more efficiently
At the request of the Audit Committee
this risk was added to the principal
risks to ensure a more holistic
disciosure of the Group's risk prafile
Cash and working capital
Our ability, over the longer term. >We proactively monitor our short. medium and long-term cash requirements and CARE
to generate sufficient cash flow liquidity headroom, Gur new bank facility will further increase headroom CONT
to make scheduled payments on > Qur cost-out and profit improvement initiatives are successfully contributing to noe
our debt will depend on our future cash avallability SERV
operational performance. which will > We continue to monitor ail opportunities to manage hiquidity requirements and PART
be affected by a range of economic. maintain an adequate level of contingency as well as seeking to lower the average EFF
financial, regulatory, competitive and cost of debt over the medium-term
busingss factors many of which are
outside of our contro!*
Health and safety
Due ta the nature of our industry. the > The markets in which we aperate each have therr own fieaith and safety regulations.
Group will always be exposed to the we are currently focused on enhancing our policies and procedures by finding best
risk of a health and safety incident practice from each of the markets in order to define a common Group standard hot
en route to a destination. in the The policies address all major risk areas including swimming pools, balconies, CERY
accemmadation or during an excursion transport, excursians, fire and hygiene PART
A health and safety incident could have > Qur Health and Safety Audit Programme. which is delivered by reputable external E»
a negative wmpact on our reputation specialists (8GS and Cristal), verifies comphiance with Federatian of Tour Operators
and industry standards and includes a robust follow-up process. We continue te make
improvements te our audit programme, most recently we engaged an external specialist
to perform hygiene and security audits
> The Group Health, Safety and Security Team requiarly reviews and updates its safety
and security training programmes to ensure they continue to reflect best practice
> All new hotels are inspected by the internal Quality Team and SGS before opering to
ensure robust standards are in place
> We actively monitor the number of health and safety incidents and over the last
few years we have seen a significant rise in fraudulent customer iliness claims by
UK tourists We have put in place prevention and detection measures (e.g. fraud
investigators) in an effort to address this issue

* Principat risk with a direct link to viability statement.
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Principal risks

Trend vs Link to

Hiﬁgatian

2016 Strategy
Geopolitical uncertainties
A significant decline in customer > Qur flexible business model allows us to align our committed capacity te fluctuating [ care
demand due to the growing threat demand We continueg to rebalance our destination mix and add new destinations to 9 CONT
of terrorist attacks in our key tourist our portfolio. thereby mitigating the impact of geepolitical events Hoe
destinations specifically Turkey. >We have developed a Hotel Security Framework. which defines a set of mnimum CERY
may lead to a decrease in revenue security standards that should be operational in our hotels. Implementation of PART
from our branded. selected and the Framework will follow a risk-based approach, with risk destinations including CFF

complementary hotels*

Tunisia and Egypt as a prierity

>We proactively menitor the geopolitical landscape by partnering with the Risk
Advisary Group. a leading independent global risk management cansultancy that
provides intelligence, investigations and secunity services

>We continue to follow the guidance of the appropriate state departments relevant
to our source market

>We have a rebust crisis management framework which we activate in the event
of anincident

Brexit

Qur nsk assessment of the UK's exit
from the EU identified the following areas
that could have a major impact on the

> The Carporate Affairs Team has been proactively meeting with Government officials
from both the UK and the EU to ensure our concerns are appropriately understood

T CARE
CONT

» The Brexit Working Group which includes representatives from Finance Tax HR. WOt
Group's strategy. Communications, Legal, Risk, the Group Airline and the Tour Operating Segments
» Loss of access to the European Single was e;tab\ished in 2016 to ensure all r|sks_. and potential issues related to the UK's PART
Aviation Market could have a significant UPCOmINg exit from the EU are baing considered and addressed EFF
impact on the ability of our UK Aifine » Management is putting in place contingency plar}s fqr every eventuality with a
to operate in the EU and the US particular focus on ensuring that our customers’ holiday experience is not impacted
> Loss of access to EU employment
markets. inctuding the ability for
businesses to place temporary workers
in EU Member States without additional
barriers may cause a skill shortage
in the UK and in destination
Compliance with regulatory and legislative requirements
There is a risk that we do not comply »We have a dedicated legal team, which works to ensure that we comply fully with [ care 2
with regulatory. legislative and corporate  regutatory requirements and which monitors all current and emerging regulatory e CONT
social responsibility requirements in developments in our source markets. The team receives regular training te provide Wot
the legal jurisdictions where Thomas awarenass of critical changes in relevant legislation or case law TERY
Cook operates. > Qur Code of Conduct is backed by & comprehensive training programme to ensure PART
that 1t 1s fully embedded across the Group EFF

In particutar. in February 2017,

the European Union Competition
Commission launched an investigation
inte the travel industry regarding
hotel accommaodation agreements
with a focus on the availability of
hotel bookings and pricing between
member states.

» Qur Legal Risk Database enables communication and timely analysis of all risks
related to regulatory, legislative and corporate social responsibility requirements
» In regards to the EU Competition Commission investigation, Thomas Cook is

committed to fair and open comgetition and will cooperate fully with the Commission

through the process

* Principal risk with a direct link to the viability statement.

Risk Direction
[after mitigation)

@ Increased risk

@ Risk exposure unchanged

@ Reduced risk

Our Strategic Priorities

Care
Contact
Holidays
Services
Partnership
Efficiencies

Ak Meymav
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GOVERNANCE

CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE

STATEMENT

Image removed

GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHTS:

BOARD EVALUATION See more on pages 70ta 71

BOARD ACTIVITY See more on pages 68 to 69

DIVIDEND POLICY See more on page 73

COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

This report sets out how the Company applied the
principles of the April 2016 version of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code). it is the Board's view
that for the year ended 30 September 2017 the
Company fully complied with the provisions applicable
to this reporting period The Cede can be read in full
at wwwifrcorg.uk.

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

In my statement last year, | spoke about the focus of the Company to
put the customer at the heart of our organisation The Board shared
this focus by dedicating time to getting to know our customers, our
colleagues and our holiday offering maore closely. This year as part

of our governance activities we have used this insight to suppart
Management to drive the right behaviours throughout the business
and ensure we have the right people in place to do this

in spring. we reviewed our corporate values and redeveloped them
based upon sur Customer Promises, 50 that the behaviours within our
own organisation align with the promises we make to our customers.
We also updated our Code of Conduct to ensure it closely reflects
both our values and Customer Promises These initiatives reflect
Management’s continued commitment ta instill 8 customer centric
culture. Al of gur colleagues have received traming on the new values
so that everybody can develop an understanding of what the values
mean to them The behaviour of our people is key to all that we do
and | believe our new values will help ensure we are doing business
in a way we can be proud of.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During our FY16 Board evaluation, we 1dentified that the importance
of the customer and our own-brand hetel portfolio to our strategy
meant that we could benefit from additional Nen-Executive
expertise in these areas Following a comprehensive search led by
the Nominations Committee. | am delighted that Jurgen Schreiber
and Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson agreed to join the Board Jurgenis a
highly accomplished executive with broad international experisnce
across retail and consumer goods businesses. Paul is the CFO of
InterContinental Hotels Group PLC so brings with him valuable
expertise and in-depth knowledge of the hotel Industry

During the year, the Nomnations Committee continued to focus on
executive succession planning and spent considerable time iooking
at the talent pipelne. In September, our CFO Michae! Healy decided to
retire following a very successful five years at Thomas Cook, during
which time he has put the business on a much more stable financial
footing. ! am pleased that we were able t¢ appoint a high-calibre
successor to Michael from gur own ranks. Bili Scott, currently Director
of Financial Reporting. has a proven track record in the business
having taken a leading role in the Group s key corporate transactions
over the last five years, including the equity and debt raising as

part of the Group’s recapitalisation in 2013 and subsequent debt
refinancing exercises As such, Bill's appointment will ensure that
we cantinue on our journey with a CFO who is perfactly positioned
to keep driving the business forward in achieving its strategic goals

Together. these three appointments further strengthen the Board
and will give us, | believe, the optimal balance of skills, experience
and indepéndence needed to deliver on our strategy.



Image removed

GOVERNANCE HIGHLIGHT:

BILL SCOTT APPOINTED
AS CFO FROM JANUARY 2018

Key strengths and skills:

> Extensive experience in strategic financial planning and
financial reporting

> Chartered accountant with expertise in leading large corporate
transactions including debt and equity refinancing

> Knowledge of international markets, having worked in Asia

Previous experience and appointments:

Director of Financial Reporting at Thomas Cook. Financial
Controller at Kwik-Fit; and senior finance positions at PwC:
First Pacific Company. Shell. and eBookers plc

BOARD EVALUATION

Recagnising the need continually to develop the effectiveness
of the Board this year, | engaged Dr Tracy Long of Boardrcom
Review Limited to conduct an independent evaluation of the
Board's operation. This rigereus and thorough assessment
involved in-depth one-to-one Interviews and individual feedback.
as well as overall feedback to the Board. The review provided
usefulinsight and identified practical actions that will help us to
develop. Mare details about the evaluation process and outputs
can be found on pages 70 to 71

COMMITTEES

Dunng the year. our Committees made good progress in delivering
positive change n their respective areas.

With the continuing significant threat posed by cyber-attacks

and the pending implementation of the General Data Protection
Requlations, our Audit Committee has been particularly focused
on the risks associated with cyber and information security and
the controls we have in place to deal with them. The Commuttes

continues closely to monitor progress in this area {0 ensure we do

all we can to keep our customers data safe The Audit Committee
also oversaw the transition to our new auditer Ernst & Young.
with FY17 being their first audit. | am pleased to report a smooth
transition and effective audit. benefiting from the enhanced
independence that a new auditor brings.

Our Health Safety & Environmental Committee oversaw the
introduction of a number of initiatives that demonstrate cur
commitment to doing business in a responsible way which puts

our customer at the heart Qur Group Airline introduced the ‘Safe@
Heart' initiative which aims to enhance the culture of safety in our

Group Airline through a number of measures. including providing
extra safety training to up to 7000 Group Airline employees. in the

area of sustainability, the Commitiee approved a new Sustainability
Strategy which aligns with our main strategy for profitable growth
The Committee also oversaw the introduction of an industry-leading

Animal Welfare Policy which takes a much stronger approach to
ensuring the standard of care of the animals 1n attractions and
aligns with our Customer Promises

Meanwhile, cur Remuneration Committee undertook the
important task of setting targets for our Performance Share Plan
which are stretching but not commercially sensitive. so that we
can disclose them prospectively to our Shareholders. | believe
this development represents a step forward in cur reporting and

demonstrates the Committee’s commitment to being as transparent

as possible and acting upon feedback from our investors.
More informaticn about the Remuneration Committee’s activities
can be found on pages 84-108.

SUMMARY
Thomas Ceok enters FYI8 with a strong Board and an enhanced

carporate culture. making us well-positioned to achigve our strategic
goals and build Shareholder value. The actions we have taken in the
last 12 months represent pesitive steps forward in our governance

practice and | lock forward to building on this mementum in the
coming year.

FRANKMEYSMAN
CHAIRMAN

21 November 2017
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GOVERNANCE

LEADERSHIP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

P - .
. 1 FRANKMEYSMAN
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN
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t2

PETER FANKHAUSER
CECEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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| 3 MICHAEL HEALY
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

N
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( 4 DAWN AIREY

AND SENICRINDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

image removed

r €
7 WARREN TUCKER
INDEPENDENT NOM-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR ‘

5

ANNET ARIS
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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6 EMRE BERKIN
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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8

L.

MARTINE VERLUYTEN
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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|9 LEsLeY KNOX ‘
INGEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR |
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| 10 PAULEDGECLIFFE-JOHNSON
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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L

- .
11 JURGEN SCHREIBER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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12 ALICE MARSDEN
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL
AND COMPANY SECRETARY
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EXPERIENCE AND DIVERSITY

Images removed

i
1 FRANK MEYSMAN !megeremoved
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Appointment: October 201
Committee memberships: B

Key strengths and skills

> Extensive chairmanship experience across
public and private companies

> International business expertise

» Track record in the creation of shareholder
value on the back of heritage brands

Other directorships

Chairman of JBC NV, Independent Representative
Director of Warehouses De Pauw (WDP} and
Spadel S.A.

Previous experience and appointments
Various senior positions at Procter & Gamble-
Dauwe Egberts, and Sara Lee Corporation
where he served as Executive Vice President
and on the Board of Directors

2 EEETOER FANKHAUSER i{lﬁmﬁageremoved

Appointment: November 2014
Committee memberships:

Key strengths and skills

» Strong international leadership skills

» Successful track record in turning around
and growing travel businesses

» Proven expertise in developing and delivering
complex strategy with a clear customer focus

Other directerships
Nore

Previgus experience and appointments

MD of the UK and Cantinental Europe and
subsequently CO0 at Thomas Coak Senior
positions at Kuoni and CEQ at LTU Group (the third
largest tour operator in Germany at that timel

3 MICHAEL HEALY jmage removed

CFO
Appointment: July 2012

Key strengths and skills

» Expertise in refinancing highly
levered businesses

> In-depth knowledge of debt and equity
markets and significant experience of M&GA

> Chartered Accountant with international
experience across a broad range of industries
including consumer and financial services

Other directorships
None

Previous experience and appointments

CFQ at Kwik Fit Group: CO0 and FD at First
Pacific Company {listed on the Hong Kong stock
exchange), and CFO at ebookers plc

4 DAWN AIREY @

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR AND SENIOR
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Appointment: April 2010
{appointed SID October 2015}
Committee memberships: @R

Key strengths and skills

> Previous experience serving on the board
of a large low-cost arrline

> Deep understanding of the use of technology
in the consumer market

> Current executive role leading a
global business

Other directorships
CED Getty Images and Chair of the National
Youth Theatre

Previous experience and appointments
Senior Yice President of Yahoo! EMEA President
of CLT-UFA UK Television Limited within the

RTL Group: Chair and CEQ of Five TV. Managing
Director of Global Content at ITY plc. and Non-
Executive Director of easylet plc

5 ANNET ARIS |mageremoved
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: July 2014
Committee memberships: EIGI

Key strengths and skills

» Experience in the travel practice of a leading
management consultancy

> Expertise in digital transfermation and
continental corparate governance

> Knowledge of the European technology sector

Other directorships

Adjunct Professor of Strategy at INSEAD

in France. Board member and Chair of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees

of ASR Netherlands NV Board member of
Jungheinrich AG; Board member and member

of the Audit and Compensation Committees of
ProSiebenSatl AG; Board member and member of
the Technelogy and Strategy Committee and the
Remuneraticn Committee of ASML NV

Previpus experience and appointments
Partner of McKinsey & Company in Germany
leading its Travel and Transportatiaon practice,
and later, its Media practice.

Committee membership

B Nomnations

B remuneration

n Audit

L Health Safety & Environmental
. Charrman
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EXPERIENCE AND DIVERSITY

CONTINUED

6 EMRE BERKIN |mage emoved
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: November 2012
Committee memberships: CIE

Key strengths and skilis

> In-depth knowledge of the operation
of low-cost airlines

> Expertise In key destination markets,
particularly Turkey

> Streng background v managing and
developing strategy in the technology sector

Other directorships
Board member of MyGini Inc

Previous experience and appointments

Various senior pesitions at Micresoft. including
Vice President of EMEA. Non-Executive Director at
a broad range of technology companies including
Acate! Lucent Teletas Telekomunikasyon A S, Non-
Executive Director at Pegasus Alrlines.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: October 2013
| Committee memberships: EYE

Key strengths and skills

> Experience of travel industry including
senior finance pasitions in a large airline

> Expertise in international business ang
strategic transformations with knowledge
of M&A and equity markets

> MBA, Chartered Accountant and
experienced CFO with significant UK listed
Board experience

Other directorships

Independent Non-Executive Director of Reckitt
Benckiser Group pic: Independent Non-Executive
Directar, Chair of the Audit Committee and
member of the Compliance Committee of Surwitec
Limited. and Independent Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee of the
UK Foreign & Commonwealth Office

Previous experience and appointments

CFO at Cobham ple, various senior finance pasitions
at British Airways plc and Cable & Wireless pic: and
Non-Executive Chairman of PayPaint plc.

‘ Committee membership
I Nominations
n Remuneration
B Audit
Health Safety & Envircnmental
B charman

8 MARTINE VERLUYTEN jmags emoved]
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appeintment: May 201
Committee memberships: EEI

Key strengths and skills

> Significant experience leading international
busingsses with expartise in finance and IT

> Experienced CFO

» Strong experience in audit

Other directorships

Supervisory Board member and Charr of the
Audit Committee of STMicroelectronics NV and
Independent Dirgctor and Member of the Audit
Committee of Group Bruxelies Lambert

Previous experience and appointments

CF0 of Umicore fa Brussels-based materials
technology group). CFO of Mobistar (the mabile
telephone operator). Chair of the Audit Committee
of the Flemish Region in Belgium; and Non-
Executive Director of 3i Group plc.

9 LESLEY KNOX

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: March 2016
Committee memberships: AR

Key strengths and skills

> Substantial financial services and
International experience

> Expertise in consumer-oriented sectors
including fast-maving consumer goods
and retail

> Significant Non-Executive Directar
experence in UK isted companies and an
extensive traveller

Other directorships

Non-Executive Director for Centrica plc, Chair
of Grosvenar Group and Non-Executive Director
and Chair of the Remuneration Committes of
Legal & General Group Plc and a member of the
Nominatiens and Audit Committees.

Previous experience and appointments
Chairman of Aliance Trust PLC: Senior
Independent Director at Hays plc: Non-Executive
Director at Signet Jewelers and MFI Direct
Limited, Chair of the Remuneration Committee
of SABMilter pic.
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10 PAUL EDGECLIFFE-JOHNSON Jl{nggeremovgé
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: July 2017
Committee memberships: R

Key strengths and skills
> In-depth knowtedge of the global
hatel industry
> Current executive role leading a
FTSE 100 company
> Chartered Accountant with extensive financial
experience and knowledge of debt and
equity markets

Other directorships
CFO of InterCantinental Hotels Group PLC.

Previous experience and appointments
Various senior finance posttions at
InterContinental Hotels Group PLC: PwC: and
HSBC Investment Bank.

11 JURGEN SCHREIBER Imageremoced
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Appointment: July 2017
Committee memberships: E1E

Key strengths and skills
> Broad expenence serving at board
lavel of large multi-national consumer
facing businesses
» Accomplished private equity executive
» In-depth knowladge of international markets

Other directorships

Senigr Managing Director of Katz Group. Chairman
of The Aldo Group and Nen-Executive Director of
Lidt & Schwarz, Discount and Hypermarket Board

Previous experience and appeintments

CEO of Rexall Health; CEQ. President and Deputy
Chairman of Edcon: and CEO and President of
Shoppers Drug Mart Corporation

12 ALICE MARSDEN |mags removed

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL
AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Appointment: September 2015

Key strengths and skills

> Solicitor with a strong commercial mind-set

> In-depth knowledge of corporate governance
regulation and best practice

> International experience, having worked in the
UAE and for a global faw firm

Pravious experience and appointments
Head of Legal for the UK&I for Thomas Cook and
Senior Associate at Latham & Watkins,




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

HOW QUR BOARD LEADS THE BUSINESS

BOARD

Chairman, CEO CFO and eight Independent Non-Executive Directors,

THEBOARD IS GOVERNED BY:

> ASchedule of Matters reserved for the Board which sets out matters that can only he decided by the Board
> A documented Division of Responsibilities between the Charrman and the CEO
> Terms of Reference for Committees which set out matters the Board has authorised the Committees to deal with

These documents are avallable an the Group's website at www thomascookgroup.com

OUR COMMITTEES

A N AV AV
AUDIT COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE HEALTH, SAFETY & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Five Independent Chairman and three Independent ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE Frve Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors CEO and three Independent Non-Executive Directors
Responsibie for oversesing the Leads the process for Board Non-Executive Directors Responsible for advising the Board
Group's financial reporting, internal appointments and re-glection. and Responsible for health, safety and on remuneration of Execulive
and external audit mternal cantrol succession planning of Directars environmental poficy and compliance. Directars and setting an overall
and nsk management system, and and the Chairman and developing standards policy for remunerating the
whistleblowing policies and procedures to manage risk Group’'s employees.
across the Group.
Committee report on pages 74 to 77. committee report on pages 78 to 79. Committee report on page 80, Committes report on page 84 10 108,

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE DISCLOSURE COMMITTEE

CEQ, CFO and Group General Counsel and Company Secretary CEQ, CFO, and Group General Counsel and Company Secretary and also

Meets weekly to facilitate swift and efficient operational management decisions attendad by senior managers from Group Finance. Investor Relations.
for the business m relation to day-to-day financing and admmnistrative matters and Corporate Communications
A schedule of decisians taken by the Committee is reparted The Committee meets regularly during the year to consider the Group’s
1o each Board Meeting. disclosure obligations and to review results announcements prior to release

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

CEQ. CFO and functional and segment leadars.
Meets on a weekly basis to review trading, execution of strategic projects. progress against targets and monitor risk.

h4 hd hd

THE CODE THOMAS COOK LEADERSHIP DELEGATED
OF CONDUCT COUNCIL ('TCLC") AUTHORITY MATRIX
The Board-approved Cede of Conduct sets out the The TCLC comprises the top 170 senior leaders The Board-approved Delegated Authority Matrix
hehawours expected of everyone in the organisation. in the organisation Information about the sels out levels of authority delegated by the Board
During the year the Code of Conduct was updated Company’s strategy and performance 1s reqularly to senior leaders within the business in respect
ta ensure it supports and akgns with the new communicated to the TCLC, wha in turn cascade of the decision making required for the day-te-day
Customer Promises and values [more information to thelr teams to ensure everyone understands operation of the business,
about our values can be found on page 37) where they fit into the strategy and what they The Matrix is reviewed and updated annually,
The Code of Conduct includes quidance to can doto help the Company achieve its goals. The Matrix is sent out to all members of the TCLC
colleagues about their responsibility to report More information about how our strategy and so that they can cascade to ther teams
problems and issues that come to their attention values are communicated throughout the

and how they can do this. All colleagues are
encouraged to use ‘Trustling, the Company’'s
Independent whistleblowing helpline, if they wish
1o raise concerns anonymously Any significant
issues brought to Management’s attention
through the Trustline are investigated and
reported to the Audit Committee

organisation can be found on page 37
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CONTINUED

THE BOARD IS RESPONSIBLE FOR:

> guiding the Group's strategic aims and approving the Group's
strategy and its budgetary and business plans:

> approving significant investments and capital expenditure,

> approving the Group's dividend policy and payments:

> estabiishing and maintaining the Group $ risk appetite system
of internal control, governance and approval authorities;

© > monitoring executive performance. remuneration and succession
planning. and

> reviewing standards of ethics and policy in relation to health,
safety, environment social and community responsibilities

Board composition

As al 21 November 2017, the Board was made up of 11 Directors
which comprised the Chairman, two Executive Birectors and eight
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Frank Meysman was the Chairman throughout the year The roles

of the Chairman and CED are separate and distinct Dawn Airey 1s
the Senior Independent and is avatlable to Shareholders showld they
have concerns that cannot be resolved through the norma! channels
involving the Exacutive Directors or the Chairman.

Biographical details of all Cirectors can be found on
pages 6310 64 and on the Group's corporate website at
www.thomascookgroup com

Changes to the Board and Committees

During the year, Paul Edgecliffe-lohnson and Jurgen Schreiber
were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors with
effect from 26 July 2017 and subsequently Paul Edgecliffe-lohnson
was appointed to the Audit and Remuneration Committees and
Jurgen Schreiber was appointed to the Audit and Health, Safety &
Environmental Committees.

Following these appointments, the Board reviewed the membership
of its Commuittees and made further changes so that each Non-
Executive Director is a member of two Committees. Therefore, with
effect from 1 October 2017 Dawn Airey stepped down from the Audit
and Health & Safety Committees, Warren Tucker stepped down from
the Nominations Commuttee. Emre Berkin stepped down from the
Remuneration Commitiee and Peter Fankhauser stepped down from
the Nominations Committee

66 THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

Director independence and time commitment

The Nominations Committee and the Board considered the
independence of the Non-Executive Birectors against the criteria
specified in the Code and determined that each was independent.
They also considered the independence of Directars whase three-
year terms were renewed during the year, before approving the
renewal of these terms

The Chairman and each Independent Non-Executive Director have
provided assurance to the Board that they remain fully committed
to their respective roles and can dedicate sufficient time to fulfil
therr obligations

All Directors must obtain the prior consent of the Chairman before
taking on any additional directorships Befere providing consent

the Chairman will take into consideration any existing directorships
and commitments and the nature, location and expected time
commitment of the proposed new role The Chairman will not
approve any Director taking on additional commitments that he
believes would interfere with their ability to dedicate sufficient time
to the Company.



Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Board has a set of principles for managing conflicts and an
agreed process to (dentify and autherise potential cenflicts where
appropriate. The Nominaticns Committee reviews any potential
confiicts, as and when they anse. and makes a recommendation to
the Board as to whether the potential conflict should be authorised
The Nominations Committee reqularly reviews all authorised
conflicts It also reviews the interests of candidates prior to making
recommendations to the Board for the appointment of new Directors
This process was followed throughout the year 1o 30 September 2017

Re-appointment of Directors

in accordance with the Code and the Company's Articles

of Association. all Directors are subject to re-election by
Sharehclders. At the AGM held in February 2017 each of the
Directors in post at the time was submitted for re-election and
successfully re-elected Non-Executive Directors are initially
appointed for a three-year term, subject to annual re-election by
Shareholders, and rigorous review by the Nominations Committee
Each Non-Executive Director can serve up to a maximum of three
such terms

Group Company Secretary

The Group Company Secretary is responsible for advising and
supporting the Chairman and the Board on corporate governance
matters as well as ensuring that there 1s a smooth flow of
information to enable effective decision making All Directors have

access to the advice and services of the Group Company Secretariat

and through them have access to independent professicnal advice
In respect of their duties. at the Company’s expense The Group
Company Secretary acts as secretary to the 8oard and its
Committees During the year, Alice Marsden held the position of
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary Bicgraphical details
can be found on page 64

Meetings

The fuli Board meets at feast six timeas a year at its scheduled
meetings. and in between these meetings when required.

Board members cormmunicate with each other and Management
outside of formal Board meetings to keep up-to-date with business
developments The Chairman and the Committee Chairs hold
planning meetings and calls with Management in respect of
upcoming meetings

At each Board meeting. the CEQ presents a comprehensive update
an the pregress of the Group's strategy and business issues arising
across the Group, and the CFO presents a detalled analysis of the
financial perfermance. both at Group and segment level

Packs for the Board and Committee meetings are circulated using
a fully encrypted electronic portal system This enables fast and
secure distributron of information that can be accessed using
electronic tablets

All Directors are invited te attend the meetings and receive the
packs for all Committees. regardless of membership {unless not in
line with governance best practice i.e an Executive Director would
not attend a Remuneration Committee meeting where their own
remuneration was being discussed). This ensures all Directors
remain welt informed on all matters of the Board's business and
reduces the need for lengthy Committee feedback sessions during
Board meetings.

Attendance at scheduled Beard and Committee meetings during the year is set out below

Name ‘

Health. Safety &

Audit Remuneration Environmental Nominations

Board Committes Committee Committee Committee

Frank Meysman 6/6 - - - 6/6
Peter Fankhauser 6/6 - - 414 6/6
Michael Healy 6/6 - - - -
Dawn Airey B 6/6 515 6/6 . 44 616
Annet Aris 66 - 6/6 414 -
Emre Berkin ~ 6/6 - 6/6 414 6/
Warren Tucker 5/6 4/5 6/6 - 516
Martine Verluyten 6/6 5/5 - - __Ble
Lesley Knox 5/6 4/5 5/6 - -
Paul Edgecliffe-lohnson* 111 - 1N - -

Jurgen Schreiber”

1f1

= Paul Edgechiffa-fohnson and Jurgen Schreiber were appointed as independent Non-Executive Directers on 26 July 2017
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WHAT THE BOARD DID DURING THE YEAR
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final dividend.

Lesfey Knox induction activities - visited Oberursel in Germany and
In-Destmation Services Team in Mallorca where she met with colleagues and Management.

During the year the Board spent significant time considering the
Company’s key strategic projects. receiving deep-dive Management
presentations and comprehensive updates. Projects included the
launch of a €750 million guaranteed bond in November 2016, extending
2 partnership with Brussels Airlines to make them the leading carrier
far Thomas Cock in Belgium and the sale of the Belgium Airnes ground
operations and Airline Operating Certificate to SHS Aviation; entering
into a strategic alliance with Expedia under which Expedia will become
the preferred suppler of complementary city and domestic hotels: and
entering into a partnership with LMEY Investments to develop and grow
the Company’s own-brand hotel portfolio. Other important items cn the
Board agenda included the approval of the five-year business plan and
risk mitigatson matters, including agreeing the Board's risk appetite

In March, the Board held its meetings and strategy days in the
Company’s Oberursel and Frankfurt airport offices in Germany, the

head offices of the Tour Operator and Airline in Germany respectively
The strategy days included in-depth discussion of the Company's
strategy and presentations from various areas of the business including
Thomas Cook China and Thomas Cook Money. In July. the Beard held

1ts meetings in the new Peterborough office, the head office of the

UK Tour Operator, where it was able to meet colleagues and receive
presentations on the UK business.

The Board dedicated haif a day to people. where it spent time
considering a Group-wide talent review which examined talent,
succession, retention risk and diversity in respect of the top 100 roles
in the business and how this feeds into the executive pipeline.
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HOW THE BOARD IS EFFECTIVE

BOARD INDUCTION AND TRAINING

A tailored induction programme is provided to each new Director
on appointment. Inductions typically include. the provision of

a comprehensive induction pack; meetings with other Board
members and senior management across a wide variety of
geographies: visits to the Company’s business operations; and
presentations and briefings on the Company's business and other
refavant topics. Individual induction reguirements are monitored by
the Chairman. with the support of the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary

During the year Lesley Knox completed her comprehensive Non-
Executive Induction programme. Following positive feedback, a
similar programme has been designed for Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson
and Jurgen Schreiber. The programme covers the following
activities and meetings during the course of the coming year:



MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Y A A : -
Met in Chair of Audit Matin Met in
London office Committee and Group Peterborough office London office
. General Counsel and .
A Company Secretary A

Reviewed half-
year performance.

met with key busingss
partners in Cyprus
and Turkey as part

Met colleagues in new
Peterborough office and
received presentations

of an In-Destination from UK business

compliance review.

—
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A

Received training on \mz,g_e remove@
Directors’ duties. T

Daul kdgechffe-Johnson and Jurgen Schreiber induction activities commence

Held risk‘appetxte
5e5810nS with
Head of Risk

Externally facilitated Board
effectiveriess evaluation
One-to-one interviews and meeting observation,

A
Carried out Group-
wide talent and
SUCCESSION review
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Visits to the following business areas:

Image
removed

» The Group Airline head office at Manchester Airport

» The Northern Eurcpe Tour Operator business and Airine head
offices in Stockhalm and Copenhagen respectively

> The UK business head cffice in Peterbecrough

> The German Tour Operater business and Condor Airline head
offices in Oberursel and Frankfurt respectively

> Aretail store

Visits wili involve meetings with Management Teams, presentations
from the businesses. touring premises and meeting colleagues.

One-to-one meetings with:

i Image

removed

» Executive Directors

> Committee Chairs

> Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

> Other members of the Executive Committee

> Other key leaders in the business

> The Company's audit partner

> Attendance at an Executive Committee meeting

> Invitation to attend a Thomas Cook Leadership Council event
» A familiarisation trip to a Thomas Cook own-brand hotel to

experience our preduct and meet customers

(see below)

Approved risk appetite
statement for Annual
Report & Accounts

Board evaluation
feedback and
discussion at megting.

|
l\mage removed

In respect of the appaintment of Bill Scott, who will take up post as
Group CFO on 1 January 2018, a tailored induction programme has
been designed As Bill has been with the business for five years, he
has an in-depth knowledge of the Company's operations and well-
established relationships with key business leaders. Therefore his
inductson activities will focus on the new responsibilities he will
take on as an Executive Director inciuding a training session on
Directors’ duties and respensibilities.

At Board meetings and. where appropriate. Committee meetings, the
Directors receive updates and presentations on developments to the
legislative and regulatory environments In September 2017 the Board
received a training session on Directors’ duties and responsibilities
The Board also holds deep-dive sessions on different aspects of the
business which are presented by Management.
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' BOARD EFFECTIVENESS EVALUATION

! During the year the Chairman engaged Dr Tracy Long. of Boardroom Review Limited, to conduct an externally facilitated Board evaluation

Neither Dr Tracy Long nor Boardraom Review Limited have any other connection with the Company aside from the provision of board

evaluations The below sets out the evaluation process.

PREPARATION

Themes to be considered

were agreed as:

= Strategy

» Horizon scanning

> Risk & control

* Remuneration setting

» Talent development &
executive succession

> Stakeholder
communication

» Culture. composition
& choreography

EVIDENCE
Insight was collected
through:

> One-to-one m-person
interviews with Board
members and the Group
Company Secretary

» Observation of Board,
Committee meetings
& private sessions

> Review of Board and
committee papers
and minutes

» Strengths
»Challenges
» Areas of focus

REVIEW

A discussion FEEDBACK
document was Feedback was ACTIONS
provided via:

prepared which set out:

> One-to-one verbal
discussions
> Collective Board

The Group Company
Secretary and Chairman
devised an action plan
discussion at the based on the discussion
September Board document,

meeting A meeting between Dr Tracy
Long and the Chairman will
take place within 6-12
months to discuss progress

> Use of time

OUTPUTS FROM 2017 EVALUATION
Strengths identified:

> Good attention to the risk and control
framework. crisis management and visibility
of and confidence in the lines of defence

» An increasingly effective use of formal and
informal Board and Committee time. including
a good balance of strategy. performance and
governance themes throughout the year

> A positive Board culture focused on adding
value to the Campany with a shared strategic
perspective, led by the CEQ, and focused on
the customer

Areas of focus identified: Actions:

| Certain agenda items and the private sessions (ie. the
| meetings of Non-Executive Directors in the absence of
Management) can sometimes feel rushed as a result
of tack of tima available on a busy agenda

The Group Company Secretary and Chairman will work to increase the overall
time available for meetings and improve time allocation of the agenda.

The Nominations Committee should spend more This will be added to the Nominations Committee agenda.
time looking at long-term succession planning for
the Chair and Committee chairs as well as the

Executive Directors

The annual employee engagement results will be presented to the Board by
the Group HR Director and allocated time on the Board agenda for discussion.
Exit interviews of any sutgoing senior personnel will be conducted by the
Senior Independent Director.

The Board has set a clear tone from the top in respect
of culture but it could now benefit from spending
mora time menitoring how culture changes are being
received and filtering down through the organisation.
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The Chairman and Group Company Secretary monitor progress against the action plan set The below sets out progress in respect of

the action points identified following last year's internal evaluation.

OUTPUTS FROM 2016 EVALUATION

Areas of focus identified: Progress:

The format and quality of Board papers should continue
to be developed to shift the emphasis from reporting
past events to highlighting important matters that
require the Board's guidance

The Group Company Secretary pravided guidance te senior management on the
structure and content of Board papers Templates were created and provided to
contributors to ensure consistency and papers must pass a more robust review
and gatekeeping process before being provided to the Board.

0n the recommendation of the Nominations Committee. the Board appointed
two new Independent Non-Executive Directors who possess the skills identified
{see Nominations Committee report on pages 78 to 79 for more details).

The Board may benefit in the future from recruiting an
additional Non-Executive Director with direct customer
experience In the retail mdustry and/or relevant travel

Industry experience

The Nominations Committee should be given more time
on the agenda

The Group Company Secretary put in place an annual agenda plan and set aside
more time for Nominations Committee meetings, During the year the Nominations
Committee held six scheduled meetings and spent more time looking at succession
planning see Nominations Committee report on pages 78 to 79 for more details)

CHAIRMAN EVALUATION

Separately. the Non-Executive Directors, under the leadership

of the Senior Independent Director and with input from the
Executive Directars, conducted an evaluation of the Chairman
The outputs from that evaluation were discussed by the Beard in
the absence of the Chairman and feedback was given to him by
the Senier Independent Director, and reported to the Board at its
Navember meeting

INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE EVALUATION

The individual performance of the Executive Directors 1s reviewed
separately by the Chairman and the Remuneration Committee,

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The Board promotes open communication with Shareholders. This is
formalised within the framework of an gngeing investor relations
programme conducted by the CEQ. the CFO and the Investor Relations
Team. The programme Includes the presentation of preliminary and half-
year results (which can be accessed on www.thomascookgroup.com)
and a large number of meetings with existing Shareholders and
potential investors throughout the year. The Company makes every
effort 1o ascertain investor perceptions and regular reports of investor
and analyst feedback are provided to the Board

The Chairman of the Beard and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee engage with Shareholders on matters concerning corporate
governance and executive remuneration respectively, and feed this
back to the Board. Dawn Airey held the position of Senior Independent
Director threughout the year, providing an additienaf channel through
which Shareholders can engage with the Board if they so wish.

In respect of debt investors. the Company maintains regular
dialogue with key relationship banks which includes semi-annual
meetings with presentations from the Executive Management Team,

During the year. it also held update and review meetings with Moody's.

Standard & Poor's and Fitch, the Company's credit rating agencies.

The Company hosts a dedicated conference call for bondholders on

a semi-annual basis and during the year the CFO and Management
also engaged with Bondholders both as a group. and. on a one-

to-cne basis, at several investment-bank sponsored conferences
Additionally, the Board responded to ad-hac requests for infarmation.

All Shareholders are entitled to attend the AGM. Sharehalders are
given the opportunity to lodge their votes by way of proxy andfor
to attend the meeting in person where they have the opportunity
to ask guestions of the Board. including the chairs of the Board
Committees, vote by way of a poll and meet informally with the
Directors to discuss any issues they may wish to raise

In line with the authority given at its 2008 AGM. the Company uses
its website and email as the primary means of communication with
its Shareholders. This arrangement provides significant benefits for
Shareholders and the Company in terms of timeliness of information
and reduced environmental impact and cost. Shareholders may

still opt to receive their communications in a paper format.

The Company's corporate website (www thomascoakgroup.com)
contains information for Shareholders, including share price
information and news releases.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its ultimate accountability for mamtaining
an effective system of internal contral and risk management
that is appropriate in relation te both the scope and the nature
of the Group’s activities, and complies with the UK Corporate
Governance Code

The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Company. including those that would threaten its
business model. future performance. solvency or liquidity. This 1S
fully described in the Risk Management section on pages 54 to 58.

The Group's internal control and risk management systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can provide enly reasonable. but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
These systems have been in place for the year under review and up
to the date of approval of the Annual Report & Accounts The Board
has approved the framework and the standards mplemented.

REVIEW OF SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year the Board. through the work of the Audit Committee.
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's

system of internal control. The Board menitars the internal control
processes on an ongoing basis, including financial, operaticnal

and compliance contrals, under the auspices of the Enterprise

Risk and Audit function Regular reports on control 1ssues are
presented to and discussed with the Audit Committee and there is

a follow-up process in place to ensure audit recommendations are
fully implemented by Management. This work is also complemented,
supported and challenged by the controls assurance wark carried
out iIndependently by the external auditors, Ernst & Young. as part of
the external audit The Board has noted ongoing progress and active
focus in the internal contrel processes during this year. The Board.
in reviewing the effactiveness of the system of internal control, can
confirm that necessary actions centinue to be taken to remedy any
significant failings or weaknesses identified from that review

GOING CONCERN

The Directors have assessed the prospects of the Group over the
medium term in the context of its current operating perfermance,
the principal risks facing the business and its internal business
plan for the next five years In addition. the Group has prepared a
sensitivity analysis on its business plan and evaluated the impact
of certain principal risks occurring both individually and in unison
together with mitigating actions that could be implemented in
such circumstances.

As part of their assessment, the Directors have also noted

the refinancing of the Group's bonds in December 2016, which
further extended debt maturities and reduced borrowing costs,
and the agreement of larger, more flexible banking facilities in
November 2017

Having considered the above factors, the Directors have concluded
that it is appropriate to adept the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT IN
RELATION TO THE FINANCIAL REPORTING PROCESS

The Group has a thorough assurance process in place in respect
of the preparation, verification and approval of penedic financial
reports. This process includes

> the involvement of qualified. professional employees with an
appropriate level of experience (both in Group Finance and
throughout the busingss);
> formal sign-offs from appropriate business segment Managing
Directors and Finance Directors,
» comprehensive review and, where appropniate. challenge from
key internal Group functions:
> a transparent process to ensure full disclosure of information
to the external auditors Engagement of a professional and
experienced firm of external auditors: and
» oversight by the Group's Audit Committee, involving (amongst
other duties)
— a detalled review of key financial reporting judgements which
have been discussed by Management. and
— review and. where appropriate, challenge on matters including
the consistency of. and any changes to, significant accounting
pohmes and practices during the year.
significant adjustments resulting from an external audit:
the Campany's statement on internal control systems, prior to
endorsement by the Board: and
- the going concern assumption.

The above process, and the review by the Audit Committee of a
comprehensive note that sets out the details of the preparation.
internal verification and approval process for the Annual Report &
Accounts. provides comfort to the Board that the Annual Report &
Accounts. taken as a whole. is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for Shareholders to assess the
Company's position and performance, business model and strategy.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
INRESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT, THE
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT AND
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,

the Directors Remuneration Repaort and the financial statements

in accordance with applicable law and regulations. Company law
requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year Under that law, the Directors have prepared the
Group and the Company financial statements m accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union. The financial statements are required by law to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that pericd.



In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently.

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are reascnable
and prudent. and

> confirm that the financiat statements comply with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the financial statements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and the Group. and
enable them 10 ensure that the financial statements and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and. as regards the Group financial statements Article

4 of the IAS Regulation. The Directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and the Group and for
taking reasonable steps for the preventicn and detection of fraud
and other irregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of
the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions

DISCLOSURE GUIDANCE AND TRANSPARENCY
RULES CONFIRMATION

Each of the Directors who were in office at the date of this report
and whose names and functions are listed on pages 63 to 64,
confirm that, to the best of their knowiedge.

» the Group financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU. give a true and fair
view of the assets, liabilties. financial positicn and profit of the
Group. and

> the Strategic and Cirectors’ Report contained on pages 4 1o 59
includes a fair review of the development and performance of the
business and the position of the Group. together with a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that (t faces.

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

The Directors cenfirm that they consider the Annual Report &
Accounts, taken as a whele, is fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information necessary for Shareholders 1o
assess the Company's position and performance, business model
and strategy In making this confirmation. the Directors took into
account thefr knowledge of the business, which is kept up-to-date
with regular reports. updates and business reviews circulated
prior to and discussed at each Board meeting, and supplemented
by a variety of writien reports, verba! updates and presentations
{including the traning and strategy support presentations detailed
on page 58) given at Board and Committee meetings as wefl as a
regular flow of informaticn about the business between meetings

The Directors then took into account the thorough preparation and
verification process In respect of the Annua! Report & Accounts.
which included sufficient time for the Directors to review the Annuat
Report & Accounts and te feed in their comments to Management
before approving the documant

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors Report confirms that so far as they are aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware. and that they have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken as a Director to make them aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware
of that information

SHARE CAPITAL AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures in relation to the share capital of the Company,
including the Company's major Shareholders are given in the
‘Other Disclosures™ section on pages 8l to 83

DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 0.6 pence per
share, representing a distribution to shareholders of £9 million
This represents an increase of 20% compared to the dividend
pafd in respect of the previous year, reflecting the underlying
progress made in FY17 and the confidence of the Board in the
Group's future.

The Board has a palicy to target dividend growth that reflects
the Group's progress in underlying earnings per share.

As previously stated, in view of the seasonality of the Group's
profit profile. 1t 1s not our intention to pay interim dividends for
the foreseeable future

The ex-dividend date will be 8 March 2018 and. subject to
shareholder approval at the 2018 Annual General Meeting, the
finaf dividend of 0.6 pence per share wil! be paid on 5 April 2018
to sharehaolders on the register at the close of business on

9 March 2018.
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| AUDIT COMMITTEE

Image removed

| CHAIRMAN
Martine Verluyten

!__.

OTHER MEMBERS

Dawn Airey (until 30 September 2017 Paul Edgecliffe-fohnson
(from 2} September 2017), Lesley Knox Jurgen Schreiber
{from 21 September 2017}, Warren Tucker.

COMPOSITION OF THECOMMITTEE
All members of the Committee are Independent Non-Executive
Directors

Martine Verluyten, Warren Tucker and Paul Edgeciiffe-Johnson

are considered by the Board to have recent and relevant financial
experience, as required by the Code. and satisfy the requirements
for competence in accounting andfor auditing under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules. The Board considers that the
Committee as a whole has competence in the travel sector Travel
sector experience is highlighted in the Directors’ biographies

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
See pages 63 to 64

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The Chairman and the other Non-Executive Directors. Peter
Fankhauser [CEQ). Michael Healy {CFO], Afice Marsden (Group Generaf
Counsel and Company Secretary), Bill Scott (Director of Financial
Reporting). Sofya Linderman (Group Head of Risk). Derek Foster
{Group Head of Audit). Ani Sen Gupta {Internal Audit, Deloitte).

Nick Ong-Seng (Thomas Cook Maney Risk and Compliance Director]
and Richard Wilson {External Audit Partner, Emst & Young)

At the end of two of its meetings during the year the Committee
{and also those Non-Executive Directors who are not on the
Committee) met with the Internal Audit and Risk functions and
Ernst & Young. the Company's external auditor in the absence

of Managerment.
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ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE |

The role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set
out in written Terms of Reference which are available at
www thomascookgroup.com Some of their keys responsibilities are

v

maonitering the inteqrity of the annual, half-year and quarterly

results statements, including reviewing the significant financial

reporting judgements contained in them,

reviewing the Company’s internal financial controls and internal

control and risk management systems,

monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Company s

Internal Audit function-

establishing and overseeing the Company's relationship with i
its external auditors, mcluding monitaring their effectiveness !
and independence; and

> momtoring matters raised pursuant to the Company's

whistleblowing arrangements.

v

v

v

ACTIVITIES
Financial reporting and significant judgement areas

The Committee monitored the integrity of the annual. half-year and
quarteriy results statements, including a review of the significant
financial reporting judgements contamed in them, In May and
November. the Committee reviewed a comprehensive paper prepared
by the Director of Financial Reporting. which set out the Group's
accounting policies and basis of preparation The Committee also
reviewed a paper prepared by the external audrtors which included
significant reporting and accounting matters The Committee pays
particular attention to matters that it considers to be /mportant

by virtue of their impact on the Group results and remuneration

of sentor management. or the leve! of complexity. Judgement

or estimation in their application in preparation of the Group s
financial statements The significant 1ssues considered by the Audit '
Committee are shown in the table overleaf :

During the year. the Company had correspondence with the

FRC's Corporate Reporting Review team in relation to its review

of the Company’s FYI& Annual Report & Accounts' in ling with

the FRC's disclosed focus on the travel and letsure sectar in 2017
The Company provided clanfications and rationale for disclosures in
respect of separately disclosed items and alternative performance
measures and committed to enhancing disclosure in these

areas going forward The FRC welcomed these commitments.
Management presented the findings of the review to the Committee
and the Committee reviewed and approved the correspondence
with the FRC

| The FRC stated that the scope of their review was based on the Company s FYI6 Annual Report
& Avcounts and was conducted by staff of the FRC who have an understanding of the relevant
legal and accounting framework The review did not benefit from detailed knowledge of the
Company’s business or an understanding of the underlying transactions entered into and
therefore thieir review does nat provide assurance that the FYIS Annual Report & Actgunts
are carrectin all matenat respects



Significant issues in relation to the financial statements
considered by the Committee

How the issue was addressed
by the Committee

Revenue Recognition: There are a significant number of transactions
In relation to revenue. given the nature of the business The accounting
for revenue is susceptible to management override. This brings a risk
around the completeness and accuracy of the revenue recognised
during the year.

The Committee evaluated the IT systems and the internai controls in
place around revenue recognition This included a review of the Group
revenue recognition policies to ensure revenue I1s recegnised in ling
with the policy. The Committee concluded that revenue was camplete
and accurate

Accounting for aircraft maintenance provisions: Significant fixed
assets for aircraft and provisions for maintenance and contractual end
of lease obligations are held on the balance sheet.

There is an inherent level of estimation incfuded in the calculation of the
maintenance provisians which are based upon forecast arcraft usage
and maintenance costs

Furthermore. there is judgement needed to determine the appropriate
discount rate for the proviswon

The Committee reviewed the methodology and key assumptions used

by Management in accounting for aircraft maintenance provistons

and concluded that the treatment was appropriate In addition. the
methodology for the calculation of the discount rate and the subsequent
prior year correction as a result of this change was reviewed and agreed
as appropriate

Separately disclosed iterﬁs: The Group has an established policy of
separately disclosing items that are either exceptional or not reflective
of the underlying performance of the Group

Separately disclosed items are not defined by IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and therefore judgement is required by the Directors to
identify such items Consistency In identifying and disclosing items as
separately disclosed is important to maintain comparability of reportmg
year-on-year

The Committee considered the presentation of the Group financial
statements and the appropriateness of the presentation of separately
disclosed items. in particular items relating to the New Operating Model
and certain non-cash finance items. The Cemmittee reviewed the
nature of items identified and concurred with Management that the
treatment was even-handed. consistent across years and appropriately
presented movements on items which have an effect over a number

of years. Consideration was also given to the quality of earnings within
underlying resuits

Carrying Value of Goodwill and Deferred Tax Assets: The Group
holds significant goodwill and deferred tax assets on the balance
sheet. Determining the carrying value of these assets is dependent
an judgements about the future results of the business

The Committee reviewed Management's process for testing goodwill and
deferred tax assets for potential impairment. This included challenging
the key assumptions: principally cash flow forecasts. growth rates and
discount rates for goodwill and taxable profit forecasts for deferred

tax assets.

Provision for illness claims and associated recoveries: There has
been a significant increase in the number of customer illness claims in
the current year Significant judgement is required and there is limited
historical data available in getermining the level of proviston reguired.

In additicn. in Ine with the increase in illness claims the level of
recaveries from hotels relating to these iliness claims has also increased
To determine the amount recoverahle 15 subjective and requires
Management judgement

The Committee reviewed and challenged the assumptions that
Management had used in determining the provision for illness claims
to satisfy itself that the level of provisioning was appropriate.

The Committee reviewed the methodology behind the hotel recovery
postticn and challenged Management on the assumptions used.

The Committee satisfied itself that the level of recovery recognised
as appropriate
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND INTERNAL AUDIT

Risk Management

The Audit Committee considers risk exposure against the risk
appetite of the Group. as set by the Board, by profiing key risks

1o the business in terms of their potential impact and Ikelihood of
occurrence. after consideratton of mitigating and contrelling actions
that are in place During the year. the Committee reviewed the key
strategic risks and received updates from the Group Head of Risk
in respect of the Group Risk Dashboard. highlighting any changes

in the Company's risk profile. The Committee also confirmed that
appropriate mitigations were in place for the key strategic risks
These activities fed into the annual Internal Audit Plan, which
enables a risk-based approach to be adopted as part of the ongoing
Internal Audit and assurance programme

The Committee was supported in its work by the Executive
Committee, which 1s comprised of relevant representatives of senior
management and chaired by the CEQ. The Executive Committee
meets guarterly to monitor the risk dashboard

Particular areas of focus for the Committee during the year
inctuded. fraudulent customer illness claims in the UX: information
security: data protection; and cyber secunty. The Commitiee
received presentations and regular updates from senior
management on these issues. The Committee received regular
updates in respect of the Group's legal compliance programme
which covered matters including: data protection: anti-bribery and
corruption; competition law: the Package Travel Directive. hotel and
accommodation contracting.

As part of the ongoing In-Destination Compliance Programme, the
Committee Chair and Group Generai Counsel & Company Secretary
visited Cyprus and Turkey and met with key business partners to
receive first-hand feedback in respect of the Company's general
governance and compliance practices in-destination. Findings from
the review were reported to the Committee and an acton plan to
further enhance compliance in this area was put in place and is
peing monitored by the Committee.

The Committee reviewed reports of all cases lodged with
Expolink. the Group's whistleblowing line, and the outcomes of
resulting investigations

THOMAS COOK GROUPPLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017

Internal Audit

The Committee continued to oversee and support development of
the in-house Internal Audit function The Committee challenged and
approved the proposed Internal Audit Plan, and throughout the year
menitored the allocation of Internal Audit resource and delivery
against the Internal Audit Plan The Committee closely monitored
the recruitment process for a new Group Head of Internal Audit
The Committee considered an effectiveness review of the Internal
Audit function. which measured performance against the Quality
Assessment criteria provided by the Institute of Internal Auditors
and concluded 1t remains satisfied with work of the Internal

Audit function.

During the year the Committee considered the findings of a number
of reviews carried out by the Internal Audit function

Internal Control

The Groug's internal control framewerk is managed by the Group
Finance function The Audit Committee receives updates on internal
control matters at each meeting which provides the Committee
with assurance that the internal controls in place are robust
Regular monitoring of the internal control framework allows timely
identification of issues and formal tracking of remediation plans.

The internal control framework includes Risk and Control Matrices.
which act as a key mechanism to mitigate the risk of financial
misstatement and fraud. Management of each Thomas Cook
reporting entity certified compliance with the Risk and Control
Matrix for the financial year. Group Finance ensure that agreed
actions are being implemented to support a programme of
maintaining and improving internal controls Management also
continues ta refine the framework based on the findings of the
reviews from Internal Audit.

To further support the Board's annual assessment of the
effectiveness of the internal control framework, Group Finance
prepare areport on the Group's internal centrol framework and
its effectiveness, which describes the risk management systems
and arrangements in place for internal contral, as well as wark
conducted during the year to improve the control envirenment.
Work in the current year has focused on further education on the

internal contrel framewark, to achieve consistency across the Group.

as well as phased testing of reconciliations and controls.

These activities, together with the regular reports from the external
auditors, have supported the Audit Committee in providing its advice
to the Board in respect of the effectiveness of internal controls (see
section headed "Risk Management and Internal Control” on page 72,



EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company's external auditor is Ernst & Young and Richard Wilson
is the Audit Partner

Independence

During 2016, the Audit Committee conducted a competitive

tender process. the details of which were reported in last year's
Annual Report & Accounts. The Board approved the Committee’s
recommendation to appoint Ernst & Young as auditor in respect

of the audit of FYI7 onwards. and a resolution was approved by
Shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting in February
2017 Thorough conflict of interest checks were undertaken as

part of the tender process and independence was one of the key
considerations for the Committee when making 1ts recommendation
Therefore the Committee considers that appointment of Ernst &
Young will ensure a high level of independence is maintained and the
Committee will continue to monitor this area,

Effectiveness

At its meeting in November 2017 the Committee considered the
effectiveness of Ernst & Young as external auditor in respect of
F¥17 The review included consideration of comprehensive papers
from both Management and the external auditor. and meetings
with Management in the absence of the external auditor.

The effectiveness review considered matters such as- the
competence of the key senior members of the team and their
understanding of the business and its environment- the planning
process, effectiveness in identifying key risks: technical expertise
displayed by the auditors over complex accounting matters,
communicating and resolving audit issues, timeliness of the
audit process: cost: and communication of issues and risks to
Management and the Committee

Following the review. the Committee concluded that overall Ernst &
Young had provided an effective and independent audit in respect
of FY17

The Company confirms that it has complied with the provisions of
the Competition and Markets Autherity's Statutory Audit Services
Order in respect of the financial year under review.

Non-audit Fees

The Company has a Non-audit Fee Policy {the ‘Policy) in place to
ensure that the provision of non-audit services by the external
auditor does not impar ther independence or objectivity

The Policy. which is appended as a scheduie to the Audit
Committees Terms of Reference. 15 published on the Groups website
at www thomasccokgroup com. The Policy states that the external
auditor should not be engaged in respect of services ‘blacklisted’

in the FRC’s Ethical Standard 2016 Any other material non-audit
work must be authorised in advance by the Committee, uniess the
engagement is urgent, in which case the CFO can agree the work
with the Committee Chair and report it to the next Committee
meeting. The details of non-audit work (if any) are reported to the
Committee on a se-monthly basis.

Fees for non-audit services during the year totalled £202604
representing 13% of the fees paid to the external auditor {further
information about non-audit fees can be found in Note 6 to the
financial statements) Taking into consideration that £184 082 of
this fee was in raspect of the review of the Company's half-year
results, for which the Company's external auditor must be used.
the Committee considersd the level of fees to be acceptable and
did not consider it posed any risk to auditor independence.

Planning

At 1ts meeting in May 2017 the Committee considered and
approved the external audit plan for the audit of the Group for FY17
The Committee considered significant risk areas for the audit. the
propesed scope, the materiality threshold, the approach to internal
audit and the transition from PwC to Ernst & Young

MARTINE YERLUYTEN
CHAIRMAN Of THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

21 November 2017
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NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Image removed |
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" CHAIRMAN
frank Meysman

OTHER MEMBERS
Dawn Airey. Emre Berkin, Peter Fankhauser (until 30 September 2017)
Warren Tucker {until 30 September 2017) and Martine Verluyten.

CCMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
A majority of the members of the Committee are
Non-Executive Directors

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
See pages 63 to 64

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:
The other Non-Executive Directors, Peter Fankhauser (CEO),
Michael Healy [CFO} and Alice Marsden {Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary).
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ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility for
reviewing and proposing appointments to the Board and for
recommending any other changes to the composition of the Board
or its Committees The principal responsibility of the Committee is
to make recommendations to the Board on alt new appointments to
the Board, as well as Board balance and compasitien The Committee
ensures that there Is clarity in respect of the role description and
capabilities required for such appointments The Committee is

also responsible for reviewing the Directors potential conflicts of
interest and for making recommendations to the 8oard in respect
of authorising such matters.

The fuli Terms of Reference of the Committee are available at
www thomascookgroup com.

ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Committee dealt with two significant tasks
firstly appointing two new Non-Executive Directors, and secondly
appointing a new CFO

The Committee considered the current skill set experience and
balance of the Board alongside the Company’s strategic goals
and decided that. given the importance of the customer and the
hotel pertfolio to the Company's strategy it would recormmend
the appointment of two individuals with particular expertise in
these areas.

The Committee provided a skills-based brief to executive search
firm Egon Zehnder {who do not have any connection to the Company
and are a signatory to the Voluntary Code of Conduct of Executive
Search Firms) and instructed them to compile a gender balanced
long list of candidates for the roles After a comgprehensive search
the Committee recommend that Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson, who has
deep global hotel industry experience, and Jurgen Schreiber, who
has extensive experience across retail and consumer goods, be
appeinted to the Board More information about each Director can
be found in the biography section on pages 63 to 64.

During the year the Committee also spent considerable time
focusing on executive succession planning Aware of the CFQ's
intention to retire in the near future, the Committee cversaw a
rigerous recruitment and selection process. Again the Committee
instructed Egon Zehnder to compile a gender balanced long st

of candidates and considered a number of external and internal
candidates. This process resulted in the recommendation to appeint
Bill Scott. currently Director of Finangial Reporting, as successor to
Michael Healy. In reaching its decision, the Committee considered
Bill's skill set. experience and achievements during his five years
at the Company alengside the Company's business plan and
strategic goals




Qther important work in the area of succession planning included
considering how the annual talent review feeds into Executive
successicn planning and reviewing initiatives to strengthen

the internal pipeline such as the Leadership and Development
Programime which aims to develop the leadership skills of ¢.90
leaders in the business and the "Women's Sponsorship Programme
which aims to enhance the prafile and opportunity for future female
leaders More information about the Group's activities in this area
can be found on page 3.

The Committee also considered

> the composition of the Committees following the appointment
of two new Nen-Executive Directors and recommended changes,

> the extension of Annet Aris” and Martine Verluyten's appointment
terms for a further three years,

> re-appointment of Directors before making a recommendation
to the Board regarding their re-election at the 2017 AGM. and

> Directors potential conflicts of interests and ndependence.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board currently has 36% female representation which exceeds
the Davies Review target for Boards to have a minimum of 33%
female representation by 2020 The Chairman is a member of the
30% Club. which has the aim of promoting the achievement of 30%
of women on FTSE 100 Boards The Committee continues to monitor
gender diversity of sentor management, including the Executive
Committee and the TCLC {statistics for which are provided on

page 39). and is mindful of the Hampton-Alexander Review targets
in respect of gender diversity in senior management of FTSE

100 companies

The Board also acknowledges the target set by the Parker Review
as a FTSE 250 company, to have at least one non-white Director by
2024 As stated in the "People” section on page 39, ethnicity wiil be
an area of increased focus for the Company in the coming year and
the Committee wiil consider this aspect of diversity in the context
of the Board.

The Committee remains committed to ensuring a diverse and
representative Board, and making appeintments based on merit.

A copy of the Group's Board Appointments Pelicy can be found at
the Group's website at www.thomascookgroup.com

FRANK MEYSMAN
CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

21 November 2017
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HEALTH, SAFETY &
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE

Image removed

CHAIRMAN

Emre Berkin

OTHER MEMBERS

Dawn Airey {until 30 September 2017} Annet Ans, Peter Fankhauser
and Jurgen Schreiber (from 21 September 2017),

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
A majority of the members of the Commitiee are
Non-Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

See pages 63 to 64

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

The other Non-Executive Directors. Michael Healy (CFQ), Marc Jordan
{Group Head of Health. Safety and Security). Jean Christoph-Degen
(Group Airlines Director of Aviation Safetyl, Alice Macandrew

(Group Corporate Affairs and Communications Director),

Stephen DAlfonso (Group Head of Public Affairst and Alice Marsden
{Group General Counsel and Company Secretary).

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated to the Committee responsibility to review,
develop and oversee consistent policy. standards and procedures
for managing health, safety and environmental risks to the Group's
business. It is also responsible for the review and oversight of
compliance with relevant legislation and regulation refating to
health, safety and the environment across the Group

The full Terms of Reference of the Committee are available at
www thomascookgroup.com

ACTIVITIES

The Committee continued to put customer and employee safety at
the forefront of its agenda. As well as clesely monitoring activity

in these areas. It provided strategic oversight and guidance to
ensure that activities align with the Company’s strategy and values.
The matters it considered within its four main areas of focus are:
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Health and Safety

» Qversaw a restructure of the Group Health and Safety function which
involved aligning the Group's approach to health and safety across all
markets for both complementary and differentiated products
Monitored the work and performance of the Company's main
third-party audit suppler (SGS) and other suppliers. including

Cristal Standards whe carried out independent security audits in
certain destinations

Supported an increase in health and safety audits of hotels,
resulting In a position where over 92% of differentiated hotels have
been audited by one of the Cormpany's independent third-party

audit supphers

Monitored the outcomes and findings of audits and any remedial
actions identified

Reviewed the Company's Health and Safety Policy statement. Group
Fuel Policy and Legionalla Policy

Mgnitored compliance with the Thomas Cock Group Fuel Policy
Approved the introduction of a Hotel Security Policy Framework
which aligns with the Federation of Tour Operators Security Guidance
Oversaw a training programme in respect of retail store security

in the UK which resulted in a reduction of burglary incidents

v

~

~

~

~

M

~

Aviation Security

> Reviewed and approved a four-year Safety Plan which aims to
enhance and harmonise safety practices across the Group Airline.
The Safety Plan includes the launch of the ‘Safe@Heart initiative
which aims to embed an enhanced culture of safety in the Airline.
including extra safety training for 7,000 Group Airline employees

> Mgnitared the safety and security of various airports including
those in Turkey, Tumisia and Egypt

> Carried out a deep-dive into the Group Arline's Disruptive
Passenger Policy

Sustainability

> Approved a new Sustainability Strategy which s aligned to the
Group's wider strategy and provided direction in respect of target
setting and implementation

> Approved a new Animal Welfare Palicy and supported the
engagement of an independent third-party supplier to carry out
audits of animal attractions to ensure they meet ABTA's standards
for animal welfare

> Monitored the performance of hotels in achieving a Travelife
sustainability certification

> Qversaw a review of the Group's charitable activities

> Monitored Carbon reporting under the Carbon Disclosure Project
and the Commitment to Carbon Reduction Scheme

Public Affairs

> Monitored the Group's engagement with governments and policy
makers in respect of Brexit. the implementation of the Package
Travel Directive, fraudulent customer illness claims in the UK and
the security of various airperts and resorts

EMRE BERKIN
CHAIRMAN OF THE HEALTH, SAFETY &
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMITTEE

21 November 2017




OTHER DISCLOSURES

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has the following three classes of shares in1ssue

Number of shares ‘
Inissue at
30 September
Name 2017
Ordinary Shares of £0.01 each 1,535,851.315
Deferred Shares of €0.09 each . 934,981,938
Deferred Shares of £1 each 50,000

Ordinary Shares

The Ordinary Shares carry the nght to the profits of the Company
avallable for distribution and to the return of capital cn a winding up
of the Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right to attend and
speak at general meetings of the Company each share holds the
right to one vote. The Ordinary Shares are admitted to the premium
segment of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock
Exchange's Main Market

Employees who hold shares under the Thamas Cook BAYE or vested
shares under any of the Company's executive share plans, are sent a
Form of Instruction by the relevant trustee in respect of any general
meetings of the Company. 50 that they may instruct the Trustee to
vote on their behalf,

Deferred Shares

Both classes of Deferred Shares carry no nght to the profits of the
Company On a winding up. the holders of the Sterling-denominated
Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the
capital pald up on each Sterling-dencminated Deferred Share and the
holders of the Euro-denominated Deferred Shares would be entitied
to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each Euro-
denominated Deferred Share only after the holders of the Ordinary
Shares and Sterling-denominated Deferred Shares have received,

in aggregate. the amounts paid up thereon The holders of both
ciasses of Deferred Shares are not entitled to receive notice. attend.
speak or vote [whether on a show of hands or an a polll at general
meetings of the Company.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company's Articles of Association {the ‘Articles’} may only

be amended by a special resolution at a general meeting of
Shareholders The Articles are available on the Company's website
at www thomascookgroup.com.

POWERS OF DIRECTORS

The powers of the Directors are set out in the Articles The Directors
were authorised at the 2007 Annual General Meeting to allot shares
equal to approximately one-third of the Company's issued share
capital as at 7 December 2016 or two-thirds in respect of a rights
issue. The Directors were also given the power to allot Ordinary
Shares for cash up to a Iimit representing approximately 10% of the
Company’s i1ssued share capital at 7 December 2016 without first
offering them to existing Shareholders in proportion to their existing
heldings (however more than 5% can only be used in connection
with an acquisition or specified capital investment).

In accordance with its Articles. the Company has granted third-party
Indemnities to the extent permitted by law. to each Director and the
Group Company Secretary. which were in force during the financial
year and up to the date of signing this report. The Company also
rmaintains Directors and Officers liab/lity insurance.

SHARE TRANSFER RESTRICTIONS

The Articies are designed to ensure that the number of the
Company's shares held by non-EEA nationals dces not reach a level
which could jeopardise the Company s entitlement to continue to
hold or enjoy the benefit of any authority, permission, licence or
privitege which it or any of its subsidiaries, holds or enjoys and
which enables an air service to be operated leach an ‘Gperating
Right} In particular, EC Council Regulation 1008/2008 on the licensing
of air carriers requires that an air carrier must be majority-owned
and effectively controlled by EEA nationals

The Articles allow the Directors. from time to time. to set a
‘Permitted Maximum’ on the number of the Company’s shares

which may be owned by non-EEA nationals at such level as they
believe 1s In compliance with the Operating Rights, provided that the
Permitted Maximum shall not be less than 40% of the total number
of issued shares

The Company mamntains a separate register (the ‘Separate Register’
of shares in which non-EEA nationals, whether individuals, bodies
corporate or other entities have an interest (such shares are
referred to as ‘Relevant Shares in the Articles) An interest in

this context is widely defined (see below). The Directors may
reguire relevant members or other persons to provide them with
information to enable them to determine whether shares are. or are

to be treated as, Relevant Shares If such information 1s not provided.

then the Directors will be able, at their discretion, to determine that
shares to which their enquiries relate be treated as Relevant Shares.
Registered Shareholders will alsc be obliged to notify the Company
if they are aware either (a) that any share they hold ought to be
treated as a Relevant Share for this purpose cr (b) that any share
they hold which is treated as a Relevant Share should no longer be
so0 treated. In this case. the Directors shall request such information
and evidence as they require to satisfy themselves that the share
should not be treated as a Relevant Share and. on receipt of such
avidence. shall remove particulars of the share from the Separate
Register If the Directors determine that such actien is necessary

to protect any Operating Right due to the fact that an Intervening
Act {an "Intervening Act” being the refusal, withhelding, suspensicn
or revocation of any Operating Right or the imposition of materially
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inhibiting conditions or {imitations on any Operating Right in either
case, by any state or regulatory authority) has taken place oris
contemplated, threatened or intended. or the aggregate number of
Retevant Shares Is such that an Intervening Act may occur or the
ownership or control of the Company is such that an Intervening Act
may occur, the Directors may, among other things

> identify those shares that give rise to the need to take action
and treat such shares as affected shares {Affected Shares) (see
below); or

> set a Permitted Maximum on the number of Relevant Shares that
may subsist at any time (which may not, save in the circumstances
referred to below. be lower than 40% of the tolal number of 1ssued
shares) and treat any Relevant Shares in excess of this Permitted
Maximum as Affected Shares (see below} The Directors may serve
a notice (an ‘Affected Share Notice) in respect of any Affected
Share. An Affected Share Notice can if It so specifies have the
effect of depriving the registered holder of the Tight to attend. vote
and speak at general meetings which they would otherwise have
had as a consequence of holding such shares Such an Affected
Share Notice can. if it so specifies, also require the recipient to
dispose of the Affected Shares [so that the Relevant Shares will
then cease to be Affected Shares} within 21 days or such longer
period as the Directors may determine. The Directors are also
given the power to sell such Affected Shares themselves where
there is non-compliance with an Affected Share Notice at the
best price reasonably obtainable at the relevant time on behalf of
the Shareholder

In deciding which shares are to be dealt with as Affected Shares,
the Directors, in therr sale apinion, will determine which Relevant
Shares may give rise to the fact of risk of an Intervening Act
oceurring and, subject to any such determination. will have regard to
the chronological order i which particulars of Relevant Shares have
been. or are to be. entered in the Separate Register unless to do so
waould, in the sole opinion of the Directors, be inequitable. If there

is a change in any applicable law cr the Company or any subsidiary
receives any direction, notice or requirement from any state or
requlatory authority, which. in either case, necessitates such action
1o overcome, prevent or avoid an Intervening Act, then the Directors
may elther

> lower the Permitted Maximum to the minimum extent that they
consider necessary to overcome, prevent or avold an Intervening
Act; ar

> resolve that any Relavant Shares shall be treated as Affected
Shares. The rights of the Directors referred to above apply until
such tme as the Directors resolve that grounds for the making
of a determination have ceased to exist. whereupon the Directors
must withdraw such determination.
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The Perrmitted Maximum is currently set at 45% This Permitted
Maximum may be varied by the Directors. If the Directors resolve

to vary the Permitted Maximum to deal with shares as Affected
Shares or relax the gwnership limitations, they shall publish in at
least one national newspaper in the UK {and in any other country in
which the shares are listed) notice of the determinatien and of any
Permitted Maximum

The Rirectors shall publish, from time to time

> information as to the number of shares particulars of which have
been entered on the Separate Reqister; and
» any Permitted Maximum that has been specified

The Directors may not register any person as a holder of shares
unless such person has furnished to the Birectors a declaration,
together with such evidence as the Directors may reguire, stating
{al the name and nationality of any person whao has an interest in
any such share and. if the Directors require. the nature and extent
of such interest or (b) such other information as the Directors may
from time to Ume determine

The Dirgctors may decline to register any person as a Shareholder
if satisfactory evidence of information is nat forthcoming

Existing holders of shares will be recorded on the Special Register
unless and until they have certified. to the satisfaction of the
Company. that they are EEA nationals.

A person shall be deemed to have an interest in refation to Thomas
Cook Group plc shares if

> such person has an interest that would {subject as provided below)
be taken into account. or which they would be taken as having. in
determining for the purposes of Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006
whether a person has a notifiable interest, or

> they have any such interest as is referred to in Part 22 of the
Companies Act 2006, but shall not be deemed to have an Interest
in any shares in which their spouse or any infant. child or stepchiid
lor, in Scotland, pupil or miner) of theirs is interested by virtue of
that relationship or which they hold as a bare or custodian trustee
under the laws of England or as a simple trustee under the laws
of Scotland. and interest shall be construed accordingly

As at 30 September 2017, 527458 384 Ordinary Shares (34 34%) were
held on the Separate Register



PROVISIONS OF CHANGE OF CONTROL

The Company has in place a facilities agreement (the ‘Agreement )
which consists of a £500 mitlion revolving credit facility

and £300 million bilateral bonding and guarantee facilities

The Agreement provides that, on any change of control of the
Company. the lenders under the Agreement are obligated to
negotiate (for a period not exceeding 30 days. unless extended by
agreement for a further period not exceeding 30 days! terms for
continuing the facilities but. where agreement on new terms cannot
be reached. any such lender is entitled to. (i} receive a repayment
of amounts owing to such lender. () cancel all of its commitments
under the Agreement. andfor {in1) under certain conditions demand
immediate credit support.

The Company also has cutstanding €750 million 6.25% guaranteed
netes due 2022 On the occurrence of certain change of control
events relating to the Company each holder has the option to
require the Company to repurchase all or any part of the holder's
notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpald interest

The Company's subsidiary, Thomas Cook Finance ple. has
outstanding €400 million 6 75% guaranteed notes due 2021. On the
occurrence of certain change of control events relating to the
Company. each holder has the option to require Thamas Cook
Finance plc (the issuer of these notes) to repurchase all or any
part of the holder's notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101%
of the principal amount plus accrued and unpald interest.

POLITICAL DONATIONS

The Company did not make any political donations during the
financial year (2016: nil)

MAJOR SHAREHOLDINGS

The table below shows notifications of major shareholdings
received by the Company in accordance with rule 5 of the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules:

Percentage Percentage
voting of issued Yoting of issued
nghts reported caprtal {%) Tights capital (%)
asat30 asat 30 asat 2l asatzl
September | September November November
Name 2017 2017 2017 2017
Invesco Ltd 321,948,268 2096 307031986 19.99
Standard Life
Aberdeen 183,196,317 1.93  183)196,317 .93
_F‘DE UK Limited (FOSUI’E 169,059,734 i.01 169,059,734 .01
Marathen Asset
Management LLP 71257909 503 77257909 503
The Capital Group 77168,099 502 74336279 484
BlackRock, Inc 77,148,585 502 138937979 9.04
Orbis Holdings Limited 76,633,091 4.99 76,633,091 499

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION UNDER
LISTING RULE 9.8.4

There 1s no information to be disciosed under Listing Rule 98 4

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Infarmation in respect of greenhouse gas emissions have been
ncluded in the "Sustanability” section of the Strategic Report on
pages 33 1c 39.

EMPLOYEE DISCLOSURES

Disclosures in respect of employee tnvolvement can be found on
pages 37 and 39 of the Strategic Report.

As described on page 39, we are committed teo creating an
environment in which employees from all backgrounds can reach
their full potential This commitment 1s supported by recruitment
career development and reward policies and practices which are
free from discrimination and ensure equal opportunities for afl
employees irrespective of their personal characteristics

Full and fair consideration 1s given to applications received by those
with disabilities with regard to their skills and experience for the
role Those with disabilities within our organisation are provided
with appropriate learning and development, {raining courses, career
development and promation epportunities. with care taken to
ensure that these are made fuliy avallable. If there were to be any
instance of an employee becoming disabled during their emplayiment
with us. reasonable adjustments would be made to support that
particular individual te ensure that they are retained within the
business with the appropriate training provided for them to continue
in their role, or if appropriate an alternative role within the business

The Strategic Report and Directors Report comprising pages 4 to 83
have been approved and are signed by order of the Board by

ALICE MARSDEN
GROUPF COMPANY SECRETARY

21 Nevember 2017
Registered office

3rd Flgor, South Building
200 Aldersgate

London ECIA 4HD

Registered number
6091951
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

ANNUAL STATEMENT BY CHAIR OF
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Image removed

CHAIRMAN
- . . Warren Tucker

OTHER MEMBERS
Dawn Airey. Anngt Aris. Emre Berkin (until 1 October 2017) Paul
Edgeciffe-Johnson {from 21 September 2017} and Lesley Knox

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE
Al members of the Committee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
See pages 63 and 64

MEETINGS ALSO ATTENDED BY:

Frank Meysman (Chairman} Peter Fankhauser [CEQ). Michael
Healy (CFO). Martine Verluyten {Independent Non-Executive
Director), Jurgen Schreiber (Independent Non-Executive Director),
Alice Marsden {Group General Counsel & Company Secretary),
Mitul Shah (Deloitte LLP. ‘Deloitte’) (until May 2017). Pete Smith
{Mercer Ltd, ‘Mercer) (from September 2017) and members of the
HR Leadership Team as required. being Rachael Gillett (Group &
UK HR Director}. Caroline Forsyth (Group Head of Reward) and
Emily Halleit {Executive Remuneration Manager).

All attengees are by invitation only

SCHEDULED MEETINGS
Six.

This report is set out in the following key sections:

ANNUAL STATEMENT

BY CHAIR OF THE FH Seepagessatogs
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
POLICY See pages 89 to 97

ANNUAL REPORT ON
REMUNERATION B3 see pages 98 to 108,
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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board. { am pleased to present our Directors’
Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 30 September
2017 our first report under the Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the
‘Policy’) which was approved at our Annual General Meeting on

9 February 2017

OUR PERFORMANCE IN FY17

This has been a year of real progress for Thomas Cock. tn a very
competitive environment, Management's focus on exacuting our
strategy for profitable growth has delivered a good financial
performance for 2017 while at the same time transforming the
Company’s opportunities for growth over the ionger-term.

Strang customer demand for our improved heliday offering across
all source markets delivered a Group underlying EBIT of £330 million
This achievement Is a strong sign of the Company's resilience as a
result of our ongoing transformation

Nowhere is this transformation more clear than in our customers
experience of Thomas Cook holidays The Net Promoter Score. {NPS)
- the key metric by which we measure customer satisfaction -
increased a further 4 points tn 2017 This refiects the very rigorous
way our people now manage the guality and service at every stage
of the heliday life-cycle But it is also linked to a number of bold
moves where the Company has inncvated to modernise its offering
and drive reappraisal of the package holiday such as the roll cut

of the 24-Hour Hotel Satisfaction Promise across 2,000 hotels - a
strong sign of the Group's commitment to putting customers at the
heart of the business.

2017 also saw the announcement of a number of important
developments that will transform the size and shape of the business
for the future. These include the strategic alliance with Expedia

and improving the Group's financial position by both lowering

the cost of financing and by extending the Group's debt maturity
profile Taken together, the business has a strong platform on

which to implement our clear strategy to deliver profitable growth
and returns

The long-term sustainability of the business is based on the
execution of a very clear strategy to transform Thomas Cook Into

a more streamlined business focused on a number of key areas
where it can setitself apart from the competition. Qur Policy directly
links Executive Directors pay to the achievernent of stretching
performance targets which underpin that strategy The Committee
ansures that the performance measures selected in the incentive
Plans reflect the Key Performance Indicators (KPIslof the business
and therefore align the interests of the Executive Directors to those
of your own.




PAY PHILOSOPHY

As a Committee, we remain very mindful of the sensitivities of
executive pay felt by companies. employees, Shareholders and our
customers. Our approach is to ensure that our Palicy reflects our
strategy. with outcomes that are fair and have a strong link to
performance, and this remains our priority as a Committee

As set out in the Palicy, fixed pay is set at median levels against
the market. and the provision of benefits set by the local market
in which the Executive Directers operates Varable remuneration
is a combination of both short and long-term incentives which are
strongly linked to the rigorous execution of the strategy

Stretching targets are set to incentivise and reward profitable
growth. disciplined cash management, unrivalled customer service
and long-term Shareholder value creation. The diagram below shows
the alignment between our strategy (as set out on pages 4 to 5) and
KPIs (as set out on page 32}

LINKING PAY WITH PERFORMANCE

QUR VISION
AND STRATEGY

v

Qur vision 1s to be the most
loved haliday company.
‘Customer at our Heart sits
firmly at the centre of cur
vision and our strategy for
sustamable growth

KPIS WE USETO
MEASURE PERFORMANCE

Underlying EBIT

Farnings Per Share (EPS}

Net Debt

Our key performance
indicatars, measura the

success of our strateqy Net Promoter Scere (NPS)

See more on page 32
Employee Satisfaction

- Use of Alternative Performance Measures on page 52

HOW EACHKP| IS REFLECTED IN INCENTIVES

Annual Bonus

Caore Measure

Core Measure
[Cash Flow)

Core Measure

Role-specific measure
(Engagement)

Performance Share Plan (PSP}

Core Measure  +

v

Interests are
further aligned
with Shargholders
through Total
Shareholder Return
{TSR) as a Core
Measure

Any reference to underlying EBIT in the Directors’ Remuneration Report is stated in line with the definition explained in Appendix 1 in the Financial Review
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THE 2017 POLICY

Last year the Committee introduced an updated Policy which came
into effect in February 2017 and included a number of best practice
impraovements. Whilst we were pleased that the Policy presented
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting received approval. we recognise
that there was a minority that voted against it with particular
concerns relating to the Strategic Share Incentive Plan (SSIP).

Your support is very important to us. To alleviate some of your
concerns around the SSIP, fallowing the results of the Annual
General Meeling. we made the commitment to make a future
award under the SSIP only following fuil consultation with our
major Shareholders as to the circumstances, the objective(s). the
target(s) and the quantum of any award. We also committed to not
proceeding without the full support of our major Shareholders

To date the exceptional circumstances that would give rise to using
the $5IP have not arisen and therefore the SSIP has not been used
in FY|7 and there are no plans to use it in FY18.

In addition. in response to your concerns around the maximum
opportumty under the SSIP. we have capped the award to ensure
that the maximum achievable under the SSIP will not exceed

the maximum achievable under the PSP, being 200% of salary

An amended Policy with this change is not being presented for
formal approval. however it has been reflected as notes to the
future Policy table on pages 92 and 93.

The Committee also acknowledges your concerns with our approach
to disciosing EPS targets retrospectively under the PSP. | would like
to update you on the progress we have made here To date. EPS
targets have been directly iinked to our business plan This made
them price sensitive and therefore we felt we could not disclose
these prospectively

We have reviewed our target setting process and have developed

a methodology that results in a target range which can now be
disclosed prospectively As such | am pleased to be able tc share
the target range for the upceming PSP award to be made in £YI8

In addition. in this repart you will also find EPS target ranges for the
two putstanding PSP awards. This brings our approach to disclosure
in ling with the market and aligns with our aim to be open and
trangparent on our long-term incentive plan targets.

As | mentioned earlier. a number of best practice changes were
introduced during the year. These included. an increase to the
shareholdmg requirement for Executive Directors. the addition of a
holding period to all long-term incentive plans which provide for a
five-year time horizon on all plans; aligning good leaver provisions.
and capping the maximum employer pension benefit We also
reduced the level of vesting available for threshold performance
under the PSP and improved bonus disclesure of targets by bringing
forward disclosure by one year.

The changes we made and the way in which they have been
implemented following approval of the Policy are set out in the
table opposite:
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Change made How we have implemented this change
Shareholding The CEQ and CFQ have holdings of 449% and
requirement for 300% respactively

Executive Directors
increased from 100%
to 200% of salary

Good leaver pravisions
aligned across all Plans

The PSP vesting date for the CFO 15 aligned to
the normal vesting date under each award
The bonus payment for the CFQ will be made
on the normal payment date and a proportion
of the bonus will continue to be subjecttoa
two-year deferral period

Reduced the level of
threshold vesting under
the PSP from 30% to 25%

Put in place from the FY17 (December 2016)
grant onwards

Capped the maximum
pension benefit within
the policy

New CFO pension arrangement set at a level
below the cap - 1e. 20% if receiving the benefit
as & cash allowance or |5% if receiving as

an employer contribution into the pension
scheme, instead of the Policy maximurm of
30%. to align more closely to the maximum

an employee with long-service in the UK

can receive

Introduced a two-year
holding period to the PSP
{and SSIP)

Holding period written into the PSP rules ready
for next grant in FY18 (December 2017). This
means that all long-term incentive plans at
Thomas Ceok have a five-year tme horizon in
tine with corporate governance quidelines and
Shareholder expectations

Strengthened malus and
clawback

Whilst Thomas Cook was an early adopter of
malus and clawback in the bonus plan and
malus in the PSP. clawback events have been
written into the PSP rules ready for next grant
in FY18 (December 2017) Malus and clawback
are now across all of our incentive plans

Improved bonus target
disclosure

Targets are now disclosed at the end of the
performance year in line with corporate
governance guidelines and Sharehelder
expectations FYI7targets are disciosed in
this report.

Improved EPS target
disclosure

Last year we provided information on how
EPS targets were set. and gave a performance
update for targets under each outstanding
award. This year we are prospectively
disclesing target ranges for the upcoming

PSP awards and disclosing target ranges for
all outstanding awards




CFO SUCCESSION

As previously announced, in January 2018. Bill Scott will succeed
Michael Healy as CFO. following Michael's decision to retire at the
end of the year. The Board was delighted to make this internal
promotion and look forward to welcoming Bill to the Board

The key components of Bill's remuneration package were published
on our Company website and announced via a regulatory news
service (RNS) statement shortly after they were agreed. and are set
out in detail on page 104

Bill's appointment will cammence an 1 January 2018 following Michael
stepping down from the Beard | would like to echo the Chairman's
comments on the significant contribution Michael has made to the
Group as CFO and member of the Board.

The Committee agreed Michael's leaving arrangements in fine
with the Policy and these were also disclosed at the time on our
Company website and via the same RNS statement Full details of
the arrangements are set out on page 104

COMMITTEE AND ADVISER CHANGES

In addition to the forthcoming change to the Executive Board, we
appointed twao new Independent Non-Executive Directors to the
Board As mentioned previously by the Chairman on page 9. Paul
Edgecliffe-lohnson was appointed to the Remuneration Committee
on 21 September 2017 As part of the overall streamlining and
reorganisation of the Cornmittees, Emre Berkin stepped down from
the Remuneration Committee effective 1 October 2017

The Committee also took the opportunity to review the advisers
to the Committee as part of its obligation to ensure continued
independence, conducting a thorough and robust tender process
during the year in which five firms were invited to participate.
As described further on page 98. Mercer was selected and
appointed, advising the Committee from September 2017,

Other Committee activities during the year included.

» ongoing dialogue with Shareholders;

> deciding the salary increases for the CEO and CFG for April
2017 being an increase of 2 per cent In line with the overall
employee population;

> determining performance against the targets set under the FYI7
annual bonus plan,

> deciding on the continued operation of the terms of the bonus plan
and setting targets for the FY18 Pian.

> determining award levels under the PSP for the grant to be made
in FY18. As was the case last year, the PSP award will vest subject
to challenging Refative TSR and EPS targets described more fully
on page 104;

> taking into consideration Corporate Governance updates
throughout the year and-

> performing annual governance checks; including the review of
dilution limits, shareholding levels against Policy, reviewing risks
associated with executive remuneration and the Committee's
activities against its Terms of Reference.

REMUNERATION OUTCOMES IN FY17
Short-term incentives

Progress has been made this year to deliver Group underiying EBIT
growth, and strong cash flow management Our ‘Customer at our
Heart strategy cantinues to bear fruit and the Group has achieved
angther year of improvement in NPS

This has resulted in a calculated achievement of 17 per cent of base
salary for the CEQ {777 per cent of the maximum bonus cpportunity).
The Group underlying EBIT and Group Free Cash Flow performance.
along with strengthening the financial position of the Company,
resulted in a calculated achievement of 128 per cent of base salary
for the CFQ (85 5 per cent of the maximum bonus opportunity!

One third of bonus payments will be deferred in shares for a period
of two years and will be subject Lo clawback during this time

Targets and outcomes for the year are fully disclosed on page 100

Long-term incentives

There were no awards made to Executive Directors during FY14,
therefore no awards vested during FYI7

The award made in FY15 (granted in March 2015} is subject to the
achievement of performance conditions relating to FYi7 The targets
under this award reflected our aims of significant growth in
earnings and a substantive improvement in our cash position. with a
correspanding improvement (n share price. As performance against
the targets have not been achieved against the stretching targets
and share price perfermance is likely not to be achieved to the
extent that the target requires. awards held by Executive Directors
are anticipated to lapse in March 2018 The targets and outcomes
under this award are shaown on page 101

Overall variable pay compared to the maximum available

Cutcomes reflect progress made However they also reflect that
Thomas Cook is still in a period of business transformation and
there is still a lot to do to deliver long-term value to Shareholders.
Remuneration outcomes for the year were significantly lower
than the maximum opportunity during FY17. as shown in the
following charts:

Image removed
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a8

APPROACH FOR FY18
Salary reviews

Salary reviews are undertaken annually in April of each year
Overall salary increases for the Group for 2018 have not yet been
considerad, with the exception of the following

> any increase that is awarded to Peter Fankhauser in April
2018 will not exceed the increase provided to the general
employee population

> there will be no increase to Michae! Healy's base salary during FY18

> Buill Scott, who will be assuming the role of CFO effective | January
2018 will not receive a salary increase in Aprit 2018

Short-term incentives

Two years ago. the bonus plan was reviewead {o align to our
‘Customer at our Heart' strategy. The Plan was rclled out to all
bonusable roles across the Group where possible, and continues

REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE

to be operated consistently across the Group. For FYI8, there will

be full retrospective disclosure of targets and performance against
these in next year's Directors Remuneration Report. The annual
bonus epportunity will remain at 150 per cent of base salary with
one third of any payment being deferred into shares, this proporticn
aligns with the recently published Investment ASsociation's
Principles of Remuneration which state that deferral should be
applied to any bonus payments of more than 100 per cent of salary.

Long-term incentives

The Commitiee intends to grant PSP awards in FY18, shortly

after announcement of cur full year results The award for

Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott will be at the normal grant level

of 150 per cent There will be no award made to Michael Healy
foflowing his notification to the Board of his forthcoming retirement,
The performance conditions for the award will be Relative TSR and
Basic EPS. the target range of which 15 disciosed on page 104

The table below provides a high-level summary of the outcomes for the year and the remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors

for FY18:
FYi18
Role Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial officer Incoming Chied Financial Gfficer
Name Peter Fankhauser Michael Healy Bill Scott
Annual salary £717800 £541.200 £420000
lincreased from £703.800. {increased from £530.600. effective | January 2018

+2% effective 1 Apnil 2017)

2% effective 1 April 20171

Maximum bonus opportunity {one-third
deferred into shares for twoe years)

150% of base salary

150% of base salary 150% of base salary

{pro-rata for time employed) Salary used in calculation pro-

rated to reflect time in CFO role

PSP award (subject to performance) 150% of base salary

No award being made 150% of base salary

Fy17
Role Chief Executive Officer cnief Financial Officer Incoming Chief Financial officer
Bonus payment % of base salary N7% 128% Not applicable to CFQ role
£ £836596 £694039
LTIP awards % of maximum Nong None
vesting award vesting
in the year
Number of vested shares  None Nane

CLOSING REMARKS

As a Committee, we believe that our approach to remuneration
closely aligns to your expectations, making responsible
remuneration decisions, and being mindful of the evolving corporate
governance landscape in which we operate, with many best practice
approaches included in cur Policy. With your centinued input, we will
ensure we maintain our strong commitment to a clear link between
pay and performance. operating under a structure that rewards
performance for the execution of our ‘Customer at our Heart’
strategy. and the delivery of long-term Shareholder value
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I would like to take this oppertunity to give my thanks to my fellow
members of the Committee and those whe supported us far their
contributions during the year.

Finally, t look forward to receiving your support on the resolutions
refating to remuneration at the Annual General Meeting in February
2018 where | will be available to respond 1o any questions you may
have on this report, or the Committee's activities mare generally

WARREN TUCKER
CHAIRMAN CF THE REMUNERATICN COMMITTEE

21 Navember 2017



DIRECTORS'
REMUNERATION POLICY

This section of the report sets out Thomas Cook’s Directors’ Remuneration Paolicy (the 'Pelicy’). The Policy was subject to a binding
Shareholder vote at the Company’s Annual General Meeting on 9 February 2017 and was effective from this date.

REMUNERATION PHILOSOPHY AND PRINCIPLES

Thomas Cook Group plc's Remuneration Policy supports the organisation's overall remuneration philosophy of pay for performance, and is
based on the follewing principles.

Attracts and motivates: Drives performance: Pravides balance: Creates long-term value:
> Attracts and motvates high-calibre
talent without paying mare than

15 NECeSSaAry

> Fuecuses Management on rgorous
execubion of Themas Cack s strategy
with the right behaviours m ne with
the Campany s values

> Pravides an appropriate mix of fixed
short and long-term perfarmance-
related pay via simple structures

> Reflects the Company's relentless

» |3 inked to the ereation of lang-term
sustainable value through long-term
performance targets and share-based

> Facilitates delvery of a level of total remuneration

remuneration which 1s competitive
with companies of a ¢ milar size,

internatienal aspect and complexity.

1 the relevant market for talent

> Perfarmance-related pay plans
will pravide meaningful reward to
Management dependent upon the
satisfaction of challenging targets

focus on performance and praserves
and enhances company reputation
without encouraging excessive
risk-taking

> Remungration sheuld support the
creation of long-term Shareholder
value and the bullding of a strong and
sustamable future for Thomas Coak

which are critical to the delivery of
our business strategy

worthy of our customers and our
hentage
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

FUTURE POLICY TABLE

Element Purpose and link to strategic QOperation
objectives
Base salary > Provides fixed remuneration > Salaries are paid manthly and are normally revizwed annually There s no automatie right to an increase gach year
for the role which reflects > Consideration i tymeally given to a range of factors including
the size and scope of .
the Exacutive Directors — size and scope of the Executive Director's responsibiities
responsibilities — performance and experience in the rale
> Attracts motivates and — typical pay levels for comparable rales in companies of a similar $12& international aspect and complexty
retains the high-calibre In the reievant market
talent necessary to deliver - the econamic chmate and market conditions In which the business operates and
the business strategy - overall salary budgets and levels across the Group
Retirement * To provide competitive > Payment may be made either into a pension Plan {for example. a defined contribution Plan or into such ather
benefits postretirement benefits arrangement the Comrmuttes considers has the same economic benefit) or paid a5 a cash allowance with Company
> Attracts and retans contributions 52t as a percentage of basic salary in lew of any Company pension contributions
the high-calibre talent > Peter Fankhauser also has a Garman pension provision relating to bis employment with Thomas Cook prior to his
necessary to deliver the appointment to the Thomas Cook Group Board which has been frozen at the level accrued to 26 November 2014
business strategy fthe date ha was appointed CEQ) and will be payable from age 60 Peter has the optian to cammute the annuai pension
> Set at an approprate level to a ene-off lump sum payment at ags 6011 Peter's emplayment 15 terminated without good cause a pension may be
of risk and cast to the Group pard fram termination
Benefits > Ensures the overal > Berefits may include those currently avallable to Executive Directors including a car allowance. a travel allowance

remuneration package
1S COMpetitive

Attracts and retains
the hugh-calibre talent
necessary to deliver the
business strateqy

ar rembursements. tax adwice private healthcare benefits for the Executive Directors and their immediate family
employee travel concessions and fe assurance These are reviewed annually by the Committee to ensure that they
provide a campetitive remuneration package and faciltate the dalivery of the business stratagy

Executive Directors will be entitied to take partin any ali-employee benefits and share plans on the same basis

as other employees

> The Company reservas the right to offer benefits to Executive Directors depending on ther individual circumnstances
which may include (but are not imited tol housing travel healthcare and other allowances

In the case of nen-UK Executive Directors the Committee may consider additiona) allowances (n line with standard
practice for that region

Annual bonus

> Focuses Management
on nigorous execution of
Thomas Caook 5 strategy
on an annual hasis

> Rewards annual
performance against
challenging annual targets
and key performance
indicatars which are cniticat
to the delivery of our
business strategy

= Compulsory deferral into the
Company's shares provides
alink to the creation of
lang-term sustanable

value and therefore
aretention element

 The clawback and malus
provisions enahles the
Company to mitigate risk

Measures and targets are set annually and payout levels are determined by the Commuttes after the year end based

on performance against those targets

The Committee has full discretion to amend the bonus payout lupwards ar downwards) if i 1ts judgement any

formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the indwvidual Executive Directar or the Company taking

account of the gverall business parfarmance or situation of the Company

Executive Directors must defer at least one-third of their annuat banus into Company shares which then vest twa

years after the cash bonus payment date

Clawback and malus provisions will apply to the cash and deferred elements of the annual bonus as described in the

notes to this table

> Eligilility for any bonus payment will be forfeited if the partomant leaves employment before the cash bonus payment
date or before the vesting date in the case of any deferred share award unless in specific ‘good leaver circumstances

> Good leaver tarms are described in more detailin the Service Contracts and Loss of Office Payments’ section of this

Policy
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Maximum opportunity

Performance metrics

> Whilst the Commuittes has not set a monstary
maximum ordinarly Base 5alary mereases wall usually
not exceed the average Increase awarded to other
emplayess in the Group

» Mare significant increases may be made to salary levels
Incertain circumstances as required for example
to reflect

— ncrease In scope of rale or responsiaility
- performance n role, and

— an Executive Director being moved t0 appropriate
market positioning over time

> Performance through our performance Management process 15 one of the key censideraticns in reviewing
and setting salary

> Contributions into any Plan or paid a5 a cash allowance
will be up to 30% of base salary per annum

> Nong

> The Committee has not set a manetary maximum [given
the value of benefits will vary based on the individual 5
circumstances] and reserves the nght to prowide such
fevel of benefits as it considers appropriate ta support
the engoing strategy of the Company

> Nong

» For maximum perfarmance
— 150% of salary

» The Commuttee will have regard te vanous performance measures which wall be determined by the Committes]
measured over the relevant financial year, when determining bonus outcomes

> No less than 70% of the award 15 based an financial measures and up to 30% of the award may be based an the
achievement of other strategic or role-specific objectives. which may be financial or non-financial

» For achievernent of a threshold' performance level (the mimimum level of performance that results 0 any payment)
no more than 20% of the maximum for each element of the bonus pays out

> For achugvement of a mid” perfarmance level. ne mere than 60% of the maximum for each performance metric in
refation to the bonus pays out

> For achuevement of a maximum’ performance level 100% of the maximurm pays out
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

FUTURE POLICY TABLE CONTINUED

share-based
incentive Plan

on rigorous execution of
Thomas Cock's strategy over
the langer-term

» Rewards sustained
performance aganst
challenging long-term
targets and key performance
indwcators which are critical
to the delivery of our
business strateqy

Long-term perfarmance
targets and share-based
remuneration suppert
the creatian of long-term
Shareholder value

Element Purpose and link to strategic aperation
objectives
Long-term > Focuses Management > A summary of the key features of the Planis set out befow

— awards will vest dependent upon the achizvement of performance conditions set by the Committee measured over
a performance period of at least three years

— gwards made under the new PSP approved by Shareholdersin February 2017 1e awards made fram December 2018
onwards will be subject to an additional halding pariod {currently two years) following the end of the performance
periad unless the Committes determines otherwise,

— the Commuttee has full discreton to amend the number of shares that vest {upwards or downwards} if inits
Judgement any formulaic output does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executive Director or the
Company taking account of the overatl business performance or situation of the Company and

— the award will lapse if the participant leaves employment before vesting unless in specific ‘good leaver’
crcumstances Good lgaver terms are described in more detail in the Service Contracts and Lass of Office
Payments' section of this Policy

> Clawback and malus provisions will apply as describad in the notes ta this table

Strategic share-

based award

i Updates to Policy
following AGM:

> Maximum award
level is capped
at 200% (aligned
to maximum PSP
award)

> The Committee
will only use
this award
following
consultation

with major
Sharehalders

» The Strategic Share Incentive
Plan (SSIP) provides focus on
near-term strategic targets
that are important to the
future strategic success of
Thomas Cook

» Long-term TSR targets

support the creation of long-
term Sharenolder value

> A summary of the key features s set out below

— an individual Executive Director can only participate in the SSIP once every four years,

— participation n the SSIP precludes participation in the PSP lor any other leng-term incentive plan} in respect of that
particular financial year.

— aninitial share-based award may be made based on the achievement against predefined strategic perfermance
target(st assessed over a penod of at least two financial years

— the number of shares in the imitial share-based award will be determined following the assessment of the strategic
target(sh

— the mitial share-based award will b subject to a TSR multiplier measured over three y2ars commencing in the year
the ndiidual s invited to participate in the 58P

— awards will be subject to an additional halding period following the end of the TSR performance peried unless the
Comrnittee determines otherwise.

— the Committee has full discration to amend the level of vesting fupwards of downwards) If In 1ts judgement any
formulaie output does not produce a fair result for either the individual Executivg Director or the Company, taking
account of the overall business performance or situation of the Company. and

— the award will lapse f the participant leaves employment before the initial share-based award 1s made unless
there are specific good leaver circumstances If the participant leaves employment following the grant of the initial
share-based award. the award will subsist on 1ts original terms unless the Committee detarmines atherwise

> Clawback and malus provisions will apply as describad in the notes to this table

chairman and
Non-Executive
Director fees

Ta reward indnaduals for
fulfiling the relevant rale

Attracts and retains
individuals with the skills.
experience and knowledge
to contribute to an
effective Board

> The Committea 1s responsible far determining the fees for the Chairman of the Company
> The fees for the other Non-Executive Ditectors are set by the Board
» The fee structure may include
— abasic fee,
— additional fees for chairmanship or membership of Board Committees.
~ additional fees for further responsipilities [for example. Senior Independent Directorship] and

- 1rave! and hotel costs that are deemed to be an employment benefit by the relevant tax authority may also be paid
lalong with any associated tax hahility)

award Is granted

PAYMENTS WHICH ARE NOT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY

The Committee reserves the rght ta make any remuneration payments and/or payments for loss of office (inciuding exercising any discretions available to itin connection
with such payments) notwithstanding that they are not :n ine with the Policy set out above where the terms of the payment were agreed (1) before the 2014 Annual General
Meeting {the date the Company’s first Shareholder-approved Directors’ Remuneration Policy cama into effect). (1) befare the Policy set out above came into effect. provided that
the terms of the payment were consistent with the Shareholder-approved Palicy In force at the time they were agreed, or (] at a tme when the relevant indrdual was not
Director of the Company and. 1n the opinion of the Committes the payment was not in consideration for the individual becoming a Director of the Cempany For these purposes
‘payments’ includes the Committee satisfying awards of vanable remuneration and in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payment are agreed at the ime the
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Maximum opportunity

Perfaormance metrics

> Under the Plan rules the aggregate value of all awards
made in respect of any financial year must not exceed
200% of base salary

» The narmal maxmum face value of awards 15 150% of
base salary However, the Committee has a discretian
0 award up ta the Plan rules maximum. when 1t
believes the situation warrants a higher lavel of award

> Tne performance measures for the PSP will be a combination of financial measures and share price-based measures
measured aver at least a three-year performance peniod Normally the wesghtings will be as follows
— al least 40% will be based on financial measures
— at teast 40% will be hased on share price-based measures and
— the remaining propor tion may be based either en financial or share price-based measures

> The parformance measures may be adusted following grant by the Commitiez to ensure a corsistent basis of
calculation and to provide a fair reflection of the Company’s performance

> For achievement of a threshold perfarmance lavel fwhich 1s the mimimum level of perfarmance that results in any
part of an award vesting) no more than 25% of each respective element af tiz award will vast

» For achievement of a maximum performance level lwhich i1s the highest lavel of performance that results m any
additional vesting) 100% of each respective element of the award will vest

» The Committee may determing that a target’ level of performance s applicabie to the award The target’
nerformance level will be batwean threshold’ and 'maxamum perfarmance lavels and will be set in the contaxt of the
business Plan Faor achievement of the target performance between 50% and 70% of each respective element of the
award will vest

> Normally there will be straight-line vesting between threshold  and maximum” or when apphicable between
‘thresheld and target and between target and maximur’

> Aninitial award of shares of up to 150% cf base salary
can be made dependent on the achievemant against
strateqic targets

> This initial award of shares may be increased by 33%’
or decreased by 50% dependent on TSR performance
(ie the overall maximum award size in respect of any
financial year1s 200% of salary
'The maximum award size was approved at 225% however was
subsequently capped at 200% and 15 reflected in the werdirg
above and throughout thrs Policy

> Awards will be subject to (] a performance condition measuning strategic targets over at least two years and (1) a
performance condition relating to the Company's TSR measured over a period of at least three years

> Far achigvement of a ‘threshold performance level aganst the strategic targat f(which 1s the mirimum level of
performance that results in aninitial award being made), no more than 25% of the maximum initial award will be
made

> For achievement of a'maximum’ performance level against the strategic targets lwhich is the huighest level of
performance that resuitsn an initial award being made) an award equal to 100% of the maximum imitial award will
be made

> The initia) award can then be increased by 33%' or decreased by 50% based on TSR performance ensuning that
thraugh the whale vesting pertod the award 1s subject to performance

' The maximumm award 5126 was approved at 225% however was subsaquently capped at 200% and 15 reflectad in the wording above
and threughout this Palicy

> The maximum level of fees will not exceed the hmit set
out In the Company s Articles of Association and will
be set at a level which the Committee {ar the Board.
as appropriatel cansiders

— reflects the time commitment and contribution that
15 expected from the Charrman and Non-Executive
Directors. and

— apprapriately positianed against comparable roles
In companies of a similar size and complexity in the
relevant market

> None
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EXPLANATORY DETAIL FOR FUTURE POLICY TABLE
Common award terms

Awards under any of the Company's share Plans referred to in this
report may

al be granted as conditional share awards or nil or nominal-cost
aptions or 1n such other form that the Committee determines has
the same economic effect;

have any performance conditions applicable to them amended
or substituted by the Committee if an event cecurs which
causes the Committee to determine an amended or substituted
performance condition {s) would not be materially less difficult
to satisfy.

¢} incorporate the right to receive an amount (in cash or additional
shares) equal Lo the value of dividends which would have been
paid on the shares under an award. that vest up to the time of
vesting (or where the award 1s subject to a holding period. at
the end of the folding perod). This amount may be calculated
assuming that the dividends have been reinvested in the
Company's shares on a cumulative hasis,

be settled In cash at the Committee's discretion; and

be adjusted in the event of any variation of the Company's share
capital or any de-merger. de-listing. special dividend or other
event that may affect the Company's share price.

=

4

@

Explanation of chosen performance measures and the target
setting process

Performance measures have been selected by the Committee to
reflect the targets and key performance indicators that are critical
to the delivery of our business strateqy (as shown on page 85}

Chalienging performance targets are set by the Committee each
year for the annual bonus plan, PSP and when applicable. the SSIP.
When setling these targets. the Committee will take into account
a number of different reference points, including the Company's
husiness Plan and consensus analyst forecasts of the Company's
performance Full vesting will only occur for what the Committee
considers to be stretching performance against these targets

Malus and Clawback

As highlighted in the Policy table malus and clawback arrangements
are in place The following elements of the remuneration package
are subject to these provisions:

> the cash part of the annual bonus will be subject to clawback
provisions for a period of at [east two years following payment;

> the unvested deferred annual bonus shares will be subject to
malus provisions: and

> the PSP and SSIP will be subject to malus and clawback provisions
until the end of any holding period for a period of five years from
the grant of a PSP award, or in the case of the SSIP, the date the
Executive Directar was invited to participate in the SSIP
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Malus and clawback may be apnled in the following circumstances

> a material adverse misstatement or misrepresentation of the
Company's or any Group member's financial statements: and/or

> the participant or their team having engaged in gross misconduct
or In conduct which resulted in significant losses, as determined
by the Committee and/or

> the Company having suffered serious reputaticnal damage or
financtal downturn, as determined by the Committee. as a resutt
of any action {or 1n the case of awards under the new PSP or SSIP,
any action or omission] taken by the participant, or their team.

Salary. pension and benefits are not sybject to clawback

Shareholding requirements

Executive Directors are required to build and maintam a shareholding
in the Company to a value of at least 200 per cent of base salary
within a five-year period commencing on appointment as an
Executive Director

Unless the Committee determines otherwise, those Executive
Directors who do nat at any point meet the shareholding
requirements must hold any shares vesting net of tax under the
Company's share plans until the requirements are met

Policy for the remuneration of employees generally

femuneration arrangements are determined throughout the Group
based on the same principle of pay for performance Reward should
be achieved for delivery of our business strategy and should be
sufficient to attract, motivate and retain high-calibre talent. without
paying more than is necessary. with remuneration based on
market rates.

Thomas Cook has operations based in a number of different
countries and employees with different levels of skills and
experience and whilst based on the over-arching principle of
pay for performance. reward policies may vary depending upon
these factars.

APPROACH TO RECRUITMENT REMUNERATION

When agreeing a remuneration package for the appsintment
of a new Executive Director. the Committee will apply the
following principles

> The remuneration package will be sufficient to attract. motivate
and retain the high-calibre talent necessary to develop and deliver
the business strategy

> The Committee will seek to ensure that no more is paid than
is necessary

> In the next applicable Annual Remuneration Report, the
Committee will explain to Shareholders the rationale for the
relevant arrangements




The following variations may be considered by the Commuttee for
inclusion in a recruitment package for an Executive Director

Element Approach

Initial
long-term
incentive
award

Aninitial long-term incentive award may be made in
lIne with the appertunity in the Policy table feither
200% under the PSP, or 150% under the SSIP with the
opportunity to increase te 200% upon vesting subject
to TSR performance)
' The maximum award size was approved at 225% howeaver was
subsequently capped at 200% and s reflected in the warding above and
throughout this Policy
The Commuttee will ensure
> the award 1s linked to the achievement of appropriate
and challenging performance targets The Committee
has the fiexibility to use different performance
measures and weightings to those set cut in the
Policy table;

> the award will be subject to the leaver provisions
set out In the Service Contracts and Loss of Office
Payments’ section; and

> awards will only be made following consultation.

Initial annual
bonus
opportunity

The initial annual bonus opportunity will be in ine with
the opportunity of 150%, as set out in the Policy table

The Committee will ensure the award is linked to

the achievement of appropriate and challenging
performance targets The Committee has the flexibility
to use different performance measures and weightings
to those set out in the Policy table

Compensation The terms of any compensation will be determined
for forfeited by taking nto account the terms of any forfeited
awards awards, including:
> performance achieved or likely to be achieved:
> the proportion of performancejvesting period
remaining: and
> the form and timing of the original awara.

Notice period The initial notice period may be longer than the Company's
six-month Policy (up to 2 maximum of 24 months)
However, this will reduce by one month for every month

served, until the Company’s Policy position is reached.

Relocation
costs

Where necessary, the Company will pay appropnate
relocation cests. in line with market practice.

The Committee will seek to ensure that no more

is paid than is necessary.

Under reperting regulations, Thomas Cook is required to set out
the maximum amount of variable pay which could be paid to a new
Executive Director m respect of their recruitment. The Committee
has set this figure in line with the maximum allowed under the
short-term and long-term incentive Plans combined, being either
350 per cent if a PSP award has been made. or 300 per cent (rising
to a maximum of 350 per cent' based on the TSR multiplier] if a SSIP
has been made. in addition to the maximum opportunity under the
annual bonus. This excludes the value of any compensation for
forfeited awards

' The maximum award size was approved at 225 par cent however was subsequently capped at
200 per cent and s reflected i the warding above and throughout this Palicy

For an individual becoming Executive Directors as a result of an
internal promotion from within Thomas Cook or as a result of an
acquisition, any awards under other arrangements which were
made prior to Joining the Board may be allowed to continue under
the original terms. or under a revised hasis (such as a roll-over into
Thomas Cook shargs) if the Committee determines appropriate.

Fee levels for a new Chairman or new Non-Executive Directors
will be determined in accordance with the Policy set cut in the
Palicy table.

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LOSS OF
OFFICE PAYMENTS

Executive Directors

> Executive Directors have Company service contracts. For Peter
Fankhauser and Michae! Healy the service contracts provide

for a six-month notice period. from both the Company and the
Executive Directar

if the Company terminates the employment of the Executive
Director with immediate effect. a payment in lieu of notice may be
made. This may include base salary, pension and benefits

The extent to which any performance linked elements of an
Executive Director's remuneraticn package will be delivered will
depend on the circumstances of the Executive Director's departure
and whether the Committee considers the Executive Director

to be a ‘good leaver’. A ‘'good leaver scenario may constitute
circumstances where the Executive Director leaves because

of disability. injury, ill-health. redundancy cr retitrement or the
Executive Director's employing company or business being sold out
of the Group. for any other reason that the Committee determines
appropriate. or on the Executive Director's death

If an Executive Director leaves as a 'good leaver during the annual
bonus performance year or before the normal bonus payment
date. a bonus payment in respect of the year may be made, which
will be pro-rated te reflect the portion of the performance year
elapsed and performance achieved at the end of the performance
year. This bonus may be paid in such proportions of cash and
shares as determined by the Committee and paid on the normal
payment dates

If the participant leaves as a ‘good leaver’ before the end of the
deferral period, any unvested deferred bonus awards will vest at
the normal vesting date

Any ‘gocd leaver's’ unvested awards under the PSP vest to

the extent determined by the Committee taking into account
performance achieved against any relevant performance targets
and the propertion of the vesting period that has elapsed

SSIP awards will lapse if the individual leaves prior 1o the initial
share-based award being made, unless in a good leaver scenario,
defined for the purposes of the SSIP as death, ill-health, inury

or disability only If a participant in the SSIP leaves after the

initial share-based award has already been made, the award will
continue to subsist on its original terms, unless the Committee
determines otherwise

~

v

v

v
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> Where PSP and SSIP awards are subject to an additional

holding period. they will be released following the end of the
holding periad. unless in the case of death when vesting will be
accelerated Awards structured as options shall be exercisable
for a period of six months (or 12 months in the case of death) from
vesting (or where subject to a holding period. release]

In the event of a takeaver or winding-up of the Company {other
than as part of an internal re-prganisation of the Thomas Cock
Group). PSP and SSIP awards may vest to the extent determined
by the Committee, taking intg account the performance achieved
against any relevant performance targets and. the proportion of
the vesting period that has elapsed in the case of PSP awards)
and the period of time that has elapsed since grant {in the case
of SSIP awards where the strategic performance condition(s)
have not yet been satisfied). Vested awards will be released from
any holding periods at the time of transaction. Where a takeover
occurs after an Executive Director has been invited to participate
in the Plan but prior to the grant of the iritial share-based award.
the Committee may grant the individuat an award which takes into
account the Company's performance and the length of time the
individual has been a participant in the $SIP

Awards may alternatively be rolled over inta new shares of an
acquiring company or at the Committee’s discretion be amended
or allowed to subsist on their original terms. In the event of any
demerger, delisting. special dividend or other event which, in the
Committee’s opinion, may affect the Company's current or future
share price. awards may. at the Committee’s discretion. vest fand
he released) on the same basis as for a takeover

The Committee reserves the right to make any other payments

in connection with an Executive Director's cessation of office

or employment where the payments are made in good faith in
discharge of an existing legal obligation (or by way of damages
for breach of such an cbhgation) or by way of a compromise or
settlement of any claim arising in cennection with the cessation
of an Executive Director's office or employment. Any such
payments may include but are not limited tc paying any fees for
outplacement assistance and/for the Executive Director's legal andf
or professional advice fees in connection with their cessation of
office or employment

v

v

v

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors, including the Chairman, are appointed
pursuant to a letter of appointment. The notice period for the
Chairman is three months, and one month for the other Non-
Executive Directors. All Non-Executive Directors are subject to
annual re-election by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
The Non-Executive Directors’ latters of appointment continue
untif the date stated in their appointment letter unless they are
terminated for cause. or on the notice period stated. or if they are
not re-elected at the Annual General Meeting. The Directors’ service
contracts and letters of appointment are kept for inspection by
Shareholders at the Company's registered office.
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OUTSIDE APPOINTMENTS

The Company recognises the benefits to the individual and to the
Group, of Executive Directors taking on external appontments

as Non-Executive Directors. Subject to the approval of the
Committee an Executive Director may accept such appointments
at other companies or other similar advisery or consultative roles
The Committee has set a Imit of one external appointment for
each Executive Director, to one FTSE 100 or 250 company. or an
international company of a similar size. The Board will review the
time commitment of all outside appointments and ensure that it
is satisfied that this will not negatively impact upon the Executive
Director’s time commitment to the performance of Thomas

Cook duties.

The Committee will allow Executive Directors to retain any
fees payable

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF CONDITIONS
ELSEWHERE IN THE COMPANY

When setting the Palicy for Executive Directors remungration.
the Committee has regard to the pay and employment conditions
elsewhere within the Group. This includes consideration of:

> salary increases for the general employee population

> gverall spend on annual bonus;

> participation levels in the annual bonus and any fong-term
incentive plans:

» company-wide benefits {including pension), and

> any other relevant factors as determined by the Committee

In order to take into account the views of the general employee
population when formulating Executive Director pay Policy. the
Committee may review information provided by the HR function and
feedback from employee satisfaction surveys

STATEMENT OF CONSIDERATION OF
SHAREHOLDER VIEWS

The Company is committed to ongoing engagement and seeks major
Shareholder views in advance of proposing significant changes to 1ts
remuneration policies




ILLUSTRATIVE PERFORMANCE SCENARIOS

This section illustrates the levels of remuneration that may be received by the current Executive Directors. Their remuneration

is set in accordance with the Policy. The charts below show three scenarios: (a) fixed pay. comprising of base salary. benefits and pension.
ib) mid and {c} maximum of overall potential:

Graph removed | Graph removed

I _ . R _

In developing the scenarios, the following annualised assumptions have been made

{a) Fixed Based on fixed pay being received only, for example, base salary. benefits and pension.
This is calculated for Peter Fankhauser and Michael Healy as follows:
»Base salary at the date of this report
> Benefits are based on the amount shown in the singte figure table in this year's Annual Report on remuneration
> Pension measured by applying cash in heu rate against base salary as at the date of this report
The calculatien basis for Bill Scott is as follows:
> Base salary at 1 January 2018
> Benefits are based on an estimated amount based on the contractual arrangements
> Pension measured by applying cash in heu rate against base salary at | January 2018
Base salary [E'000s] Benefits [£'000s) Pension [E'000s) Total fixed (£'000s}
CEC £718 £76 £215 £1.009
CFO {Michael Healy) £54] £26 £135 £702
CFG {Bill Scott) £420 £l6 £84 £520
(b} Mid If performance is in line with the Company's expectations:
> Annual bonus pays out at 60% of maximum for on-target performance. based on @ maximum annua! eligibility of 150% of salary
> For Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott only A PSP award with a face value of 150% of base salary pays out 60% of maximum
{c) Maximum  If performance is in line with the maximum eligibility levels:
> Full pay-out of annual bonus ie. 150% of salary with stretching performance achieved
» For Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott only A PSP award with a face value of 150% of base salary pays out at 100% of maximum in ling
with stretching performance
Note:

As required by the regulaticns, PSP awards {and amounts included within the bonus which have baen deferred into shares) are set out at
face value, with no share price growth assumptions
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ANNUAL REPORT ON DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION

a8

The Remuneration Committee presents its Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration, which is set out within
this section. Decisions taken on remuneration during the year are in line with our Directors’ Remuneration
Policy, which was approved at our Annual General Meeting in February 2017

CONSIDERATION BY THE DIRECTORS OF MATTERS
RELATING TO DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Commitige is responsible for recommending
t0 the Board the Policy for Executive Directors and for setting the
remuneration packages for each Executive Director

The Committee also has input into the remuneration arrangements
of the Executive Committee in conjunction with the CEQ. and has
oversight of the Policy and remuneration packages fer other senior
leaders with particular focus on the variable pay elements, ensuring
incentives are consistently applied beyond the CEQ and CFO to
ensure the execution of the strategy throughout the organisation

The aim of the Committee is to align Remuneration Policy to

the overall strategy of the Thamas Cook Group, and to ensure
remuneration reflects our Shareholders’ and customers interests,
governed by our Policy and its philesophy and principles.

During the year, the Committee had six scheduled meetings At the
end of each financial year at the Committee’s meeting in September
a review 1S undertaken of activities against its Terms of Reference
{available on the Thomas Cook Group plc website} to ensure the
Committee is properly fulfilling its duties and responsibilities.

Attendees

The Commuttee invites individuals to attend meetings. as it deems
beneficial, to assist it in reviewing matters for consideration.
Individuals who have provided support and advice to the Committee
during the year include the Board members, Alice Marsden - Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary. Rachael Gillett - Group

& UX HR Director, Caroline Forsyth - Group Head of Reward. Emily
Hallett - Executive Remuneration Manager and a representative
from each of the Committee's independent external advisers, being
Mitut Shah - Partner, Deloitte. and Pete Smith - Partner, Mercer
Warren Tucker. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 1s also

a member of the Audit Committee and. as such. ensures there

is knowledge and coordination in respect of risk and accounting
issues No Director or senior executive is present af the section

of the meeting when their own remuneraticn arrangements are
being discussed.
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External advisers

Under its Terms of Reference. the Committee obtains the advice of
external independent remuneration consultants and is responsible
for their selection and appointment The Committee also considers
the independence and effectiveness of the Adviser. and it was
decided that after a five-year period of working with Deloitte as
adviser to the Remuneration Committee, it would be appropriate and
good governance to put the role out to tender. Follawing a formal
tender process involving five firms which included Deloitte, Tollowing
references being undertaken, the Committee was delighted to
appeint Mercer as its independent remuneration adviser.

Mercer commenced work with the Committee in August 2017 and
fees for the two-month period were £43 050 for advice in relation
to executive remuneration Deloitte's fees for the preceding

part of the year were £79.500. Both fees covered attendance at
Committee meetings, general advice and updates on remuneration
developments with the total fees paid to advisers equating to
£122.550 for FY17

Deloitte also provided advice in relation to miscellaneous consulting
services as well as international mobility, tax, corporate finance and
internal audit advice Mercer provided advice in relation to pensions
and insured benefits

Mercer and Deloitte are hoth members of the Remuneration
Consuitants Group (RCG) and comply with its Code of Conduct.
The Committee is satisfied that their advice was and continues to
bhe objective and independent

The following pages set out the remuneration of the Executive
Directors during FY17. and the intended approach for FY18.




SINGLE FIGURE OF TOTAL REMUNERATION (AUDITED)
The following table sets out the single figure of total remuneration for Directars for the financial years ending 30 September 2016 and 2017

Salaryffees Benefits* Group Bonus Plan' psp Pension Total
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £o00 £000 £000 £'000
Fyi? ‘ e Y7 ‘ FYls £Y17 | FYIB Y17 | FYl6 Y7 r FYI6 FYI7 J FYiG
Executive Directors o o o _
Peter Fankhauser m 697 16 67 837 236 - - 213 208 1,837 1.209
Michael Healy 536 525 26 25 694 194 - - 134 131 1.390 876
Non-Executive Directors
Frank Meysman 275 275 30 4] - - - - - - 305 316
Dawn Arey 7m0 3 2 - - - - - - 73 72
Annet Aris 80 50 7 B - - - - - - 67 66
Emre Berkin L 80 70 7 B - - = - - 81 7
Paul Edgecliffe-Johnson? 1l - 1 - - - - - - - 12 -
Lesley Knox 60 35 1 1 - - - - - 61 36
Jurgen Schreiber? il - 2 - - - - - - - 13 -
warren Tucker a0 80 3 3 - - - - - - 83 88
Martine Verluyten 80 80 9 4 - - - - - - 89 84

Notes:

I The Commuttee Char fees were alignad from 1 Gctober 2016 resultingin an increase to the fees paid to Emre Berkin

2 Paul Edgechffe-Jahnsen and Jurgen Schreiber were appointed ta the Board on 26 July 2017

I Executive benefits paid includes car allowance healthcare Iife assurance tax adwice for Patar Fankhauser only and evpensas which are chargeable to ircome tax Non-executie benefits relates anly
to travel and accommodation expenses which are chargeable to UK ncome tax (or would be if the mdividual were resident 1n the UK)

4 One-thwrd of the banus wiil be deferred inta an award of shares under the Deferred Bonus Plan

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES RELATING TO THE SINGLE FIGURE TABLE (AUDITED)
Further informatien in respect of the base salary. pension, annual benus and PSP amounts 1s shown in this section:

Salary

The table below shows the base salaries of Peter Fankhauser and
Michael Healy at the end of FY17 and at the end of the previous
financial year. Salary increases were effective 1 April 2017

Salary at Salary at Percentage

30 September 2017 | 30 September 2016 increase

Peter Fankhauser £717,800 £703.800 2.0%
Michael Healy £541,200 £530600 2.0%

The salary increases awarded to the Executive Directors were in line
with the overall salary increase budget (expressed as a percentagel
across the Group during the 2017 annual salary review and were

in ling with the level of increase awarded to the general employee
population where individual performance was effective’

Pensions (audited)

Currently. both Peter Fankhauser and Michael Healy receive a
taxable cash allowance of an amount equivalent to 30 per cent

and 25 per cent of base salary respectively. These allowances are
broadly in ine with the equivalent maximum net contribution for
UK-based employees who are eligible to receive up to 15 per cent of
reference salary from the Company in pension contributiens, which
are paid as gross employer contributions into the Company's defined
contribution pension plan.

FYT7 Group Bonus Plan, {the Plan) (audited)

The maximum Plan opportunity for both Peter Fankhauser and
Michael Healy was 150 per cent of base salary, one third of which is
subject to deferral into shares to be held for two years, subject to
malus [clawback before the vesting datel as described on page 94

As described in the Chairman's statement on page 8/, bonus
outcomes reflect the progress made against 2 number of the
Group's KPIs and progress in the delivery of the strategic and
ongoing transformation of the business Therefore there is an
element of payout against each of the core bonus measures and
rele-specific objectives, as set out in the table on the following page

For the CEQ, the role-specific objectives were partly achieved, (13 per
cent out of 15 per cent) of the maximum bonus oppertunity and 1s
described below.

The role-specific leadership objective is measured by the overall
engagement of colleagues across the Group. underpinned by
rigorous performance management and customer fecus of the
leadership team. As described in the KPIs section on page 32 and in
our people report on page 39, the very high core-index score of 74
per cent was maintained in 2017 resulting in an achievernent of 3 per
cent out of the 5 per cent for this element of the Plan
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The second role-specific objective, lequating to 10 per cent of the For the CFO. achievement against the role-specific objectives was
maximum bonus opportunity) was achieved through the partnershp  inrespect of the implementation of a Board-approved financial plan
entered into with Expedia This partnership gives our customers that delivered tangible steps towards improving the Group's financial
a much bigger chaice of hotels in City and Domestic and delivers position. In December 2016, the Company took advantage of positive
on the Complementary part of our Group-wide strategy that was market sentiment to issue a new €750 million bond due in 2022, with
set out last year. It is a catalyst for restructuring the business a coupon of 6.25 per cent. The proceeds fram this bond were used to
and simplifying systems and processes, so that the focus en core repay two more expensive honds due in 2017 and 2020. As a result,
package holidays can be achieved By using Expedia's superior this refinancing exercise improved the Greup's financial position by
technology. leveraging their global reach. volume and expertise. both lowering the cost of financing and by extending the Group's
the Group will be able to significantly reduce costs and complexity debt maturity profile Accordingly. the Committee has concluded
within the business for the fong-term. This objective was therefore that this refinancing fully satisfies the achievement of this element
fully achieved. (50 per cent) of the CFO's bonus criteria for FYI7.

FY17 Group Bonus Plan, (the Plan) (audited) {Continued)
CEQ - Peter Fankhauser

| Resulting level

f d
FYI7 Threshold Target Stretch Performance {gffn‘::’%
Measures Weighting [20%) {60%) {100%) achieved | opportunity)
o Group underlying T o o
fconstant currency) 35% £290m £330m £350m £312m 14.7%
Core Group Free Cash Flow’ 35% £125m  £200m £244m £305m 35%
- Net Promoter Scoret 5% 4225 43.25 4425 4518 15%
Leadership: Care-Index Stay above
Employee Satisfaction Score external top 30" Maintain Increase by % pt
{Thomas Cook Group) 5% benchmark of 70% at 74% to 75% 74% 3%
Role-specific New substantial > Delivery of partnership
change in the with Expedia: Outcome 100%
Strategic Progress in New Operating > New Operating Model
~ New Qperating Model 10% _E43m £60m  Model direction henefits delivered. £67m  10%
Total level of award as a % of maximum oppartunity 717%
CFG - Michael Healy
Resulting level
of award
Y17 Threshold Target Stretch Performance {of max %
Measures Weighting (20%) (60%) (100%) achieved | opportunity)
Group underlying EBIT
Core {constant currency) 25% £290m  £330m £350m R £3l2m' 105%
Group Free Cash Flow® 25% £1256m  £200m £244m £305m 25%
Either repaying the £200m Bond dug in In December 2016, the Campany issued
June 2017 while ensuring adequate liquidity a new £750m bond due in 2022, with a
Implement a Board- headroom throughout the following winter or coupon of 6.25%. The proceeds were used
Role-specific approved financial Issuing a new Bond with a coupon rate of no  to repay two more expensive bonds due in
p Plan that delvers mare than 7% to refinance and extend the 2017 and 2020 and. as a result. improved the
tangible steps towards Group's maturing liabilities at a lower cost.or  Group's financial position by both lpwering
improving the Group's Agreeing a revised bank facility, consistent  the cost of financing and by extending the
financial position 50% with the Group's revised financial Plan. o debt maturity profile 50%
Total level of award as a % of maximum opportunity 85.5%

1 As disclosed in prior years bonus targets in relatian to Group underlying EBIT are set on a fixed currency bass at the begqinming of the performance penod therefore the achievement used for bonus
purposes 1s different from the achievement stated earlier in the report

2 Group underlying £BIT 15 defined as Earmings before interest and tax excluding exceptignal items measured an a canstant currency basis

3 Group Free Cash Flow 15 defined as Group Cash Flow for the financial year before payments/receipts in respect of tax and payments/receipts associated with exceptional items where exceptional items
include restructuring costs and asset disposals

4 Net Promoter Score (NPS) NPS1s the main customer key performance indigator af the Group It shows the degree of customer loyalty and recommendations by reference to responses frem our
customer feadback survey when asked "How likely would you racommend Thomas Cook to your friends & family? 1t 15 calcutated by taking the percentage of promoters and deducting the percentage
of detractors

Note In erder for there to be any payment under the Plan the two financial hurdles of Group underlying EBIT and Group Free Cash Flow must be achieved
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Long-Term Incentives

The awards made in FY15, vesting in FY18 are subject to three-year performance ending in FYI7 and it is expected that these will not vest
due to the non-achievement of targsts under the Plan. This award is expected to lapse in March 2018, the third anniversary from the date
of award.

Performance conditions for FYI5 PSP awards ‘ We ghting

Threshold levef of | Maximum (evel of Leve] of
vesting (30%) vasting (100%) Outcome vesting
Share price and dividend
Share price 1S measured as the average share price and dividends over
the fixed period of 30 trading days from the release of the pretiminary Estimated
FY17 resuits. 45% 225p 300p <225p 0%
FY17 Group underlying EBIT
Group underlying EBIT excludes exceptional items 30% £453m £548m E330m 0%
FY17 Group cash conversion
Cash conversion is defined as cash flow post-exceptional items, before
capital expenditure/EBITDA. o 25% 70% 80% 64% 0%
0%
This will result In the number of shares vesting for each Executive Director as set out below
Number of shares under Number of shares | Share price on date of Value of shares that
Director Date of grant |  Earliest vesting date award vesting vesting vested
Peter Fankhauser o 12/03/2015 12032018 720,752 _ 0 nia 0
Michael Healy 1210312015 121032018 532,729 0 nia 0

Scheme interests awarded during the financial year {audited)

PSP awards were made to Peter Fankhauser and Michael Healy in FY17 equating to a face value of 165 per cent and 150 per cent of salary
respectively as reported previously in the FY16 report Details of the performance conditions can be found on page 107, with details of the
individual awards shown below:

End of Number of Share price Number of shares

Date of performance shargs |Face value Face value used to recewed if threshold
Directer Type of award Flan award period awarded | of award' of award | calculate award’|  performance achigved?
Peter Fankhauser  Conditional Share Award PSP OV12/2016 30/09/2019 1388.248  165%  EII61269  E0.8365 347062
Michael Healy Conditional Share Award PSP 0i12/2016  30/09/2019 951464 150% £795,900 £0.8365 237866
Notes
| Expressed as a % of base salary at the tmg of award
2 The share price used ta calculate the award was 8385 pence baing the average closing share price of the three days prior to grant
3 Thresheld parfarmance s equal to 25% of maximum award
Payments to past Directors Current Executive Directors’ service contracts
There were no payments made to past Directors during the year. The dates of the service contracts for Peter Fankhauser and

. Michael Healy are 23 February 2015 and 8 May 2012 respectively.
Loss of office payments ‘ ‘ Executive Directors have rolling service contracts terminable

There were no loss of office payments made to past Directors during  in line with the Directors Remuneration Policy The service

the year. contracts are avallable on request for inspection at the Company's
External appointments registered office.

Executive Directors currently do not hold any external appointments.  Michael Healy tendered his resignation and notification of retirement
on 25 September 2017 and 1s currently waorking his six months’ notice
period, with his employment ending on 31 March 2018 Details of

the remuneration arrangements associated with his departure are
shown aon page 104,
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STATUTORY GRAPH

The graph below shows the TSR for holders of Thomas Cook Group plc Ordinary Shares for the nine-year period since 30 September 2008,
measured against the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index These indices were chosen as relevant comparators,
as the Company is a member of both indices, with ane reflecting a broad equity index and the other being specific to the travel sector.

The calculation of TSR 15 in accordance with the relevant remuneration regulations and is broadly the change in market price together with
reinvestment of dividend income This graph shows the value of £100 invested in Thomas Cook Group plc on 30 September 2008 compared
with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index and the FTSE All Share Travel & Leisure Index. The intermediate points are the values
at the Company's financial year ends.

Graph removed

The table below shows the pattern of remuneration of the CEQ during this peried.

|ceo | F¥o9 | FYIC | Py | Friz | FYI3 | s | P | F¥is | Pz |
Peter Fankhauser' na  nla ~ nfa nfa nfa nfa  £4296m  £1209m  £1.837m
) Harriet Green? n/a nfa nfa £717k  F2855m  £1046m £248k nla nia

CEQ single figure -
of remunerafion Sam Weihagen® nfa nfa £153k £1171m nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa

Manny Fontenla-

Novoa* £2996m  £2322m  £1.008m° nfa nfa nfa n/a nfa nfa

Peter Fankhauser nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nla 69% 22% 78%
Group Bonus Plan yarriet Green nia nfa nla nfa 100% 0% 0% nfa nla
payout [as % — - s
maximum Sam Weihagen nja nfa 0% 23% nfa nfa n/a nla nja
opportunity) Manny Fontenla-

Novoa 96% 80% 0% nia nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa

Peter Fankhauser nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa 0% 0% 0%
PSP vesting Harriet Green - nia nfa na - nla nfa See below? nfa nfa
(as % of maximum sam Weinagen nfa nfa 0% 0% nfa nfa nfa nfa nia
opportunity)

Manny Fontenia-

Novoa 68% 0% 0% nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa

The table above shows the prescribed remuneration data {as shown in the left-hand side column) for the Director(s) undertaking the role of
CEG during each of the last nine financial years

Notes:

| Peter Fankhauser was appomted CEO on 26 November 2014 and has been employed in the Group since | May 2001

2 Harriet Green stepped down as CEQ on 26 November 2014 and remasned a Dwrector until 31 December 2014 In addition to the single figure shown a proparuon of Harriat Green's 2012 PSP award vested
fallowing her departura with 4115721 shares vesting under this award

3 Sam Weshagen was appemted CEQ on 3 August 201 and remained in past unul the appointment of Harnel Green on 30 July 2012

4 Manny Fontenla-Navoa stepped down as CEO on 2 August 2011

5 The single figure for FYI} for Manny Fontenla-Novoa excludes fis termination payment which was a tatal of £4 2m in respect of contractual entitlements to base salary pension allowance and benefits
inlieu of notscet

6 Relates to the June 2012 PSP and COIP awards and the September 2012 PSP award representing the full value recerved
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PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN REMUNERATION
COMPONENTS OF THE CEO

The table below sets out the percentage change in the remuneration
of the CEO It also sets out the average percentage change in the
remuneration of other employees in the Group A peer group of
UK-based employees has been selected We have selected this peer
group as the CEQ 1s UK-based and therefore pay movement in this
peer group is subject to similar external market conditions We have
excluded employees subject to long-term collective agreements for
the same reason. in order to ensure that the comparison 1s on a
like-for-iike basis

’ % change in remuneration from FYI6 to FYI7

% change in % change in % change in
base salary benefits'| annual bonus?
CE0 ) 200% 13.5%  248%
Uk-based employees 2.N% 2.16% 104%

Notes:

The main b2nefits prowided to UK-based employees are private health insurance g assurance
travel cangessions and car allpwances Theincrease in benefits for the CEQ 1s a result of
increased premiums on private healthhinsurance ife assurance and the continuation of tax
adwice relating to Peters former gxpatrate arrangement

Inarder ta provide the mest direct comparisen possible the above catculation includes all UK-
hased employees particigaung i the Thamas Cook Bonus Plan which have a significant Group
element to the Plans Bonus payauts in FYIG were 22% for the CEQ and on average 36% for those
in the Group Bonus Plan In FYI7 achievement for the CEQ was 78% and for those wha are Ux-
based and n the Thomas Cook Bonus Plan the average payout level will be 73% The difference
1s caused by the achievement of the UK and Arhine element of the Plans being lower than the
Group achievement

[X)

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY

The table below displays the relative expenditure of the Company
on all employees pay and Shareholder distributions as required by
the Regulations

’ 2016 | 017 ‘ Year-on-year

Em Im % change'
Qverall exbendifl}?dﬁﬁfbup S
employee pay* 863 943 8.5%
Group underlying EBIT? 302 330 8.5%
Shareholders’ distributions 0 8 100%

t Some of the year-on-year increase is attributed ta a benefit from exchange rates The figures
shown in the table are extracted from the Groups financial statements

2 The amounis for Group employees and Directors pay include employer social sacurity payments
3 Group underlying EBIT s shown abave as this continues to be a key performance measure
4 festated F¥15 numbar

STATEMENT OF IMPLEMENTATION OF
REMUNERATION POLICY IN THE FOLLOWING
FINANCIAL YEAR

2018 salary reviews

Salary reviews for the Group are in April each year The Committee
will undertake the annual salary review for the CEO at this time.
with no increase in April 2018 for the new CFO due to the timescales
associated with the appointment

FY18 Group Bonus Plan

FYI8 maximum opportunity for Executive Directors annual bonus waill
remain at 150 per cent of base salary Any payments under the FY18
Plan will be subject to financial hurdles for the Group underlying
EBIT and Group Unlevered Free Cash Flow measures being met

Core measures focus on our customer, profit and cash measures

to drive business performance and growth with role-specific
objectives set to support the delivery of our ‘Customer at our Heart’
strategy through the continued growth of our cwn-brand hotel
offering. delivering on the new partnerships entered into where we
can leverage our brand to tap into new opportunitias for growth,

For FY18. Group Unlevered Free Cash Flow 1s defined as cash flow
before paymentsfreceipts in respect of interest and any cash
amounts associated with acquisitionsfdisposals, payment of
dividends or the refinancing of the Group's bank facilities and bonds

The structure of the £Y18 Plan for the Executive Directors is set
out below:

) Weighting %
overall

CEQ CFO (Michaei Healy) CFO (Bill Scott) opportunity

Group Group Group

Underlying EBIT ~ Underlying EBIT Underlying EBIT 39%

Group Unlevered  Group Unlevered  Group Unlevered

Free Cash Flow Free Cash Flow Free Cash Flow 35%

Net Promoter Net Promoter Net Promoter

Score (NPS)  Score (NPS) Score (NPS) o 15%

Delivery of Refinancing and Delivery of Tour

Strategic Project  CFQ transition Operatar Finance

Benefits (15%) Organisation 10%

Leadership. Leadership:

Succession & Gender Diversity

Engagement & Engagement 5%

Bonus targets are set on a constant currency basis at the start
of the performance period Details of the targets will be disclosed
at the end of the performance period. in the FY18 Directors’
Remuneration Report
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Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The Committee will grant the next award under the PSP following
the announcement of our FY17 results in accordance with the
current Policy. Peter Fankhauser and Bill Scott will each be made
awards equating to a face value of 150 per cent of salary. There will
be no award made to Michael Healy

In line with the Remuneration Pohcy and our previous two PSP
grants. the awards will vest to the extent stretching EPS and
Relative TSR targets (weighted equally) are achieved over a three-
year performance period. Following the end of the vesting period.
awards will be subject to a two-year holding period.

Targets under the award are set out below:

Total Shareholder Return {TSR)} Level of vesting Performance
The Indexed TSR measures the Required
TSR of the Campany relative to Thm?;‘g;g Equal to éhe
the FTSE 250 excluding financial Index
services and commodities over the T(aég% +8% above
A 4 the mndex per
full three-year performance period annum
ending 30 September 2020 Marmum 2% above
(100%) the index per
annum
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) Level of vesting  Performance
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing ————- - Required
the profit or loss attributable Thre?gsoalgd) 10p
to Ordinary Shareholders of
the Company by the weighted
average number of Ordinary
Shares outstanding during the
FY20 in respect of the final year Maximum 18p
of the performance period ending {100%)

30 September 2020

The EPS targets, set on a constant currency basis for the FY18

PSP award have been set by the Commitiee taking into account
multiple considerations. including the Group's overall business
strategy. expectations for future years as incorporated inte our
long-term Business Plan, growth expectations within our sector, and
hustorical performance.

The EPS vesting schedule is non-linear with an intermediate point
The Committee may take into account the impact of any major
restructuring plans (not envisaged when setting the target) when
assessing performance against the EPS target. to ensure the

PSP rewards actions taken by management which are in the best
long-term interests of Shareholders. Details of the intermediate
point will be disclosed retrospectively following the end of the
performance period.

EPS targets ranges for both outstanding awards are shown on
page 107
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CFO TRANSITION ARRANGEMENTS

Michael Healy stands down from the Board and hus role as CFO
with effect fram 31 December 2017 He remains available to Peter
Fankhauser. Bill Scott and the Board to assist with the transition
and will leave employment with Thomas Ccok on 31 March 2018
Michael will be retiring from the Company and will be treated as
a good leaver in respect of his outstanding awards. The leaving
arrangements set out below are in accordance with the Policy
approved by Shareholders at the 2017 Annual General Meeting-

» There are no payments for loss of office

> Salary and benefits will be paid in full on a monthly basis during
the notice period

» The FY17 bonus is disclosed on page 100 One third of this bonus
will be deferred for a period of two years

> The FY18 bonus will be determined by the Committee in November
2018 following the end of the financial year. and will be prorated to
reflect the period employed in the year. One third of the FY18 bonus
will also be subject to deferral for a pertod of twe years however
will be deferred as cash as Michael will not be an employee of the
Group at the time cf grant

> There will be no FY18 PSP award made

> All gutstanding PSP awards will vest at the normal vesting date ie
on the three-year anniversary from grant and will be prorated to
reflect the period employed

> Qutstanding deferred bonus awards will vest in full at the normal
vesting dates, subject to there being ne clawback events occurring
during the vesting period

> Malus and clawback provisions remain in force throughout

After ceasing employment with Thomas Ceok. Michael will continue his
Non-Executive Director roles in Thornas Cook China and Thomas Cook
Money The single consolidated fee for these Board roles will be £80.000
per annum in total. with any additional consultancy fee for advisery
work to the Thomas Cook Group plc paid at a rate of £5000 per day It1s
expected that the latter fees will not exceed £60.000 per annum.

Bill Scott will be appointed as an Executive Director and CFO with
effect from | January 2018. His remuneration for FY18 for the period
in which he is Executive Director will be reported in the FYi8
Directors Remungration Report. The key terms were disclosed via
RNS on 28 September 2017 following the Board's decision to appoint
Bill. and are also summarised below-

> Annual base salary: £420,000: next salary review date April 2019

> Pension 15 per cent contribution into the Thomas Cook defined
contribution pension scheme, or if taken as cash. a taxahle
allowance of 20 per cent of salary

> Car allowance: £12,000 per annum

> Annual bonus- 150 per cent of base salary of which one third is
subject to deferral for a period of two years

> PSP award: 150 per ¢ent of base salary

> Shareholding requirement of 200 per cent of base salary

> Benefits in line with Policy

In addition to existing PSP awards granted within the Policy. 8ilt Scott
also has an existing share award granted to him in December 2016
under the Restricted Share Plan (RSP) The Committee has determined.
in accordance with the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. that this award
will be allowed to continue under the original terms of the Plan



NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Chairman s paid a fee of £275,000 per annum

The Non-Executive Directors are paid an annual basic fee, plus
additional fees for the chairing of Board Committees.

Non-Executive Director fees

Non-Executive Director fees are reviewed periodically to ensure they
remain at an approprate level relative to the market and that they
reflect the skills. expertise and the contribution of the Directors.

it was determined in September 2017 that the fees would remain at

their current levels.

The annual rates of Non-Executive Director's fees for FYI7 are shown

in the table below

Annual fees
Pasition £000
Non-Exacutive Director ) T B0
Additional fee for the Chair of the Audit Committes 20
Additional fee for the Chair of the Remuneration Committes 20
Additiona! fee for the Chair of the Health, Safety &
Environmental Committee 20
Additional fee for the Senior Independent Director 10

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has been appointed pursuant to
a letter of appointment. which 1s available on request for inspection
at the Company's registered office. The appointments under

these letters continue unty the expiry dates set out below unless
terminated for cause or on the period of notice stated below

Date of latest

Director letter of appointment Expiry date | Notice peripd
Frank Meysman ZTMarch 20013 N/A 3 months
Dawn Airey - 21 July 2016 11 April 2019 1 month
Annet Aris 16 March 2017 30 April 2020 1 month
Emre Berkin 13 October 2015 30 October 2018 1 month
Paul Edgechffe- B

Johnson 26 July 2007 25 July 2020 | month
Lesley Knox 23 February 2016 28 February 2019 1 month
Jurgen Schreiber 26 July 2017 25 July 2020 1 month
warren Tucker 22 September 2018 3 October 2019 1 month
Martine Verluyten 16 March 2017 6 May 2020 1 month

Directors’ and former Directors’ share interests (audited)

The following table shows the beneficial interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company:

Beneficial holdings
(Number of shares as at 30 September 2017)

Peter Fankhauser 2,229,376
Michael Healy 1,212,890
Frank Meysman ~ 547000
Dawn Airey 42,000
Annet Aris B e
Emre Berkin -
Paul Edgecliffe-johnson o
Lesley Knox o 46,100
lurgen Schreiber - -
Warren Tucker o 30,800
Martine Verluyten 165.000

From 30 September 2017 to 21 November 2017 there were no changes
to any of the Directors’ beneficial interests in shares
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SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT (AUDITED)

Under our Sharehalding Reguirement Policy. Executive Directors are
required to buitd up within five years of appointment to the Board,
and maintain a minimum shareholding of 200 per cent of base
salary. increased from 100 per cent earlier during the year. Until the
shareholding requirement is met, vested shares cannot be sold.
other than to pay tax in respect of the relevant award

To ensure alignment with Shareholders and to encourage a
share ownership culture across the senior team, members of the
Executive Commuittes are required to build up within five years of
becoming an Executive Committee member, and maintain 50 per
cent of base salary in the Company's shares

Directors’ interests in shares under the DBP and PSP (audited)

Actual
share price at

At
30 September
2016

In line with the Policy. the value of the Directors holding has
been calculated by taking the greater of a) the initial financial
commitment: and b} the market value at 30 September 2017

At 30 September 2017 the shareholding of Peter Fankhauser
and Michael Healy were 449 per cent and 300 per cent of salary
respectively as shown below:

Graph removed

At
30 September
2017

vasting date
of outstanding

Earhest ‘

Date of grant date of grant Granted Released Lapsed awards

Peter Fankhatiser -
performance Share Plan 12/03/20i5 £1486 720752 - - - 720752 12103/2018
W2Ros £113 880102 - - - 880102 112/2018
0iN2/2006 £086 - 1388.248 - - 1388248 011212019
Deferred Bonus Plan 08012018 £119] 183702 - - - 193702  06/0W2018
- 15/02/2017 £0588 - 89,081 - - 89081  3101/2019

Michael Healy i T ’ o

Performance Share Plan 12/03§2015 £1.486 532729 - - - 532729 12/03{2018
/1242015 f13 663520 - - - 663,520 /2018
022006 L0386 - 951,464 - - 951464 011212019
Deferred Bonus Plan 08/01f2018 £1191 150,885 - - - 150,885 06/01/2018
15/02/2017 fo888 - 7368 - - 73168 310112019

There are no sutstanding awards for past Directors
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DETAILS OF SHARE PLANS

Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Under the DBP one third of any bonus payment made to Executive Directors under the Group Bonus Plan is deferred into shares for a period
of two years on a compulsory basis. The DBP awards shown in the previous table represent one third of the FY15 bonus and FYI16 bonus
respectively DBP awards are made at the earliest apportunity following bonus payment date. and are released on the second anniversary of
the actual bonus payment date

Performance Share Plan {PSP}

Under the PSP, participants are awarded a conditional award of shares in Thomas Cook Group plc. Shares under the awards will vest to
the satisfaction of stretching performance conditions measured over three years being met. Performance canditions for awards up to
and including March 2015, were based on absolute share price, Group underlying EBIT and Group Cash Convarsion For subsequent awards,
granted from December 2015 onwards. the performance conditions are Relative TSR and Basic EPS Performance conditions for the
outstanding awards are shown on the following page

Performance Conditions for PSP Awards (audited)

FY14 PSP awards
There were no awards made to Executwe Directors during FY14.

FYI5 PSP awards
The performance measures. targets and performance achieved under the FY15 PSP awards which lapsed during the year are set ocut on
page 101

FY16 PSP awards
The FYl6 PSP awards made to Executive Directors are subject to equally weighted Basic EPS and Relative TSR performance measures as set
out in the table below:

Total Shareholder Return (TSR} Level of vesting Performance Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS)  Level of vesting  Performance
The indexed TSR measures the Required Basic EPS is calculated by dividing Required
TSR of the Company relative to Threshold Equal to the index the profit or loss attributable Threshald 93p
the FTSE 250 excluding financial 130%) to Ordinary Shareholders cf the (30%)
services and commodities aver Company by the weighted average
the full three-year performance Target (60%) +8% above the number of Ordinary Shares —
period ending 30 September ndex per annum outstanding during the FYI8 in Maximum 16 5p
2018 respect of the final year of the (100%)

Maximum +12% above the performance peried. ending 30

{100%)  index per annum September 2018,

FY17 PSP awards
The FYI7 PSP awards made to Executive Directors are subject to equally werghted Basic EPS and Relative TSR performance measures as set
out in the table below:

Total Shareholder Return (TSR)  Level of vesting Performance Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) Level of vesting  Performance
The Indexed TSR maasures the Required Basic EPS is calculated by dividing Required
TSR of the Company relative to Threshold Equal to the index the profit or loss attributable Threshold N2p
the FTSE 250 excluding financial 125%) to Ordinary Shareholders of the [25%)

services and commodities over e Company by the weighted average

the full three-year performance Target +8% above the number of Ordinary Shares

period ending 30 September {B0% index per annum outstanding during the FY19 in Maximum 18.2p
2019. respect of the final year of the (100%)

+12% above the
index per annum

Maximum
(100%!

performance peried. ending
30 September 2019,
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STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING
The table below sets out the results of the votes on the Directors Remuneration Policy and Report at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

Votes for number of [ Proportion of total Yotes against | Praportion of total Total number of Total number of
shares votescast| numberof shares votes cast votes cast votes withiheld

Annual Remuneration Report (2017 Annual General
Meeting) 995505485 7749 289162803 22.5] 1.284668.288 201,701
Rernuneration Policy (2017 Annual General Meeting) 994,036,827 78.32 275,69 .417 21.68 1,269,206,244 15,663,744

The Board acknowledges the views of Shareholders who voted against the above resolutions at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

The Board's aim Is to consult regularly with major Shareholders and achieve the maximum possible suppart for all proposals On this
basis. the Board consulted with a number of key Shareholders and proxy advisory bodies at the start of the 2017 financial year. and agamn
in the weeks leading up to the Annual General Meeting This showed that there was misalignment with a small number of institutional
Shareholders and was a serious concern to the Board. Therefore, we istened to the feedback which are set out below. and took the
following actions:

Policy Review and SSIP {Remuneration Policy Resolution)

A number of Shareholders raised coencerns n relation to the SSIP. From the feedback. it was clear that concern centred on the level of
disclosure in respect of potential strategic objectives and the maximum potential award level. It also became clear that views were split
with no clear consensus on the issue amongst Shareholders.

The SSIP was put in place to cater for exceptional circumstances that would warrant an alternative long term incentive plan. The Committee
did not make use of the SSIP in FY17 and has no need to in FY18. In response to Shareholder concerns following the AGM the Board made the
following commitments.

> The Committee would use the SSIP following consultation and with the support of our major Sharehslders and.
> The maximum opportunity under the SSIP.1f it were used, would be capped so that it would not exceed that of the PSP [ie 200% of salary)

A revised Policy has not been presented back to Shareholders for approval However, the current approved Policy has been updated to reflect
the above commitments

Leng-Term Incentive Plan Target Disclosure (Remuneration Report Resolution)

Some Shareholders wanted to see EPS targets under the PSP disclosed prospectively. The need to provide Sharehelders with assurance that
the PSP is based on stretching targets that drive strong performance and have a direct positive impact on Company performance, and thus
an increase in Shareholder value, is clear

Up to and including the FYI7 award granted in December 2016, £PS targets had been explicitly and directly linked to the business plan.

This made them price sensitive. However, following Shareholder feedback. as dascribed earlier in this report the Committee has developed

a new methodology for setting targets that 1s based on a number of other factors and does not directly link to the business plan This new
methodology has enabled the praspective disclosure of EPS target ranges for the FYI8 PSP grant in the FY17 Birectors’ Remuneration Report.

There are also two outstanding awards where EPS targets have not been previously disclosed In the commitment made to Shareholders to
provide greater transparency. the FYI7 Directors’ Remuneration Report has also disclosed target ranges for these two awards

Finally. the maximum size of awards under the PSP is 200% of salary but the normal award to Executive Directors is 150% of salary

In December 2016. Peter Fankhauser, CEQ was granted an award of 165% of salary under this provision to incentivise his continued leadership.
drive and commitment he demonstrates and the profitable growth he is expected to deliver over the long-term. Some Shareholders felt there
was not a strong encugh rationale to support this For FYI8, the award for Peter Fankhauser will be set at the normal award level of 150% of
base salary.

I would like to take this final opportunity to assure you. our Shareholders that we take seriously your views and act upen them, which |
hope you can see we have demonstrated this year.

This Annual Repart on remuneration has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by.

WARREN TUCKER

CHAIRMAN, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE L/\_/\ﬁ
21 November 2017 /
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

In our epinion,

> Thamas Cook Group plc's Group financial statements and parent
company financial statements (the financial statements) give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 30 September 2017 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended-

the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with IFRSs as adcpted by the European Union.

the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Evropean Union as applied
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and, as regards the Group
financiat statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation.

~

~

~

What we have audited

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statements
of Thomas Cook Group pic for the year ended 30 September 2017
which comprise

Group PRarent company

Group Income statement for the year
then ended

Compary balance sheat as at
30 September 2017

Group statement of comprehzansive
incorme for the year then ended

Carnpany cash flow statement for the
year then ended

Group cash flow statement for the year
then ended

Company statement of changes in equity
for the yaar then ended

Group balance sheet as at
30 September 2017

Related Notes 1to 20 to the fnancial
statements including a summary of
aignificant accounting policies

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and
viability statement

We have nothing to report in respect ¢f the foliowing information in the
Annual Report. in relation to which the ISAs{UK) require us to report to
you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to-

> the disclosures in the Annual Report set out on pages 56 to 59 that
describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed

or mitigated.

the Directors confirmation set cut on page 72 in the Annual Report
that they have carred out a robust assessment of the principal risks
facing the entity, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance. solvency or liquidity,

the Directors’ statement set cut on page 72 in the financial
statements about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the going cencern basis of accounting in preparing them, and therr
identification of any material uncertainties to the entity s abllity to
continue to do so over a period of atieast 12 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements,

whether the Directors’ statement in relation to geing concern
required under the Listing Rufes im accordance with Listing Rule

9 86R(3) s materially Inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in
the audit. or

the Directors explanation set out on page 72 in the Annual Report

as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity. over
what pericd they have done so and why they consider that period

to be appropriate. and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the entity will be able to centinue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period

of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary gualifications or assumptions

Overview of our audit approach

v

~

w

v

Group statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended

Related Notes 1 to 34 to the financial
statements, ncluding a summary af
significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framewark that has been applied in their
preparation Is applicable law and intarpational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurgpean Unian and. as regards
the parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions cf the Companies Act 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Audrting (UK) (SAs (UK) and applicable law Our responsibikties under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report below.
We are independent of the Group and Company in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied
to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilitias in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
approgriate to provide a basis for our gpinion

» Revenue recognition due ta the susceptibility to management
overnide through inappropriate manual journals

» Leased arcraft maintenance provisions

» Prowision for iliness claims and associated recoveries from suppliers

» Classification of separately disclosed items

» Carrying value of goodwifl

» Recoverability of deferred tax assets

Key audit
matters

Audit
scope

» We performed an audit of the complete financial information of 20
componerits and audit procedures on speciic balances far a further
17 components

» The compenents where we performed full or specific audit
procedures accounted for 85% of underlying profit from operations
and 86% of revenue

» The compenents subject to rewew scope procedures coverad the
remainder (19% of underlying profit from operations and 14% of revenue)

Materiality > Overall Group matenahty of £15mwhich represents 5% of underlying

profit from operations

Key audit matters

Kaey audit matters are those matters that. in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current peried and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to

fraud) that we identified These matters included those which had

the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit: and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC
CONTINUED

‘ Risk Our response to the risk Xey observations communicated

to the Audit Committee

1o

Revenue recognition due to the susceptibility to management override through inappropriate manual journals {£€9,007m, FY16 restated; £7,810m)
Refer to the Audit Commuttee Report {paga 75) Accounting policies (page 1271 and Mots 4 of the Consolidated Financial Statements {pages 130 to 133)

The accounting for ravenue s
susceptible to management overnde
through the recording of manual

top side journal entries either m the
underlying ledgers or via conselidation

We understood the Group's revenue recogrition policies and how they are apphed

We dentified a change in the application of the accounting policy for Tevenue recognition
on third-party commission income in the UK during the year

We have assessed the design of key cantrols and where apprepriate, tested the cperating
effactiveness of cortrols aver reverug and the financial statement close process

For a number of reporting units. as part of our averall revenue reconnition testing

we used data analysis tools on 100% of revenwe transactions in the year to test the
carrelation of revenue to cash receipts to venfy the occurrence of revenue For those
In-scope businesses where we did not use data analysis tools we performed appropriate
alternative substantive procedures over revenue recognition including tests of detaits for
a sample of revenue transactions

Other audit procedures specifically designed to address the risk of management overrde
af controls included journal entry testing placing parucular focus on manual journal
antrigsn revenue

Using data exiracted fram the accounting system we tested the appropriateness of
Journal entries impacting revenue, as well as other adjustments made in the preparation
of the financial statements

We performed cut-off tesuing for a sample of revenue transactions around the period end
data to check that they were appropnately recorded as revenue or revenue receved in
advance based on the date of trave! and other attnbutes of package holidays

We performed full and specific scope audit procedures over this risk area in 28 locatiens
which covered 86% of the Group s revenue

Based on the audit procedures performed
wa thd nat identify evidence of matenal
misstatements in the revenue recogrised
In the current year The impact of the
change in application of the accounung
pohcy was not material to the

finaneial statements

Qur Journal entry testing procedures did
not identify any instances of Inappropnate
managemant overnde In the recognition
of revenue across the Group

Leased aircraft maintenance provisions (E366m, FY16 restated: £330m)
Refar to the Audit Committes Report Ipage 75 Accounting pohicies (page 127) and Note 25 of the Consolidated Financal Statements {pages 155 t4 156)

The Group recogmises pravisions for
maintenance obligatians in relation

to leased arcraft The calculation

af aircraft mantenance provisions
requires complex judgements and
estimates to be made based on
forecast arcraft utiisation, estimates
of future mantenance costs. planned
rallover and renewal of the aircraft
feet Inadditan judgement is required
to determing the appropriate rate to
discqunt the provisian

We have evaluated the methcdolagy and key assumptions adepted by Management inits
calculation of arcraft maintenance provisions and walked through the contrals over the
process This involved the following procedures
> Understanding the pracess and testing the anthmetical accuracy and integrity of
the data in the provision madels
» Challenging the consistency and reasenableness of the assumptions adopted
This included a review of discount rates, testing of source data in the model to
nformation from lessers and comparson of assumptions Lo contract terms
» Testing the cost estimates of future mantenance gvents to the latest rate reviews
0 contracts, tenders or historical cast experience
» For the uming of future maintenance, we corroborated the maintenance interval mits
to the manufacturer's information and tested the actual flight hours to the technicat logs
and the forecast flying hours to the forecast flying hour plans
We have tested the completeness of the provisions by comparison to fieet and financing
registers and reviewing lease agreements for hand back abligations
We assessed the discount rate applied ta the provision Using our valuation specialists,
we detarmined the appropriate rate to be applied to this provision by reference to IFRS
guidance in this areg

Wa concluded the assumptions within the
models used to cafculate the provision
before discounting as at 30 September
2017 were appropriate and supported by
underlying evidence

We concluded an adjustment for credit
risk that had beer applied to the nsk-free
discount rate was nol required This also
apphed to previous years An adjustment
o correct tnis was recorded as a prior
year adjustment See Note 33

Provision for illness claims and associated recoveries from suppliers (lliness provision £24.4m, FY16:19.9m;

Recoveries from suppliers £20.6m, FYI6 {restated): £8.0m)
Refer to the Audit Committee Report (page 751 Accounting policies (page 1268 and Note 25 of the Consoiidated Financial Statements (pages 155 to 158}

There has been a significantincrease
In the number of Winess-related clams
from customars in the UK Significant
Judgement 1s required in determining
the level of provision required
particularly in respect of underiying
assumptions such as the total amount
of potential campensation. probable
amount to be settled in respect of
claims and the likelthood of having

a valid defence agamst such claims

In addition, there Is a risk that expected
recoveries from supphers in respect of
such claims are recogmised when such
income 1% net virtually certam

We have evaluated the methodalogy and key assumptions adopted by Management

I 1ts cafculation of provision for iness claims and walked through the controls over

the process This included

» Challenging the cansistency and reasonableness of the assumptions adopted

» Testing the anthmetical accuracy and wntegrity of the data in the provision madels

> Testing manual adjustments to provisions to understand ther rationale and ensure
that they are apprapriate

In respect of recoveries we have challenged whether appropriate evidence exists to

support the recoveries such as acknowledgement from a hotel that they were at fault and

intend to reimburse the Group. or  signed agreementn place in relation to that claim

In respect of recoveries we identified that the contractual terms indicates that hability

rasts with the hotehers We have sought evidence that signed contracts are in place with

hoteliers In instances where signed contracts were not avallatle or where the recovery

IS with parties that are not hotels we have sought add tional enderce that there 1s

atknowledgement of hability

Dur year-end audit procedures hd not
identify any material misstatement
of prowisions for liness clams and
the assumptions In the underlying
calculations were assessed

as reasonable

We dentified that the recoverabihty of
cartain balances from suppliers was not
virtually certain at the balance sheet date
We concluded that these did not result in
a material misstatement to the financial
statements as a whole
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Risk Qur response 1o the risk Key observatiens communicated
to the Audit Committee

Classification of separately disclosed items (£140m, FY16 (restated): £128m)
Refer ta the Audit Cammittee Repart [page 75! Accounting policies [pages 127 to 1281 and Note 7 of the Consohdatad Financial Statements lpages 135 to 136)

The Group separately discloses items We have reviewed the separately discloset rtems to understand the rationale for the Inlight of the guidalings published by

In the income statement that are separate classification and have challenged the appropnatengss by confirming they ars ESMA we recommend that Management
canstdered nor-recurnng and matenal  matenial and non-recurring to warrant separate disclosure continues to focus on the nature of
either because of their size of Nature e compared separately disclosed costs Incurred with the budgats approved by the Boarg  8¥penses classified as exceptional
Separately disclosed wems are to ensure consistency with the plan We have also assessed consistency with the nature and the disclosures provided in the

rat defingd by IFRS and therefare of separately disclosed items reported in the prior year fmdanma\ statedments Therehws significant
considerable judgamsnt 1s required We cha'lenged the treatment of a number of items of expenditure that we considered u ger?ent n determmmg the apfpmpn:;e
in determining the appropriateness would be mare appropriately classified as underlying fype of expenditure to separate from the

Groups undertying performance

We challengzd the dassification of
certain items of expenditure recorded
as separately disclosed stams which wa
believe should be recarded i underlying
profit and concluded that those that
remained unadjusted were not material

of such classification Consistancy in
itemns treated as separately disciosed
1S Impartant to mantain comparability
aof reporting yaar-on-yaar

We have reviewed the enhanced disclosures regarding items classified as separately
disclesed and conciude they provide further transparency on the nature of these items
whith provides clarity on those items excluded from undertying performance of the Group

Carrying value of goodwill (£2,627m, FY16: £2,595m)
Refer to the Audit Committee Rapart|page 75) Accounting pohcies {page 1231 and Nate 12 of the Consohdated Financial Statemerts {pages 139 to 140)

The Group holds significant goctwall We understood the methodology applied by Management in performing itsimparment test  We agreed with Management s cenclusion
an the balance sheet The Graups for each of the relevant CGUs that no iImpairments were required based
business s gzograptucally dvarse and  por i (GUs we caloulated the degree to which the key mputs and assumptions wouid on the results of our work

the changing geopolitical epvironmental  peed to fluctuate before an mparment was triggered and considered the bkelihood of this — Gf the Group's goodwill that relating
and economic landscape will CONtNUE  eeirring We performed our own sensitivities on the Group's forecasts and determmed  to the Avling CGU1s most sensitive

t0 'd”ﬂuelf(‘j’ie 'JUS‘HE‘SS Deffﬂlmanfe whether adeguate headroom remained toreasonable possible changes in
and could im r : f
uld impzct the carrying vakie We performed detared testing to critically assess and corraberate the key inputs to the key assumptions
af goadwill ° |
The amnual imparment test of valuations, ncluding Sensitwities have not been disclosed
Ogdawmuﬁwcluges several key areas > analysing the historical accuracy of budgets to actual results ta determing whether n the Intangible assets note to
g Y forecast cash flows are reliable based on past expenence, the Group financial statements as

of estimation and judgement over the
future performance of the bustness
and specific assumptions such as

» warking with our internaf specialists corroborating the driscount rate used by obtaining Mamagememkbeheve any reasonable
the underlying data used in the calculation and benchmarking it against market data snd  changen assumptions would not cause

animpairment We cancur that this

discount rates and terminal growth comparable erganisations, and s reasonable
rates Changes to these assumptions > validating the growth rates assumed by comparing them to economic and €
of adverse performance could have Industry forecasts
a significant impact on the available We assessed the disclosures in Note 12 aganst the requiremments of 145 36 Imparment of
headraam and any imparment that may Assets n partcutar in respect of the reguirement to disclose further sensitivities for CGUs
be required where a reasanably possible change in a key assumption would cause an impairment

The audit procedures performed to address this risk were performed by the Group

audit team

Recoverability of deferred tax assets (E216m, FY16: £228m)
Refer to the Audit Commuttee Report [page 751 Accounting pohcies (page 1281 and Note 24 of the Consolidated Financial Statements (pages 154 to 1551

Judgement |5 required in asgessing Management apples judgement in assessing the deferred tax assets to be recognised We have considered the recagnition
the recoverability of the deferrad in each Jurisdiction, based on the applieation of tax law and probabiity that sufficient penod aver which deferred tax assets
tax assets based on the likelihood of taxable profits are availlable willbe recovered and concluded thay
taxable profits ansing in the future We performed detailed testng 1o assess the recoverability of deferred tax assets wiere reasonable
periods and the lkelihood that the tax  reeogrused which included We noted full recogmition of deferred tax
assets will be utihsed > testing Management's pracess to prepare the deferred tax calculation. assets on brought forward losses and
> 835@55Ing the penod over which deferred tax assets will be utihsed and corroborating ather temporary differences n Spain,
to supporting forecasts of future profits resulting in an increase in the period over
> testing adjustments made to forecast profits required to assess the level of forecast wihich they will be recovered
taxable profits available to support the recoverabiity of the deferred tax asset, and We concur with the basis of recogrition
> audited Individual transactions that gave rise to additional deferred tax assets due to supporting taxable profit forecasts

recagnised or utihsed during the year
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC
CONTINUED

The risks of material misstatement to the financial statements as

set out in the table above differ from those reported by Thomas Cook
Group plc's previous external auditor. We have included provisions

for illness claims and associated recoveries from suppliers due to

the significant increase in iliness claims in the UK observad during

the current financial year which we considered increased the risk

of material misstaterment In addition. we have included revenue
recognition, including the risk of management override as a key

audit matter as we view revenue as an area susceptible to material
misstatement During the course of preparing the financial statements
in the current year the Company identified a number of prior year
adjustments which have been adjusted and are disciosed in Note 33to
the financial statements in the course of our audit we have confirmed
the appropriateness of the adjustments made

We have omitted the following areas in the auditor’s report that were
included i the prior year. recoverability of hotel prepayments. defined
benefit pensions valuation, treasury operations and use of derivative
mstruments, and going concern. Whilst we agreed that these were
areas of increased risk for our audit they were not assessed as being
areas subject to significant Management judgement or areas where
there were significant findings in our audit.

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT
Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit nisk, our evaluation of materiality and our
allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope far
each entity within the Group. Taken together, this enables us to form
an opinion on the conselidated financial statements. In determining
our audit scope. we take into account size (based on contribution

to Group underlying profit from operations and Group revenuel risk
profile {including country risk, risks from the complexity of operations
and accounting treatment and judgements, controls findings and risk
arising from change in the period including changes io IT systems and
key management personnel] and the number of significant accounts
based on performance materiality and any other known factors when
assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity.

The Graup structures its operations around its three geographical tour
operators and group airline, with sub-consolidations being performed
at the tour operator locations. Our approach to scoping has been at
the individual reparting unit level and the Group team has direcied

the sub-scoping in each of the segments to ensure that we have the
appropriate level of involverment to enatle us to obtain sufficient audit
evidence as a basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole.

In assessing the risk of material misstatemnent to the Group financial
statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage
of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 135
reporting compenents of the Group, we selacted 37 compenents
covering entities within the four reporting segments outiined

above, which represent the principal reporting units within the
Group This constituted 12 country component teams and the group
engagement team and included one non-EY component auditor to
perform full scope procedures over one reporting unit and specific
scope procedures over accounts we concluded were significant at one
further reporting unit.

THOMAS COOK GROUPPLC Annhual Report and Accounts 2017

Of the 37 components selected. we performed an audit of the complete
financia! information of 20 components { fuli scope components} which
were selected based on their size or risk characteristics For the
remaming 17 components (specific scope components), we performed
audit procedures on specific accounts within that component that

we considered had the potential for the greatest impact on the
significant accounts in the financial statements either because of

the size of these accounts or their risk profile. The audit scope of
these companents may not have included testing of ail significant
accounts of the component but will have contributed to the coverage
of significant accounts tested for the Group

The fuli and specific scope reporting components where we performed
audit procedures accounted for 85% of the Group's underlying profit
from operations and 86% of the Group's revenue.

Of the remaining 98 components that together represent 15% of

tha Groups underlying profit from operations, none are individually
greater than 5% of the Group's underlying profit from operations

ar indwidually greater than 2% of the Group's revenue For these
cemponents, we performed cther procedures. including analytical
review. review of the legal register and discussions with the in-house
legal counsel, testing of unusual, one-off transactions and testing of
consolidation journals, intercompany eliminaticns and foreign currency
translation recalculations to respond to any potential nisks of material
misstatement to the Group financial statements.

Thomas Cook Group plc's previous external auditor gerformed full
and specific scope audit procedures on components accounting for
75% of the Group's underlying profit from operations and 80% of the
Group's revenue

Involvement with component teams

In establishing our overall approach to the Group audit, we determined
the type of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit engagement team, or by
compenent auditors from other EY global network firms operating
under our instruction Of the 20 full scope components, audit
procedures were performed on two of these directly by the Group
audit team, 17 by component auditors of the EY global network

and one by a non-EY component team For the 13 specific scope
components where the work was performed by component auditors,
we determined the appropriate level of involvement to enable us to
determing that sufficient audit evidence had been obtained as a basis
for our opinion on the Group as a whole,

During the current year's audit cycle. the Senior Statutory Auditor

or other members of the Group audit team visited the component
teams in Northern Europe. UK and Continental Europe where sub-
consolidations of results within that region are performed. 15 of the full
scope and specific scope reporting units are audited by these teams
In addition, the Senior Statutory Auditor visited the Airlines Germany
team. In addition to our visits the Senior Statutory Auditor and other
members of the Group team attended the year-end closing meetings
with local management,



These visits involved meeting with our component team to discuss and
direct its audit approach. reviewing and understanding the significant
audit findings in respense to the risk areas mcluding leased aircraft
mamtenance provisions. provisions for illness claims and revenue
recognition, holdng meetings with lecal management and obtaining
updates on local requlatory matters The primary team interacted
reqularly with the component teams where appropriate during varnous
stages of the audit, reviewed key working papers and were responsible
for the scope and direction of the audit process. This. together with the
additional procedures performed at Group level. gave us appropriate
evidence for our opinion on the Group financial statements

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the
audit. in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit
and in forming our audr opinion

Materiality

The magnitude of an onussion or misstatement that, individually or in
the aggregate. could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of the users of the financial statements Matenahty provides
a basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures

We determined materiality for the Group to be £15m. which is 5% of
underlying profit from operations. We believe that underlying profit
from operations is the most relevant performance measure to the
stakehofders of the Group

Starting ba Adjustments Materiality

» Profit from » Separately disclosed » Underlying profit

operations - items impacting profit from operaticns
£23Im for the from operations - £99m £322m excluding
year ended » Less amortisation of amartisation

30 September business combination of business

2007 intangibles - (E8m) combination

> See Note 7 to the
fmancial statements

intangibles {basis
for materiality)

» Materiality of £16m
{5% of materiality
basis)

The above materiality is our reassessment based on the final resuits
for the year. Our audit was conducted at the lower preliminary
materiality of £15m.

Performance materiality

The application of materiality at the individual account or balance
level It is set at an amount to reduce to an approprately lows fevel
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected
misstaternents exceeds materiality

Cn the basis of our risk assessments. together with our assessment
of the Group's overall control environment. our Judgement was that
performance materiality was 50% of our planning materiality. namely
£75m. reflecting that this is our first period as auditor of Thomas Cock
Group plc

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining
audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts Is
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality
The performance materiality set for each component 1s based on
the relative scale and risk of the compenent to the Group as a whole
and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that component.
in the current year. the range of performance materiality allocated to
components was £im to £3.8m

Reporting threshold

An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as
being clearly trival

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all
uncorrected audit differences in excess of £075m whichis set at 5% of
planning materiality, as well as differences below that thresheld that.
in our view, warranted repoerting on qualitative grounds

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements aganst both the
guantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of
other relevant gualitative considerations in farming our opinion

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report including the Overview, the Strategic Report and the Directors
Report set out on pages | to 108, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon The Directors are responsible for the
other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and. except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this
report. we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so,
consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated If we ident/fy such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we

are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If. based on the work we have performed. we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the cther information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accaunts 2017
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{n this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our
responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information and to repert as uncorrected material misstatements of
the other information where we conclude that those items meet the
following conditions:

> Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 73 - the
statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual
Report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair balanced
and understandable and provides the information necessary for
Shareholders tg assess the Group's performance, business model
and strategy. 1s materially inconsistent with cur knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

Audit Committee reporting set out on page 74 -the section
describing the work of the Audit Commitiee does not appropriately
agdress matters communicated by us to the audit commitlee; or
Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code set qut on page 55 - the parts of the Directors’
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the Company's
compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with
Listing Rule 98 10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the UK Cerporate Governance Code

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinicn. the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repart to be

~

audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of

the audit

* the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements. and

> the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the
parert company and its environment obtained in the course of the

audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic

Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters n
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us Lo report to you

Iif. in our opinion

> adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent,

company. or returns adequate fer our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us: or

> the parent company financial statements and the part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agresment
with the accounting recards and returns; or

> certain disclosures of Directors remuneration specified by law are

not made: or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we reguire

for our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC
CONTINUED

Responsibilities of Directors

As explaned more fully in the Directors respensibllities statement set
out on pages 85 to 66, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a

true and fair view in accordance. and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements the Directors are responsible

for assessing the Group and Company's ability to cantinue as a going
concern disclosing. as apphicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Managemenit either
intends to hiquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whethear the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report

that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance 1S a high level

of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs [UK) will always detact a material misstatement
when it exists, Misstatemerits can arise fram fraud or error and are
considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit, in respect to fraud, are to identify and
assess therisks of material misstatement of the financial statements
dug to fraud. to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the assessed risks of material misstaternent due to fraud, through
designing and implementing appropriate responses. and to respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.
However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection
of fraud rests with both thase charged with governance of the entity
and management

Our approach was as follows:

> We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory
framewarks that are applicatile to the Group and determined that
the most significant frameworks which are directly relevant to
specific assertions in the financial statements arg those that relate
to the reporting framework (IFRS. the Companies Act 2008 and the
UK Corporate Governance Code} and the relevant tax compliance
regulations in the jurisdictions in which the Group cperates.

In addition. we concluded that there are certain significant laws

and regulations which may have an effect on the determination

of the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements being
the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority. and those requlations
relating to health and safety and employee matters.

We understood how Thamas Ceok Groug plc is complying with those
frameworks by making enguiries of Management. enterprise risk and
internal audit, those responsible for legal and compliance procedures
and the Group legaf counsel. We corroborated our enguiries through
our review of Board minutes, papers provided to the Audit Committee
and Board and correspondence received from regulatory bodies

v




> We assessed the susceptibility of the Group's financial statements to
materal misstatement. including how fraud might occur by meeting
with Management from various parts of the business to understand
where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud We also
considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made
by Management to manage earnings or influence the perceptions of
analysts. We considered the programmes and controls that the Group
has established to address risks identified. or that otherwise prevent,
deter and detect fraud, and how senior management manitors those
programmes and controls Where the risk was considered to be
higher, we performed audit procedures tc address each identified
fraud risk These procedures included testing manual journals and
were dasigned to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements were free from fraud or error.

Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to
identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations identified in
the paragraphs above. Our procedures involved journal entry testing.
with & focus on manual consolidation journals and journals indicating
large or unusual transactions based on our understanding of the
business enquiries of legal counsel Group management, enterprise
risk and internal audit, segment management and Management at full
and specific scope entities; and focused testing. as referred to in the
Key audit matters section above

This report I1s made solely to the company's members, as a body. in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006

Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company's members those matters we arerequired to state to them
in an auditor's report and for ng other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Company and the Company's members as a body. for
our audit work, far this report, or for the opinions we have formed

A further descrigtion of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council s website at
https ffwww frc org uklauditorsresponsibilities This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters we are required to address

> Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were
appointed by the Company on 9 February 2017 to audit the financial
statements for the year ending 30 September 2017 and subsequent
financial periods.
The period of total urunterrupted engagement including previous
renewals and re-appointments is one year. covering the year ending
30 Septemnber 2017

> The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Group or the Company and we remain
independent of the Group and the Company in conducting the audit.

> The audit opinion 4s consistent with the additional report to the
Audit Committee

RICHARD WILSON
SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP Statutory Auditor
London

21 November 2017

Notes:

1 The maintenance and itegnty of the Themas Cook Group plc website 1s the respoansibility of
the Directors the work carred out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these
matters and accerdingly the auditars azcept no responsibility for any changes that may have
oceurrad to the financial statements since they ware imually prasented on the website

2 Legrslationinthe U erming the preparation and dissemination of financal stataments may
differ fram lagisk other junsdictions

(D

A
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 30 September 2016

Year ended 30 September 2017 Restated”
Separately Separately
Underlying | disclosed items Underlying | disclosed items
resuits {Note 7} Total resuits [Note 7) Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
a]tmLuTg operamans o ) o
Revenue o 4 9007 - 9007  7&G - 7810
Cost of provxd_ihg tourism services (7.012) {2) (7.004) {5,981) 9} (5990)
Gross profit 1995 (2] 1993 1629 B 1820
Personnel expenses 5 (o7s) 28) 1.003) (8821 {33 (921]
Depreciation and amortisation 2113 (222) - (229 (2049 - {204)
Net operating expenses 6 (468) 52 5200 (44D ey 482
Loss on disposal of assets - (9) ] - (10) (10}
Amaortisation of business combination intangibles 7 - 18) (8} - {6) [6)
Profit from operations 330 (99) 231 302 {105} 197
Share of results of joint venture and associates [ (| - m - )
Net Investment income - o - - b - 1
Finance mcome ) 4 - 4 6 - G
Finance costs 8 147) (a1} (188) (148) (23) (169)
Profit before tax 186 a0] 48 162 i128) 34
Tax 9 (34) (33]
profit for the year 12 1
Attributable to,
Equity holders of the parent o 13 4
Non-contralling interests - I | I
12 1
Basic and diluted earnings per share (pence) 1l 0.8 03

= For detalls of restaternant please see Note 33

THCOMAS COCK GROUP PLC Annucl Repert and Accounts 2017

The notes on pages 122 to 166 form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
GROUP STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended
Year ended 30 September
30 September 2016
2017 Restated™
Motes £m £m
Profit for the year o . 12 !
f Other comprehensive income and expense L
! Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: o
Actuarial gansillosses) on defined benefit pension schemes 30 114 (144)
Tax on actuarial gams and losses ) o ) ) 2419 ol 30
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or foss:
Foreign exchange translation losses (27) {15)
Fair value gains and losses e
(Losseslgans deferred for the year (20} 53
Tax on {losses){gains deferred for the year 24{9 5 5
(Gains)/losses transferred ta the income statement 2l (60) 105
Tax on (gains)/losses transferred to the income statement 2419 (5) (21}
Total net other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (21} 13
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year (9 14
Attributable to
Owners of the parent {8} 17
Non-controlling interests ] {31
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ]} 14

* For details of restatement please see Note 33
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 201/

GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended
Year ended 30 September
30 September 2016
017 Restated*
Notes £m Em
Profit before tax - L 46 34
Adjustments for:
Net finance costs i 184 163
Net investment income and share of results of joint ventures and associates 1 -
Increase in provisions o - 20 1
Depreciation. amortisation and imparrment 238 216
Loss on disposal of assets 9 10
Share-based payments o R R
Addtional pension contributions (28) {29)
Interest received ) ) L 6
Decreasellincreasel in working capital:
inventories - o Lt
Recevables (1) (88)
Payables 164 103
Cash generated from operations 533 410
Income taxes paid {37 {15}
Net cash from operating activities 496 395
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment o 7 9
Invastment In joint ventures and assoclates o 14 - 3)
Purchase of tangible assets (132} 7
Purchase of intangible assets (74) 189)
Net cash used in investing activities (199) {200)
Dvidends paid to non-controlling interests (32) {4)
Dividends paid o {8l -
Interest paid 144) 18]
Draw down of borrowings 1.011 157
Repayment of borrowings - {948) (34Q)
Payment of facility set-up fees ] (10) -
Repayment of finance lease obligations (44) (38)
Net cash used in financing activities (175) {360)
Net (decreaselfincrease in cash and cash equivalents B 122 {165}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1234 1286
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 43 13
Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at end of year 1,399 1234

* For details of restatement please see Note 33
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AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP BALANCE SHEET

Restated*
30 September 30 September
2017 2016
Notes Em £€m
Non-current assets . i
! Intangible assets 12 3136 3077
¢ Praperty, plant and equipment. ) B o
- aircraft and aircraft spares 13 581 627
- other o ] 13 139 221
Investments in joint ventures and associates 14 6 3
i Qther investments 1 1
' Deferred texassets - T 228
Pension asset 0 123 52
Trade and other recevables ) _ e 65 58
| Derwative financial instruments 2 6 Y
i 4,273 4298
Current assets
Inventories 15 42 43
Tax assets B S L 1 4
Trade and other receivables 16 135 677
Derivative financial instruments Vi 56 145
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1407 1776
2241 2645
Non-current assets held for sale 32 101 -
Total assets 6.615 6943
Current liabilities _ N
Retirement benefit obligations 30 (9) i8]
Trade and other payables ) 18 (2.343) Al
Borrowings 19 (245) (891)
Obligations under finance leases o 20 (39) 142)
Tax habilities {57) {40)
Revenue received in advance {1,355) 01.251)
Short-term provisions . B o 25 (168) 139
Derivative fimancial instruments 2 {109) (83)
(4,325) {4633)

* For detalls of rastatement please see Note 33
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

CONTINUED

Restated”|
30 September 30 September
206
Notes £m £m
Nan-current liabilities ) B B
Retirement benefit obllgation; 30 (439) {501)
Trade and other payables B 18 7 R 109)
Long-term borrowings ) 19 hoan (847)
Gbligations under finance leases _ 2 L1 (1)
Non-current tax labilties B [t} {31)
Deferred tax habilities 24 {61) (51)
Long-term provisions 25 (307) o
Derivative financial instruments 2 {9} (3}
[2,010) {1.984)
Total liabilities {6.335) 16.617)
Net assets 280 316
Equity
Called-up share capital 26 69 69
Share premium account 3 o 524 s
Merger reserve ) 1.547 1547
Hedging and translation reserves _ 8 s
Capital redémption reserve 8 3
Accumulated losses - . (1.867) (1.950)
Investment in own shares (8} 18)
Equity attributable to equity owners of the parent o 281 305
Non-controlling interests U} 2
Total equity 280 326

i * For details of restatement please see Note 33

Signed on hehalf of the Board

MICHAEL HEALY
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GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The financial statements on pages 116 to 166 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 November 2017



FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share cap:tal j ‘ Attributable to -
and share Other Hedging Translatien | Accumulated | equity holders controlling Total
premium TESETVES reserve reserve lesses | of the parent interests equity
£m £m £€m fm £m £m Em Em
As at 30 September 2015 583 1537 02 a0 1.778) 340 28 368
Adjustment on correction of error - - - - (53) (53} - {53)
At 30 September 2015 restated L 593 1,537 (102) 40 hes 287 28 315
Profit for the year as reported - - - - 12 12 13 9
Adjustment for correction of error - - = - @ @ - {8
Restated profit for the period 4 4 (3) 1
Other comprehensive incomefloss): - B ) o _
Foreign exchange translation losses - - - (15) - {15) - (15)
Actuarial losses on defined benafit pension
schemes (net of tax) . o - - - - JUEY) it I 1)
Gains deferred for the year {net of tax) - - 58 - - 58 - 58
Losses transferred to the income statement
(net of tax) _ - - 34 - - a4 - 84
" Total comprehensive income far the year - - 142 (15) (110} 17 (3) LS
Dwidends paid ta non-contralling mterest
carrection of error - - - - - - - (4) (4)
Exercise of shares - Employee Benefit Trust - 10 - - (100 - - -
Equity credit in respect of share-based
payments - - - - 1 1 - 1
At 30 September 2016 restated 593 1.547 40 75 (1850) 305 21 326
Profit for the year - - - - 13 13 n 12
Other comprehensive income/(loss): o
Foreign exchange translation losses - - - (27) - {27) - (27)
Actuarial ?ains on defined benefit pension
schemes [net of tax) - e - - 86 86 - 86
Losses deferred for the year (net of tax) - - {15) - - {15) - {15)
Gains transferred to the income statement
inetoftax) B - - (65) T - (85) - 5]
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {80} (27) 99 {8) (1} (9l
Equity credit in respect of share-based
payments - - - - 3 3 - 3
Dividends paid - - - - (8) (8} - (8)
Dividends paid to nen-cantrolling interest - - - - - - {32 {32}
Settlements ¢f non controlling interest - - - - o {1} 1l -
At 30 September 2017 593 1,547 (40) 48 {1,867) 281 (I} 280

* For details of restatement please see Note 33

Other reserves consist of the merger reserve, the capital redemption reserve and own shares held The capital redemption reserve was
1 created as a consequence of the share buyback pregramme during the year ended 30 September 2009.

The merger reserve arose on the reverse acquisition of Thomas Cook Group plc and MyTravel Group plc by Thomas Cook AG (currently known
as Thomas Cook GmbH] In the case of Thomas Cook Group plc. the merger reserve represents the difference between the existing share
capital and share premium of Thomas Cook AG and the share capital of Thomas Cook Group ple issued in exchange, and in the case of
MyTravel Group plc. the merger reserve represents the difference between the fair value and the nominal valug of the share capital issued

by Themas Cook Group plc.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

Thomas Cook Group plc 15 a public limited hability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006
and listed on the London Stock Exchange The address of the registered office 15 3rd Floor, South Building 200 Aldersgate, London ECIA 4HD,
The principal activities of the Group are discussed in the Strategic Report on pages 4 to 59.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Beard of Directors on 21 Navember 2017

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial Reporting Standards [IFRS) and
interpretations ssued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRS IC) and Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the European Unian and therefore comply
with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

After making enquirres and taking into account the matters set out in the Resk Management section on pages 54 to 59, the Directors confirm
that they consider it appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparng the Annual Report & Accounts

The financlal statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities
{inchuding derivative financial instruments) at fair value through the profit or loss. share-based payments and defined benefit
pension cbligations

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest million in Great British Pounds. Amounts in pence have been rounded to the
nearest tenth of a pence.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial information presented in this document are set out below
These policies have been applied consistently to the perfods presented unless otherwise stated.

Management identified several adjustments that, in their opinion should be applied to Thomas Cook's financial statements for the year
ended 30 September 2016 As a result these have been restated Refer to Note 33 for further details of the restatement

! 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
i 3ACHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURE

No new standards, amendments or interpretations, effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 Gctober 2016 have
had a materiaf impact on the Group or parent company

New or amended standard and interpretations in issue but not yet effective or EU endorsed

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective or EJ endorsed.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments’ is a replacement for IAS 39 Financial Instruments and covers three distinct areas. Phase 1 contains new
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. Phase 2 relates to the impairment of
financial assets and requires the calculation of impairment on an expected loss basis rather than the current incurred |oss basis
Phase 3 refates 1o less stringent requirements for general hedge accounting. IFRS 8 is effective for periods commencing on or
after | January 2018, and therefore will be apglied by the Group in fiscal year 2019. Based on our preliminary assessment. the Group
does not currently anticipate a material impact from the new standard other than in providing additional disclosures in the
Annual Report

IFRS 15 “Revenues from Contracts with Customers’ introduces a five-step approach to the timing of revenue recognition based on
performance obligations in customer contracts. IFRS 15 is effective for periods commencing 1 January 2018 and therefore will be
applied by the Group in fiscal year 2019 The Group continues to assess the possible impact of IFRS 15, which involves.

> an examination of key contract types in arder to identify any distinct performance ebligations in the context of the
contractual arrangement.

* assessing the point at which the Group delivers promised services to 1ts customers and whether this presents a requirement
to change the timing of its revenue recognition, and

> understanding the specific new disclosure requirements prescribed

Based on our preliminary assessment, the Group does not currently anticipate a material impact from the new standard other than
in providing additional disclosures in the Annual Report.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
3A CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURE CONTINUED

IFRS 16 “Leases provides a single lessee accounting model. requiring lessees to recegnise right of use assets and lease liabilities for all
applicable leases. The leasing standard 1s expected to have a material impact on net debt, gross assets, profit from operations and
interest. IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 january 2019, and therefore will be applied by the Group in
fiscal year 2020 Management have commenced a project across the Group to assess the overall impact of the standard. inchuding
considering the systems and processes required fer implementation and the options around transiticn. We expect to report on the
impact in the 2018 Annual Report. In addition. the Group awaits the result of ongoing HMRC consultation to understand the impact
on taxes

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021 subject to endorsement by the EU IFRS 17
establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement. presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope
of the standard The Group plans to assess the impact of IFRS 17 closer to implementation date.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty cver income Tax Treatments’ (s effactive for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019 with early adoption
permitted. IFRIC 23 clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurements requirements in IASI2 Income Taxes when there is
uncertainty over incame tax treatments The Group is assessing the impact of IFRIC 23

There are no further IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected tc have a material impact on the Group

3B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The Group's financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiary undsrtakings. Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has control The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed te, or has rights to, variable
returns from its mvolvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group, They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases
Inter-company transactions. balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.

Joint venture and associates
Enuties. other than subsidiaries, over which the Group exerts significant influence, but not contrel or joint control, are associates
Entities which the Group jointly controls with one or more other party under a contractual arrangement are joint ventures

The Group's investments in its associates and joint ventures are accounted for using the eguity methad

Under the equity method. the investment in an associate or a joint venture is (nitially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition
date Goodwill relating to the asscciate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and 1S neither amortised nor
individually tested for impairment.

Foreign currency
The presentation currency of the Group is Sterling.
Average exchange rates are used to translate the results of all subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that have a functional currency

other than Sterfing. The balance sheets of such entities are translated at period end exchange rates The resulting exchange differences are
recorded through a separate component of eguity.

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of an entity are transiated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities held at the year end are transiated at period end exchange rates. The resulting exchange
gain or f0ss is recorded in the Costs of providing taurism services within the Income Statement. When a foreign entity is partially disposed
of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwill 1s recogrused as an asset and is reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the Group's
income statement and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing. goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned 1o those units.

On disposal of a subsidiary, joint venture or associate, the attributable amount of goodwili is included in the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal.
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Intangible assets - other
intangible assets, other than goodwill, are carried on the Group's balance sheet at cost less accumulated amortisation

Other than capitalised development costs. including those that are internally generated expendiiure is reflected in the income statement in
the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis over the intangible asset’s useful ife, when finite, as follows:

Brands 9 years to indefinite life
Customer relationships 1 1015 years
Computer software 31010 years

Indefinite-lived intangible assets principally comprise those trademarks for which there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which they
are expected to generate net cash inflows These are considered to have an indefinite Iife, given the strength and durability of our brands
and the level of marketing support. The nature of the industry we operate m is such that brand cbsolescence 15 not comman. if appropriately
supported by advertising and marketing spend.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually at the CGU leve! by comparing their carrying
amount to their recoverable amount. All other intangible assets are assessed at each reporting date for indications of impairment. If such
indications exist. the recoverable amount is estimated and compared to the carrying amount [f the recoverable amount is jess than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment 10ss is recognised immediately in the
income statement.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment 1s stated at cost. net of straightline depreciation and any provision for impairment, Where costs are incurred
as part of the start-up or commissioning of an item of property. plant or equipment. and that item is available for use but incapab'e of
operating in the manner intended by Management without such a start-up or commissioning period, then such costs are included within the
cost of the item. Costs that are not directly attributable to bringing an asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating i the manner intended by Management are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, upon which ne depreciation is provided. 1s calculated on a straight-
line basis and aims to write-down their cost to their estimated residual value over their expected useful lives as follows.

Freehold buildings 40 to 50 years

Leasehold properties Shorter of remaining lease period and 40 years
Aircraft 23 years lor remaining lease period if shorter)
Aircraft spares 5 to 15 years {or remaining lease period if shorter]
Other fixed assets 3 1o 15 years

Estimated residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale 1s considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Aircraft overhaul and maintenance costs

Major overhau! expenditure. Including replacement spares and labour costs, 1S capitalised and amortised over the average expected life
between major overhauls. All other replacement spares and other costs relating to mamtenance of fleet assets {including maintenance
provided under ‘pay-as-you-go’ contracts) are charged to the income statement on consumption or as incurred respectively.

Provision is made for the future costs of majar overhauls of operating leased engines, auxiliary power units and airframes by making
appropriate charges to the income statement, calculated by reference to hours flown and/or the expired lease period, as a consequence of
obligations placed upon the Group under the terms of certain operating leases

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost represents purchase price. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all costs to be incurred in marketing, selng and distribution.
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3B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate. foreign exchange and fuel price risks arising from
operational financing and investment activities. In accordance with its treasury policy. the Group does not hold or issue derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes. However, derivatives that de not gualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered inte and are subseguently
remeasured at fair value The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument and If so the nature of the item being hedged.

The gain or l0ss on remeasurement to fair value, on dervatives net designated as a hedging instrument is recognised immediately in the
income statement

Derivatives are presented on the balance sheet on a gross basis A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset
whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a
non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the mstrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within
12 months

Hedge accounting

For fair value hedges. changes in the fair value of dervative financial instruments that are designated as fair value hedges are recognised

in the Income statement as part of finance income or cost line. where they offset the changes in fair value on the hedged em. Where the

hedged item is designated in a fair value hedge relationship of a financial hability held at amortised cost. the change in fair value in respeact
to the hedged risk is recorded as a fair value adjustment within finance income or cost

Fair value hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or 15 sold. terminated or exercised, or no lenger qualifies
for hedge accounting At that point in time the changes i fair value on the hedging instrument will continue to be recognised immediately
into the income statement. while the hedged item will no longer be adjusted for fair value changes.

The gain or loss on remeasurement to far value on derivative financial instruments that are designated and effective as cash flow hedges of
future cash flows is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement within net operating expenses

Forward points on foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of options are not designated as part of the hedging relationship and
therefore are recorded In the Income statement within costs of providing tourism

Changes in fair value deferred through the hedge reserve are recognised in the income statement in the same period, or periods, in which
the hedged highly probable ferecast transactions are recognised in the income statement.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated cr exercised. or no longer guakifies
for hedge accounting At that paint in time, any cumulative gains or {osses on the hedging instrument recogrised in other comprehensive
income are retained until the forecast transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction 1S no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative gain or
loss recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred te the income siatement for the period.

Non-derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

Financial assets are derecognised when the Group transfers substantially ali the risks {and rewards) relating to the financial asset or when
the contractual rights to the cash flows associated with the financial asset expire. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The measurement of particular financial assets and liabilities is set out below.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, term deposits and investment in money market funds which are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have an original maturity of three months or less
Where the Group operates centrally pooled accounts and has the fegal right along with the intention and ability to pool account balances.
the net cash or overdraft position is disclosed Where the intention or ability to pool balances tegether is absent. the cash and overdraft are
disclosed on a gross basis in the consalidated balance sheet and the overdraft is excluded fram cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows
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Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised at therr fair value and subsequently recorded at amortised caost using the effective interest
method as reduced by allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts An allowance for irrecoverable amounts is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect alt amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables

The amount of allowance is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are recogrused and subsequently recorded at therr fair value Gains or losses (except for imparrment
losses and foreign exchange gains and losses) are recognised directly in equity until the financial asset 1s derecognised. At this point, the
cumulative gan or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement Any impairment losses. foreign exchange
gans or losses or dividends receivable are recognised in the income statement.

Held for trading investments

Short-term investments and derivatives that are not designated in a hedge relationship such as natural hedges of a balance sheet exposure
are classified as held for trading and are recogrised and subseguently measured at their fair value Gams or losses are recagnised in the
income statement.

Other non-current asset investments

The fair value of investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market are measured using an
appropriate valuation technique Where a fair value cannot be reliably measured. the investment is measured at cost Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Any impairment losses are recognised (n the income statement.

Trade and other payables
Trade and cther payables are initially recognised at therr fair value and subsequently recerded at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

Borrowings
interest bearing borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value net of any directly attributable transaction costs They are
subsequently recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Borrowings that are designated as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for changes in thelr fair value in respect of
the hedged risk. The adjustment will be amortised to the income statement at the tme when the hedged 1tem ceases to be adjusted for
changes in its fair value attributable to the hedged risk.

Provisions
The Group recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a2 past event it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are recagnised at the Director's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is discounted to its present value.

Pensions

The Group operates a number of defined benefit schemes. The pension liabilities recognised on the balance sheet in respect of these
schemes represent the difference between the present value of the Group’s obligations under the schemes (calculated using the projected
unit credit method) and the fair value of those schemes’ assets Actuanal gains or losses are recognised in the period in which they arise
within the statement of comprehensive income and expense. The current service cost, representing benefits accruing over the year, is
included in the income statement as a personnel expense. The unwinding of the discount rate on the scheme liabilities and the expected
return on scheme assets are presented as finance costs and finance income respectively. Past service costs are recognised immediately in
the income statement in personnel expenses.

Pension costs charged against profits in respect of the Group's defined contribution schemes represent the amount of the contributions
payable to the schemes in respect of the accaunting period.

Share capital
Ordinary Shares including share premium are classified as equity.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
3B SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Leases

Leases under which substantially all of the nsk and rewards cf ownership are transferred to the Groug are finance leases. All other leases
are operating leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised at the lower of the far value of the asset and the present value of the mirimum lease
payments within property. plant and equipment on the balance sheet and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or their expected
useful lives. The interest element of finance lease payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding and is
charged to the income statement over the period of the lease

Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share options to certain employees as part of their total remuneration The fair values of the share options
are calculated at the date of grant. using an appropriate option pricing model. These fair values are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected vesting period of the optians, with a corresponding increase in equity. This credit is not considered to
be distnbutable under the Companies Act 2006,

The grant by the Company of opticns over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s treated as a
capital contribution The fair value of employee services received measured by reference to the grant date fair value 1s recognised over the
vesting period as an Increase to Investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity.

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transacticns with employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue 1s measured as the aggregate amount of gross revenue receivable from inclusive tours, airline travel services hotel
services. travel agency commission and other travel services supplied to customers in the ordinary course of business The Group reccrds
revenue on a net basis after deducting trade discounts volume rebates. value added tax and compensation vauchers granted to customers

Revenue relating to travel services arranged by the Greup's lefsure and airline travel providers, are taken to the income statement on the
date of holiday and flight departure Revenue relating te other services provided by the Group is taken to the income statement as earned.
Revenue from the sale of goods 15 recognised when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership is transferred to the customer usually
on delivery of the goods Monies received by the balance sheet date relating te holidays commencing and flights departing after the period
end are included within current Labilities as revenue received in advance

Expenses

Direct expenses relating to inclusive tours arranged by the Group s leisure travel providers are taken to the income statement on holiday
departure or over the period to which they relate as appropriate Indirect expenses are recognised in the income statement over the period
to which goods and services are received by the Group.

Separately disclosed items

The Group separately discloses to profit before tax in the income statement: non-recurring items, impairment of goodwill and amortisation of
business combination intangibles; and (AS 39 fair value remeasurement

Separately disclosed items, namely items that are material either because of their size or their nature or which are non-recurring. are
presented within their relevant income statement categary. but highlighted through separate disclosure. The separate reporting hefps
provide a full understanding of the Group's underlying performance

ltems which are inciuded within the separately disclosed categery include:

> profits/{losses) on disposal of assets or businesses and costs of acquisitions:

> costs of integration of significant acquisitions and other major restructuring programmes which may extend over a number of years;

» significant goodwill or other asset impairments.

> material write-down of assets/reassessment of accruals, reflecting a more cautious evaluation in light of current trading and economic
conditions; and

» other individually material items that are unusual because of their size, nature or incidence.

Material business combination intangible assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thomas Cook AG (currently known

as Thomas Cook GmbH} and MyTravel Group plc and other business combinations made in subsequent vears. The amortisation of these
intangible assets is significant and the Group's Management considers that it shouid be disclosed separately to enable a fuil understanding
of the Group's results
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IAS 39 fair value remeasurement includes movements in forward points refated te foreign exchange forward contracts and time value of
aptions in cash flow hedging relationships. Both items are subject to market fluctuations and unwind when the options or forward contracts
mature and therefore are not considered to be part of the Group's underlying performance Interest income and charges arising on the
Group’s defined benefit pension schemes and interest charges arising on the unwind of discount on exceptional provisions and contingent
consideration are not considered to be part of the Group s underlying performance.

In addition. certain finance costs or income that derive from one-off events or transactions are not considered to be part of the Group's
underlying performance. The Group’s Management censiders that these items should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding
of the Group's results.

Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises mterest income on funds invested, expected return on pension plan assets. changes in the fair value of held for
trading iterest-related derivatives. and fair value adjustments to hedged items in a designated fair value hedge

Finance costs comprise interest costs on berrowings and finance leases. unwind of the discount on non-current liabilities, interast cost
on pension ptan liabilities. changes in the fair value of held for trading interest-related derivatives and changes in fair value of derivatives
designated in a fair value hedge relationship.

The changes in fair value on derivatives designated in a fair value hedge relationship and the fair value adjustment on hedged items in a fair
value hedge relationship are separately disclased in Note 7 under the description “Finance related charges’

Tax

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable (recoverable) in respect of the taxable profit (tax loss) for a period.

Current tax assets and llabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authonties. based on
tax rates and laws that are substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recogmised on alt temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and its
tax base. with the following exceptions:

> Where the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an asset or liability n a
transaction that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting or taxable profit or loss;

> In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, where the
tming of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, and

» Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be availabfe against which the deductible
temporary differences, tax losses or credits carried forward can be utilised

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurad on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related asset
is realised or llability 1s settled. based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Allocation of tax charge or credit between income statement, other comprehensive income and equity
Tax is recognised in the iIncome statement unless it relates to an item recognised directly within other comprehensive income, in which case
the associated tax is recognised directly in other comprehensive iIncome respectively

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its Ordinary Shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit

or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares cutstanding during the
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential Ordinary Shares. EPS measures for continuing operations have been presented in accordance with IAS 33. The Group also presents
a basic and diluted underlying EPS measure based cn underlying profit before tax as defined in the “Separately Disclosed Items” section
above. Further details of the EPS calculation are presented in Note 11
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

3C CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In applying Ks accounting policies. the Group has made estimates and assumptions concerning the future, which may differ from the related
actual outcomes Those estimates and assumptions which have a significant risk of causing a matenial adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below

Revenue recognition

A key judgement in recognising revenue is to distinguish where the Group's businesses act in the capacity of principal or agent so 1o
determine the accounting as either gross or net respectively in ine with IAS 18 Revenue Recognition The Group exercises judgement to
assess principal or agency by considering if it is the prime obhgor in all the revenue arrangements, has pricing discretion and is exposed
to inventory and credit risk 1n which case the Group will be principal to the arrangement

Impairment of goodwill

Judgements have been made in respect of the amounts of future operating cash flows to be generated by certain of the Group's businesses
in order to assess whether there has been any impairment of the amounts included in the balance sheet for goodwill or intangible assets
with an indefinite life in relation to those businesses.

Aircraft maintenance provisions

Provisions for the cost of maintaining leased aircraft and spares are based an forecast aircraft utilisation, estimates of future maintenance
costs and planned rollover and renewal of the arcraft fleet

Provisions for illness claims and associated recoveries

in calculating the level of provisions required, judgements have been made on the probability of success in defending legal claims and
astimated outcome of such claims In assessing associated recoveries, judgements have been made been on the estimate of the amounts
that will be recovered from hotel suppliers.

Tax

Judgements have been made in respect of the probable future utilisation of tax losses. and deferred tax assets have been recognised as
aresult The recoverability of these assets is dependent on the agreement of the losses with the relevant authorities and the estimates
of future profitabiity
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During the year, the Group refined its organisational structure resulting in a reassessment of its reportable segments [n line with
this change the Group reassessed its reporting segments The principal activities of the Group are therefore presented in the

following segments:

> Tour operations and associated activities (Group Tour Operater ] within the Group’s |7 source markets:
> Airline-related services, including both scheduled and charter services, and associated activities (Group Arling’) within the Group's four

arrlines: and

> Certain residual businesses and corporate functions that are not allocated to these divisions and are shown separately as Corporate.

These reportable segmeants are consistent with how information 1s presentad to the Group Chief Executive {chief operating decision maker)
for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance. Segment information for the year ended 30 September 2016 has

been restated accordingly

Segmental information for these activities is presented belpw.

Group Tour

Year ended 30 September 2017 Operator Graup Arrline Corporate Group
Revenue o ) o )
Segment sales ] 7122 3185 - 10307
Inter-segment sales (43) {1.257) - {1.300)
Total revenue 7079 1928 - 9,007
Revenue by geography ) - o B -
UK - - - 2476
Centinental Europe - - 4139
Eb_rthern Europe i 1307
Airlines Germany - } I 0/ )
In{crcompany eliminations i " (385)

9.007
Result N
Underlying operating profit/ltoss) from operations - - ) 250 s (35 330
Separately disclosed items i . {74! 1 {igl (91
Amortisation of business combination intangibles (8 - - (8l
Segment result 168 16 (53] 231
Share of results of associates and joint venture o _ . i
Finance income ) 4
Finance costs ) ) o R 11
Profit hefore tax - o 46
Tax {34)
Profit for the year 12
Other information
Capital additions o m 120 4 231
Depreciation ’ 23 162 - 185
Amortisation of intangible assets 7 _ 17 4 15 36
Amortisation of business comblnation"\ntanglbles 8 - - 8
Impairment of property. plant & equipment 3 - - 8
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i Group Tour
Operator Group Arrline Corporate Group
£m £m £m £m
Balance sheet
Assels .
Segment assets 1666 3627 8.539 19.832
Inter-segment eliminations (13.440Q)
6.392
Investments in assoclates and joint ventures - - - 6
Tax and deferred tax assets 207
Total assets 6,615
Liabilities
Segment liabilities o49) (1881 (9.007) (17.379)
Inter-segment eliminations 12615
{4764)
Tax and deferred tax liabilities o - - L R VL
Borrowings and ohligations under finance leases (1.446)
Total liabilities (6.335)

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices. Segment assats consist primanily of goodwill, other intangible assets, property.

plant and equpment. trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents

Segment liabilities comprise trade and other payables, revenue received in advance and provisions

Capital additions comprise additions to other intangible assets (Note 12) and property. plant and equipment (Note 13)

The total non-current assets, other than goodwill. indefinite life intangibles financial instruments and deferred tax focated in the UK, was
£1991 (2016 £2.013m) The total non-current assets other than goodwill. indefirute life intangibles, financial instruments and deferred tax

lscated in Germany was £578m (2016. £615m).
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| Group Taur
Year ended 30 September 2006 restated Operator Group Airline Corporate Craup
Em £m £m El
Revenue o ] I

Segment sales 5223 2825 - 8.048
Inter-segment sales {43 11)95) - 1.238)
Total revenue 6150 1630 - 7810
Revenue by geography ~ - - _ ) - o o
UK ) 2363
Continental Europe B B S - o ) 3.435
Northern Europe . o - 1132
Airlines Germany ' - _ 1253
Intercompany eliminations ) 1373)
7810

Reswt S e - T
Underlying operating profitilloss) from operations 7 49 83 (30} 302
Separatély disclosed items 82) 7 {10) {99)
Amortisation of business combination intangibles 8) - - (6]
Segment result 161 76 (40} 197
Share of results of associates and joint venture - n
Net investment incame 1
Finance income _ ) 6
Finance costs {169}
Profit before tax 34
Tax ) 331
Profit for the year ]
Otherinformation i . . S
Capital additians _ B . n 136 30 237
Depreciation 7 ) Y | £
Amartisation of intangible assets 1 3 8 30
Amortisation of business combination intangibles - 3 - - 6
Imgairment of property. plant & equipment ) o I ) 4
Impairment of other intangible assets ) - - 2 2
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4 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED

‘ Group Tour |
Year ended 30 September 2016 restated Qperator Group Airline Corporate Group
£m £m £m R Em
Balance sheet
Assets
Segment assets 7661 3678 10723 22062
Inter-segment eliminations {15.359)
6703
Investmenits in assoctates and joint ventures - ) - 3
Tax and deferred tax assets 232
Total assets 6,943
Liahilities
Segment liabilities - (6.400) {1.928) 10919) (19,247}
Inter-segment eliminations 14673
(4574}
Tax and deferred tax labbiges o ) 22
Borrowings and obligations under finance leases o {1921
Total liabilities {6,617}
5 PERSONNEL EXPENSES
017 2016
£m em
Wages and salaries _“ 834 766
Social secunty costs _ . o 109 ) 97
Share-based payments - equity settled (see Note 29) 3 1
Defined benefit pension costs (see Note 30) B I _n
Defined contribution pension costs {see Note 30) 51 46
1003 921
The average number of employees of the Group during the year was:
2017 2016
Number Number
Group Tour Operator ) - 14,016 14.320
Group Arrling 7,525 7372
Corporate 247 248
21,788 21940

Disclosures of Directors' remuneration. share options. long-term incentive schemes. pension contributions and pension entitlements required

by the Companies Act 2006 and those specified for audit by the Financial Conduct Authority are on pages 98 to 108 within the Remuneration

Report and form part of these audited financial statements

Disclosures in respect of remuneration of key management personnel are included in Note 31
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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| 6 OPERATING EXPENSES

134

2017 2016
£m £m
Advertising expenses ) ) . - 185 ‘ 132
Rents and expenses for building maintenance o 105 99
! Information technology and telecommunication costs B 124 124
| Trave[e}penses and ancillary personnel expenses ) . B 54 St
Legal and consultancy fees B ) 48 2
write off of bad det;tﬁand |mpaifmeﬂ§0f plant property gnd equipment - . . 7B
Auditor's remuneration B ) _ 3 ) 4
Other operating expenses 4 28
520 482
A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis is provided below:
i Auditors’ remuneration
2007 2016
£m £m
! Ernst & Young )
Fees payable to Company's auditor and its associates for the audit of parent company and
consolidated financial statements ) L o _ [ I -
Fees payable to Company’s auditor and its associates for other services B - -
Audit of subsidiaries 2 -
Total audit fees 3 -
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP B ) ) . -
Fees payable to Company's auditer and its associates for the audit of parent company and consolidated
financial statements - 1
Fees payable to Company's auditor and its associates for other services 7 B S e -
Audit of subsidiartes - i 2
| Total audit fees - 3
, Ernst & Young 7
Other non-audit services - -
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP ) .
Other non-audit services - 1
Total non-audit services - 1
Total fees 3 4

Included within the above ‘The audit of company’s subsidiaries’, £01m [2016: £01m) has been mcurred in respect of the audits of the Group

pension schemes.

Total non-audit services are inclusive of £0 2m {2016: £0 6m) in relation to the review of Group's intenm financial statements and £nil

(2018: £0.0m) in relation to tax services,

Fees paid to the Campany's auditors and their associates far services other than the statutory audit of the Company are not disclosed in
subsidiaries” accounts since the consolidated accounts of the subsidiaries parent. Thomas Cook Group plc, are required to disclose non-audit

fees on a consolidated basis.

A description of the work of the Audit Committee is set out in the Corporate Governance report on page 74 and includes an explanation of
how auditor objectivity and independence Is safequarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors,
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7 SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS

‘ Restated
2017 2016
£m £m

Affecting profit from operations 7 o - - - o

New Operating Model implementation costs 142) {50)

Restructuring costs {12] {20)

Onerous leases and store closures (30) (2%

Costs of transformation (84) (9N

Reassessment of contingent consideration L - o o 32 4

Asset valuation reviews ) (15) (9)

Amortisation of business combination intangibles o 8 )]

Other (24) ()

(99 {105}

Affecting finance income and costs 7 o N o -

Net interest cost on bond refinancing (23) -

Bond apen market repurchase premium - o ) i ___ - e}

Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation (Note 30) (7 7

Unwind of discount on provisiens and other non-current habilities m (10}

{41) (23}

Total separately disclosed items (140 {128}

New Operating Model implementation and restructuring costs

Implementation costs relating to the New Operating Model total £42m (2016. £50m) and primarily relate to efficiency programmes in
Continental Europe and the UK These programmes commenced in 2015 and were planned over a 3 year period, with a focus on generating
efficiencies within the Group by co-operating more closely across all source markets, rather than duplicating activity in each individual
market The costs that we have separately disclosed in relation to these programmes include the cost of external professional advice and
redundancies. as well as the cost of dedicated personnel (both external consultants and internal employees) assigned to New Operating
Model projects The work of these teams focuses on aligning and driving harmonised activities across the Group in each business area.
including finance, digital. marketing. product and yield management. This work represents an jnvestment in our transformation, resulting

In a temporary increase in costs by doubling up resource in some business areas. as we transform our business model into one that is
horizontally aligned across the Group under a matrix structure. Once processes are fully co-ordinated and harmonised in these areas, these
additional costs will fall away Accordingly we believe that it is appropriate to separately disclose these costs. The New Operating Model was
initially established as a three year transformation project and these costs are expected to continue to be incurred until implementation

IS complets.

Restructuring costs of £12m {2016- £20m} largely relate to legacy rationalisation in Continental Eurcpe, namely France and Russia

Reassessment of contingent consideration

In December 2016. the Group announced its intentien to acguire futl control of its UK retail stare network, following notification by

The Co-operative Group {'the Co-op) of the decision to exercise its option over its stake in their UK retail joint venture In line with the
requirements of IFRS. the Group has reassessed the carrying value of a contingent obligation to acquire the Co-op shares and this
reassessment resultec in a reduction of £32m to the liability previously accrued. As part of the reassessment it was noted that a payment of
£4m was made in the prior period which has been restated in the comparatives above (refer to Note 33).

Onerous leases and store closures
Onerous leases and store closures of £30m (2016, £21m) relates to a provision associated with loss-making UK stores. The provision follows
the results of a strategic review of the UK store network as part of the New Operating Model.

Asset revaluation reviews
Asset valuation reviews of £15m primarily relate to write-offs of property. fixtures and fittings of closed UK stores and IT assets in the UK no
fonger required as part of the implementation of the New Operating Model.
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7 SEPARATELY DISCLOSED ITEMS CONTINUED

Amortisation of business combination intangibles

Material business combination intangible assets were acquired as a result of the merger between Thomas Coek AG and MyTravel Group ple
and other business combinations made in subsequent years The amortisation of these intangible assets is significant and the Group's
Management considers that it should be disclosed separately to enable a full understanding of the Groups results

Other

Dther separately disclosed items of £24m includes E15m in relation to investment in the set-up of partnerships and new business
developments, £6m of costs incurred retating to repatriation of guests net of insurance received for Hurricane Irma and £6m of costs
incurred for fraudulent iliness claims In addition there is a £6m gain from the movement in forward points related to foreign exchange
forward contracts and the time value of options in cash flow hedge relationships. Beth items are subject to market fluctuations and unwind
when the options or forward contracts mature and therefore are not considered to be part of the Group’s underlying performance.

Finance related charges

The Group has provisions for future hiabilities arising from separately disclosed circumstances, primarily deferred acquisition consideration
A notignal interest charge of £1lm on the discounted value of such provisiens is recognised within separately disclosed finance related
charges In addition, the Group incurred an interest charge of E23m as a result of issuing a new Euro bond in December 2016 which
refinanced the Group's debt at a lower interest rate, while net interest charges arising on the Group's defined benefit pension schemes
were £7m

8 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

2007 2016
£m Em
Underlying finance income o ) . . .
Other interest and similar income 4 6
4 6
underlying finance costs
Bank. bond interest and other related charges (78) (B4)
Fee amortisation ‘ (7} (7)
Letters of credit (20} (18}
Other interest payable (24) (18}
(129) 127)
Underlying aircraft related finance costs o B . o
Interest payable - o (2) (3)
Finance costs in respect of finance leases {16) {18)
{18) {19)
Underlying finance cost 147) (148)
Net underlying Interest (143) {140)
Separately disclosed finance costs (Note 7)
Bond refinancing costs ] } L 23 -
Bond open market repurchase premium - (6)
Net interest cost on defined benefit obligation (Note 30) - ) i m ]
Unwind of discaunt on provisions and other non-current liabitties m {10)
(41 (23)
Total net interest (184) {163)

Bank and bend interest includes fair valug gain of Enil {2016: £2m gain) on hedging instruments and fair value less of £nil (2016 £2m loss) on
hedged items in fair value hedges
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9 TAX

017 2016
Em £m
Analysis of tax charge - B L
Current tax
UK Corporation tax {credit)f charge for the year - 3
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {4) 2
(4) 8§
Overseas Corporation tax charge for the year o _ 4 27
Adjustments in respect of prior periads 1 4
A5 3l
Total current tax 42 39
Deferred tax
Tax credit 18) (6)
Total deferred tax 18) (6)
Total tax charge 34 33
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the thecretical amount that would arise using the UK standard corporation tax rate
applicable to profits of the Company as follows:
017 2016
Em £m
Tax reconciliation e ——
Prafit before tax 46 34
Expected tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 195% (2016 20 0%) 9 7
Income not liable fortax o N i
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 16 )
Losses and other temporary differences for which tax redief is not available 4] 34
Utilisation of tax losses and other temporary differences not previously recognised (4) (2}
Recognition of losses and other temporary differences not previously recognised (58) (60}
Derecognition of deferred tax previously recognised 44 36
Difference in rates of tax suffered on overseas earnings 7 9
Impact of changes in tax rates B 5 B
Other T (2) yi
Income tax charge tn respect cof prior periods 1) 1
Tax charge 34 33

In addition to the amount charged to the income statement. deferred tax relating to actuarial losses on pension schemes and the fair value
of derivative financial instruments of £28m has been charged directly tc equity (2016, credit of £14m). UK corporation tax is calculated at 19.5%
(2016- 20%) of the estimated assessable profitfiloss] for the year Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

respective jurisdictions.

Surplus losses not recagnised in deferred tax of £2.222m (2016 restated £2.132m) are available predominantly in France, Germany and the UK

for offset against future profits.
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10 DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a dividend of 0.6p per share [2015. 0.5p). The proposed final dividend 1s subject to appreval by Shareholders at the

Annual General Mesting and has not been included as a liability in these financial statements

¢ The proposed dividend will be paid to Shareholders on the register at the close of business on 5 April 2018

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The payment of this dividend will not have any tax consequences for the Group

The calculations for earnings per share. based on the weighted average number of shares. are shown in the table below The weighted \
average number of shares shown excludes 3m shares held by the employee share ownership trusts (2016, 4m)

2087 2016

Basic and diuted earnings per share Em £m
Net profit attnibutable to the awners of the parent 3 4
( 2017 2006

millions millions

WeTgEted aivgrage number of shares for basic earnings per share ' 1532 T 1530
Weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share* 1,536 1,531
m7 2016

pence pence

Basic and dituted earnings per share 0.8 03
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software and

Goodwill cancassions
Brands and
Internally customer Grder Other
Purchased generated relatienships backlog Purchased Total

£m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Cost
At October 2015 2695 182 244 383 4 3 3548
Additions - 20 69 - - - 89
Disposals - (2) (23) - - - {25)
Reclassifications - (2 2 - s -
Exchange differences 214 20 20 36 - - 290
At 30 September 2016 2909 218 312 419 4] 3 3.902
Additions - 24 5 - - 2 77
Disposals - (7) (82) - U} - (30)
Exchange differences 45 4 5 5 - - 59
At 30 September 2017 2,954 239 286 424 40 5 3,948
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses L
At10ctober 2015 . 307 93 179 134 a - 754
Impairment loss - - - - - 2
Charge for the year - 4 26 6 - - 36
Disposals - il (13} - - - 14}
Exchange differences 7 17 12 1l - - 47
At 30 September 2016 314 13 206 151 4] - 825
Charge for the year - 6 35 8 - - 49
Disposals - &y (el - it - 18y
Exchange differences 13 3 4 i - - 21
At 30 September 2017 327 e 169 160 40 - 812
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2017 2627 123 17 264 - 5 3136
At 30 September 2016 2595 105 106 268 - 3 3077
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Brand names with indefinite ives acquired through husiness combination intangibles are aflocated by cash generating unit. The carrying
value of brand names and goodwill is anafysed by cash generating unit as follows:

140

‘ Gaodwill Goodwill Brand names Brand names
2017 2016 2017 201
£m £m £m £m

UK Tour Operator . 1038 1030 67 g7

Northern Europe Tour Operator . 508 54 - -

Continental Europe Tour Operator o 183 181 130 126

Group Airline 301 830 - -

2627 2595 250 244

Impairment Testing

In accordance with IFRS, the Group tests the carrying value of goodwill and brand names with indefinite lives for impairment annually and

wheanever events or circumstances change

Impairment testing is performed by comparing the carrying value of each cash-generating unit [CGU) to the recaverable amount, determined
on the basis of the CGU's value in use The value in use 1s based on the net present value of future cash flow projections discounted at pre-
tax rates appropriate for each CGU.

During the year, the Group refined its organisaticnal structure resulting in a reassessment of its reportable segments This has resulted in
a reassessment of its CGUs for the purposes of impairment testing. which now consist of UK Tour Operator. Northern Europe Tour Operator,
Continental Europe Tour Operator and Group Airhne

The future cash flow projections used to determine the value i use are based on the most recent annual budgets and four-year plans for
each of the CGUs The key assumptions used te determine the business budget and four-year plans relate to capacity and the pricing of
accommodation and fuel inputs. Capacity is based on Management's view of market demand and the constraints to managing capacity such
as aircraft lease commitments. The accommodation pricing is primarily driven by the underlying bed rate and the foreign exchange hedges
in place. The former is based on the businesses ongoing dialogue with bed suppliers and local cost inflation. The fuel pricing assumption

is primarily driven by the fuel hedges in place and the forward fuel curve at the time that the budget is set The key assumptions used to
determine the Independent business budget and four-year plans relate to passenger volumes and commission rates, and are based on the
individual businesses’ view of the market conditions

Cash flow forecasts for years beyond the four-year plan are extrapolated at an estimated average long-term nominal growth rate of 2%.

A a pre-tax discount rate of between 9.8% - 10 2% reflecting the specific risks of each CGU 15 used to calculate the value in use for each of
the CGUs

Sensitivity analysis has not been disciosed as Management believes that any reasonable change in assumptions would not cause the
carrying value of the CGUs to exceed their recoverable amount.
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Aircraft and

Freehold {and

Other property, plant and equipment

Short

Other

Qther

aircraft spares and buildings leaseholds fixed assets Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 30 September 2015 1175 152 125 177 454
Additions 120 ) 5 4 28
Disposals (54] mo 8 (5 (100!
Exchange differences 184 25 1 25 61
At 30 September 2016 1415 171 82 190 443
Additions B 108 4 29 3 45
Transferred to held for sale - (146} {0 (43) {190}
Disposals (89 - {24) {53) (77
Exchange differences 33 3 3 2 8
At 30 September 2017 1,467 32 89 109 230
Accumulated depreciation and impairment o o -
At 30 September 2015 s 47 79 126 252
Charge for the year 152 7 il 22
Provision for impairment B - 4 - 4
Disposals ) (56} o i57) (29) {97)
Exchange differences 122 10 7 24 4]
At 30 September 2016 788 50 40 132 222
Charge for the year 162 3 8 9 20
Provision for impairment o - 4 4 R 3
Transferred to held for sale - {571 {1} {31) (89
Disposals (83) 1) (22) {52) {75)
Exchange differences 19 2 - 3 5
At 30 September 2017 B86 1 29 3] 91
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2017 581 3l 60 48 139
At 30 September 2016 627 121 42 58 221

Freehold land with a cost of £20m [2016. £34m) has not been depreciated The net book vafue of aircraft and aireraft spares includes £244m

(2016: £308m) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

The net book value of other property, plant and eguipment includes £20m (2016 £9m) in respect of assets held under finance leases
The depreciation of the owned assets during the year was £79m {2016- £86m). Depreciation for property. plant and equipment held under

finance lease was £107m (2016 £88m).

2017 006
Capital commitments £m £m
Capital expenditure contracted but not provided for in the accounts 37 51

The Group is contractually committed to the acguisition of one new spare engine as at 30 September 2017, which had a list price of $9.6m
each at the time of commitment, before escalations and discounts. It 1s intended to be financed by sale and leaseback at delivery date in

November 2017
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14 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

2007 2016

£m £m
Cost ) 7 e
At 1 Qctober 2018 33 . 25
Additions - 3
Group's share of jemt ventures and associates loss for the year ) ] o o 0
Exchange differences ! 6
At 30 September 2017 33 33
Amounts written off or provided _ o ) ~ . _
At 1 Qctober 2076 25 21
Exchange differences 2 4
At 30 September 2017 27 25
Carrying amount 6 5

Investments in jomnt ventures and associates at 30 September 2017 included a 40% interest in Activos Tunisticos S A, an office real estate
company based in Palma de Mallorca, Spain and 43% interest in Kuyi International Trave! Agency (Shanghai] Co, Ltd. which forms part of
Thomas Cook China the Group's joint venture with Fosun.

Summarised financial information in respect of joint ventures and associates is as follows:

2017 2016
Joint ventures and | Joint ventures and

associates assotiates

£m £m

Total assets ' ' T -
Total liabilities (21) (15)
Net assets 14 18
Group's share of net assets 5 8
Revenue 25 22
Loss for the year {3) {2)
Group's share of associates' loss for the year {1) 1)

The accounting pariod end dates of the joint ventures and associates consolidated in the Group financial statements differ from those of
the Group. For the purposes of applying the equity method of accounting the most recent financial statements of these Joint ventures and
assoclates and the management accounts are used to draw up the financial position and performance of each jaint venture and associate.

15 INVENTORIES

207 2016
£m £m
Goods held for resale 10 12
Airline spares and other operating inventories 32 3l
12 43

The cost of mventories recognised as an expense was £136m (2016: £146m}
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2006
£m £m
Non-current assets

Trade receivables S - o o 7777! - -
Other receivables 18 i3
Deposits and prepayments L : : : s u
Loans 1 1
65 58

Current assets ) ) - .
Trade recevables 220 242
Qther recetvables 89 74
Deposits and prepayments o - - o 40 340
Loans - 2 4
QOther taxes 23 17
735 877

The average credit period taken on invoicing of leisure travel services Is eight days (2016. nine days). No mterest is charged on the
receivables The credit risk in respect of direct recervables from customers is limited as payment is required in full hefore the services are
provided In the case of travel services sold by third party agents, the credit risk depends on the creditworthiness of those third parties, but
this nsk is also limited because of the relatively short period of credit

Deposits and prepayments include amounts paid in advance to supphers of notel and other services in order to guarantee the provision of
those supplies. The Group's current policy is that deposits and prepayments will normally be made for periods of up to two years in advance.
There is a credit risk in respect of the continued operation cf those suppliers during those periods Deposits and prepayments also include
£7m (2016. £5m) of deposits on arcraft ease arrangements

The amaunts presented in the balance sheet are net of alfowances for doubtful recervables. An allowance for impairment is made where
there I1s an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash fliows

Allowances for doubtful debts in respect of trade receivable balances are managed in the business units where the debts anse and are
based on local Management experience. Factors that are considered include the age of the debt, previous experience with the counterparty
and local trading conditions. Trade receivables arise from individual customers as well as businesses in the travel sector The Directors do
not consider there to be significant concentration of credit risk relating to trade and other receivables.
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
Movement in allowances for doubtful receivables

2017 2015

£m £m
At beg‘mnihg of year o ) ~ | 33 y 29
Additional provisions B L - 12 ] 7
Exchange differences 1 4
Recsivables written off o . o 10 e,
Unused amounts released (3) (2)
At end of year 39 33
At the year end, trade and other receivables of £125m (2016 £203m) were past due but not impaired
The analysis of the age of these financial assets is set out below:
Ageing analysis of overdue trade and other receivables

2my 2016

£m Em
Less than one month overdue o ) B _ 40 —: a7
Between one and three months overdue 25 47
Between three and 12 months overdue } . 34 39
More than 12 months gverdue 26 20

125 203

Trade and other receivables are not subject to restrictions on title and no collateralis held as security.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other recelvables approximate to their fair values
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2007 2016

£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand ) 914 1256
Term deposits with a maturity of less than three months 493 520
1.407 1776

Cash and cash equivalents largely comprise bank balances denominated in Sterling Euro and other currencies for the purpose of settling
current labilities as well as balances ansing from agency collecticn on behalf of the Group’s travel agencies Included within the above
balance are the following amounts considered to be restricted

> £24m (2016: £13m) held within escrow accounts in respect of local regulatory requirements: and
> £4m (2016 £3m} of cash held by White Horse Insurance Ireland DAC and Voyager Android Insurance Services, the Group's captive
Insurance companies

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate to therr fair value.

Cash, cash equivalents and overdrafts at the end of the year as shown in the Group cash flow statement can be reconciled to the related
items in the Group balance sheet position as shown below.

07 2016
Em £m
Cash and cash equivalents B 1407 1776
Overdrafts (Note 19) (8} (542)
1,399 1234
18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYASBLES
207 2016
Em £m
Current liabilities
Trade payables - o o o . 1,685 1602
Amounts owed to associates and participations 1 1
Social security and other taxes o ) o o - 53 32
Accruals and deferred income 442 423
Other payables 162 121
2,343 2179
Non-current liabilities L _ o
Accruals and deferred income 4 -
Other payables 2 109
25 109

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 82 days (2016: 97 days)
The Directars consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payabies approximate to their fair value
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19 BORROWINGS

2007 2016

£m £m
Short-term borrowings 7 - o ) ) _ o
Unisecured hank [sans and other burrowu{és w 7
Unsecured bank overdrafts 8 542
- ) ] 225 659
Current pbrtion of long-term borrowings B e 0 232
245 891
Lang-term borrowings
Bank loans and bonds ) B ) ) - B __ . .
- repayable within one year N 20 232
____-repayable hetween gne and five years 667 835
e repayable after five years 380 12
_ 1067 1079
Lass: ameunt due for settlement within one year shown under current liabilities (20} {232)
Amount due for settlement after one year 1.047 847

Cash and overdraft balances in cash pooling arrangements are reported gross on the balance sheet The cash pooling agreements do not
incorporate a legally enforceable nght of net settlement, so these arrangements do not qualify for net presentation At 30 September 2017
the total value of overdrafts on accounts in cash pooling arrangements was £8m (2016, £542m) which is offset by an egual amount within
| cashand cash equivalents

Borrowings by class

2017 2016

‘ Current Non-current Current Nan-current

£m tm Em £m

Group committed credit facility fincluding transaction costs) - (2 3 - 7
Aircratt-related bank loans {including transaction costs) 17 15 32 32
Commercial paper 218 - 17 -
Gther bank borrowings B o 33 542 I
Ig%d bands lincluding transaction costs) - 1.001 200 796
245 1.047 891 847

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's borrowings with a carrying value of £1292m is £1476m (2016: £1.738 carrying
value £1767m, fair value £1.025m). £1183m (2016- £1.025m) of the fair value which relates to issued bonds has been calculated using quoted
market prices.

For all other borrowings. the Directors consider that the fair value of £29Im (2016 £742m) is approximate to the carrying amount In 2017 the
Group has £32m as security to aircraft (2016, £63m) and £37m as a security to preperty [2016: £29m)

Borrowing facilities

As at 30 September 2017, the Group had undrawn committed debt facilities of £472m (2016, £481m) and undrawn committed debt facilities
plus cash available to repay revolving credit facility of £1.824m (2018: £2.212m). Whilst these facilities have certain financial covenants they are
not expected to prevent full ut/lisation of the facilities if required. The Group has complied with 1ts covenants throughout the year.

In December 2016 we issued a new €750 million bond. The new bond. bearing a coupon of 6 25% and maturing in June 2022, enabled us to
redeem in full both the cutstanding £200 million principal of our £300 million bond due in June 2017 and our entire €525 million bond due in
June 2020.
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19 BORROWINGS CONTINUED

In November 2017 the Group enterad inte new financing arrangemants being an enlarged £875 million revolving credit facility and bonding
and guarantee facility, maturing in November 2022, In addition the Group has secured £100 million of annual rolling bilateral funding from
one of their insurance providers. These new arrangements replace the Group's existing facility. which provided £800 mdhion of facilities until
May 2019

Covenant measures

The covenant measures are tested guarterly on a rolling 12-month basis and consist of a leverage covenant and a fixed charge covenant
The lgverage covenant is a measure of pre-exceptional earnings before interest, tax. depreciation. amortisation and aircraft operating
lease rentals compared to net debt. The fixed charge covenant is a measure of pre-exceptional earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
amortisation and operating lease charges compared te net interest and operating lease charges The leverage and fixed charge covenant
hurdles vary depending on the period that they relate to. reflecting the seascnality of the Group's business.

20 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

Present value of

Mimimum l2ase payments minimum lease payments
2017 2016 17 2006
£m £m £m £m
Amounts payable under finance leases - o
Within one year 49 54 39 42
Belween cne and five years - i 105 138 k1| 17
After five years 26 28 24 24
3 o ) . 180 221 154 183
Less future finance charges (26) (38 - -
Present value of lease obligations 154 183 154 183
Less amount due for settlement within 12 menths {shown under
current labilities) {39} 142)
Amount due for settlement after 12 menths 15 141
The currency analysis of amounts payable under finance leases is:
2007 2016
£m Em
furg ' L 3 3
US Dollar 141 170
154 183

Finance leases principally relate to aircraft and aircraft spares.
No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments

The Directors consider that the fair value of the Group's finance lease obligations with a carrying value of £154m was £176m at 30 September
2017 {2016: carrying value £183m. fair value E19m). The fair values quoted were determined on the basis of the interest rates for the
corresponding terms to repayment as at the year end.

The Group's ohligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.
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i 21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Carrying values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of the Group's financial assets and habilities as at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016 are as set out below:

2017 2018
Denvative Dervative
instruments instruments
fairvalue | in designated Financial Fair value | in designated Financial
through profit hedging Loans & liabiities at | through profit hedging Loans & liabihties at
of lass | relationships receivables famartised cost orloss | refationships receivables |amortised cost
4t 30 September 2017 £m £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
ETrade and other receivables B - - 394 - - - 06 0 -
Cash and cash equivalents - - l4a7 - - - 1776 -
Trade and other payabies - - - (2,202} (79} - - {2.0861)
Borrowings B o o - - - hz9 - - - 01738
Obligations under finance leasss - - - 154) - - - (182)
Provisions arising from contractual
- obligations ) - - - (432) - - - (395]
| Derivative financial instruments 9 (47} - - 2 83 - -
(9) 147) 1,801 14.080) [77) 83 2182 [4.378)
Derivative financial instruments
The fair values of derivative financial instruments were:
’ Interest rate Currency Fuel
Swaps contracts contracts Tota!
£m Em Em £m
At1 October 2015 no 84 (165) (70}
Movement in fair value during the year 5 12 138 155
At 1 October 2016 16 96 (27) 85
Movement in fair value during the year 17 (181) 57 {141)
At 30 September 2017 LR {85) | 30, (56)
207 2016
£m £m
Non-current assets B ) B _ i 6 26
Current assets 56 145
Current liabilities ) ) B log)y {83}
Non-current labilities (9) (3)
(56) 85
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group's financial Instruments are disclosed in higrarchy levels depending on the valuation method applied The different
methods are definad as follows.

Levell  valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments,

Level 2. derived using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability. either directly
li.e. as prices) or indirectly {1 e. derived from prices) The fair value of financial instruments is determined by discounting expected
cash flows at prevailing interest rates

Level 3. valued using technigues incorporating mformation other than observable market data as at least one Input to the valuation
cannct be based on observable market data.

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities are set out below

2017 2016

‘ Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total Level Level 2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m £m Em Em Em
Financial assets o - -
Currency contracts - 30 - 30 - §ro - 131
Fuelcontracts ) - 32 - 2 - . - il
Interest rate swaps - - - - - 16 - 6

Financial liabilities

Currency contracts -y - ms) - s - (35)
Fuel contracts - (2) - (2) - 1) - )]
Contingent consideration - m - U] - - {79) L
At 30 September - (56) - {56} - 85 {79) 8

The fair values of financial instruments have been calculated using discounted cash flow analysis

In December 2016, the Group anncunced its intention to acquire fult control of 1ts UK retall store network, following notification by

The Co-operative Group of the decision to exercise its cption over its stake in their UK retail joint venture. The Group's contingant
consideration 15 now fixed, therefore is no longer classified as a Level 3 financial liability. There were no other Level 3 financial assets or
lizbilities as at 30 September 2017

Currency hedges are entered into up to a maximum of 24 months in advance of the forecasted requirement As at 30 September 2017 the
Group had In place currency hedging derivative financial instruments with a maximum maturity of May 2019 (2016. February 2018).

The Group also uses derivative financial instruments to mitigate the risk of adverse changes in the price of fuel. The Group enters into fixed
price contracts [swaps) and net purchased options in the management of its fuel price. All fuel hedges are designated as cash flow hedges

Fuel price hedges are entered into up te a maximum of 24 months m advance of forecasted consumption of fuel. Trades with maturities
longer than 24 months need additional approval in line with treasury policy As at 30 Septembper 2017, the Group had in place fuel price
hedging derivative financial instruments with a maximum maturity of March 2019 (2016: March 2018).
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2YFINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

In addition, the Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its interest rate exposures. The Group enters into interest rate swaps
to hedge against nterest rate movements m connaction with the financing of aircraft and other assets and to hedge against interest rate
exposures on fixed rate debt The Group also enters into cross currency interest rate swaps to hedge the interest rate and the currency
expasure on foreign currency external borrowings

The fair value of interest rate swaps and crass currency contracts in designated fair value hedge relationships at 30 September 2017 was a
liabilty of £1m (2016 £16m asset).

As at 30 September 2017. the maximum maturity of interest rate derivatives was June 2022 (2016 June 2020)

The fair values of the Group's denvative financial mstruments have heen calculated using underlying market prices available on
30 September 2017,

During the year. a gain of £60m (2016, £105m loss) was transferred from the hedge reserve to the income statement following recognition
of the hedged transactions. The amount included m each line item in the income statement is shown below. In addition. a gain of £6m was
recagmsed in the income statement in respect of the forward paints on foreign exchange cash flew hedging contracts [2016. £2m gain) and
a gain of £n1l In respect of the movement in the time value of opticns in cash flow hedging relationships (2016 £3m gain)

2017 2016
Em £m

Cost of providing tourism services:
- release from hedge reserve 60 {105}
- time value on gptions - 3
- forward points an foreign exchange cash flow hedging contracts o 6 2
Finance income/lcosts) ' )
- fair value movements on derivatives in designated fair value hedge (17} 5

During the year a loss of £10m (2016 £3m loss) was taken directly to the income statement in respect of held for trading derivatives that are
Used to hedge Group balance sheet exposure.

The closing hedging reserve, excluding the impact of tax. was a loss of £44m (2016, £36m gain} The periods in which the cash flows are
expected to occur and when they are expected to Impact the income statement are a loss of £35m (2016 £26m gain) within one year and a
lass of £9m (2016 £10m gain) between one and five years.
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21 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS CONTINUED
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
The following financial assets and habifities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

Related amounts not set off in the balance sheet

Gross amounts of [
recognised financiat

Gross amounts of {iabilitiesMassets Net amaunts
recegmsed financial setoff in the presented in the Financral

assetsflliabilities) balance sheet balance sheet Instruments Net Amount
As at 30 September 20017 £m Fm £m £m £m
Derivatives financial assets o 62 - 62 (53} 9
Derivatives financial liabilities ms) - na) 53 (65)
Cash and cash equivalents . 1.412 (5) 1,407 - 1407
Bank cverdrafts (13} 5 {8} - (8}
Total 1,343 - 1343 - 1,343

Related amounts not set off in the balance sheet

Gross amounts of |
recognised financial

Gross amaunts of {liabilitiesHassets Net amaunts
recogrised financial setoff in the presented in the Financial

assetsfiliahihties) balance sheet balance sheet lnstruments Net Amount
As at 30 September 2016 £m £m £m £m Fm
Denvatives financial assets - 171 - ) m s 9%
Derivatives financial habilites ) ) {86} - L 5 m
Cash and cash equivalents 1778 (2) 1776 - 1776
Bank overdrafts (544] 2 (542) - (542}
Total 1319 - 1319 - 1319

For the financial assets and labilities subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above. each agreement
between the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle
on a net hasis. In the absence of such an election financial assets and hahilities will be settled on a gross basis, hawever, each party te the
master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the
other party.

22 FINANCIAL RISK

The Group is subject to nisks retated to changes in interest rates, exchange rates, fuel prices, liquidity and counterparty credit within the
framework of its business operations.

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s subject to nisks ansing from interest rate movements in connection with the issue of Eurobonds, bank debt, aircraft financing
and cash investments. Interest rate swaps are used to manage these risks and are designated as both cash flow and fair value hedges
Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group has activities in a large number of countries and 1s therefore subject to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations These risks arise
in connection with the procurement of services in destinations outside the source market. For example, US Dollar exposure arises on the
procurement of fuel and operating supplies for aircraft, as well as investments in aircraft

The Group requires segments to identify and appropriately hedge all exposures in line with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial risk of each underlying busingss. Each segmental hedging pelicy includes the hedging build up and permitted instruments.
The maximum hedge tenor is 24 months and each segment should achieve at least an 80% hadge ratio prior to the start of the season.

The Group uses currency forwards. currency swaps and currency options to manage transactional currency risks and these are usually
designated as cash flow hedges.

The Group does not hedge translation exposures arising from profits generated outside the UK
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| 22 FINANCIAL RISK CONTINUED
Fuel price risk
Exposurs to fuel price risk arises due to flying costs incurred by the Group's aircraft

The Group reguires segments to 1dentify and appropriately hedge all exposures in line with approved treasury policies designed to reflect
the commercial risk of each underlying business. Each segmental hedging policy includes the hedging build up and permitted instruments
The maximum hedge tenor is 24 months and in general each segment should achieve at least an 80% hedge ratio prior ta the start of

the seasan

The Group uses commodity derivative contracts, including fixed price contracts {swaps) and net purchased options to manage fuel price risk
and these are usually designated as cash flow hedges.

The market risks that the Group is subject to have been identified as interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk and fuel price risk

The impact of reasonably possible changes in these risk variables on the Group. based an the period end holdings of financial instruments
have been calculated and are set out in the tables below. In each case 1t has been assumed that all other variables remain constant. As at
30 September 2017 the sensitivity of these risks to the defined scenario changes are set out below.

| Interest rate risk

i o7 2016
. impact impact
on profit Impact on prafit Impact
, befare tax on equity befara tax on gquity
| £m Em £m £m
1% (2016: 1%) increase in interest rates - 9 - 8 -
025% (2016 0 25%) decrease in interest rates {2) - (2) -
i Foreign exchange rate risk
207 2006
impact Impact
on profit l Impact on prafit Impact
‘ before tax on equity befare tax on equity
£m £m £m Em
5% (2@ 5%) strengthening of Euro - 7 i 8 ) 12
i 5% (20016 5%} weakening of Euro 1 7 m ()
| -V 9nl weakening of N - . I .
5% (2016: 5%} strengthening of US Dollar 2 75 3 80
i 5% (2016 5%) weakening of US Dollar (1) (687) (2) (72)
Fuel price risk
2017 2016
Impact Impact
on profit Impact on profit Impact
before tax on equity before tax on equity
£m £m £m £m
10% (20'6: 10%) increase in fuel price o - 83 - 6!
10% (2016 10%) decrease in fuel price - {63 - {61

| Given recent historical movements in fuel prices Management believes a 10% shift I1s a reasonable possibility
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22 FINANCIALRISK CONTINUED

Liquidity risk

The liquidity position of the Group 1s significantly influenced by the booking and payment pattern of customers As a result, liquidity 1s at its
lowest in the winter menths and at its highest in the summer months The Group manages the seasona! nature of its liguidity by making use
of its bank facility the terms of which. including the covenant measures. are detalled in the borrowings note {refer to Note 19} The Group also
uses liquidity swaps to manage short-term currency positions These liguidity swaps are presented as held-for-trading financial instruments

The undrawn committed debt facility plus the cash available ranged between £993m and £1824m during the current financial year
(2016, £586m~£2 212m).

Surplus short-term liquidity is invested in accerdance with approved treasury policy.

Financia! liabilities are analysed below based on the time between the period end and their contractual matunty. The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash flows and will differ from both carrying vafue and fair value

Amount due
in less than between ‘ between in more than

Imanths 3 and i2 months land 5 years 5 years Total

At 30 September 2017 Em Em Em Em £m

Trade and other payables o 1967 180 51 4 2.202

Borrowings o 2 W7 1,310 28 1579

0bligations under finance leases L 13 36 105 26 180

Denvative financial instruments . ) o - s

- payable 1054 2,054 546 - 3654

-recewable L (083 (9890 (542) - _13.584)

Provisions arising from contractual obligations 27 102 224 79 432

2,232 400 1.694 137 4463

Amount due

In less than between ‘ between in mare than

3 months 3 and 12 menths land § years 5 years Total

At 30 September 2016 £m Em £m £m £m

Trade and other payables 1.851 168 19 2 2140

Borrowings o - 652 252 1076 21 2001

Obligations under finance leases i4 40 138 28 220
Derivative financial instruments: o . o

- payable N4 2.005 575 - 3294

- receivable (740) (2.028) {593) - {3.361)

Provisions arising from contractual obligations 33 45 260 Bl 395

2530 482 1575 102 4689

For all gross settled derivative financial instruments. such as foreign currency forward contracts and swaps. the pay and receive leg has
been disclosed in the table above For net settled derivative financial instruments, such as fuef swaps and optiens, the fair value as at the
year end of those instruments in a liability position has been disclosed in the table above. Trade and other payables include nen-financial
habilities of £165m (2016 £148m} which have not been analysed above

Counterparty credit risk
The Group I1s exposed to credit nisk in relation to deposits. outstanding derivatives and trade and other recevables

The maximum exposure in respect of each of these items at the balance sheet date s the carrying value. The Group assessesits
counterparty credit risk exposure in relation to the investment of surplus cash, fuel contracts, foreign exchange and interest rate hedging
contracts and undrawn credit facilities, The Group primarily uses published credit ratings to assess counterparty strength and to define the
credit hmit for each counterparty in accordance with approved treasury policies

The Group's approach to credit risk in respect of trade and cther recervables is explained in Note 16,
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23 INSURANCE
Management of insurance risk

Incidental to 1ts main business. the Group, through its subsidiary White Horse Insurance Ireland DAC, issues contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk and that are classified as insurance contracts. As a general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance
risk the possibility of having to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder

Business written 1s travel insurance for both Group and non-Group customers

The principal nature of travel insurance risks 1s ong of short-term. low value and high volume Underwriting performance is menitored on an
ongoing basis and pricing reviewed annually for each individual contract.

Exposure is capped by specific [imits within the insurance policy and by using remsyrance contracts for any claims in excess of these
retention limits.

Insurance risk s spread across several European countries where the Group operates including the UK, Ireland and Continentat Europe

When estimating the cost of claims outstanding at the year end. the principal assumption underlying the estimates is the Group's past
develgpment pattern. This includes assumptions in respect of historic claims costs, average claims handling expenses and market
developments. The Group has an Actuarial Function to review its liahilities to ensure that the carrying values are adeguate Any changes to
these variables are not expected to have a material effect on the Group financial statements.

The Group operates a reinsurance policy approved by the white Horse Insurance Ireland DAC Board of Directors which ensures that
reinsyrers have a financial stability rating of A {S&P} The Group has assessed these credit ratings as being satisfactory i dimimishing the
Group's exposure to the credit risk of its insurance recervables.

24 DEFERRED TAX
The following are the major deferred tax liahilities and assels recognised by the Group and mavements thereon during the current year

Aircraft Retirement Fair value Other
finance benefit of financiat tempaorary Tax
. leases obligations mstruments differences losses Total
: £m £m Em Em £m £m
At1 Cctober 2016 _ . 55} % hg 185) 255 i77
[Chargelicradit to income 8 ) 17 36 {50) 8
Credit to equity - - (32) - - 4 (28
Exchange differences (2) 2 - {4) 2 (2
At 30 September 2017 {51) 45 3 {53) 21 155
| Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
: reporting purposes:
|
| 7 2016
Em £m
Deferred tax assets ) o B 216 228
Deferred tax liabilities (61) {51
155 177

154

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of £3182m (restated 2016: £3.274m} available for offset against future profits.
Deferred tax assets have only been recognised to the extent that the business has forecast future taxable profits against which the assets
may be recovered

As a result of the contimuing robustness of the Spanish business it is now considered appropriate for all Spanish losses and deductible
temporary differences to be recognised.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respact of tax losses of £2.222m (restated 2016. £2132m) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. £2.219m of these losses have no expiry date, with the remaining £3m expiring within 5 years
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24 DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED

Other temporary differences on which deferred tax has been provided primanly relate to the difference in book to tax value on qualifying tax
asssats, provisions for which tax relief was not originally avallable, and fair value accounting on assets acquired as part of the merger

In addition. the Group had unused other temporary differences amounting to £432m (2016 £374m) for which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax habilities were offset against the corresponding deferred tax assets as appropriate within territories,

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in respect of unremitted earnings of subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures because
the Group 15 in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that such differences will not
reverse In the foreseeable future.

Factors affecting the tax charge in future periods

In addition to the reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017). a further reduction to 17% (effective from
| April 2020) was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016 Deferred tax on temporary differences and tax losses as at the balance sheet
date 15 calculated based on the substantively enacted rates at which the tempcerary differences and tax losses are expected to reverse

The Group's future tax charge could be affected by numerous factors. including but not hmited to.

> the UK's proposal to amend the tax ruies relating to the utilisation of brought forward losses and the deductibility of interest were
substantively enacted on 31 October 2017 These new rules apply retrospectively from 1 Aprd 2017 With substantive enactment taking place
after the Groups balance sheet date. the accounting standards do not require the impact of these rules to be accounted for until the
period ended 30 September 2018. Due to the complexity of the legislation it is too soon to guantify the impact on UK deferred tax. and

> any tax reforms in jurisdictions where we have a taxable presence including any reforms which may arise from the UK's proposed exit
from the EU, from the European Commission's proposals for a Common Corporate Tax Base across the EU or any reforms adopted from the
OECD's BEPS actions such as those in relation to the deductibility of interest. anti-aveidance or transfer pricing

25 PROVISIONS

’ Arrcraft ‘ Rearganisation
maintenance Off-market Insurance and and restructuring Other

provisions leases litigation plans provisions Total
£m £m £m Em £m Em
A1 October 2015 (restated) B 87 ~ o B & o403
Additional provisions in the year 5l - 86 8 24 169
Unused amounts released in the year (19) - (2) (2 {a) (27)
Unwinding of discount 4 - - } - ) 1 5
Utillisaticn of provisions {34) {7} {90) (10) {18) (157)
Exchange differences 4] ] 2 1 2 47
At 30 September 2016 (restated) 330 5 7l 3 31 440
Additional provisions in the year 73 - 109 12 3l 225
Unused amounts released In the year (37) (2) (3) (2) (4) (48)
Unwinding of discount o 1l - - - 1 2
Utilisation of provisions (8) (3} 1102) 12) (28) {153}
Exchange differences (3) - - - ? 1y
At 30 September 2017 366 - 75 1 33 475
Included in current liabilities T ' 168
Included in non-current liabilities 307
At 30 September 2017 475
Included in current liabilities B ) o L o 138
Included in non-current liabilities 301
At 30 September 2016 440
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25 PROVISIONS CONTINUED

The aircraft maintenance provisions relate to maintenance on leased aircraft and spares used by the Groups arrlines in respect of leases
which include contractual return conditions This expenditure anises at different times over the life of the aircraft with major overhauls

typically ogcurring between two and 10 years. The aircraft maintenance provisions are reassessed at least annually in the narmal course of
business with a correspanding adjustment made to either non-current assets laircraft and arcraft sparesi or arcraft costs

Insurance and litigation represents costs related to legal disputes. customer compensation clams including £U 261} and estimated costs
arising through insurance contracts in the Group's subsidiary. White Horse Insurance Ireland DAC

Recrganisation and restructuring plans predominantly represent committed restructuring costs in the Group Tour Operator segment

Other provisions includes items such as onerous contracts. dilapidations and emissions trading liabilities Of the £3Im charge recognised in
the year. £13m has been classified as a Separately Disclosed ttem within ‘Onerous leases and store closures. For further details refer to Note
7 Onerous lease provisions will be utilised over the lease terms

26 CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted. called-up

Allatted. called-up

and fuily paid and partly paid
Ordinary Shares Deferred Shares Deferred Shares
Ordinary $hares Deferred Shares of £0.01 each of €009 each | of El each, 25p paid

of €0 01 each of €0 09 each £m £m
At1 October 2015 1535.851.316 954981.95 n - 58 50000
Exercise of Warrants B - N N N N
Issue of shares - R _ N ~
At 30 September 2016 1.535.851.316 934981938 i 58 50.000
Exercise of warrants - - - - -
Issue of shares - ) _ B _ " -
At 30 September 2017 1,535.851,316 934,981,938 il 58 50,000

156

The Ordinary Shares carry the nght to the profits of the Company available for distribution and to the return of capital on a winding up of
the Company The Ordinary Shares carry the right to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company: each share halds the right to
one vote. The Ordinary Shares are admitted to the premium segment of the Official List and to trading on the London Stock Exchange's
main market. Both classes of Deferrad Shares carry no right to the profits of the Company. On a winding up. the holders of the Sterling-
denominated Defarred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each Sterling-dencminated Deferred
Share and the holders of the Euro-denominated Deferred Shares would be entitled to receive an amount equal to the capital paid up on each
Euro-denominated Deferred Share only after the halders of the Ordinary Shares and Sterling-denominated Deferred Shares have received, in
aggregate. the amounts paid up thereon. The holders of bath classes of Deferred Shares are not entitled to receive notice, attend. speak or
vote (whether on a show of hands or on a poll) at general meetings of the Company.

Contingent rights to the allotment of shares

As at 30 September 2017, eptions to subscribe for Ordinary Shares were cutstanding with respect to the Thomas Cook Group ple 2007
Performance Share Plan, the Thamas Cook pic 2011 Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas Cook 2014 Deferred Bonus Pian. For further details
refer 10 Note 29 On exercise. the awards of shares under the plan will be satisfied by either purchases in the market of existing shares or,
subject to institutional guidelines. issuing new shares

Own shares held in trust

Shares of the Company are held under trust by EES Trustees Internaticnal Limited in respect of the Thomas Cook Group plc 2007
Performance Share Plan, the Thomas Cook plc 2011 Restricted Share Plan and the Thomas Cook 2014 Deferred Bonus Plan Equiniti Share Plan
Trustees Limited hold shares in connection with the Thomas Cook Group ple Buy As You Earn Scheme In accordance with IFRS, these are
treated as Treasury Shares and are included in ‘other reserves in the balance sheet.

The number of shares held at 30 September 2017 by EES Trustees International Limited and Equiniti Share Plan Trustees Limited was 321,284
(2018 3.899182) and 343.310 (2016: 358.893] respectively. The cumulative cost of acquisition of these shares was £5m (2016 £6m) and the
market value at 30 September 2017 was £4m (2016, £3m). Shares held by the trust have been excluded from the weighted average number of
shares used in the calculation of earnings per share.

THOMAS COOXGROUP PLC AnnuclReport and Accounts 2017



26 CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safequard the Group s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns
for Shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (net of related hedging instruments], cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the parent {as shown in the Group balance sheet). At the balance sheet date the Group had total capital of £320m
{2016 £495m)

27 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases. which fall due as follows

2007 2016

Property dorcraft and ! Property Awrcraft and
and other aircraft spares § Total and other aireraft spares Total
£m Em Em £m £m £m
Within one year o 68 159 N7 7l 163 234
Later than one and less than five years 187 558 745 202 642 844
After five years 120 377 497 92 505 597
375 1,094 1469 365 1310 1675

Operating lzase rental payable charged to the income statement for hire of awrcraft and aircraft spares was £219m (2016 £180m) which
includes £75m {2016: £60m) for seasonal wet feases. Operating lease rental payable charged to the income statement for property and other
was £92m (2016: £93m) which includes £13m of onerous lease provisions recognised in the year (2016. £16m).

Operating lease payments principally relate to rentals payable for the Group s retail shop and hotel properties and for aircraft and spares
used by the Group’s airlines Shop leases are typically negotiated for an average term of four years

Leases for new aircraft are typically negotiated for an average term of 12 years leases for second hand arrcraft and extensions are typically
considerably shorter.

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

2017 2016
£m £m

Contingent liabilities N 54 126

Contingent Yiabilities primarily comprise guarantees, letters of credit and other contingent liabilities, all of which arise in the ordinary course
of business. The amounts disclosed above represent the Group's contractual exposure.

Tha Group complies with all the standards relevant to consumer protection and formal requirements in respect of package tour contracts
and has all the necessary licences for the various sales markets The customers' right to reimbursement of the return travel cests and
amounts pald in case of insolvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency is guaranteed (n all Thomas Cook sales
markets in line with local legislation and within the various guarantee systems applied In the United Kingdem, there is a fund mechanism
whergeby travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upon booking Customer rights in
relation to Thomas Cook Group in Germany, Belgium and Austria are guaranteed via an insolvency insurance system. in Ireland, Scandinavia
and France via guarantees provided by banks. insurance companies, accredited associations and in The Netherlands via a quaranteed fund.

In the ordinary course of its business. the Group is subject to commercial disputes and #itigation including customer claims. employee
disputes taxes and other kinds of lawsuits. These matters are inherently difficult to quantify. In appropriate cases. a provision is recognisad
based on best estimates and Management's judgement but there can be no guarantee that these provisions will result in an accurate
prediction of the actual costs and liabilities that may be incurred. These are not expected to have a material impact on the fimancial position
of the Group.
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29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company operates equity-settled share-based payment schemes, as outlined below. The total charge recognised during the year in
respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions was £3m (2016 £Im chargel

The Thamas Cook Group plc 2007 Performance Share Plan {PSP)

Executive Directers and senior executives of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted optians to acquire or contingent share awards of,
the Ordinary Shares of the Company The awards will vest if performance targets are met during the three years following the date of grant
The Thomas Cook Group plc 2011 Restricted Share Plan [RSP)

Senior management of the Company and its subsidiaries are granted options to acquire or contingent share awards of. the ordinary shares
of the Company Executive Directors are excluded from receiving awards under the RSP The Company will determine at the date of award
whether the award will be subject to a performance target and the date of vesting

The Thomas Cock 2014 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP)

Executive Directors and a small number of senior Executives of the Company and 1ts subsidiaries are granted contingent share awards of the
Ordinary Shares of the Company. relating to a proportion of their annual bonus Awards are subject to forfeiture if a claw-back event occurs
during the period that the award is held.

The mavements in options and awards during the year in relation to the PSP and the other awards were.

07

psp Other
Outstanging at beginning of year ) _ © 20295442 1730112
Granted ' o - 17167250 2.971.5M
Exercised 7 B ~ (90,684) (617.874)
Forfeitad i o ’ B T peasaa) (2338
Lapsed (2,448,446} 1,648)
Outstanding at end of year 32.97518 3.950.829
Exercise price {£) ,,, o o o nil nit
Average remalmng_-c_ontractua\ life {years) i 1.5 16

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year ended 30 September 2017 was £0.89

2016

PSP Other

Qutstanding at beginning of year _ ) ) 25465856 1711482
Granted 9.292704 882355
Exercised - _ {4s8T824) _ 1673.488)
Lapsed 19775194} (190.246)
Outstanding at end of year 20,295,442 1730112
Exercise price_(_.é] - o nl nil
Average remaining contractual ife (years) 17 09

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for the options exercised during the year ended 30 September 2016 was £0.67.

THOMAS COOKGROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017



29 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

The fair value of options and awards subject to basic EPS performance targets was determined by the use of Black-Scholes medels and the
farr value of options subject to TSR performance targets was determined by the use of Monte Carlo simulations. For options and awards
granted during the year the key inputs to the modets were:

2017 2016
P5p bEP PP DBP
Weighted average share price at measurement date £0.86 £0.89 £113 £103
Weighted average exercise pnice N o nilk nif nil ~nil
Expected volatility 66% 66% 40% 40%
Weighted average option life (years). N i 3 148 3 133
Weighted average risk-freerate 0.79% 0.79% 0859% 0.8%
Expected dividend yield ) ) ) ) nil nil _oonil nil
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £0.69 £0.89 £074 £103

Expected volatility has been based on the historic velatility of the Company's shares and the shares of other compani2s in the same or
related sectors

30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Pension schemes for the employees of the Thomas Cook Group consist of defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans, with the
defined benefit plans being both funded and unfunded The obligations arising from defined contributicn plans are satisfied by contribution
payments to both private and state-run insurance providers The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are determined as follows:

2017 2016

£m Em
Present value of fundad obligations o 135 1442
Fair value of plan assets o ) ) {1425} (1.470)
{Surplus){Deficit of funded plans {no} (28)
Present value of unfunded obligations 435 485
Total deficit of defined benefit pension plans 325 457

Unfunded defined benefit pension obligations

Unfunced defined benefit pension cbligations primarily relate to the Group's employees in the German businesses of Themas Cook AG and
the Condor Group Provisions are established on the basis of commitments made to those employees for old-age and transitional pensions
based on the legal, tax and econgmic circumstances cf the individual countries and on the period of employment and level of remuneration
of the respective employees.

Provisions for pensions and similar cbligations totalling E367m (2016 £416m) were attributable to the pensian commitments of the Condor
Group (Condor Flugdienst GmiH. Condor Berlin GmbH and CF GmbH). For employees wha joined a Condor Group company prior to 1995, the
total pension commitment of the pensions authority of the German federal government and regional states was adjusted and maintained in
the farm of a company pension scheme

The flight crews were additionally entitled tc a transitional provision for the period between the termination of their in-flight employment
and the time they bacame eligible for a state-run or company pension. In both cases, the benefit commitment depended on the final salaries
of the employees concerned pricr to the termination of their in-flight employment (final salary plan). Employees whe joined a Condor Group
company from 1995 onwards participate in a company pension scheme under which the pension entitlements are based on the average
salaries of those employees {average salary planl. The Condor Group also has retirement obligations arising frem individual commitments and
transitional provisiens

In accordance with 1AS 12, all these commitments are classified as unfurded defined henefit obligations and classified as such in these
financial statements.

The Condor Group defined benefit plans have been closed to new entrants [with the exception of pilots) since 2004

There are additional unfunded defined benefit obligations comprising individual commitments to executive staff at Thomas Cook Group and
obligations in respect of past service for employees in the Group Tour Operator segment.

The unfunded pension schemes are accounted for as part of liabilities for retirement benefit obhgations in the balance sheet.
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CCNTINUED
The following weighted average actuarial assumptions were made for the purpose of determining the unfunded defined benefit obligations

2017 2016

% %
Discount rate for scheme iabilities } ' ) ) 219% 162%
Expected rate of salary increases L . 257% 257%
Future pension increases ”___ - ES1% 152%
Rate of inflation 1.80% 181%

The mortality tables 2005 G drawn up by Prof. Or. Klaus Heubeck were used. for the German pension schemes. as the basis for the mortality
assumptions used in arriving at the presant value of the pension obligations at 30 September 2017 These assume a life expectancy for
members currently aged 65 of 19 3 years for men and 23 4 years for woman

Changes In the present value of unfunded pension obligations were as follows

2017 2016

£m £m
At beginning of year ) - _ 485 320
Current service cost™ - - N ] 7 - I
Interest cost* ) ) - B 8 8
Benefits paid B - {8) {7
Settlements* ) _ . s -
Effect of experience adjustments and demographic assumptions 7 1
Effect of financial assumptions {58) 105
Exchange difference 10 47
At end of year 435 485

" These amounts have been rechgnised in the income statement

Service costs, gains on settlement and curtailment gains have been included in personnel expenses in the income statement and the
unwinding of the discount rate of the expected retirement benefit obligations has been included in finance costs. Actuarial gains and losses
have been reported In the statement of comprehensive income

Funded defined benefit pension obligation

The pension entitlements of employees of Thomas Cook UK and employees in Norway and The Netheriands are previded through funded
defined benefit schemes, where pension contributions are paid over to the schemes and the assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees These schemes are closed te new entrants and continue to accrue future benefits
for existing active members.

The plans are final salary pension plans which provide benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for ife
The level of benefits provided depends on a member's length of service and their salary in the final years of active membership In the UK
plans. pensians in payment are generally updated in ine with retail price index, pensions in deferment are generally updated in line with
consumer price index.

Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of qualified actuaries in each country The fair value of the pension assets in
each scheme at the year end is compared with the present value of the retirement benefit obligations and the net difference reported as
a pension asset or retirement benefit obligation as appropriate. Pension assets are only recognised to the extent that they will result in
reimbursements being made or future payments being reduced

The funded defined benefit obligation primarily relates to the Thomas Cook UK Pension Plan The assumptions used in arriving at the present
value of the obligations at 30 September 2017 have been updated following the 2014 triennial actuarial funding valuation. The mortality
assumptions used in arriving at the present value of those obligations at 30 September 2017 are based on the 52PA pensioner tables

with 2013 CMI projection mode! until 2014 and then 2016 CMI projection model with a long-term trend rate of 1.5% for males and females.

The mortality assumptions adopted for the plan labilities indicate a further life expectancy for members currently aged 65 of 23 3 years

for men and 25.2 years for women. The Company and Board of trustees are responsible for governance of the plans and ensuring it is
sufficiently funded to meet current and future benefits. The trustees appoint advisers to carry out the administration actuarial work and
investment advice.
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Follewing the 2014 actuarial valuation of the Thomas Cook UK pension plan, the Recovery Plan agreed with the pension trustees to fund the
actuarial deficit was extended In line with that agreement, during the year ended 30 September 2017 Thomas Cook UK paid instalments

totalling £26m in [ine with the recovery plan.

The valuation of the Thomas Cook UK pension plan at 30 September 2017 resulted in a surplus of £123m (2016 £52m). this s included
within the net Group pension deficit of £327m (2016: £457m} The £123m has been disclosed as a pension asset in the statements of

financial position,
The movement in the defined benefit cbligation over the year is as follows

017 2016
Present value of abhgation £m £m
At beginning of year _ 1442 1083
Interest expenseflincome) 34 41
. o - L o o 34 4
Remeasurements 3 _
- Gain from change in demographic assumptions (26} -
- [Gain}floss frem change in financial assumptions B 72 387
- Experience [gainshlosses 10} (24)
{108) 363
Exchange differences ) T - T
Payments from plans:
- Benefit payments (53) {30
At end of year 1,315 1442
2017 206
Fair value of plan assets Em £m
At beginning of year o ) i (1,470 {1104}
Interest income {35 (43}
o - - - (35 (43
Remeasurements
- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expensef/(income) 56 (324}
56 (324)
Exchange differences (2) (4}
Expenses paid 2 3
Contributions T - ’
___~Employers (29) ) (29)
Payments from plans:
- Benefit payments 53 31
At end of year {1,425) (1470)
Deficit of funded plan (110} (28)
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
The weighted average actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2017 2016
% %
Discount rate for scheme liabilities o - - 261 5]
Inftation rate 3.05 2.96

The average mortality assumptions adopted far the plan liabilities indicate a further life expectancy for members currently aged 85 of
23.1 years for men and 25 years for women

007 2016
Quoted Non-quoted Total Quoted Non-quoted Tatal }

£m Em £m % £m £m £m %

Plan assets are comprised as follows: _
Cash and cash equivalents - N - n 1 8 -8 o
Equity instruments ) 2 - 9 108 - 108 7
Debt instruments 534 N 534 37 82 - 452 3l
Real estate - 54 54 4 59 - 59 4
Derivatives - - - - 651 - 651 44
Investment funds . 569 95 664 46 54 - 54 10
Assets held by Insurance company 6 34 40 3 4 34 38 3
Total 1242 183 1425 100 1436 34 1470 100

The scheme assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or other assats used by the
Group The scheme currently has part of its assets investad in a llability driven investment portfolio These assets. in combination with the
other protéctuion assets in the portfolio. provide interest rate and inflation rate protection

Sensitivities of the defined benefit obligation
The Group is exposed to a number of risks. the most significant of which are detailed below.

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields, if plan assets underperform this

yield. this will create a deficit. However. the Group believes that due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities and the strength of the
supporting group, a level of continuing equity investment 1s an appropriate element of the Group's long-term strategy to manage the plans
efficiently. See below for more details on the Group's asset-hability matching strategy

Changes in hond yig!ds
A decrease in corporate hond yields wilt increase plan labilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of the plans
bond holdings

Inflation risk

Some of the group pension obligations are linked to inflation. and higher inflation will lead to higher liabilities (although. in most cases. caps
on the level of inflationary increases are in place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The majority of the plan's assets are either
unaffected by {fixed interest bonds) or loosely correlated with lequities) inflation meaning that an increase in mflation will also increase
the deficit

Life expectancy
The majority of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the Iife of the member, so increases in ife expactancy will result in an
increase in the plans' liabilities.
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is.

tmpact on defined benefit obligation

Change in Increase in Decreasein

assumption assumption assumpticen

Discount rate for scheme liabilities ) 025% Increase by 6%  Decrease by 5%

Inflation rate 0.25% Decrease by 3% Increase by 4%
Mortality 1 year Increase by 2%

The ahove sensitivity analyses are based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit cbligation to significant actuarial assumpticns. the same method has been applied as when calculating the
pension hiabllity recognised within the statement of the financial position.

The expected future benefit payments are detailed below

Less than a year
At 30 September 2017 m

pension henefit payments i T 76

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at 30 September 2016 15 24 6 years

Defined contribution schemes

There are a number of defined contribution schemes in the Group. the principal scheme being the Thomas Cook UK DC Pension Scheme.
which 1s open to all UK employees. Cash contributions paid into the defined contribution schemes are accounted for as an income statement
expense as they are incurred The total charge for the year in respect of this and other defined contributicn schemes, including liabilities in
respect of insured benefits relating to workers' compensation arrangements, amounted to £51m (2016: £46m)

The assets of these schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries. which are related parties have been eliminated on conselidation and are not
disciosed in this note Transactions between the Group and its joint ventures and associates are disclosed below, Transactions between the
Company and its subsidiaries joint ventures and associates are disclosed in the Company s separate financial statements.

Trading transactions

During the year Group companies entered into the following transactions with refated parties who are not members of the Group

Associates and jaint ventures ‘

2017 2016
£m £m
Sale of goods and services ) o N 6
Purchases of goods and services 4 )
Other income _ - . - . . _ - !
Amounts owed by related parties B 2 » 1
Amounts owed to related parties (1) ) (i)

All transactions are considered to have been made at market prices. Qutstanding amounts will normally be settled by cash payment

Remuneration of key management personnel

Further information about the remuneration of individual Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 98
to 107

07 2016

£m Em
Short-term employee ber;eﬁts ) B _ —_, I R
4 3

The short-term employee benefits include employer social security payments which are excluded frem the Director's Remuneration Report

32 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2017 2016
£m £m
Non-current asset classified as held for sale 101 -

The non-current assets classified as held for sale consist mainly of properties in Germany Greece. Spain and the UK currently reported
within the Group Tour Operator segment. are due to be sold within one year and have been recorded at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell.
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33 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENTS

During the year management identified that fong term aircraft maintenance provisions had been measured using an incorrect discount rate
An adjustment has been calculated to restate the carrying value of these provisions using a risk free rate based on government bond rates
of similar currency and term to the related obligations The impact of this restatement principally affects the operming balance at | October
2015 and prior periods and has resuited in a £46m increase in aircraft maintenance provisions recorded within opening reserves as at

1 October 2015, The effect of applying these revised discount rates would not be material to the results of 2016

During the year a reassessment of contingent consideration to be settled in the period has been performed This has resulted in a £4m
reduction to the prior year separately disclosed (tems, within the mcome statement, and correspending reduction in non-controlling interest

Following the cessation of the Hotels 4U business in the UK at the end of 2016. it was identified during the year that there were a number of
balances that were assessed as no longer recoverable. This resulted in a reduction in prior year profit of £6m. of which £2m was in respect
of the impairment of property and recognition of onerous leases recorded in separately disclosed items. A further £4m was recaegnised in
underlying profit in respect of a reduction in trade and other receivables.

During FY16 an estimate of the TOMS (Tour Operator Margin Schemel liability was recognised, however it was subseguentiy identified that the
final liability was understated by £2m. This has been recorded as an adjustment to underlying profit with a corresponding decrease in trade
and cther payables

Management identified a deferral of a profit on a historic sale and leaseback transaction had not been correctly recorded over the life of the
lease. This resulted in an adjustment of F4m being recorded in opening reserves in the prior year.

Amounts of £7m praeviously recognised receivables have been reassessed as irrecoverable. thus included £3m that related to pre-FYI6 and
therefore has been taken through the opening reserves. The remaining £4m related to FY16 and resulted in an adjustment to separately
disclesed items in 2016.

The errars have been corrected Dy restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior periods, as foliows,

Impact on gquity - increasefidecrease) n equity 30 September 2016 | Em |
Trade and other receivables o B ) S m
Plant. property and equipment {1}
Short-term provision {n
Current trade and other payables {2)
Nan-current trade and other payables (4)
Long-term provisions {46)
Net assets {65)
Opening reserves ' o L o (53
Retained earnings T (8)
Equity attributable to equity owners of the parent {61)
Non-controlling interests (4)
Total equity {65)

{1l The mpact an opening reserves compnses leng tarm prowisians {£46m) deferred incame m long term trade and other payables (EAml and trade and othes recervables {£3m)
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33 PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENTS CONTINUED

Separately
Underlying EBIT disclosed items Statutory profit
Impact on statement of profit or loss - increasefldecrease) in profit for 30 September 2016 Em £m £m
Sale of goods ) - 2 - (2)
Operating expenses 4 (2) {6)
Net impact on profit for the year (6) (2) {8)
Attributable to.
Equity holders of the parent B ) — 8
Nan-controlling interests -
(8}
|
Impact ofy hasic and diluted earnings per share (EPS} - increasefidecrease) in EPS I }
Basic and diluted EPS [0.5lpence

166

34 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As previously announced, from November 2017 our Belgian awline business transferred to Brussels Airlines such that it is no lenger part of

the Group

In November 2017 the Group entered into new financing arrangements being an enlarged. £875 million revalving credit facility and bonding
and guarantee facility maturing in Novernber 2022, In addition the Group has secured £100 milhon of annual rolling bilateral funding from
one of their insurance providers. These new arrangements replace the Group's existing facility, which provided £800 million of facilities until

May 2019
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AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

30 September

30 September
06

2017
Notas £m £m
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 7 49 40
Property plant and equipment B B 1 2
Investments in subsidiaries 8 2,037 2035
Tax assets 9 - |
2,087 2078
Current assets
Trade and other receivables - ) 9 1.575 1610
Cash and cash equivalents 10 1 -
1,576 1610
Total assets 3.663 3688
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables I {151) {571)
Barrowings . - B 4 - [200]
Short-term provisions 13 {1 {2)
152) (173)
Non-current liabilities
BOrrowings 14 (653) -
Total liabilities (808) (7173)
Net assets 2.858 2915
Equity ]
Called-up share capital 15 69 69
Share premium account 524 524
Merger reserve 1429 1429
Hedging and translation reserve 519 519
Capital redemption reserve ] 8
Retained earnings surplus 37 374
Investment in own shares (8l (8
Total equity 2,858 2,815
The loss after tax of the Company amounted to £52m (2016 £8Im profit after taxl.
The financial statements on pages 167 to 180 were approved by the Board of Directors on 21 Navember 2017
Signed on behalf of the Board
MICHAEL HEALY
DIRECTOR
Notes 1 to 20 form part of these financial statements
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YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 201/

COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

i ’ vear ended Year ended
30 Septerber 30 September
017 016
£m £m
Cash flows from aperating activities . . S
Loss pefore tax 62} 51
Adjustments for B a o
| Interest expense 47 30
Amortisation N - 6 B 4
Increase in provisions ] i
{Iincrease)/decrease in recevables (s) 15
Increase/{decreasel in payables (338) 4
Net cash used in operating activities (353) 14]
Investing activities ‘
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets {17} {g)
Net cash from investing activities (17) (18)
Flﬂiﬁg activities . o - o
Net inflowf{outflow] from borrowings 428 (100
Interast paid B (49 24
Dividends paid 8 -
Net cash used in financing activities n (124)

Net increasef(decreasej in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES

IN EQUITY

Share Share Merger redeg:!ppt‘itaar1I Translation Retained Own
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings shares Total
£m Em £m £m Em Em £m Em
At 30 September 2015 69 524 1429 8 382 302 {18y 2696
Profit for the year - - - - - 8l - 8l
Other comprehensive income - - - - 137 - - 137
Total comprehensive income for the year 137 8l - 218
1 Fquity credit in respect of share-based payments - - - - - S - 1
Exercise of own shares - - - - - - (10 10 -
At 30 September 2016 69 524 1429 8 519 374 {8} 2915
Loss for the year ) - - - - = {52) - (52}
Total comprehensive income far the year - [52) - {52)
Dividends paid - - - - - (8) - (8)
Fquity credit in respect of share-based payments - - - - - 3 ] - 3
At 30 September 2017 &9 524 1429 B 519 7 {8) 2858

Other comprehensive income and expenses relates to translation of the balance sheat.

The marger reserve arose on the 1ssue of shares of the Company In connection with the acguisition of the entire share capital of
Thomas Cook AG and MyTravel Group plc on 19 June 2007 and represents the difference between the nominal value and the fair value

| ofthe shares acquired

in March 2015

The share premium arose in connection with the issue of Ordinary Shares of the Company following the issuance of shares to Fosun

At 30 September 2017, the Company had distributable reserves of £286m (2016 £374m).
Details of the own shares held are set out in Note 26 to the Group financial statements
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thomas Cook Group plc is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006
and listed on the London Stock Exchange. The address of the registered office 1s 3rd Floor, South Building, 200 Aldersgate. London ECIA 4HD.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these Company financial statements are the same as those set out in Note 3 to the
Group financial statements with the addition of the fellowing.

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
These policies have been apphed consistently to the periods presented.

The functional currency of the Company 1s Sterling

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with EU endorsed International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS) and
interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) and Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted for use in the European Union and therefare comply
with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation

After making enquiries and taking into account the matters set out in the Risk Management section on pages 54 to 59. the Directors confirm
that they consider it appropriate to use the going concern basis in preparing the Annual Report & Accounts

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments} at fair value through the profit or loss, share-based payments and defined benefit
pension obligations

The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest million in Great British Pounds Amounts in pence have been rounded to the
nearest tenth of a pence.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial information presented in this document are set out below
These policies have been applied consistently to the periods presented unless otherwise stated

3 PROFIT FORTHE YEAR
As permitted by section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected not to present its own income statement for the year

The auditors remuneration for audit services to the Company was £01m (2016 £01m)

4 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

2017 2016
£m £m

wagss and salaries - _a B
Socal security costs ? !
Share-based payments - equity settled 2 0
25 24
2017 016
Number Number
The average number of employees of the Company during the year was: 183 169

Empleyees are based in the UK and Germany

Disclosures of individual Directors’ remuneration. share options. long-term incentive schemes. pension contributions and pension
entitlements required by the Companies Act 2006 and specified for audit by the Financial Services Authority are on pages 98 to 108 within
the Remuneration Repert and form part of these audited accounts.

The employees of the Company are members of the Group pension schemes as detaled in Note 30 of the Group financial statements
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5 TAX

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unrecognised tax losses of £99m {2016 £145m) and unrecognised deductible short-term
temporary differences of £20m (2016 £im)

6 DIVIDENDS
The details of the Company's dividend are disclesed in Note 10 to the Group financial statements

7 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

£m
Other intangible assets: ~ . L
Cost
At 30 September 2015 - %
Additions B 18
At 30 September 2016 44
Additions o B ) ) o ~ 5
At 30 September 2017 59
Accumulated amaortisation - ) 7 o S
AL30 September 2015 ' [
Charge for the year 3
At 30 September 2016
Charge for the year 6
At 30 September 2017 10
Carrying amount
At 30 September 2017 49
At 30 September 2016 40

Software and intangible assets are initially measured at cost The direct costs associated with the development of business software and
intangibles are capitalised where project success is probable and the capitalisation criteria is met. Following initial recognition. software and
intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment tosses. Software and intangible assets with a finite if
are amortised from the date the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life which is four years (websites
five years)

At each reporting date, Thomas Cook Group plc reviews the carrying amounts of its software and intangible assets to determine whether
there (s any indication that those assets have suffered an imparrment loss. Where estimated useful lives or recoverable values have
diminished, amortisation is accelerated.
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

8 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

£m ‘
Cost and net book value
At 30 September 2015 1873
. Adjustment in respect of share-hased payments 1
| @ions 55
Exchange difference 106
At 30 September 2016 2035
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments ~ ) 2
Additions B -
Exchange difference .
At 30 September 2017 2,037
Alist of the Company's related undertakings 1s shown in Note 20 to the financial statements.
9 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
017 2016
£m £m
Current - } L ]
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings S -  lse2 1608
Other receivables - 1
Deposits and prepayments 13 3
I 1575 1510
Non-current .
Tax assets - 1
- 1
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand The average interest on overdue amounts owed by subsidiary
: undertakings is 0 8% (2016 0.3%) The Directors consider the fair value to be equal to the book value
10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
m7 2008
£m £m

Cash at bank and in hand !

Denmark and Norway in respect of local regulatory requirements.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of these assets approximate therr fair value,

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2007 06

Em £m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings L B S o 125 543
Social security and other taxes ) 5 1
Other payables . 1 10
Accruals 22 17
151 571

The average interest on overdue amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1s 12% (2016, 2.4%).

Amounts owing to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. with the exception of £43m due in 2023 The Directors consider the fair
value to be equal to the book value

12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's financial Instruments comprise nvestment in subsidiary undertakings, amounts due to/from substdiary undertakings. cash
and cash equivalents, and other payables and receivables. The Company s approach to the management of financial risks is discussed on
nages 151 to 153 The Company believes the value of its financial assets to be fully recoverable

2017 The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments Is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates {primarily
Euro) The Company estimates that a 5% strengthening in Euro would increase profit before tax by Enil, while a 5% weakening in Euro would
decrease profit before tax by Enil

2016: The carrying value of the Company's financial instruments is exposed to movements in foreign currency exchange rates (primarily
Eurp) The Company estimates that a 5% strengthering in Euro would Increase profit before tax by Enil, white a 5% weakening in Euro would
decrease profit before tax by £nil

The carrying value of the Company’s financial Instruments is exposed to movements in interest rates. The Company estimtes that a 1%
ncrease in interest rates would increase profit before tax by £nil (20168 1% increase in mterest rates increase loss before tax by £nill, while a
0.25% decrease in interest rates would decrease profit before tax.

Carrying values of financial assets and liabifities

The carrying value of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016 are 5et out below.

Finaneial

Loans & liahilities at
recervables | amortised cost Tota!
At 30 September 2017 £m £m Em

Non-current asset investments
Trade and other recevables - 7 7 15715 - 1575
Cash and cash equivalents 1 - 1
Trade and other payables o o - nsir Qs
Borrowings - (653) (653
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - {1 1
1576 (805) LEL
THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

12 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Financial

Loans & liabilties at
recewvables | amorbised cost Total
At 30 September 2006 £m £m £m

Non-current asset investments o

Trade and other recevables B 1610 - 1810
Cash and cash equivalents - - -
Trade and other payables - _fem o ism
Borrowings - {200) (200)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - {2) (2}
1510 {773) 837

Financial liabilities are analysed below based on the time between the year end and their contractual matunty The amounts shown are
estimates of the undiscounted future cash fiows and will differ from both carrying value and fair value Any cash flows based on a floating

rate are calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset

Amount doe
In less than | Between 3 and Between land
3 months 1Z months S years Total
AL 30 September 2017 £m £m £m £m
Trade and otner payables - T w3 - f144]
Borrowings o @ 1e18) (860)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - - - -
(164) (22) (818) {1,004)
Amount dye
Inless than | Between 3 and | Between | and
I months 12 months 5 years Total
At 30 September 2006 £m Em £m £m
Trade and other payables i S64) - (571
Borrowings - (218} - {28)
Provisions arising from contractual obligations - 2 - (2)
(564) (227) - (791)

The Company is exposed to credit risk in relation to cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivatles. and amounts due from
subsidiary undertakings The maximum exposure in respect of each of these items at the balance sheet date is their carrying vaiue

The Company assesses its counterparty exposure in relation to surplus cash using credit limits based on counterparty credit ratings.

For amounts due from subsidiary undertakings and receivables. future operating cash flows are assessed for any indication of impairment,
In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the Company's investments is not less than the carrying value as stated in the balance sheet,
As of 30 September 2017 Company recevables from Group undertakings were not past due and were expected to be recovered in full.

The Company's approach to credit risk in respect of trade and other receivables is explained in Notg 9.
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13 PROVISIONS

2017 2018
Other provisions: £m £m
AL October ) B e (2 3
Utilisation of pravision i 1
At 30 September {1 (2}

Other provisigns relate to provisions for insurance claims

14 BORROWINGS

Borrowings comprise of a £€750m bond with an annual coupon of 6 25% maturing in June 2022 (2016. borrowings comprised of a £200m bond
with an annual coupon of 775% which was fully repaid in December 2016)

15 CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the Company's share capital are the same as those of the Group. and are disclosed in Note 26 to the Group financial
statements in this report

Detalls of share aptions granted by the Company are set out in Note 29 to the Group financial statements

16 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the balance sheet date. the Company had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments. related to property. under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

2007 2016
£m £m

Within one year ) o o . ] 1
Later than one year and less than five years 4
After five years

[0 1) S [ SV

17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 September 2017, the Campany had contingent hiabilities in respect of counter-guarantees for bank funding. letters of credit and
guarantees of amounts owed by subsidiaries amounting to £820m (2016. £669m). This predominantly redates to a guarantes on the
drawndown portion of the Group banking facility [detailed in Note 19 of the Group financial statements)

Also included are guarantees relataed to aircraft finance lease commitments. estimated based on the current book value of the finance lease
liabilities £154m (2016 £182m}

The Company complies with all the standards relevant to consumer pratection and formal requirements in respect of package tour contracts
and has all the necessary licences in the UK the customer's right to reimbursement of the return travel costs and amounts paid in case

of insolvency or bankruptcy on the part of the tour operator or travel agency is guaranteed in line with legislation in the UK via a fund
mechanism, whereby travel companies are required to collect and remit a small charge for each protected customer upan booking.

The Company has 1ssued a letter of support to confirm its intention to provide each subisidiary of the Group with sufficient funds to enable it
to pay its debts as they fall due for a period of at least 18 months

THOMAS COOK GROUP PLC AnnualReport and Accounts 2017
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18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Subsidiaries

The Company transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidiaries The Company enters into loans with its subsidiaries at both
fixed and floating rates of interest on a commercial basis. Hence, the Company incurs interest expense and earns interest income on these

loans. The Company also received dividend income from 1ts subsidiaries during the year

207 2016
£m £m
Transactions with subsidiaries I
Interast recevable ' 12 1
Interest payable o {7 3
Management fees and other expenses 30 ) 20
Dividend income received ) - 92
Year-end balances arising on transactions with subsidiaries
Loans receivable 1279 1527
Gther recewvables 89 77
Loans payable 54) (530)
Other payables {i6) (8)

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company., is et out in Note 31 af the Group

financial statements.

13 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The employees of the Company, including the Directors, collectively participate in all of the Group's equity-settied share-based payment

schemes. The details relating to these schemes in respect of the Company are identical to those disclosed in Note 29 to the Group financial

statements and have therefore not been re-presented here

The share-based payment charge of £lm {2016 £Iml is stated net of amounts recharged to subsidiary undertakings.
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20 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006. a full hst of subsidiaries, associates and jont ventures as at 30 September 2017

1s disclosed below.

Propartion of

shares held by
Nameg Registered office address the Company % Class of shares
1241 Limited' Westpoint Peterbarough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ6FZ England 130 ordinary
AB 937 Betaihgungsverwaltungs GmbH Thomas Coak Platz | 61440 Cherursel Germany 100 ardinary
Activos Tunsticos S 4 Calle Genaral Piera 154 07010 Paima de Mallorca Spain 40 ardinary
Aartgurs Finance Limitad Maont Crevelt House Bulwer Avenue St Sampsan Guernsey G¥2 4LH 104 ardinary
fartours Holiday s Transport Limited ) westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch wood Peterborough PE2EFZ England 1040 ordinary
Artours Resart Ownership EspanaSL B Calle Fray Juniper Serra § Entlp 07014 Palma de Matlorga llles Baleas Spain 100 ardinary
Algarve Tours - Agencia De Viagens E Tursmo Lda Estrada Nacienal 125410 €5t Aeroparto Edif Cefil Lopal 8000 Faro Montenegro Portugal 134 ardinary
Apha Raiseburo Partner GmbH Tharnas Coak Platz | 61440 Dberursel Germany 54 ardinary
&nfinpan S 1 Calle Mayor de Triana 120 5 Palmas de Gran Canana Las Palmas 35002 Span B 156 ordinary
Astral Hellas 54 R _ Agnostou Stratioti Square 17 M1 00 Rethymoen Crete Greece . o e ___ ordinary
Astral Spaim Incoming Callz Fray luniper Serra & Entlo 87014 Falma de Mallorca Mles Ba\aeggaénn 193 ardinary
Astral Tours (Cyprus) Limi o mga Fereou street Omega court Micosra Cyprus . B 70 ordmaa A
éelguanﬁ;{vel Network CVBA - 1i Imper astraat 10i3 1930 Zaventem Belgium - - 5% ardinary
Bius Sea Oversaas investmants Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 BFZ England 150 . B ardinary
Buchsr Reisen GmbH T Dusseldorfer StraGe 83 40667 Meartusch Germany 103 ardinary
Buzzard Leisure Limited westpoint Paterborough Business Park Lynch wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England 132 ardinary
Capitcl Heldings Limited ) - 3C Dunshughbn Business Centre Dunshaughlin Co Meath irsland 150 ordinary
Carouset Holidays Ltd H.ll hguse 1Liktle New Street London EC44 3TR United Kingdom e ardinary
Carpusel Resorts International Limited Hill House | Little New Street London EC4A3TR United Kingdom 108 ardinary
Close Number 1§ Limited Hill House 1 Little New Street London EC4AZTR United Kingdom 13 ardinary
Close Number 39 Limited Hill House | Little New Street London EC4A 3TR United Kingdom 130 ordinary
Crose Number 40 Limuited 14 Charing Cross St Helier JE2 3RP Jersey 100 ardinary
Ctose Number 6 Limited Westpont Peterburough Busimess Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZEFZ England 194 ardinary
Condor Beslin GmbH-" Elly-Bemhorn-Ring 4 12529 Schonefeld Berhn Germany 49939 ardinary
C_CJEFF-i;Jgdlensl GmpH- - o Condor Platz 60549, Frankfurt am Main Germany _ - 49 939 - ordinary
Condor Techmk GmbH Cander Platz 0543 Frankfurt am Man Germany o 49899 o oardinary
Co-op Group Travel 2 Koldings Limited westpaint Peterborough Business Park_Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ BFZ Eng\ana 164 . ardinary
Cooparatieve Parkway U A strum 7th Floor Stra;vmskylaan 3105 Amsterdam The Netherlands B o 190 class Awnterests witial

preferred class B and preferred

Class B

OMH In Dizstination Manag“ementHu\dwngs Cyprusiltd Makanos !l Avenue 195 Neocienus House 15 Floor Limassol C¥-3030 Cyprus 0w urd\-ﬁ-;r?
Eurocenter Betedigungs- und Revsevermittlung GmbH Themas Cook Platz 1 61440 Obarursel Germany 100 ardinary
Feri-u-mat Reisen GmbH Dusseldorfer Strage 83 40667 Meerbusch Garmany - 100 ardinary
Future Travel Limited Wastpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Waod Peterhorough PE2 6FZ England 38 ardinary
100 preference

Gesellschaft fur Reisavertriebssysteme meH Herner Strasse 299 Gebaude A/G 44 809 Bochum Germany 100 ordinary
Happy Camp 5P A Bargo Cavour 21 370N Bardoline Italy 40 ardinary
Helios Palace 54 Innos Oragaum 5 Rhodes Greece 85100 100 ardinary
Hix Express 5L GENERAL RIERA 154 (7010 Palma de Mallorca llles Balears Spamn 100 ordinary
Hotel Investments Sangerme Turzm Ticaret LS Jsmaniye Keyw Sangerme Ortaca 48063 Mugla Turkey 100 ordinaty
Hoteles Sunwing sa _ Cithnervals 07400 Alcudia Spain B ) o 100 ﬁnrdmary
Hatalsdu com Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Paterborough PE26FZ England w0 ordinary
in Destination Incaming S LU " GENERAL RIERA 154 G700 Palma de Mallorca Vs Balears Spam 100  ordinary
Inspirations Limited o Westpmnt Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborgugh PE2 6FZ England o ordinary
IFC Enterprises Limited - Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peté;ﬂd@gh PE2 6FZ England _ 0o ordinary
ITC Travel Investments 51 B Calle General Piera 154 07010 Palma de Mallorca Hes Balears Spain 75 ordinary
Jeropatur-Viagens ¢ Tunsmo Limitada Rotunda da Cruz de Portugal Edifico Caling 8300-999 Silves-Portunal Portugal 100 ardinary
let Eldo Maroc Immeuble Salam n° 21 Les amicales AGADIR Morocco 100 partnershup
Iet Eldo Tunisie Hotet Salammbd 8050 Hammamet Tunisia 100 partnerstup
Jet Margques 3 A 92-98 Boulevard victor Hugo Chichy Cedex France 00 ordinary
JF3 GmbH ~* Elly-Benhorn-Rung 4 12529 Schanefeld Berlin Germany 100 erdinary
JMCH Services Limited Hill #ouse | Little New Street Landen ECAA 3TR Urited Kingdom 100 erdinary
Kelly Holdings Limited 3 Bell Lane Gibraltar 00 ordmary
kestrel Leisure Limited Westpomt Peterborough Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 687 England o 100 erdimary
Kuyi International Travel Agency {Shanghail Co Ltd Room 101G 10th Figor Mo 6 klgng Road (Shanghal Pilot Free Trade Zo China s 45 _ ardinary
LL‘EF{;;FH 123366 Russian Federation Moscow Mira Avenue 150 - - 15 __ ordinary
LLE NTC Intaurist _ 119334 Russian Federation Moscow 5th Donskoy proezd 15 building 5 o % ordinary
LLG Mord GmbH & Co Defta OHG Talzer Stragse 15 82031 Grunwald Germany 100 ordinary
Maretours NV Dlé'sfsesleenweg 141 3202 Aarschat Belgum T ) 33333 ordinary
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20 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED

Proportion of

shares held by

Hame Registered office address the Company % Class of shares
Maovables knversignes 2014 SL Playa del Cura sin 35140 Mogan Las Palmas Spain 100 ordenary
MyTravel 330 Leasing Lrd M&C Corparate Services Limited Ugland House South Church Street PO Box 309 Grand Cayman kY104 100 cumulauve classA B C D
Cayman lslands prefersnce and ardinary

MyTravet Geutschland GmbH Thomas Cook Platz 1 61440 Oberursel Germany 130 ardinary
MyTravel Group Limited Westpomt Peterborough Business Park Lynch Woad Peterbarough PEZ 6FZ England 100 redzemablz preference
and ordirary

Mytravel IFR Ireland Lunited First Floor Rineanna House Shannon Free Zong Shannon Co Clare Ireland o o 0o o _ordinary
MyTravel Lu*E‘mI;Surg Uk Unbimied T westpomt Peterborough Business Park Lynch Waod Peterborough PE26FZ England - o o ordinary
MyTrguel North &merica Limited ) B Westpmint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England _ 100 . ordinary
MyTravel Pion=er Lymitad ) WES[me Dieiterhorough Business Park tynch Wond Peterbcrough PEZ 6FZ England oo ardinary
;‘IIIG_HD_Idngs lnhimited Company B First Flgor fanaanna Nouse Shannon Free Zone Shannon Co Clare Weland _ oo ~ ordinary
NALG l_re_l_aljgﬁﬂﬁéd Company First Floor Rinearna House Shannon Free Zone Shannan Ca Clare Irzland B we ordinary
Neckermann Polska BRSF 200 Aleye Jorozalimshie Nr 94 00 807 Warszawa Poland 100 ordinary
Meckermann Slgualua s ro Panska 23 8101 Brauslava Slovakia 60 ordinary
Meckermann Urlaubswelt GmbH Thomas-Cook-Platz | 61447 Oberursel Germany o 100 ordinary
N-U-R Negtkarmann utazas Szolgiitato Kit Dayka Gabor u5 18 Budapest Hungary . 104 ordinary
Ggar Tours Gmby Heidenkampsweg 81 Hamburg 20097 Germany 100 ordinary
Orlando (ABC) Limitad 14 Charing Cross St Heler JE2 3RP Jersey 100 ardinary
OV Tjaereborg AR urho kekkanens gatan 3 8 FIN-Q0I00 Helsinki Finland 106G ordinary
Park Hotel SMNT 1B rue Trazel 82300 Levallols-Perret France 50 crdinary
Parkway dustrdl.a Holdings Pty Limited C/0 BDW Services Pty Ltd Level 35 Grosvenor Place 225 George Strest Sydney hSw/ NSw 2000 Australia 100 ordinary
garl\;Hway Auto Rzalisations tGermany)\'efmugensverwaltungs Thomas Cook Platz | 51440 Oberursel Germany [} ordinary

ul
Parkway Hellas Ho\dln-gz Limted Westpoint Paterborough Business Park Lynch Wond Deterhornuéh PE2BFZ England o 100 ardinary
Er‘i:vg-;%_\dmgg GmbH Frankfurt am Man Devtschond _ _ oo . ordinary
Parkway Hu\dm;ﬂ[&ﬂ Ratterdam Nethariands 100 . ordnary
Parkway IPR [Cypras) Linutad Makarios Il Avenue 195 Neocleous House 15 Floor Limassol C¥-3030 Cyprus . o g ordinary
Parlowsy PR Limited  Westpaint Peterboraugh Busmess Bark Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 652 England 100 ordmary
Parkway Limitad PO Box 119 Martella Caurt Admiral Park St Peter Port Guernsey GY1 3HB 100 ordinary
Parkway Nederiand B Ratterdam Netherlands @ ordinary
Parkway Ncrthn}; Eurnpa Holding A5 Kay Fiskers Plads 9 4 2300 Copenhagen 5 Denmark, 104 ordinary
Peregrine Leisure Limitad ) Westpamt Peterborough Business Park Lynth Woaod Peterborough FEZ 6F2 England 104 ordenary
Patin Travel 54 24 Lagoumitz Street Kallithea 17671 Athens Greece 45 ordenary
Rescrts Mallorcy Hotels Internatianal S L Calle Genaral Riera 154 07010 Patma de Mallores llles Balears Spam 00 ordinary
Retail Travel Limitad Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ordinary
ROSATA Grundstucks- Yermierungsgesellschaft mbH & Co Mercedessirage 6 40470 Dusselderf Germany 5 ordinary
Objekt am Hammergarten K3 o o -
Sandbrock Qverseas Investments Limded Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Waod Peterborough PE2 6FZ England oo ordinary
Sandarook UK nvestments Limited Westpaint Peterborgugh Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6F2 England o wo ordinary
SATEE GmbH ) Thomas Cook Platz | 61440 Oberursel Germanyr N B 100 ordinary
SENTIDO Hotels & Resorts Gmbk T Thomas Cook Platz | 61440 Gberursel Germany 100 ordinary
Servicios de Admumstranion y Operacien de Hoteles S Ade CV Boulevard Kukulan KM 35 Cancun Duintana Rog Mexice 77500 100 ordinary
Shipping and Aviation industries Limited Hifl House | Little New Street Londan EC44 3TR United Kingdom 100 ordimary
Seciete Tauristique et Hotehere du Senegal SCTHOU_SES A SSRT-Club aldana South Austraha Senegal @5 ordinary
Spies AlS Kay Fiskers Plads 9 2300 Copenhagen S Denmark 100 ordinary
Sumanga Propeataryl Limited Blandford House 27 Calzdon Street Somerset West 7130 1033 ordinary
Sun International (UK Limited Westpoint Peterbarough Business Park Lynch Weod Peterborough PEZ 6F2 England 100 defarred and ordinary
Sunwing Hellas ag Ral 17 SE 105-20 Stockhalm Sweden 100 qrdinary
Sunwing Hotels (Cyprus) Limted 75 Missi Avenie 5340 Ayia Napa Cyprus 100 ordinary
Sunwing Hote!s Hellas SA Box 207 85100 Rhades Graece Ko ardinary
TC Detta GmbH Thamas-Cook-Platz | 61440 Oherursel. Germany __ 100 ordinary
TC in-Destination Management Hellas é;ﬁgle Member PC ILard Byron Street Heraklion Crete 71202 Greecs 00 ordinary
TECT Koldings Limited 44 Esplanade St Heher JE4 OWG Jersey 00 —__ordnary
TCCT Holdings UK Limited westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 665 ordinary &
TCCT ﬁelailelted Westpunt Paterborcugh Busm‘e‘ss Park Lynch Wwood Peterborough PEZ BFL England___ 100 ordinary
TEGH Holdmgs Limited Westpmnt Peterborough Business Park Lynch Woud Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ordinary
TCiM Dmuted Hil House 1Little New Street Landon £C44 5TR United Kingdom 5045 ordinary
TCNE Arreraft Leasing AB Ratamhsvagen I7. SE 105-20 Stockhalm Sweden 100 ordinary
Tedgold Limiteq Suite ] Burns House 19 Town Range Gibraltar 9395 ordinary
The Awrhne Group Linitad cfe National Arr Traffic Services INATSH Brettenham House Seuth Sth Ficor Lancaster Place London 1166 ordinary
WC2N 7EN United Kingdom
Tha Freedom Travel Group Limited Westpoint Peterboraugh Businass Park Lynch Wood Peterberough PE2 6FZ England 00 ordmary
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20 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED

Proportion of
shares he'd by

Name Registered office address the Company % Class of shares
THG Touristik GmbH Thomas-Cook-Platz 1 6i440 Qberursel Germany 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook (CIS] 45 Ralambsvagen 17 5105 20 Stockholm 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Aw Kersskedalm &s Szolgaltatd Kft Dayka Gabor u & WM& Budapest Hungary 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Arcraft Engmzenng fMexical S A de CV Maniposa No 394 Col Smza 51 Cancun Cancun Benito Juarez Quintana Roo CP 77533 Mexico 100 prdinary
Thomas Coox Aircraft Enginearing Inc 271 Centervile Road Wilmingtan Delawara 19865 UsA 100 ordinary
Thomas Coak Aweraft Engmeenng Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch'Woed Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 103 ordinary
Thomas Conk Arrlines Balsarics SL Calig Fray Jurper Serra & Entlo 07014 Palma de Matlarca Illes Balaes Spain o g o _ordinary
Thomas Cook Aulines Belgnun-ﬂ_-r-w T Bedrijvenzone Diegem-Luchthaven 45 1831 Diegem Belgium o o 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Arlines Limited Westpaint Petarborough Business Dark -L-ync-h wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 10¢ ardinary
Thomas Cook Arlines Standinawa A5 T Hangar 276 Copenhagen Awport DK-2781 Drago) Denmark R "0 ordinary
Thomas Cook Arport ServiceGmbH Thamas Cook Piatz | 61440 Cherursel Germany ~ o 104 ardinary
Thomas Coak Austria AS Ungargasse 53-61 1030 Wien Austria B 1049 ardinary
Thomas Cook Belgium Ny Tramstraat 63-67 9052 Gent Belgium 100 ordinary
Themas Cook Brok &r Services 92198 Boulevard V.ctor Hugo 92115 Clichy Cedex France 100 ordinary
Thoras Coak Cabm {rews GmbH* Thomas-Cook-Platz t 61440 Oberursel Germany 100 ordinary
Thoras Cook Continental Holdings Limited Westpaint Peterborough Busingss Park Lynch'Wood Peterborough PEZ BFZ England 109 ardinary
Thomas Conk Cruree Services Limitad Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynchwood Peterborough PE2 BFZ England 100 ordinary
Fhomas Cook Destination Services Inc Margan Lewss & Bockius 5300 First Uraon F nanaial Sentar 200 Scuth Biscayne Bowlevard 100 ordinary
Hsami 33131-2339

Thomas Cook Destinations GmbH Thomas Couk Platz 1 61440 Cberursel Germany 100 ardinary
Thomas Conk Finance pic! Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England _ oo _ . _ordinary
Thomas Cook Financial Services Belgium _ Tramstraat 63-65 9052 Gent Belgium ] B o 100 ardinary
Thomas Coak Franc_e_HoieHe-(ml_dmg SARL 92198 Boulevard Victor Hugo 92015 Clichy Cedex France i - 0o ) urdsngry
Thomas Cook France S AS " 92i38 Boulevard ‘ViﬂOF Hugo 92115 Chichy Cedex France . L 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook GmbH' ' Thomas Cook Platz | 61340 Oberursel GermaF ) 100 _ ordnary
Thomas Cook Group Airlines Limited Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Eeterbumugh DE? 6FZ £ngland 100 ardinary
Themas Coak Group Hedging Limited Westpoint Peterborpugh Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ordinary
Themas Coak Group Management Services Limited' ‘Westpoint Peterborgugh Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ £ngland 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Group Tour Operations Limed' Wastpairt Peterborough Business Park Lynch Woad Peterborcugh PEZ 6FZ England 100 redeemable preference

preference ordmary

Thomas Coox Group Treasury Lumited

- Westpaint Peterbargugh Business Park Lynch wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England

100 redeemable prefarence ordinary

Themas Coak Group UK Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Haldeo 2 Limited! Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch 'Wood Peterkorough PE2 6FZ England 100 orginary
Thomas Cook In Bestination Services Limited Westpaint Peterhorough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ardinary
Thomas Caak Indian P Limited Wastpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ £ngland 100 ordinary
Thomas Cogk International AG __ Poststr 4 8808 Pfaffken Switzerland B _ 0o ordinary
Thomas Cook \n;fes(ments{ﬁl Limited' Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborcugh PEZ BFZ England 100 ardinary
Thomas Cock Meney Australia Ply Ltd Wheeler Accous?mg & Taxation Pty Ltd Swite 246 17 0ld Pittweater Road Brookvale NSW 2100 Austiahia 100 ordmnary
Thomas Cogk Money Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Dark lynch’Wnnd Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England oo N ordinary
Thomas Cook Nedzrland BY _ Speealaandl 213216 Hoofddorp Netherlands ) o 100 ardinary
Thamas Cook Nordic Holdings AB Ralambsvagen 17 SE 10520 Stackholm Sweden oo ~ ordmary
Thomas Coak Northern Europs AfS an Fiskers Plads 9 iioé Cbpenhagen 3 Denmark 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Northern Eurgpe AB Ralambsvagen 17 5-105 20 Stackholm 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Onlime Limited Maont Crevait House Bulwer Avenue St Sampsan Guarnsey GY2 4LH 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Pension Trust Limited Westpaint Peterborgugh Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborcugh PE2 6FZ England 100 ardinary
Thamas Cook Retail Belgum Ny Tramstraat 67C 9052 Gent Belgum 100 ordinary
Thomas Ceck Retall Limited Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Patarborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ordinary
Thamas Coak Retail NV Tramstraat 678 9052 Gent Belmum 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook 510 Praha Czech Repubhc 100 ordinary
Thomas Coak SAS 92-38 Boulevard Victor Hugo 92110 Chichy France 100 ordinary
Thomas Cock Service AG " poststrassed 8808 Paeftkon Switzerland o e bearer
Thomas Cook Services Lmited Westpaint Peterborough Business Park -Lyncl;vi'n-ud Peterborough PEZ EFZ England o - ordinary
Thomas Coak Tour Operations Limited Wwestpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE2 6F2 England 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Tounistik GmbH* Thomas Cook Platz 1 61440 Oberursel Germany o _ o - 7mdmar}
Thamas Cock Travel Pension Trustees Limited Westpaint Peterborough Business DEII_L-);nch Woad Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England Elmlied by nfa
uarantee
Thomas ook Treasury Limited Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6FZ England 100 ordinary
Thomas Ceok UK Limited Westpoint Deterborough Business Park Lynch wWood Peterborough PE2 6FZ England 100 ordinary
Thamas Cook UK Travel Limitad Westpaint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterbarough PEZ BFZ England 100 ordinary
Thomas Cook Vertrighs GmbH* Thomas Cook Platz 1 61440 Cberursel Germany 0o ardinary
Thomas Cock West Hoidings Limited Westpoint Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterbgrough PEZ 6FZ England 100 ordinary
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINUED

20 SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED

Proportion of
shares held by

Name Registered office address the Company % Class of shares
Thomas Cook West Investments Limited ‘Westpoint Peterborough Busmess Park Lynch Woad Peterharough PE2 687 England oo ordinary
TK Marketing Et Services Ruz du tac dz fenstance - Les Berges du Lac Tumis 1053 Tumisie 93 95 o ordinary
Tour Vital Tounistsk GmbH* mﬁwaq & 50679 Kok Germany 100 ordinary
Tourmajar Limited Westpmat Peterborough Busingss Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PEZ 6F2 England 100 B ordinary
Travel Allance a s Amenicka 36i9 vinohrady 120 00 Praha Czech Republic 40 ordinary
Travel ond Financial Services Limited Westpont Peterborough Business Park Lynch Wood Peterborough PE? 6FZ England 0o ordenary
Travel Technalogy Initiative Lmitzd B virtana House 51Victona Street Bristgl fvon BS1EAD Un_|t_ed ringdam o 909 . T ;\ar;
Umivers Holdays S o __ Bouevard du 22 Aout Eomplaxe Hotel Treoh Agadi Morocco ~ 5 ordmary
VA Insurance Servces Limited ] Tower House Lach Promenade Douglas M) 2LZ Isl= of Man e e . 7ordmar,‘
¥ing Norge A/S _ Drorming Eufemias gate 16 0791 0slo Norway } o 100 e ordinary
Ving Sverige A8 Ralambsvagan 17 5 12520 Stockholm Stackholm Sweden 100 R 77 a}dmary
VR Espana$a ¥7 Mvda Da Turte |8 San Fernando deﬁ.’aspa\mmas San Bartolome dg Tirajana 35 Las Paimas o0 T ordinary
Wavell Holdings BY Rotterdam Netherlands 100 ordimary
White Horsa Adm:mistration Services Lumited First Floor Rineanna House Shannon Free Zane Shannon Co Clare Ireland - - ordinary
White Horse Insurance Irgland Designated Activsty Company  First Floar Rinearna Hause Shannon free Zong Shannon Co Clage Ireland i 100 ordinary

1 Shares hetd directly by Thomas Cook Graup ple

2 Alirisks and rewards continue to be held by the Group and w accardance with accounung standards the entity has been treated as bewng 180% controlled and fully consoldated by the Group
3 The company has exereised its night of exemption under s2ction 264{3) German Handzlsgesetzbuch 1HGB!
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SEVEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Restated(l}

| 017

2018 2015 2014 2018 2012 on
Income Statement o B
Statutory (£m) - o ) B B
Revenue {£m) 9.007 7810 7834 8.588 9315 9195 9.809
Gross profit (£Em) 1,993 1820 1772 1866 2020 2031 2098
Gross profit margin (%) i A% 233K 226% A7% A7% 221% 214%
Drofitfilass) from aperations (Em] 231 197 2 52 F ) (267)
Interest (£m) ~ {184) (153} l189) (168) 077) (168} (135}
profitflloss) before taxation {(Fm) 46 34 50 {114) {163) (337) (398}
Profit/lloss) for the financial year [£m) 12 I 9 - ns) @3 . lesh o {518)
Weighted average number of shares
{mllions) 1.532 1530 1.487 1440 1196 872 858
Basic and dituted loss per ordinary share 0.8 03 16 (8.2) 171) 67.2) (60.7)
Underlying o T L j B o
Revenue [Em} o s.0w 7810 7834 8588 9315 9185 9809
Gross profit (Em) 1995 1829 1774 1916 2059 2026 2160
Gross profit margin {£m) 221% 23.4% 226% 22 3% 221% 220% 22 0%
EBITIEM) 330 2 I 33 23 177 304
Underlying EBIT (%) 37% 39% - 4.0% 3.8% 28% 1.9% 31%
Separately disclosed items (Em) {400 0z 20 (296) o lean {393) 1573)
Underlying interest (Em) (143) 0140} (14) 143) 146) 128) (123)
Underlying profit before tax (Em) 187 162 170 182 1] 56 175
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 1532 1530 1487 1.440 1196 872 858
Underlying EPS _ o 9.3 8l 89 3 50 s 02
Like for like o i
Revenue (£m) - 9,007 5,285 8792 8.819 90al 92 8,924
Grass profit (Em) 1995 1939 1968 184l 1947 1921 1922
Gross profit margin (%) T 2 23.4% 22.4% 221% 214% % A%
EBIT {Em) 330 306 360 327 208 172 262
Interest (£m) R 4 (1al) (143) (148) (142) (130)
Separately disclosed items (Em} (140} {128} (120 {296) (263) {272 {489)
Profit before taxation (£m) 46 38 100 {1:0) {201} {239) (364)
Profit for the financial year {£m} 12 3 59 0] 1248} (332) (478)
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SEVEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

CONTINUED

Restated (i)

07 2016 2019 2014 [ 2013 2012 200
Statement of financial position (Em) .
Total assets ) 6,615 6943 5958 5794 6.285 5.907 690
Current assets 2241 2645 2035 1879 1933 1524 1646
Current liabilities {4325) i4633) {3702) {3894} {3888} (3540 {3769
Net penision deficit - (325) (457 (279 (428) (404) (33]) {331)
Net Assets 280 326 315 239 548 458 1183
Net deht:2 (40) (128) 128) (315} RN 792) (894)
Statement of cash flows (Em) i o _ o e
Operating cash flow . 496 395 an 335 339 152 289
Investing activities ) 9y 12000 (180} {78) iIB2) 53 UG
Financing activities e 1360] 10 23 178 (74 2]
Exchange (losses)/gains 45 s (35) (52) 2 9 [3)
Net {decreaselfincrease in cash
and cash cquivatents 122 lgs) 304 _ 633 13 28
Capex o 206 206 200 156 151 138 187
Averags number of employees 21788 20940 21813 22677 76448 32250 31097

{1} See Note 33 for detauls of restatement

(20 FYN to FYIS Net Debt figures have been restated in accordance with new Net Debt measurs adopted in F¥I6 Net debt comprises bank and oiher borrawings finance lease payables net dervativz
financial instruments used 1o hedge exposura to interest rate nisks of bank and ather borrawings affset by cash and tash equivalents
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM)

The AGM will be held at Ist Floor. North Buillding. 200 Aldersgate,
London ECIA 4HD on 8 February 2018 at 10 30am. The last date
for AGM proxy votes to be received by the Registrar is 10 30am
6 February 2018

All Shareholders can submit their proxy vote for the AGM
electronically at www sharevote couk To register their vote
Shareholders will need the numbers detailed on their form of proxy

Alternatively. Shareholders who have already registered

with Shareview can submit their proxy vote by logging on to
. www shareviewcouk and clicking on the link to vote underneath
‘ their Thomas Cook Group plc holding
|

SHARE REGISTER AND SHAREHOLDER ENQUIRIES

The Company's share register 1s maintained by Equiniti
Queries relating to Thomas Cook Group ple shares should be
| addressad te

The Registrar

Equinit

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex BN39 6DA

Tel 0371 384 2154*
{International telephone number, +44 (0121 415 0182)

* Lmas are open 8 300m te 5 30pm (London time) Monday to Friday (excluding UK pubhic holidays!

" Shareholders should quote the Company reference number 3174 and
¢ thelr Shareholder reference number [which can be found on their
share certificates] when contacting the Registrar

SHAREVIEW

To be able to access information about their shares and other
Investments online, Shareholders can register with Shareview
(www sharaview.co uk) Registration is free; Shareholders will
need their Sharehalder reference number which is shown on their
. form of proxy and share certificate By registering for this service,
| Shareholders will

> help reduce paper, print and postage costs;

> help the environment:

> be able to submit their quenes by email. and

> be able to manage their shareholding easily and securely online

Once registered, whenever Shareholder decuments are available,
Shareholders will be sent a link to the appropriate website.
where the documents will be available to view or dewnload.
Receiving documents online does not affect Shareholders rights
in any way.

WEBSITE

The Group's corporate website. wwwthomascookgroup.com.
provides information including.

> news, updates press releases and regulatory announcements.

> investor information, including the Annual Report, financial results,
financial calendar and share price information,

> details of Shareholder meetings and poll results;

> biographies of the Board of Directors,

> the Company's Articles of Association. the Terms of Reference for
the Committees of the Board and the Board Appointments Policy:
and

> sustainability reporting

MULTIPLE ACCOUNTS ON THE SHARE REGISTER

If a Shareholder receives two or more sets of the documents
concerning the AGM. this means that there 15 more than one account
in their name on the Shareholder register, perhaps because either the
name or the address appears on each account in a slightly different
way. For security reasons. Equiniti will not amalgamate the accounts
without the Shareholder's written consent. Therefore, if a Shareholder
would like their multiple accounts to be combined. they should write
to Equiniti. detalling the different Shareholder reference numbers, and
request that they be combined into cne account

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

At the AGM on 10 April 2008. the Company passed a resclution
allowing the Groups corporate website to be used as the primary
means of commupnication with its Shareholders. A consultation card
was sent to Shareholders enabling them to choose either to.

> receive notification by email when Shareholder documentation is
available on the website. or
> continue to receive Shareholder documentation in hard copy.

Sharehalders who did not respond were deemed. in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006, to have agreed tc receive Shareholder
documentation via the Company's corporate website

These arrangements for electronic Shareholder communications
provide Shareholders with the epportunity to access information in
a timely manner and help the Company to reduce both its cests and
its environmental impact

DIVIDEND
The Board has proposed a final dividend of 0.6 pence per share.

The ex-dividend date will be 8 March 2018 and, subject to
Sharehclder appreoval at the 2018 Annual General Meeting. the final
dividend of 0.6 pence will be paid on 5 April 2018 to Shareholders on
the register at the close of business on 9 March 2018.

More informaticn about our dividend policy can be found on page 73.
If you have any questions about the payment of this dividend, please
contact our Registrars Equiniti, whose contact details are set out on
this page
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
CONTINUED

THOMAS COOK AG/MYTRAVEL GROUP PLC
! MERGER

Thomas Cook Group plc was formed in June 2007 upon the merger
of Thomas Cook AG and MyTravei Group plc

MyTravel Group plc Shareholders received one Thomas Coak

Group plc Qrdinary Share for every one MyTravel Group plc share
previously held MyTravel Group pic share certificates are no longer
valid and can be destroyed. Replacement Thomas Cook Group ple
share certificates were sent ta Shareholders, who held shares in
certificated form. on or around 19 June 2007 If you have any queries
relating to this please contact the Registrar.

WARNING TO SHAREHOLDERS ABOUT SHARE
FRAUD

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure
nvestors into scams.

They may offer to sell shares that turn out to be worthless or
non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated price in return for an
upfront payment.

While high profits are promised. if you buy or sell shares in this way
you will probably fose your money

5000 people contact the Financial Conduct Authority about share
fraud each year. with victims 103ing an average of £20.000.

How to avoid share fraud

If you are offered unseolicited investment advice, discounted

shares, a premium price for shares you own or free company or

research reports. you should take these steps before handing over

any money

1 Keep in mind that firms authorised by the FCA are unlikely to
contact you out of the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares

2 Do nct get inte a conversation. note the name of the person
and firm contacting you and then end the call

3 Check the Financial Services Register from wwwfca org uk
to see if the person and firm contacting you is authorised by
the FCA.

4 Beware of fraudsters claming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website or giving you false contact details.

5 Use the firm's contact details listed on the Register if you want
to call it back.

" 6. Call the FCA on 0800 1l 6768 if the firm dees not have contact
details on the Register or you arg teld they are out of date

7. Search the list of unauthorised firms to avoid at www fca org uk/
scams.

8. Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm
you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service ar
Financial Services Compensation Scheme

9 Think about getting independent financial and professional
advice befcre you hand over any money.

10. Remember: if it sounds too good to be true. it probably is!
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REPORTA SCAM

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the FCA
using the share fraud reporting form at www.fca govuk/scams.
where you can find out about the latest mvestment scams You can
also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768 If you have
already paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action
Fraud on 0300123 2040

SHAREGIFT

Shareholders with a small number of shares the value of which
make 1t unecanomical to sell. may wish to consider donating them
to the chanty ShareGift (Registered Charity Number 1052686).
which specialises in using such holdings for chantable benefit,
Find out more about ShareGift at www sharegift.org or by
telephoning +44 (0120 7930 3737

SHAREVIEW DEALING

A telephone and internet dealing service has been arranged
through the Registrar to provide a simple way of buying and

selling Thomas Cook Group ple shares for existing and prospective
UK-based Shareholders For telephone dealing call 03456 037 037
{international telephone number +44 {ON21 415 7560) between
8.00am and 4.30pm [London time). Monday to Friday (excluding UK
public helidays), or visit the website: www.shareview co.uk/dealing
Shareholders will need the Shareholder reference number shown on
their share certificate(s)

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This Annual Report has been prepared for. and only for the
members of the Company. as a body. and no other persons

The Company. its Oirectors, employees. agents or advisers do not
accept or assume responsibility to any other person to whom this
document is shown or Into whose hands it may come and any such
responsibiity or liability is expressly disclaimed. By their nature

the statements concerning the risks and uncertainties facing

the Group In this Annual Report involve uncertainty since future
events and circumstances can cause results and developments

to differ materially from those anticipated The forward-locking
statements reflect knowledge and information available at the date
of preparation of this Annual Report and the Company undertakes
no obligation to update these forward-ooking statements.




Registered office
3rd Floor, South Building, 200 Aldersgate. London ECIA 4HD
Registered Number: 6021951

SHAREHOLDER CONTACTS

Shareholder Helpline. 0371 384 2154
{International telephone number, +44 {01121 415 0182)

Website www.thomascookgroup com

Registrar s website: www shareview co uk

Lines are open 8 30am to 5 30pm (London time Mcnday to Friday
{excluding UK pubiic holidays!}

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Date l Event

B_Fébruary 2016 Q1208 Quarterly Results

8 February 2018 Annygl General Meeting

17 May 2018 Interim results for six months ended 31 March 2018

31 July 2018 03 2018 Quarterly Results

Graph removed

www.thomascookgroup.com

The Thomas Cook Group website provides news and
details of the Group's activities, plus links to our customer
sites and up-to-date infermation. including

> corporate news

> prasentations

> share price data

> hustoric Annual and Sustainability Reports

» half-year results and interim management statements
> news alerts

> career opportunities
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